(9:05 A.M.) 1 with me is Marcen Green, external counsel C1IAIRMAN: 2 for the Foard, and Cheryl Blundon, our Board secretary. Q. with you, sir. 4 CHAIRMAN: W. YOUNG: 5 0. Q. Thank you, Sir. 8 0. MR. YOUNG: 7 REPORTER: 8 Q. Thank you, Mr. Chair. Mr. Fred Cass, external counsel, is going to be leading the argument today, and my nume is, as you mentioned, Geoff Young, Newfoundland and Labrador Hydro, and also with us is Tracy Pennell, counsel. 10 Q. Right And Power? Q. And Light and Power? 13 Q. Thank you, Sir. 14 of Authorities that has been provided. I Q. And Light and Power? 15 Rino Mati I don't expect to dwell on any of these. They're just provided for very limited provery limited provided for very limited provided		Page 1			Page 3
CHAIRMAN: 2 for the Board, and Cheryl Blundon, our Board secretury. 4 CHAIRMAN: 4 CHAIRMAN: 4 CHAIRMAN: 4 CHAIRMAN: 4 CHAIRMAN: 5 0, Mr. Young, Ibelieve we start with you, sir. 50, Mr. Young, Ibelieve we start with you, sir. 50, Mr. Young, Ibelieve we start with you, sir. 4 CHAIRMAN: 7 0, That's right. 7 0, That's right and Power? 7 1, That's right in Jooks somewhat Irage, so That's right in Jooks somewhat Irage in Jooks and the some source of the Some somewhat Irage in Jooks and the Source of Somewhat Irage in Jooks and the Source of Somewhat Irage in Jooks and the source of the Somewhat Irage in Jooks and the Source of Source of Source Source and Hays, so That's right in Jooks somewhat Irage in Jooks and the Source of Source of Source Source Source Irage in Jooks and the Source of Source Source Irage in Jooks and the Source Source Source Source Source Source Source Source So	(9:05 A.M.)	6	1		•
Q. Well, good moming everybody. I don't think there's any preliminary matters, so I have been instructed to ask the parties to introduce themselves for the official record. So, Mr. Young, Jier, Wr. Young, Jier, MR. YOUNG: 3 Scretary. Q. Thank you, Mr. Chair. Mr. Freed Cass, external counsel, is going to be leading the argument today, and my name is, as you mentioned, Geoff Young, Newfoundland and Labrador Hydro, and also with us is Tracy Pennell, counsel. 10 Q. Right. I though I recognized you. Mr. Young, sir, or Mr. Cass, I guess. Q. And Light and Power? 11 Young, sir, or Mr. Cass, I guess. Q. And Light and Power? 11 Young, sir, or Mr. Cass, I guess. Q. Good morning, Mr. Chairman, Commissioners. 12 MR. CASS Q. Good morning, Mr. Chair, Commissioners. 11 In my submissions, I will start, of course, with the Board. Stears setting out the questions of concern to the Board. Q. Good morning, Mr. Chair, Commissioners. 11 In my submissions, I will start, of first set of issues uppear under the heading 'test year' and there's some explanatory comments there that indicate Q. Good morning, Mr. Chair, Commissioner. 22 Thar's the lefter of January 18th of this year. Q. Good morning, Mr. Chair, and Commissioner. 22 Thar's the lefter		:			
there's any preliminary matters, so I have been instructed to ask the parties to introduce themselves for the official record. So, Mr. Young, I believe we start with you, sir. 4 CHAIRMAN: MR. YOUNG: 7 RFPORTER: 8 Q. That's right. WR.YOUNG: 9 CHAIRMAN: 8 Q. That's right. Q. Thank you, Mr. Chair. Mr. Fred Cass, external counsel, is going to be leading the argument today, and my name is, as you mentioned, Ceord Young, Nevfoundland and Labrador Hydro, and also with us is Tracy Pennell, counsel. 9 CHAIRMAN: 13 Q. Thank you, sir. Mr. Chairman, we have a set of Authorities that has been provided. 1 Q. And Light and Power? 17 any of these. They?r guit provided for Newfoundland Power, and with me is Mr. Gerard Hayes, inside counsel for Newfoundland Power, and with me is Mr. Q. 10 In my submission, I will start, of suma year. The first set of issues appear under the very limit set setting out the questions of concern to the Board. Q. Good morning, Mr. Chair, Commissioner. Newfoundland Power. 21 the duest is these questions there at under the submission, we have a set of course, with the Board Tayset, misside coursel for Newfoundland Power. 23 year. The first set of issues appear under the keading ''test year'' and there's some explanatory comments there that indicate setting out makes will be come effective in 2016 Q. G					· · · · · ·
been instructed to ask the parties to introduce themselves for the official record. So, Mr. Young, I believe we start with you, sir. R. YOUNG: Q. Thank you, Mr. Chair, Mr. Fred Cass, external counsel, is going to be leading the argument today, and my name is, as you mentioned, Geoff Young, Newfoundland and Labrador Hydro, and also with us is Tracy Pennell, counsel. CHAIRMAN: Q. And Light and Power? MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Good morning, Mr. Chairman, Commissioners. Liam O'Brien, outside counsel for Newfoundland Power. MR. COXWORTHY: Argument for the Jahnd Labrador Hydro, missioners. Q. Good morning, Mr. Chair, Commissioners. Liam O'Brien, outside counsel for Newfoundland Power. MR. COXWORTHY: Argument for the Jahnd Labrador Hydro, Mr. Chair, Commissioners. Q. Good morning, Mr. Chair, Commissioner. Liam O'Brien, outside counsel for Newfoundland Power. MR. COXWORTHY: Argument for the start of sumes appear under MR. COXWORTHY: Argument for the start of sumes appear under MR. COXWORTHY: Argument for the laland 1 the the courd isses may equivalent the the dusting Coxworthy, Dean Potter for the Island 1 the the Board nists there quotsions 1 the beard nists the read night in the starting poi				CHAIRMAN	5
introduce themselves for the official record. So, Mr. Young, I believe we start with you, sir. MR. YOUNG: Q. Thank you, Mr. Chair. Mr. Fred Cass, external counsel, is going to be leading the argument today, and my name is, as you mentioned, Geoff Young, Newfoundland and Labrador Hydro, and also with us is Tracy Pennell, counsel. CHAIRMAN: CHAIRMAN: Q. And Light and Power? MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Good morning, Mr. Chairman, Commissioner. Q. Good morning, Mr. Chair, Commissioner. Page 2 MR. COXWORTHY: Q. Good morning, Mr. Chair, Commissioner. Q. Good morning, Mr. Chair, Commissioner. Page 2 MR. COXWORTHY: Q. Good morning, Mr. Chair, Commissioner. Q. Good morning, Mr. Chair, Commissioner. Page 2 MR. COXWORTHY: Q. Good morning, Mr. Chair and Commissioner. Page 4 MR. JOINSON: MR. CLUK: MR. LUK: MR. CASK: MR. CASK: MR. CASK: MR. LUK: MR. CASK: MR. CAKKY, Dean Poteret for			5		
record. So, Mr. Young, I believe we start with you, sir. MR. YOLNG: Q. Thank you, Mr. Chair. Mr. Fred Cass, external counsel, is going to be leading the argument today, and my name is, as you mentioned, Geoff Young, Newfoundland and Labrador Hydro, and also with us is Tracy Pennell, counsel. Q. And Light and Power? MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And Light and Power? MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And Light and Power? MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Good morning, Mr. Chairman, Commissioners. I. Good morning, Mr. Chairman, Commissioners. Q. Good morning, Mr. Chairr, Commissioner. MR. COSWORTHY: Q. Good morning, Mr. Chair, Commissioner. Page 2 Page 2 Page 2 Page 4 1 Coxworthy, Dean Potter for the Island 1 MR. COSWORTHY: Q. Good morning, Mr. Chair and Commissioners. 1 4 Q. Good morning, Mr. Chair and Commissioner. 2 1 1 1 2 1 2 2 1 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 3 2 3 2 3 2 3 2 3 2 3 2 3 2 3 2 3 2 3 2 3 2 3 2 3 3 2 3 3 3 4 3 3 4 3 3 4 3 4 3 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4		-		.	-
with you, sir. 8 Q. That's right. MR, YOUNG: 9 CHAIRMAN: Q. Thank you, Mr. Chair. Mr. Fred Cass, external counsel, is going to be leading the argument today, and my name is, as you mentioned, Gcoff Young, NewFoundland and Labrador Hydro, and also with us is Tracy Pennell, counsel. 10 Q. Right. 1 thought 1 recognized you. Mr. Young, Sir, or Mr. Cass, I guess. 12 MR. CASS: 10 Q. Pennell, counsel. 14 Or Authorities that has been provided. I Q. And Light and Power? 17 any of these. They're just provided for Q. Good morning, Mr. Chairman, Commissioners. 19 In my submissions, I will start, of Q. Good morning, Mr. Chair, Commissioner. 21 the questions of concern to the Board. Year. The first set of sisues appear under 23 year. The first set of sisues appear under NR. COXWORTHY: 24 the heading "test year" and there's some Q. Good morning, Mr. Chair and Commissioners. 2 the adue proposals for relief in 2 Industrial Customer group. 3 while Hydro has made proposals for relief in 3 MR. JOHNSON: 4 Good morning, Mr. Chair and Commissioners. 4 Section 3 adm test with the straige point to 4 Q. Good morning, Mr. Chair and Commissio			-	REPORTER :	
MR. YOUNG: 9 CHAIRMAN: Q. Thank you, Mr. Chair, Mr. Fred Cass, external counsel, is going to be leading the argument today, and my name is, as you mentioned, Geoff Young, Newfoundland and Labrador Hydro, and also with us is Tracy Pennell, counsel. 12 MR. CASS: Imationed, Geoff Young, Newfoundland and Labrador Hydro, and also with us is Tracy Pennell, counsel. 13 Q. Thank you, sir. Mr. Chairman, we have a set of Authorities that has been provided. I know that i looks somewhat large, so TII Q. And Light and Power? 17 any of these. They're just provided for very limited purposes. Q. Good morning, Mr. Chairman, Commissioners. 19 In my submissions, I will start, of course, with the Board's letter setting out Newfoundland Power, and with me is Mr. Q. Good morning, Mr. Chair, Commissioner. 20 course, with the Board's letter setting out Newfoundland Power. Q. Good morning, Mr. Chair, Commissioner. 21 the theading "test year" and there's some explanatory comments there that indicate Q. Good morning, Mr. Chair, Commissioner. 22 Page 4 1 Customity, Dean Porter for the Island 1 that the Board raises these questions 2 Industrial Customer group. 2 because rates will become effective in relief in respect of 2014 and 2015 and rates will not ocall there's some explexi w		-	8	0.	That's right.
Q. Thank you, Mr. Chair, Mr. Fred Cass, external counsel, is going to be leading the argument today, and my name is, as you mentioned, Geoff Young, Newfoundland and Labrador Hydro, and also with us is Tracy Pennell, counsel. 10 Q. Right. I thought I recognized you. Mr. Young, sir, or Mr. Cass. I guess. Q. And Light and Power? 13 Q. Thank you, sir. Mr. Chairman, we have a set of Authorities that has been provided. I reassure you that it looks somewhat large, so 1'll CHAIRMAN: 16 reassure you that loo'l expect to dwell on any of these. They're just provided for Q. Good morning, Mr. Chairman, Commissioners. 19 In my submissions, I will start, of Q. Good morning, Mr. Chairman, Commissioners. 19 In my submissions, I will start, of Q. Good morning, Mr. Chair, Commissioner. 21 the questions of concern to the Board. Newfoundland Power. 23 year. The first set of suce appear under Q. Good morning, Mr. Chair, Commissioner. 24 the beading resise suce appear under Q. Good morning, Mr. Chair, and Commissioner. 3 while Hydro has made proposals for relief in Q. Good morning, Mr. Chair and Commissioner. 2 because rates will become effective in 2016 MR. JOHNSON: 3 while Hydro has made proposals	MR. YOUNG	-			
external counsel, is going to be leading the argument today, and my name is, as you mentioned, Geoff Young, Newfoundland and Labrador Hydro, and also with us is Tracy Pennell, counsel. CHAIRMAN: Q. And Light and Power? MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Good morning, Mr. Chairman, Commissioners. Liam O'Brien, outside counsel for Newfoundland Power, and with me is Mr. Gerard Hayes, inside counsel for Newfoundland Power, and with me is Mr. Gerard Hayes, inside counsel for Newfoundland Power, and with me is Mr. Gerard Hayes, inside counsel for Newfoundland Power. MR. COXWORTHY: Q. Good morning, Mr. Chair, Commissioner. Industrial Customer group. MR. COXWORTHY: Q. Good morning, Mr. Chair, Commissioner. P. Coxworthy, Dean Porter for the Island 1 the heading "test year" and there's some Q. Good morning, Mr. Chair, Commissioner. 1 Industrial Customer group. MR. JOHNSON: MR. JOHNSON: MR. JOHNSON: MR. Q. Good morning, Mr. Chair and Commissioner. MR. CoXudo morning, Mr. Chair and Commissioner. MR. CoXudort HY: Colleague, Greg Kirby. MR. JOHNSON: MR. JOHNSON: MR. Good morning, Mr. Chair and Commissioner. MR. Colleague, Greg Kirby. MR. Chair and Commissioner. MR. Colleague, Greg Kirby. MR. JOHNSON: MR. JOHNSON: MR. M. LUK: MR. LUK: MR. LAbrador Limited. I expect Tom O'Reilly to be joining me Later in the morning. MR. Chair and Commissioner. MR. Colleague, Greg Kirby. MR. JOHNSON: MR. JOHNSON: MR. JOHNSON: MR. JOHNSON: MR. JOHNSON: MR. Godo morning, Mr. Chair and Commissioner. MR. Colleague, Greg Kirby. MR. Chair and Commissioner. MR. Colleague, Greg Kirby. MR. Chair and Commissioner. MR. JOHNSON: MR. JOHNSON					
argument today, and my name is, as you mentioned, Geoff Young, Newfoundland and Labrador Hydro, and also with us is Tracy Pennell, counsel. CHAIRMAN: Q. And Light and Power? IS CHAIRMAN: Q. Good morning, Mr. Chairman, Commissioners. Liam O'Brien, outside counsel for Newfoundland Power, and with me is Mr. Gerard Hayes, inside counsel for Newfoundland Power. MR. COXWORTIIY: Q. Good morning, Mr. Chairman, Commissioner. D. Good morning, Mr. Chair, Commissioner. Newfoundland Power. MR. COXWORTIIY: Q. Good morning, Mr. Chair, Commissioner. Page 2 MR. COXWORTIIY: Q. Good morning, Mr. Chair, Commissioner. Page 2 MR. COXWORTIIY: Q. Good morning, Mr. Chair and Commissioner. Page 2 MR. JOINSON: MR. JOINSON: MR. JOINSON: MR. JOINSON: MR. Dilaysen, Consumer advocate, and my be joining Mr. Chair and Commissioner. MR. JOINSON: MR. Coxworthy, Dean Porter for the Island Q. Good morning, Mr. Chair and Commissioner. MR. JOINSON: MR. JOINSON: MR. Q. Good morning, Mr. Chair and Commissioner. MR. JOINSON: MR. JOINSON: MR. JOINSON: MR. DOINSON: MR. JOINSON: MR. JOINSON: MR. Diage 2 MR. JOINSON: MR.		-			
mentioned, Geoff Young, Newfoundland and Labrador Hydro, and also with us is Tracy 14 0. Thank you, sir. Mr. Chairman, we have a set of Authorities that has been provided. I CHAIRMAN: 16 resume that it looks somewhat large, so l'll CHAIRMAN: 16 resume that it looks somewhat large, so l'll Q. Good morning, Mr. Chairman, Commissioners. 19 In my submissions, l will start, of Q. Good morning, Mr. Chairman, Commissioners. 19 In my submissions, l will start, of Gerard Hayes, inside counsel for 20 course, with the Board's letter setting out Newfoundland Power, and with me is Mr. 21 the questions of concern to the Board. MR. COXWORTHY: 24 the heading 'test year' and there' some Q. Good morning, Mr. Chair, Commissioner. Paul 25 explanatory comments there that indicate Page 4 1 that the Board raises these questions 16 result was and proposals for relief in 3 MR. JOHNSON: 3 while Hydro has made proposals for relief in respect of 2014 and 2015 and rates will not actually be effective in either 2014 or 6 cold morning, Mr. Chair and Commissioners. 4 respect of 2014 and 2015 and rates will not 7 <td< td=""><td></td><td></td><td></td><td>MR. CASS:</td><td></td></td<>				MR. CASS:	
Labrador Hydro, and also with us is Tracy 14 of Authorities that has been provided. 1 Pennell, counsel. 15 know that it looks somewhat large, so I'll CHAIRMAN: 16 reassure you that 1 don't sexpect to dwell on 'a sexpect to dwell on't appect to dwell on any of these. They're just provided for Q. Good morning, Mr. Chairman, Commissioners. 19 In my submissions, I will start, of Liam O'Brien, outside counsel for 20 course, with the Board's letter setting out Newfoundland Power, and with me is Mr. 21 the questions of concern to the Board. Newfoundland Power. 23 year. The first set of issues appear under Q. Good morning, Mr. Chair, Commissioner. Paul 25 explanatory comments there that indicate Page 4 1 Coxworthy, Dean Porter for the Island 1 that the Board raises these questions 15 Cood morning, Mr. Chair and Commissioners. 4 respect for dual 2015 and rates will not 6 cold ague, Greg Kirby. 6 2015. In my submission, the starting point to 6 Good morning, Mr. Chair and Commissioners. 14 respect for the stard and sen sized 7 MR. FLEMINC: 7 In my submission, the starting poi					Thank you, sir. Mr. Chairman, we have a set
Pennell, counsel.15know that it looks somewhat large, so 1'llCHAIRMAN:16reasure you that I don't expect to dwell onQ.And Light and Power?17MR. O'BRIEN:18very limited purposes.Q.Good morning, Mr. Chairman, Commissioners.19In my submissions, I will start, ofLiam O'Brien, outside counsel for20course, with the Board's letter setting outNewfoundland Power, and with me is Mr.21the questions of concern to the Board.Gerard Hayes, inside counsel for23year. The first set of issues appear underMR. COXWORTHY:24the heading "test year" and there's someQ.Good morning, Mr. Chair, Commissioner. Paul25explanatory comments there that indicatePage 2Page 2Page 41Coxworthy, Dean Porter for the Island1that the Board raises these questions2Industrial Customer group.2because rates will become effective in 20163MR. JOHNSON:3while Hydro has made proposals for relief in4Q.Good morning, Mr. Chair and Commissioner.4respect of 2014 and 2015 and rates will not5Tom Johnson, consumer advocate, and my62015.16collague, Greg Kirby.62015.17MR. FLEMING'7In my submission, the starting point to8address the issues that the Board narised1submit that the starting point to9Denis Fleming for Vale Newfoundland and9under the headi		-		.	-
CHAIRMAN: 16 reassure you that I don't expect to dwell on any of these. They're just provided for Q. And Light and Power? 17 any of these. They're just provided for WR. O'BRIEN: 18 very limited purposes. In my submissions, I will start, of Q. Good morning, Mr. Chairman, Commissioners. 19 In my submissions, I will start, of Newfoundland Power, and with me is Mr. 21 the questions of concern to the Board. Gerard Hayes, inside counsel for 22 That's the letter of January 18th of this Newfoundland Power, and with me is Mr. 23 year. The first set of issues appear under MR. COXWORTHY: 24 the heading "test year" and there's some Q. Good morning, Mr. Chair, Commissioner. Paul 25 explanatory comments there that indicate 2 Industrial Customer group. 2 because rates will become effective in 2016 3 MR. JOHNSON: 3 while Hydro has made proposals for relief in 4 Q. Good morning, Mr. Chair and Commissioner. 4 respect of 2014 and 2015 and rates will not 5 Tom Johnson, consumer advocate, and my 5 actually be effective in either 2014 or 6 <td< td=""><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td>-</td></td<>					-
Q. And Light and Power? 17 any of these. They're just provided for MR. O'BRIEN: 18 very limited purposes. Q. Good morning, Mr. Chairman, Commissioners. 19 In my submissions, I will start, of Liam O'Brien, outside counsel for 20 course, with the Board's letter setting out New foundland Power, and with me is Mr. 21 the questions of concern to the Board. Gerard Hayes, inside counsel for 22 That's the letter of January 18th of this New foundland Power. 23 year. The first set of issues appear under MR. COXWORTHY: 24 the heading "test year" and there's some Q. Good morning, Mr. Chair, Commissioner. Paul 25 explanatory comments there that indicate Page 2 Industrial Customer group. 2 bccause rates will become effective in 2016 3 MR. JOHNSON: 3 while Hydro has made proposals for relief in respect of 2014 and 2015 and rates will not 6 colleague, Greg Kirby. 6 2015. Tim y submission, the starting point to 8 Q. Good morning, Mr. Chair and Commissioners. 8 address the issues that the Board has raised 9 Denis Fleming for Vale Newfo	CHAIRMAN				
MR. O'BRIEN: 18 very limited purposes. Q. Good morning, Mr. Chairman, Commissioners. 19 In my submissions, I will start, of course, with the Board's letter setting out the questions of concern to the Board. MR. O'Brien, outside counsel for 20 course, with the Board's letter setting out the questions of concern to the Board. MR. COXWORTHY: 21 That's the letter of January 18th of this Newfoundland Power. 23 Q. Good morning, Mr. Chair, Commissioner. 23 year. The first set of issues appear under MR. COXWORTHY: 24 the heading 'test year' and there's some Page 4 Q. Good morning, Mr. Chair, Commissioner. Paul 25 explanatory comments there that indicate 2 Industrial Customer group. 2 because rates will become effective in 2016 3 MR, JOHNSON: 3 while Hydro has made proposals for relief in 6 colleague, Greg Kirby. 6 2015. The submission, the starting point to 8 Q. Good morning, Mr. Chair and Commissioner. 8 address the issues that the Board has raised 9 Denis Fleming for Vale Newfoundland and 9 under the heading of 'test year' is with the 11 be j					
Q. Good morning, Mr. Chairman, Commissioners. Liam O'Brien, outside counsel for 20 course, with the Board's letter setting out Newfoundland Power, and with me is Mr. 21 the questions of concern to the Board. Gerard Hayes, inside counsel for 22 That's the letter of January 18th of this Newfoundland Power, 23 year. The first set of issues appear under MR. COXWORTHY: 24 the heading "test year" and there's some Q. Good morning, Mr. Chair, Commissioner. Paul 25 Page 2 Page 4 1 Conworthy, Dean Porter for the Island 1 2 Industrial Customer group. 2 3 MR. JOHNSON: 3 while Hydro has made proposals for relief in 4 Q. Good morning, Mr. Chair and Commissioners. 4 respect of 2014 and 2015 and rates will not 5 Tom Johnson, consumer advocate, and my 5 actually be effective in either 2014 or 6 colleague, Greg Kirby. 6 2015. 7 7 MR FLEMING: 1 statutory provisions. In particular, 1 8 Q. Good morning, Mr. Chair and Commissioner. 8 address the issues that the	-	-			
Liam O'Brien, outside counsel for Newfoundland Power, and with me is Mr. 21 the questions of concern to the Board. Gerard Hayes, inside counsel for 23 year. The first set of issues appear under Newfoundland Power. 23 year. The first set of issues appear under MR. COXWORTHY: 24 the heading "test year" and there's some Q. Good morning, Mr. Chair, Commissioner. Paul 25 explanatory comments there that indicate Page 2 Page 4 1 that the Board raises these questions Page 4 1 Coxworthy, Dean Porter for the Island 1 that the Board raises these questions Page 4 2 Industrial Customer group. 2 because rates will become effective in 2016 3 MR. JOHNSON: 3 while Hydro has made proposals for relief in 4 Q. Good morning, Mr. Chair and Commissioner. 4 respect of 2014 and 2015 and rates will not 5 Tom Johnson, consumer advocate, and my 5 actually be effective in either 2014 or 6 colleague, Greg Kirby. 7 In my submission, the starting point to 8 Q. Good morning, Mr. Chair and Commissioner. 8 address the issues that the Board h					
Newfoundland Power, and with me is Mr. 21 the questions of concern to the Board. Gerard Hayes, inside counsel for 22 That's the letter of January 18th of this Newfoundland Power. 23 year. The first set of issues appear under MR. COXWORTHY: 24 the heading "test year" and there's some Q. Good morning, Mr. Chair, Commissioner. Paul 25 explanatory comments there that indicate Page 2 Page 2 Page 4 1 Coxworthy, Dean Porter for the Island 1 that the Board raises these questions 2 Industrial Customer group. 2 because rates will become effective in 2016 3 MR. JOHNSON: 3 while Hydro has made proposals for relief in 4 Q. Good morning, Mr. Chair and Commissioners. 4 respect of 2014 and 2015 and rates will not 5 Tom Johnson, consumer advocate, and my 5 actually be effective in either 2014 or 6 colleague, Greg Kirby. 6 2015. In my submission, the starting point to 8 Q. Good morning, Mr. Chair and Commissioner. 8 address the starting point would be 10 Labrador Limited. I expect Tom O'Reilly to	×.				
Gerard Hayes, inside counsel for Newfoundland Power. 22 That's the letter of January 18th of this year. The first set of issues appear under MR. COXWORTHY: 23 year. The first set of issues appear under Q. Good morning, Mr. Chair, Commissioner. Paul 25 explanatory comments there that indicate Page 2 Page 4 1 the heading "test year" and there's some Page 4 1 Coxworthy, Dean Porter for the Island 1 that the Board raises these questions 2 Industrial Customer group. 2 because rates will become effective in 2016 3 MR. JOHNSON: 3 while Hydro has made proposals for relief in 4 Q. Good morning, Mr. Chair and Commissioners. 4 respect of 2014 and 2015 and rates will not 6 colleague, Greg Kirby. 6 2015. In my submission, the starting point to 8 Q. Good morning, Mr. Chair and Commissioner. 8 address the issues that the Board has raised 9 Denis Fleming for Vale Newfoundland and 9 under the heading of "test year" is with the 11 be joining me later in the morning. 11 submit that the					· · · · ·
Newfoundland Power.23year. The first set of issues appear underMR. COXWORTHY:24the heading "test year" and there's someQ.Good morning, Mr. Chair, Commissioner. Paul25explanatory comments there that indicatePage 2Page 2Page 41Coxworthy, Dean Porter for the Island1that the Board raises these questions2Industrial Customer group.2because rates will become effective in 20163MR. JOHNSON:3while Hydro has made proposals for relief in4Q.Good morning, Mr. Chair and Commissioners.4respect of 2014 and 2015 and rates will not5Tom Johnson, consumer advocate, and my5actually be effective in either 2014 or6colleague, Greg Kirby.62015.7MR. FLEMING:7In my submission, the starting point to8Q.Good morning, Mr. Chair and Commissioner.8address the issues that the Board has raised9Denis Fleming for Vale Newfoundland and9under the heading of "test year" is with the10Labrador Limited. 1 expect Tom O'Reilly to10statutory provisions. In particular, I11be joining me later in the morning.11submit that the starting point would be12MR. LUK:12Section 3 of the Electrical Power Control13Q.Good morning, Mr. Chair and Commissioners.13Act. I don't know that you need to turn it14This is Senwung Luk for Innu Nation.14up, but the wording of that section is </td <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>-</td>					-
MR. COXWORTHY: 24 the heading "test year" and there's some explanatory comments there that indicate Q. Good morning, Mr. Chair, Commissioner. Paul 25 explanatory comments there that indicate Page 4 Page 2 Page 4 Page 4 I Coxworthy, Dean Porter for the Island 1 that the Board raises these questions 2 Industrial Customer group. 2 because rates will become effective in 2016 3 MR. JOHNSON: 3 while Hydro has made proposals for relief in 4 Q. Good morning, Mr. Chair and Commissioners. 4 respect of 2014 and 2015 and rates will not 5 Tom Johnson, consumer advocate, and my 5 actually be effective in either 2014 or 6 colleague, Greg Kirby. 6 2015. 7 7 MR. FLEMING: 7 In my submission, the starting point to 8 Q. Good morning, Mr. Chair and Commissioner. 8 address the issues that the Board has raised 9 Denis Fleming for Vale Newfoundland and 9 under the heading of "test year" is with the 10 Labrador Limited. I expect Tom O'Reilly to 10 statuory provisions. In particular, I		-			
Q.Good morning, Mr. Chair, Commissioner. Paul25explanatory comments there that indicatePage 2Page 41Coxworthy, Dean Porter for the Island1that the Board raises these questions2Industrial Customer group.2because rates will become effective in 20163MR. JOHNSON:3while Hydro has made proposals for relief in4Q.Good morning, Mr. Chair and Commissioners.4respect of 2014 and 2015 and rates will not5Tom Johnson, consumer advocate, and my5actually be effective in either 2014 or6colleague, Greg Kirby.62015.7MR. FLEMING:7In my submission, the starting point to8Q.Good morning, Mr. Chair and Commissioner.89Denis Fleming for Vale Newfoundland and9under the heading of "test year" is with the10Labrador Limited. I expect Tom O'Reilly to10statutory provisions. In particular, I11be joining me later in the morning.11submit that the starting point would be12MR. LUK:12Section 3 of the Electrical Power Control13Q.Good morning, Mr. Chair and Commissioners.13Act. I don't know that you need to turn it14This is Senwung Luk for Innu Nation.14up, but the wording of that section is15included in the Stated Case decision that is16at Tab 2 of the Authorities that we have17MS. GLYNN:17provided. I'll just read it out, the18Q. </td <td>MR COXWO</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td>	MR COXWO				
I Coxworthy, Dean Porter for the Island 1 that the Board raises these questions 1 Industrial Customer group. 2 because rates will become effective in 2016 3 MR, JOHNSON: 3 while Hydro has made proposals for relief in 4 Q. Good morning, Mr. Chair and Commissioners. 4 respect of 2014 and 2015 and rates will not 5 Tom Johnson, consumer advocate, and my 5 actually be effective in either 2014 or 6 colleague, Greg Kirby. 6 2015. 7 MR. FLEMING: 7 In my submission, the starting point to 8 Q. Good morning, Mr. Chair and Commissioner. 8 address the issues that the Board has raised 9 Denis Fleming for Vale Newfoundland and 9 under the heading of "test year" is with the 11 be joining me later in the morning. 11 submit that the starting point would be 12 MR. LUK: 12 Section 3 of the Electrical Power Control 13 Q. Good morning, Mr. Chair and Commissioners. 13 Act. I don't know that you need to turn it 14 This is Senwung Luk for Innu Nation. 14 up, but the wording of that sect					
1Coxworthy, Dean Porter for the Island1that the Board raises these questions2Industrial Customer group.2because rates will become effective in 20163MR. JOHNSON:3while Hydro has made proposals for relief in4Q.Good morning, Mr. Chair and Commissioners.4respect of 2014 and 2015 and rates will not5Tom Johnson, consumer advocate, and my5actually be effective in either 2014 or6colleague, Greg Kirby.62015.7MR. FLEMING:7In my submission, the starting point to8Q.Good morning, Mr. Chair and Commissioner.8address the issues that the Board has raised9Denis Fleming for Vale Newfoundland and9under the heading of "test year" is with the10Labrador Limited. I expect Tom O'Reilly to10statutory provisions. In particular, I11be joining me later in the morning.11submit that the starting point would be12MR. LUK:12Section 3 of the Electrical Power Control13Q.Good morning, Mr. Chair and Commissioners.13Act. I don't know that you need to turn it14This is Senwung Luk for Innu Nation.14up, but the wording of that section is15CHAIRMAN:15included in the Stated Case decision that is16Q.And Board staff.16at Tab 2 of the Authorities that we have19Nunatsiavut Government has indicated that19the Board of.20she would not be making any f	.				
2Industrial Customer group.2because rates will become effective in 20163MR. JOHNSON:3while Hydro has made proposals for relief in4Q.Good morning, Mr. Chair and Commissioners.4respect of 2014 and 2015 and rates will not5Tom Johnson, consumer advocate, and my5actually be effective in either 2014 or6colleague, Greg Kirby.62015.7MR. FLEMING:7In my submission, the starting point to8Q.Good morning, Mr. Chair and Commissioner.8address the issues that the Board has raised9Denis Fleming for Vale Newfoundland and9under the heading of "test year" is with the10Labrador Limited. I expect Tom O'Reilly to10statutory provisions. In particular, I11be joining me later in the morning.11submit that the starting point would be12MR. LUK:12Section 3 of the Electrical Power Control13Q.Good morning, Mr. Chair and Commissioners.13Act. I don't know that you need to turn it14This is Senwung Luk for Innu Nation.14up, but the wording of that section is15CHAIRMAN:15included in the Stated Case decision that is16Q.Well, just to note also that Ms. Dawson for1819Nunatsiavut Government has indicated that19the Board of.20she would not be making any further20Section 3 sets out certain policies to21submissions on the matter.21be a	1		1		•
3MR. JOHNSON:3while Hydro has made proposals for relief in4Q.Good morning, Mr. Chair and Commissioners.4respect of 2014 and 2015 and rates will not5Tom Johnson, consumer advocate, and my5actually be effective in either 2014 or6colleague, Greg Kirby.62015.7MR. FLEMING:7In my submission, the starting point to8Q.Good morning, Mr. Chair and Commissioner.8address the issues that the Board has raised9Denis Fleming for Vale Newfoundland and9under the heading of "test year" is with the10Labrador Limited. I expect Tom O'Reilly to10statutory provisions. In particular, I11be joining me later in the morning.11submit that the starting point would be12MR. LUK:12Section 3 of the Electrical Power Control13Q.Good morning, Mr. Chair and Commissioners.13Act. I don't know that you need to turn it14This is Senwung Luk for Innu Nation.14up, but the wording of that section is15included in the Stated Case decision that is16at Tab 2 of the Authorities that we have17MS. GLYNN:17provided. I'll just read it out, the18Q.Well, just to note also that Ms. Dawson for18wording of Section 3 that I want to remind19Nunatsiavut Government has indicated that19the Board of.20she would not be making any further20Section 3 sets out certain policies to	2	-	2		•
4Q.Good morning, Mr. Chair and Commissioners. Tom Johnson, consumer advocate, and my colleague, Greg Kirby.4respect of 2014 and 2015 and rates will not actually be effective in either 2014 or 2015.7MR. FLEMING:7In my submission, the starting point to address the issues that the Board has raised under the heading of "test year" is with the to tabrador Limited. I expect Tom O'Reilly to 1010statutory provisions. In particular, I submit that the starting point would be11be joining me later in the morning.11submit that the starting point would be12Section 3 of the Electrical Power Control13Q.Good morning, Mr. Chair and Commissioners.1314This is Senwung Luk for Innu Nation.14up, but the wording of that section is included in the Stated Case decision that is at Tab 2 of the Authorities that we have provided. I'll just read it out, the wording of Section 3 sets out certain policies to 2018Q.Well, just to note also that Ms. Dawson for submissions on the matter.10Section 3 sets out certain policies to 2110submissions on the matter.21be applied in respect of rates and it indicates, among many other things, that12CHAIRMAN:21be control frates and it indicates, and power for the supply of the submissions on the matter.13Q.Okay.2324power should be established wherever					
5Tom Johnson, consumer advocate, and my colleague, Greg Kirby.5actually be effective in either 2014 or 2015.7MR. FLEMING:7In my submission, the starting point to address the issues that the Board has raised under the heading of "test year" is with the be joining me later in the morning.7In my submission, the starting point to address the issues that the Board has raised under the heading of "test year" is with the10Labrador Limited. I expect Tom O'Reilly to be joining me later in the morning.10statutory provisions. In particular, I submit that the starting point would be12MR. LUK:12Section 3 of the Electrical Power Control13Q.Good morning, Mr. Chair and Commissioners.13Act. I don't know that you need to turn it up, but the wording of that section is15CHAIRMAN:15included in the Stated Case decision that is at Tab 2 of the Authorities that we have17MS. GLYNN:17provided. I'll just read it out, the wording of Section 3 that I want to remind19Nunatsiavut Government has indicated that 20section 3 sets out certain policies to21submissions on the matter.21be applied in respect of rates and it22CHAIRMAN:21be applied in respect of rates and it23Q.Okay.23"the rates to be charged for the supply of power should be established wherever					
6 colleague, Greg Kirby. 6 2015. 7 MR. FLEMING: 7 In my submission, the starting point to 8 Q. Good morning, Mr. Chair and Commissioner. 8 address the issues that the Board has raised 9 Denis Fleming for Vale Newfoundland and 9 under the heading of "test year" is with the 10 Labrador Limited. I expect Tom O'Reilly to 10 statutory provisions. In particular, I 11 be joining me later in the morning. 11 submit that the starting point would be 12 MR. LUK: 12 Section 3 of the Electrical Power Control 13 Q. Good morning, Mr. Chair and Commissioners. 13 Act. I don't know that you need to turn it 14 This is Senwung Luk for Innu Nation. 14 up, but the wording of that section is included in the Stated Case decision that is 15 CHAIRMAN: 15 included in the Stated Case decision that is 16 Q. And Board staff. 16 at Tab 2 of the Authorities that we have 17 MS. GLYNN: 17 provided. I'll just read it out, the 18 Q. Well, just to note also that Ms. Dawson for 18	-	-	5		-
7MR. FLEMING:7In my submission, the starting point to8Q.Good morning, Mr. Chair and Commissioner.8address the issues that the Board has raised9Denis Fleming for Vale Newfoundland and9under the heading of "test year" is with the10Labrador Limited. I expect Tom O'Reilly to10statutory provisions. In particular, I11be joining me later in the morning.11submit that the starting point would be12MR. LUK:12Section 3 of the Electrical Power Control13Q.Good morning, Mr. Chair and Commissioners.13Act. I don't know that you need to turn it14This is Senwung Luk for Innu Nation.14up, but the wording of that section is15included in the Stated Case decision that is16Q.And Board staff.1617MS. GLYNN:17provided. I'll just read it out, the18Q.Well, just to note also that Ms. Dawson for18wording of Section 3 hat I want to remind19Nunatsiavut Government has indicated that19the Board of.20Section 3 sets out certain policies tosubmissions on the matter.2121be applied in respect of rates and it22indicates, among many other things, that23Q.Okay.23"the rates to be charged for the supply of24power should be established wherever24					-
8Q.Good morning, Mr. Chair and Commissioner.8address the issues that the Board has raised9Denis Fleming for Vale Newfoundland and9under the heading of "test year" is with the10Labrador Limited. I expect Tom O'Reilly to10statutory provisions. In particular, I11be joining me later in the morning.11submit that the starting point would be12MR. LUK:12Section 3 of the Electrical Power Control13Q.Good morning, Mr. Chair and Commissioners.13Act. I don't know that you need to turn it14This is Senwung Luk for Innu Nation.14up, but the wording of that section is15CHAIRMAN:15included in the Stated Case decision that is16Q.And Board staff.16at Tab 2 of the Authorities that we have17provided. I'll just read it out, the18Q.Well, just to note also that Ms. Dawson for1819Nunatsiavut Government has indicated that19the Board of.20she would not be making any further20Section 3 sets out certain policies to21submissions on the matter.21be applied in respect of rates and it22Indicates, among many other things, that23Q.Okay.23"the rates to be charged for the supply of24power should be established wherever	7 MR. FLEM		7		In my submission, the starting point to
9Denis Fleming for Vale Newfoundland and Labrador Limited. I expect Tom O'Reilly to be joining me later in the morning.9under the heading of "test year" is with the statutory provisions. In particular, I11be joining me later in the morning.10statutory provisions. In particular, I12MR. LUK:12Section 3 of the Electrical Power Control13Q.Good morning, Mr. Chair and Commissioners.13Act. I don't know that you need to turn it14This is Senwung Luk for Innu Nation.14up, but the wording of that section is15CHAIRMAN:15included in the Stated Case decision that is16Q.And Board staff.16at Tab 2 of the Authorities that we have17MS. GLYNN:17provided. I'll just read it out, the18Q.Well, just to note also that Ms. Dawson for18wording of Section 3 that I want to remind19Nunatsiavut Government has indicated that19the Board of.20Section 3 sets out certain policies to21submissions on the matter.2122indicates, among many other things, that23Q.Okay.2324power should be established wherever			8		5 51
10Labrador Limited. I expect Tom O'Reilly to10statutory provisions. In particular, I11be joining me later in the morning.11submit that the starting point would be12MR. LUK:12Section 3 of the Electrical Power Control13Q.Good morning, Mr. Chair and Commissioners.13Act. I don't know that you need to turn it14This is Senwung Luk for Innu Nation.14up, but the wording of that section is15CHAIRMAN:15included in the Stated Case decision that is16Q.And Board staff.16at Tab 2 of the Authorities that we have17MS. GLYNN:17provided. I'll just read it out, the18Q.Well, just to note also that Ms. Dawson for18wording of Section 3 that I want to remind19Nunatsiavut Government has indicated that19the Board of.20Section 3 sets out certain policies to21submissions on the matter.2122indicates, among many other things, that23Q.Okay.2324power should be established wherever		-			
11be joining me later in the morning.11submit that the starting point would be12MR. LUK:12Section 3 of the Electrical Power Control13Q.Good morning, Mr. Chair and Commissioners.13Act. I don't know that you need to turn it14This is Senwung Luk for Innu Nation.14up, but the wording of that section is15CHAIRMAN:15included in the Stated Case decision that is16Q.And Board staff.16at Tab 2 of the Authorities that we have17MS. GLYNN:17provided. I'll just read it out, the18Q.Well, just to note also that Ms. Dawson for18wording of Section 3 that I want to remind19Nunatsiavut Government has indicated that19the Board of.20Section 3 sets out certain policies to21submissions on the matter.2122indicates, among many other things, that23Q.Okay.2324power should be established wherever		5	10		v
12MR. LUK:12Section 3 of the Electrical Power Control13Q.Good morning, Mr. Chair and Commissioners.13Act. I don't know that you need to turn it14This is Senwung Luk for Innu Nation.14up, but the wording of that section is15CHAIRMAN:15included in the Stated Case decision that is16Q.And Board staff.16at Tab 2 of the Authorities that we have17MS. GLYNN:17provided. I'll just read it out, the18Q.Well, just to note also that Ms. Dawson for18wording of Section 3 that I want to remind19Nunatsiavut Government has indicated that19the Board of.20she would not be making any further20Section 3 sets out certain policies to21submissions on the matter.21be applied in respect of rates and it23Q.Okay.23"the rates to be charged for the supply of24MS. GLYNN:24power should be established wherever	11				
14This is Senwung Luk for Innu Nation.14up, but the wording of that section is15CHAIRMAN:15included in the Stated Case decision that is16Q.And Board staff.16at Tab 2 of the Authorities that we have17MS. GLYNN:17provided. I'll just read it out, the18Q.Well, just to note also that Ms. Dawson for18wording of Section 3 that I want to remind19Nunatsiavut Government has indicated that19the Board of.20she would not be making any further20Section 3 sets out certain policies to21submissions on the matter.21be applied in respect of rates and it23Q.Okay.23"the rates to be charged for the supply of24power should be established wherever	12 MR. LUK:		12		• •
14This is Senwung Luk for Innu Nation.14up, but the wording of that section is15CHAIRMAN:15included in the Stated Case decision that is16Q.And Board staff.16at Tab 2 of the Authorities that we have17MS. GLYNN:17provided. I'll just read it out, the18Q.Well, just to note also that Ms. Dawson for18wording of Section 3 that I want to remind19Nunatsiavut Government has indicated that19the Board of.20she would not be making any further20Section 3 sets out certain policies to21submissions on the matter.21be applied in respect of rates and it23Q.Okay.23"the rates to be charged for the supply of24mover should be established wherever	13 Q.	Good morning, Mr. Chair and Commissioners.	13		Act. I don't know that you need to turn it
15CHAIRMAN:15included in the Stated Case decision that is16Q.And Board staff.16at Tab 2 of the Authorities that we have17MS. GLYNN:17provided. I'll just read it out, the18Q.Well, just to note also that Ms. Dawson for18wording of Section 3 that I want to remind19Nunatsiavut Government has indicated that19the Board of.20she would not be making any further20Section 3 sets out certain policies to21submissions on the matter.21be applied in respect of rates and it22CHAIRMAN:22indicates, among many other things, that23Q.Okay.23"the rates to be charged for the supply of24power should be established wherever			14		-
16Q.And Board staff.16at Tab 2 of the Authorities that we have17MS. GLYNN:17provided. I'll just read it out, the18Q.Well, just to note also that Ms. Dawson for18wording of Section 3 that I want to remind19Nunatsiavut Government has indicated that19the Board of.20she would not be making any further20Section 3 sets out certain policies to21submissions on the matter.21be applied in respect of rates and it22CHAIRMAN:23"the rates to be charged for the supply of23Q.Okay.23"the rates to be charged for the supply of24power should be established wherever	15 CHAIRMA	•	15		
17MS. GLYNN:17provided. I'll just read it out, the18Q.Well, just to note also that Ms. Dawson for18wording of Section 3 that I want to remind19Nunatsiavut Government has indicated that19the Board of.20she would not be making any further20Section 3 sets out certain policies to21submissions on the matter.21be applied in respect of rates and it22CHAIRMAN:22indicates, among many other things, that23Q.Okay.23"the rates to be charged for the supply of24power should be established wherever					
18Q.Well, just to note also that Ms. Dawson for Nunatsiavut Government has indicated that she would not be making any further18wording of Section 3 that I want to remind the Board of.20she would not be making any further submissions on the matter.20Section 3 sets out certain policies to 2121submissions on the matter.21be applied in respect of rates and it22CHAIRMAN:22indicates, among many other things, that23Q.Okay.23"the rates to be charged for the supply of power should be established wherever					
19Nunatsiavut Government has indicated that 2019the Board of.20she would not be making any further20Section 3 sets out certain policies to21submissions on the matter.21be applied in respect of rates and it22CHAIRMAN:22indicates, among many other things, that23Q.Okay.23"the rates to be charged for the supply of24MS. GLYNN:24power should be established wherever					
20she would not be making any further20Section 3 sets out certain policies to21submissions on the matter.21be applied in respect of rates and it22CHAIRMAN:22indicates, among many other things, that23Q.Okay.23"the rates to be charged for the supply of24MS. GLYNN:24power should be established wherever		-			-
21submissions on the matter.21be applied in respect of rates and it22CHAIRMAN:22indicates, among many other things, that23Q.Okay.23"the rates to be charged for the supply of24MS. GLYNN:24power should be established wherever					
22CHAIRMAN:22indicates, among many other things, that23Q.Okay.23"the rates to be charged for the supply of24MS. GLYNN:24power should be established wherever					
23Q.Okay.23"the rates to be charged for the supply of24MS. GLYNN:24power should be established wherever					
24 MS. GLYNN: 24 power should be established wherever					
1		-			ee
	25 Q.	And it's Jacqui Glynn, Board Counsel, and	25		practicable based on forecast costs for that

	D	1	D 7
	Page 5	.	Page 7
1	supply of power for one or more years." So,		of the examples in the Authorities.
2	it is the case that this provision does not	2	In my submission though, apart from the
3	use the words "test year". It does though,	3	issue of what is the test year, given the
4	I think, tell us several things that are	4	situation where rates will become effective
5	relevant to the consideration of the test	5	in 2016, even though the Board has
6	year. One of those is obvious.	6	information for 2014 and 2015, the key tools
7	It refers to looking at costs for	7	for the Board are interim orders and
8	supply of power for one or more years. So,	8	deferrals, and that's the purpose of other
9	the obvious proposition, I think, arises	9	authorities that we have included in the
10	from this is that the Board would look at	10	booklet that's been provided to the Board.
11	costs for annual periods, and that would be	11	When proceedings are lengthy, such that
12	the test year, in my submission, is the	12	rates will not become effective until a
13	looking at costs for annual periods.	13	period later than was anticipated in the
14	But another thing that this provision	14	application, the tools that the regulator
15	makes clear is that it's not necessarily	15	can use are deferral accounts and interim
16	just one annual period. The Board can look	16	orders. These are both discussed in some
17	at one or more year, one or more annual	17	detail in the 2012 decision of this
18	period when it sets rates. In my	18	Province's Court of Appeal that is at Tab 3
19	submission, that's what's happening here.	19	of the booklet. I won't go through that
20	The Board has to 2014 and 2015.	20	discussion in detail. It relies on cases
21	And the other thing, of course, is that	21	from the Supreme Court of Canada and in
22	this indicates that where practicable, not	22	reliance on those cases and in the Court of
23	always, but where practicable the rates	23	Appeal's own words, it confirms that interim
24	would be based on forecast costs. So that,	24	orders and deferral accounts are two widely
25	of course, indicates that these annual – the	25	used regulatory tools that allow relief with
1	Page 6	1	Page 8
	annual period of one or more years, where		a retrospective application. That can be
2	practicable, would be a prospective test	$\begin{vmatrix} 2 \\ 2 \end{vmatrix}$	seen numerous times in the Court of Appeal
3	year.	3	decisions. Paragraph 60, 62, 64 and 115 are
4	Now, in the set of authorities that we	4	all examples of that proposition.
5	provided we have included some examples of	5	So, in this case, the Board did indeed
6	how other regulators have addressed the	6	make interim orders or deferrals in respect of both 2014 and 2015. When the Board did
0	situation where there are multiple years of	0	
8	information that have been provided for the	8	that, as reflected in the case law and the
9	setting of rates or where in a forecast situation the Board's consideration actually	9 10	regulatory precedence, the Board was not
10			making a determination on the merits. The
11	occurs when the forecast year has become, at	11 12	Board was making an interim order or a deferral with the decision on the merits to
12	least in part, an actual year. I will come to discuss those in some more detail.	1	
13		13 14	come at the ultimate conclusion of the case,
14	First I would submit though that the	1	that being where we're at now.
15	type of practice contemplated by Section 3	15	So, when the Board makes the final determination on the merits about the 2014
16	of the Electrical Power Control Act is quite	16	
17	consistent with other Canadian – practice of	17	and 2015 revenue deficiencies now at the
18	other Canadian regulators, that first	18	conclusion of the case, the existence of the
19	regulators do consistently look at a	19	deferrals that the Board created gives it
20	forecast test year, but not always, where	20	the full power, in my submission, to allow
21	it's not practicable. They do look at	21	or not allow recovery of the 2014-2015
22	annual periods and they do, from time to	22	deficiencies, up to the limits of the
23	time, look at more than one annual period	23	deferrals that were established by the
24	when they're setting rates and I think we	24	Board.
25	will see some of that when we look at a few	25	So, in my submission, quite apart from

	Page 9		Page 11
1	the issue of a test year, it's the Board's	1	interim order, actually uses partially
2	interim orders and its deferrals that become	2	actual and partially forecast information,
3	the key tools when the Board makes its final	3	uses results on a nine-month actual and a
4	determination on the merits with respect to	4	three-month forecast basis that it says are
5	the 2014 and 2015 revenue deficiencies. The	5	the most appropriate to use in those
6	Board has not made a determination on the	6	circumstances. So, just an example of the
7	merits of either of those when it's decided	7	discretion available to a Board under
8	the deferrals. That's been left until the	8	typical regulatory practice where it has
9	conclusion of the proceeding and when that	9	both forecast information and it has actual
10	determination is made at the conclusion of	10	information because of the timing of the way
11	the proceeding, the existence of the	11	in which the case has proceeded.
12	deferrals gives the Board the full power to	12	Tab 6 is another Ontario case, a
13	do as it sees appropriate in relation to the	13	decision from 2001. In this case, as one
14	decision it reaches on the merits.	14	can see from paragraph 2.164, the applicant
15	Now, the sub-questions under issue one	15	submitted a plan based on a 1999 test year,
16	generally relate to regulatory practice and	16	but it actually didn't submit this until
17	treatment of actual versus forecast costs in	17	late in 1999 with a test year that was 1999
18	circumstances where a proceeding has	18	on a forecast basis. And then also
19	extended into or beyond the forecast year or	19	appearing in paragraph 2.164, because of the
20	years. And as I said, the regulatory cases	20	work that was needed to complete discussions
21	included in the Authorities are just some	21	with interveners on submissions, this didn't
22	examples of how – of regulatory practice of	22	happen until August of 2000, even though the
23	other Boards addressing situations where	23	test year was 1999.
24	they need to contend with the existence of	24	So, without getting into the discussion
25	actual information, even though they're	25	that follows, essentially the Board
	Page 10		Page 12
1	dealing with a case presented on a forecast		concludes or goes through the evidence and
2	basis.	2	forms its best conclusion on the evidence
3	The first instance, at Tab 4, is	3	before it, including evidence that updated
4	perhaps not the best example in relation to	4	the forecast 1999 information. The Board
5	a parallel to this case. It's of interest	5	comes to its best conclusion about what the
6	for a couple of reasons. First, it's a case	6	reasonable costs are.
7	from the Ontario Board where the Ontario	7	So, for example, at paragraph 2.168,
8	Board was actually addressing an interim	8	the Board took into account cost reductions
9	order, not a final order, and even in the	9	that had been realized in 1999. They
10	context of an interim order, before coming	10	weren't included in the forecast, but
11	to its final conclusion, the Board was	11	because of the timing of this case, the
12	called upon to address what to do with	12	Board was able to take those into account in
13	actual information and forecast information.	13	coming to its conclusion about the most
14	It's also of interest because it's a	14	reasonable costs to use in the
15	situation where the interim order was made	15	circumstances.
16	actually to give the utility an opportunity	16	And then at Tab 6 is an example from
17	to earn a reasonable return because there	17	Alberta, the Alberta Utilities Commission.
18	was evidence of an increasing deficiency and	18	In a similar situation where because of
19	there was a – without interim relief, there	19	timing, although the Board would typically
20	was a concern that the utility would not	20	set rates on a prospective basis, it had
21	actually have its opportunity to earn the	21	actual results for particular years and the
22	reasonable return.	22	issue was what to do, given that we usually
23	So, in this context, at paragraph 42 of	23	set rates on a prospective basis, but we
24	the decision at Tab 4, you'll see that the	24	have actual results.
25	Board for – just for the purposes of an	25	So, you see at paragraph 65 of the

		1	D 12
	Page 13	.	Page 15
1	case, at Tab 6, it's indicated that "in		costs for 2014 and 2015. The fact that
2	accordance with the principles of	2	those were filed as forecast years and now
3	prospective rate making, the Commission sets	3	in effect have been overtaken by actual
4	rates on the basis of forecast years." And	4	results does not in any way limit the
5	this was a case in which Direct Energy had	5	Board's jurisdiction to come to its view about the most reasonable set of costs for
6	requested to set rates for 2012 to 2016, but it wasn't actually desided until mid 2015	6	
7	it wasn't actually decided until mid 2015.	7	each of those years. Mr. Chair, I'll move on then to the
8 9	So again, you have a decision well into the time period covered by the request for rate	8	next issue in the Board's letter, which
9 10	approval.	10	relates to the interpretation of the Order
10	And back to paragraph 65, the	10	in Council with respect to return on equity.
11	Commission says "for the years for which the	11	The Board's first question in relation
12	actual results are available, in this case	12	to this Order in Council was the
13	those years being 2012, 2013 and 2014, the	13	significance of treatment of the 2014 and
14	Commission may approve the forecast	15	2015 forecast costs for the interpretation
16	requirements that were submitted or approve	16	of the Order in Council. So this takes me
10	the actual results for each of these years	17	back to the submission that I already made
18	as the forecast revenue requirement". And	18	about interim orders and deferrals. The
19	then there's much further discussion about	19	interim orders and deferrals empower the
20	how this permission technically deals with	20	Board to make a decision on the merits of
20	that situation where because of the timing	21	the 2014 and 2015 revenue deficiencies at
22	of a case, forecast numbers have been	22	the conclusion of this case. That decision
23	overtaken, if I can use that word, by actual	23	on the merits would include the Board's
24	numbers.	24	decision about ROE.
25	But another example of the comments by	25	So, the Board can make that decision on
	Page 14		Page 16
1	this Commission is found at paragraph 68	1	the merits about the overall revenue
2	where it quotes from a previous decision,	2	deficiencies for each of those two years at
3	and this quote is "because the Commission	3	the conclusion of this case and because of
4	sets rates on the basis of forecast test	4	the deferrals established by the Board, it
5	years, it is required to assess the	5	can implement, in respect of each of those
6	forecasts provided in support of rate	6	two years, what the Board concludes is the
7	applications. The Commission, however, has	7	appropriate costs for the treatment of the
8	consistently stated that it will rely on the	8	revenue deficiencies in each of those years.
9	most up-to-date information in making such	9	Now more specifically with relation to
10	determinations."	10	the interpretation of the Order in Council,
11	So, the Commission is assessing the	11	I'd submit to the Board that it's very
12	forecasts, but in that assessment, it's not	12	important to be sure that what gets applied
13	going to ignore the most available – sorry,	13	in this case is the actual Order in Council
14	the most recent information that's become	14	issued by the Government, rather than some
15	available in the case. The Commission would	15	other version of an Order in Council that
16	use the most up-to-date information in	16	someone suggest the Government might have
17	assessing the reasonableness of those	17	issued or might have had in mind.
18	forecasts it had been provided.	18	And the reason I'm saying this is the
19	So, in my submission, that's typical of	19	Order in Council, it specifically speaks to
20		20	when the policies set out in it are to
20	regulatory practice. In my submission,		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
21	that's an appropriate approach for this	21	commence. It specifically says commencing
21 22	that's an appropriate approach for this Board to take in respect of 2014 and 2015.	21 22	with the first General Rate Application by
21 22 23	that's an appropriate approach for this Board to take in respect of 2014 and 2015. The Board can draw on all of the evidence	21 22 23	with the first General Rate Application by Newfoundland and Labrador Hydro after
21 22	that's an appropriate approach for this Board to take in respect of 2014 and 2015.	21 22	with the first General Rate Application by

	Page 17		Page 19
1	after January 1, 2009. It doesn't say with	1	effectiveness of the organizational
2	the first setting of final rates after that	2	structure. Certainly the Board has broad
3	date. It doesn't say commencing with the	3	powers to gain information about a utility
4	first change to rates. It doesn't even say	4	under its jurisdiction and including the
5	commencing with the first Board decision.	5	operations and accounts of the utility.
6	It says commencing with the first General	6	There are numerous provisions that give the
7	Rate Application after January 1, 2009. The	7	Board these powers and that's why the Public
8	first General Rate Application after January	8	Utilities Act has been included at Tab 1 of
9	1, 2009 was made in 2013. That's when this	9	the Authorities. I don't think that I need
10	policy takes effect by its plain words.	10	to go through the sections one by one. I
11	These arguments that perhaps the policy	11	think it's well understood that the Board
12	should take effect in respect of when the	12	has broad powers to require information.
13	Board actually sets rates, that might have	13	But, I can just note that within the statute
14	been a different directive that the	14	at Tab 1, some examples are Section 16,
15	Government could have issued, a different	15	Section 58, Section 60, 61, 62 and 67.
16	Order in Council, but it's not this one, in	16	These are all provisions that give the Board
17	my respectful submission.	17	powers to gain the information that it needs
18	And the other issue about the Order in	18	to regulate utilities under its
19	Council, my submission is very similar. The	19	jurisdiction.
20	other issue is the extent to which the Board	20	If there is an issue of transparency or
21	should have an adjustment mechanism that	21	clarity, in Hydro's submission, the Board
22	automatically adjusts the ROE for Hydro when	22	can rely on these powers to ensure that it
23	Newfoundland Power's ROE is adjusted. I	23	gets the information that it needs to
24	accept that that's a reasonable thing to	24	properly exercise its jurisdiction, and in
25	think about, given how the Order in Council	25	my submission, the Board has ample powers
	Page 18		Page 20
1	has linked the ROE of the two different	1	under these provisions to do what it needs
2	entities. It's certainly a reasonable thing	2	to do.
3	to think about, but the Order in Council	3	Having said that though, these
4	also addresses this issue about when this	4	provisions do not, and the statute does not
5	policy should be implemented, when and how,	5	provide a power to mandate an organizational
6	because it says that these – it refers to	6	structure. That's clear on their face, on
7	the Board to adopt policies for all future	7	the face of the statute and it's also
8	general rate applications for Newfoundland	8	confirmed, I believe, in the Stated Case
9	and Labrador Hydro.	9	decision at Tab 2 of the set of Authorities
10	So, the Order in Council itself, in my	10	which adopted what I would submit is a well-
11	submission, is telling us that the provision	11	known regulatory principle that recognizes a
12	with regard to Hydro's ROE is to be adopted	12	distinction between regulation and
13	in all future general rate applications.	13	management, and this is touched on at two
14	It's not telling us that there should be	14	places in the Court of Appeal decision in
15	some adjustment mechanism in between GRAs	15	the Stated Case. One is paragraph 32 and
16	for Hydro. It's certainly not saying that	16	the other is paragraph 118.
17	at all.	17	At paragraph 32, the Court of Appeal
18	So, in my submission, the questions	18	makes some comments which include the
19	about interpretation really are answered in	19	statement that "the utility must be accorded
20	the words of the Order in Council as it	20	a degree of managerial flexibility and
20	exists.	20	decision making in order to be able to
22	Then the next set of issues in the	22	minimize the risks to which it must respond.
23	Board's letter relates to the organizational	$\frac{22}{23}$	Thus, it is often said that the Boards must
23	structure of Hydro and issues raised by	23	be regulative and corrective, but not
25	interveners about transparency, clarity and	25	managerial and they do not therefore
	interveners about transparency, clarity and	40	managenar and mey do not mererore

	Page 21	Т	Page 23
1	contemplate a retroactive adjustment for the	1	of the 2014 test year, costs were based on
2	actions of management."	$\begin{vmatrix} 1\\2 \end{vmatrix}$	Holyrood fuel costs reflected in the 2007
	And then a similar statement is made at	$\begin{vmatrix} 2\\ 3 \end{vmatrix}$	test year, but the operation of the RSP for
4	paragraph 118, if I could just put my	4	2014 reflected fuel cost variances to the
5	fingers on that. At paragraph 118, the	5	extent they existed for 2014. So, in my
6	Court says "in defining the parameters of	6	submission, once rates in effect for 2014
	the supervisory power, the Board must		and the RSP balances are made final, as the
8	account for a competing principle, namely	8	Board can do in this case, there's no need
9	that the Board is not the manager of the	9	for further consideration of this issue in
10	utility and should not, as a general rule,	10	relation to the 2014 deficiency.
	substitute its judgment on managerial and	11	For 2015, the original forecast price
12	business issues for that of the officers of	11	of fuel was, I believe, \$93.32 per barrel
12	the enterprise."	$\begin{vmatrix} 12\\ 13 \end{vmatrix}$	for No. 6 bunker. This was updated on
13	So, there is a distinction between	13	October 28th of 2015 to a forecast price of
15	regulation and management and it is	15	\$64.41 per barrel, obviously a sizable
16	recognized in the authorities. While the	15	decrease reflecting market conditions.
17	Board does indeed have broad powers in	17	Hydro believes that it's open to the Board
18	investigation and supervision of a utility's	18	to use the most up-to-date forecast of the
19	operating expenses, the Board does not have	10	fuel price in the determination of revenue
20	the authority to substitute its judgment as	$\begin{vmatrix} 1 \\ 2 \\ 2 \\ 0 \end{vmatrix}$	requirement and setting the rates for 2016
20	to the manner in which a utility organizes	$ ^{20}_{21}$	and that this is appropriate because the
21 22	itself or carries out its business, in my	$\begin{vmatrix} 21\\22 \end{vmatrix}$	most recent forecast is the most likely
22 23	submission.	$\begin{vmatrix} 22\\23 \end{vmatrix}$	number to come true, everything else being
23	Now, quite apart from the	$\begin{vmatrix} 23 \\ 24 \end{vmatrix}$	equal.
25	jurisdictional issue, it's my submission	24	Indeed, to the extent that the Board
	Page 22	25	Page 24
1	that the evidence in this case demonstrates		considers it appropriate, Hydro can update
2	that Hydro's organizational model has	2	the fuel price for the GRA order. At this
3	provided Hydro with savings and	3	point, the most up-to-date forecast is the
4	efficiencies. The Board's consultant has	4	\$64.41 per barrel from October, but it can
5	stated that Hydro's procedures are	5	be updated for the GRA order.
6	reasonable.	6	Those are my submissions, Mr. Chair.
7	So, quite apart from my submission that	7	Thank you.
8	the powers of the Board do not include	8	CHAIRMAN:
9	changing or requiring a change to Hydro's	9	Q. Okay. Mr. O'Brien.
10	management structure or methods, in my	10	MR. O'BRIEN:
11	submission, we could go further and conclude	11	Q. Thank you, Mr. Chair, Commissioners. Thank
12	that there's no reason for the Board to do	12	you for the opportunity of addressing you
13	so in this case because there has been no	13	here this morning. I'd also like to thank
14	proof that the organizational structure, on	14	the Board staff and other counsel for their
15	balance, and I emphasize on balance, has	15	cooperation throughout this lengthy process
16	provided Hydro and Hydro's customers with an	16	and I guess we're drawing to a close soon,
	inferior outcome. On the contrary, there is	17	with a compliance order after today
17	,	110	homofully
17 18	ample evidence that it has assisted Hydro in	18	hopefully.
		18	In my oral submissions today, I'll try
18	ample evidence that it has assisted Hydro in		
18 19	ample evidence that it has assisted Hydro in achieving cost savings and operational	19	In my oral submissions today, I'll try
18 19 20	ample evidence that it has assisted Hydro in achieving cost savings and operational efficiencies.	19 20	In my oral submissions today, I'll try to address, as my learned friend has done,
18 19 20 21	ample evidence that it has assisted Hydro in achieving cost savings and operational efficiencies. That then brings me, Mr. Chair, to the	19 20 21	In my oral submissions today, I'll try to address, as my learned friend has done, all of the issues the Board has raised and
18 19 20 21 22	ample evidence that it has assisted Hydro in achieving cost savings and operational efficiencies. That then brings me, Mr. Chair, to the final area in the Board's letter, which is	19 20 21 22 23 24	In my oral submissions today, I'll try to address, as my learned friend has done, all of the issues the Board has raised and asked us to address, but I do want to comment on some of the key regulatory principles that you will be guided by, as
18 19 20 21 22 23	ample evidence that it has assisted Hydro in achieving cost savings and operational efficiencies. That then brings me, Mr. Chair, to the final area in the Board's letter, which is relating to fuel prices. The Board has	19 20 21 22 23	In my oral submissions today, I'll try to address, as my learned friend has done, all of the issues the Board has raised and asked us to address, but I do want to comment on some of the key regulatory

Page 25	Daga 27
1 automatic and 1 and 1 think as you go through your deliber	Page 27
1 submissions of Hydro in its rebuttal, and 1 think, as you go through your deliber	
2 there's one other minor item I wanted to 2 in this matter because there's a numb	
3 touch on as well from one of the other 3 issues that are on contention that aris	
4 intervener's submissions. 4 of management decisions made by H	•
5 But to begin with, some of the 5 management decisions that they've h	
6 principles and the regulatory framework 6 flexibility to make, and also manager	
7 that'll guide the Board in exercising its 7 decisions that have resulted or may r	
8 supervisory powers in this matter. Mr. Cass 8 in adverse outcomes or consequence	
9 has already taken you through a few of them, 9 which the customers of Hydro should	
10but to take you through what I see you'll be10those consequences. So, that's sort of	
11looking at here is some of the principles11think those are key points you should	
12 would include when you're setting rates, 12 in mind as you consider your order in	n this
13obviously the rate setting in this13case.	
14jurisdiction is a perspective exercise.14At the outset of this hearing i	n my
15Rates are set for the future and that's15opening statement, I indicated that	
16always been the case.16Newfoundland Power's participation	
17CHAIRMAN:17hearing was as an intervener on beha	
18Q.Prospective.18its own customers, and as you're away	
19MR. O'BRIEN:19Newfoundland Power is Newfoundland	and and
20Q.Prospective, sorry, yeah. The general20Labrador Hydro's largest customer a	
21 principle of non-retroactivity prevents a 21 interest was really to ensure that rate	
22 utility from recovering expenses incurred in 22 being charged by Hydro were going	to be just
23 the past from future rates, save and except 23 and reasonable and our participation	focused
24for the extraordinary circumstances of a24on three key areas: management decircumstances	sion
25deferral account for cost deferral, and25making, costs and reliability.	
Page 26	Page 28
1 we'll talk about that a bit later. 1 Now, with respect to the man	-
2 So, as a result, a utility is not 2 decision making, a fair bit of the focu	
3 guaranteed to earn a particular rate of 3 during the hearing revolved around t	
4 return. So that's one of the things that I 4 matrix organization of Nalcor, and the	nis was
5 wanted you to keep in mind. What they're 5 important, I believe, and it was also	
6 guaranteed is really the opportunity to earn 6 necessary, given that the organization	
7 a reasonable return, within a particular 7 structure was not in existence at the	
8 range. So this is the allowable return. 8 of Hydro's last general rate applicati	
9 And Mr. Cass has pointed you to, I guess it 9 So, it was important for Newfoundla	
10was a quote really from the Stated Case10and for a number of the interveners t	-
11 involving the decisions of management in the 11 understand the reporting arrangement	
12operation of a utility.12both an account – from an accountable	•
13So, since a utility is only entitled to13perspective and transparency, as the	Board
14 the opportunity to earn a reasonable return, 14 pointed out in your letter of January	16th
15 it's subject to the financial risks 15 was key.	
16associated with the decisions of management16Now, against that background	d, you'll
17 in the operation of the utility, and because 17 have to consider whether or not the	
18a utility has to live with the outcome of18management structure at Hydro has l	nad an
19those financial decisions, it does have to19effect on the efficiencies of its operation	tions
20 be given some flexibility in making those 20 from a cost perspective. With that sa	uid,
21 decisions. In other words, your powers 21 and I'd like to turn at this point really	y to
22 can't be exercised in a manner which would 22 the third point of your letter where y	ou've
23 result in a retroactive adjustment of the 23 asked about remedial actions with re	spect to
24 actions of management. 24 the corporate structure.	
	erms of

1 what he Board can do with an order relating to Hydro's management structure. The Board 3 1 is a key factor in terms of cost control. 2 to Hydro's management structure. The Board can 4 5 consider the productivity of the Hydro and 5 5 4 for Hydro in the future. The Board can 4 4 reasonable control first control lable 5 consider the productivity of the Hydro and 5 consider the productivity of the Hydro and 5 constant the productivity of the Hydro 7 necessary, it can make that kind of 7 reasonable control first control. stated that they felt Hydro had exercised 7 8 adjustment. But in terms of the corporate 8 adjustment. But in terms of the corporate 7 8 disconcerting in light of the fact that 7 seque the other area which Newfoundland 12 10 Mr. Cass. I can't see in the powers of the 11 10 Nult be structured. I did 13 was reliability. The questioning of 7 11 Public training the point and of protor and 14 was reliability. The questioning of 7 management witnesses in this area focused on 15 that's Newfoundland Power's position on that 15 reaction reliability deficiencies which were 7 10 general. Through the kerning, the 10 percent out for adjust about costs in 18 had determined to be an ongoing culture of 10 11 rate ad b sout costs in 18	1 what the Board can do with an order retaining. 1 is a key factor in terms of Cost control. 2 to Hydro's management structure. The Board can 4 4 for Hydro in the future. The Board can 4 5 consider the productivity of the Hydro and 5 6 ria and lowance or an adjustment is 6 7 necessary, it can make that ith of of 7 8 adjustment. But in terms of the corporate 8 9 structure. I don't - I'd have to agree with 9 costs had escalated boyoni inflationary 10 Mr. Cass. I can seto mit he powers of the 10 Levels. And the other area which Newroundland 11 Pohle Utility Act that the Hoard has a 11 Nath e other area which Newroundland 12 12 power to order Newroundland and Labrador 12 management witnesses in this area focused on 13 Hydro in white south be structured. I did 13 was reliability. The questioning of 14 want to get that point made upfront und 14 management witnesses in this area focused on 15 that's Newfoundland Power's postion on that 15 cecatain reliability. The questing of the structure of <th></th> <th></th> <th></th> <th></th>				
2 And while a number of Hydro's winnesses 3 can certainly look at reporting requirements 3 stated that they felt Hydro had exercised 4 for Hydro in the future. The Board can 4 reasonable control of its controllable 5 consider the productivity of the Hydro and 5 const, none were able to point to any 6 if an allowner or an adjustment Hydro's windexer 8 adjustment. They was quite 9 exestance, I don't - I'd have to agree with 9 costs had escalated beyond inflationary 10 Mr. Cass. I can't see in the powers of the 10 levels. 11 Public Uitily Act that the Board and Labrador 12 Power was keen on getting a better handle on 13 Hydro on have it should be structured. I did 13 management witnesses how cortaing a better handle on 14 want to get that point made upfront and 14 management witnesses how cortaing a better hydro show were able to hydro who were able to hydro. how cortaing a better hydro. 16 issue. 16 readily acknowledged. There were concerns 16 getterned to tak about costs in 11 had determined to ha about costs in 12 opersti	2 to Hydro's management structure. The Board 2 And while a number of Hydro's witnesses 3 can certainly look at reporting requirements 3 stated that they felt Hydro had verrised 5 consider the productivity of the Hydro and 5 costs, none were able to point to any 6 if an allowance or an adjustment. But in terms of the corporate 8 specific programs directed towards 7 necessary, it can make that kind of 7 efficiency improvement. This was quite 9 structure, I don't - I'd have to agree with 9 costs had escalated byoand inflationary 10 Mr. Cass. I can use in the powers of the 10 levels. 11 Public Utility Act that the Board has a 11 And the other area which Newfoundland 12 power vas keen on genomical to the mainder of 13 Hydro on how it should be structured. I did 13 Hydro on how it should be structured. I did 14 management witnesses in this area focused on 14 want to get that point made upfront and 14 management witnesses in this area focused on 15 that's Newfoundland Power's position on that 15 raidy acknowledged. Here was 16 testatt, wanted		Page 29		Page 31
3 can certainly look at reporting requirements 3 stated that they felt Hydro had exercised 4 for Hydro in the furme. The Board ean consider the productivity of the Hydro and 5 5 consider the productivity of the Hydro and 5 consider the productivity of the Hydro and 5 7 necessary, it can make that kind of 7 efficiency improvement. This was quite 8 adjustment. But in terms of the corporate 8 disconcerting in light of the fact that 9 structure, I don't - I'd have to arge with 9 costs had estalead beyond inflationary 10 Mr. Cass. I can't see in the powers of the 10 levels. 11 Public Utitity Act that the Boord has a 11 And the other area which Newfoundland 12 power to order Newfoundland and I abrador 12 Power was keen on getting a better handle on 13 Hydro on how it should be structured. I did 13 was reliability deficiencies which were 16 issue. readily structure. Jownovidaged. There were concerns 17 But before 1 get into the remainder of 17 raised about what Liberovid coulds was of the 22 18 the letter, 1 wanted to talk about costs in	3 can certainly look ar reporting requirements 3 stated that they fell Hydro had exercised 4 for Hydro in the future. The Board can 4 reasonable control of its controllable 5 consider the productivity of the Hydro and 5 consider the productivity of the Hydro and 6 if an allowance or an adjustment is 6 specific programs directed towards 9 structure, I don'tF Have to agree with 9 consider that the form 's of the corporate 8 adjustment. But in terms of the corporate 8 disconcerting in Hydro and the Arbodro 12 10 Mr. Cass. I can't see in the powers of the 10 levels. 11 Public Utility Act that the Board has a 11 And the other area which Newfoundland 12 power to order Newfoundland and Labrador 12 mamagement witnesses in this area focused on 13 Hydro on how it should be structured. I did 13 mas reliability. The questioning of 14 want to get that point made upfront and 14 mamagement witnesses in this area focused on 16 issue. 16 readily acknowledged. There were concerns 17 But before I get into th remainder of 17 <t< td=""><td></td><td>•</td><td></td><td>-</td></t<>		•		-
4 for Hydro in the future. The Board can 4 reasonable control lable 5 consider the productivity of the Hydro and 5 costs, now were able to point to any 6 if an allowance or an adjustment is 6 costs, now were able to point to any 7 necessary, it can make that kind of 7 efficiency improvement. This was quite 9 structure, I don't - I'd have to agree with 9 costs had escalated beyond inflationary 10 Mr. Cass. I can't see in the powers of the 10 Incertain the Hydro and I Labrador 12 12 power to order Newfoundland and Labrador 12 Power was keen on geting a better handle on 13 Hydro in how it should be structured. I did 13 management witnesses in this area focused on 16 issue. 16 readily acknowledged. There were concerns 16 issue. 16 readily acknowledged. There were concerns 17 But before I get into the remainder of 17 raised about what Liberty Consulting Group 18 the letter, I wanted to talk about costs in 18 had determined to be an ongoing callure of 20 lengthy herming here, NevYounalland Power's 20 <	4 for Hydro in the future. The Board can 4 reasonable controllable 5 consider the productivity of the Hydro and 5 costs, now were able to point to any 6 if an allowance or an adjustment is 6 specific programs directed towards 7 necessary, if can make that kind of 7 efficiency improvement. This was quite 8 adjustment. But in terms of the corporate 8 disconcerting in light of the fact that 9 structure, I don't – 7 dh have to agree with 9 costs had escalated beyond inflationary 10 Mr. Cass. I can 'isse in the Board has a 11 And the other area which Newfoundland 12 power to order Newfoundland and Labrador 12 Power was keen on getting a better handle on 13 Hydro on how it should be structured. I did 13 management witnesses in this area focused on 16 issue. 16 readily acknowledged. There were concerns 17 But before I get into the remainder of 17 raised about what Liberty Consulting Group 18 the letter, I wanet to tak about costs in 18 had determined to be an ongging culture of 20 geneting outs which Hydro acknowledged there was <td< td=""><td></td><td></td><td>1</td><td></td></td<>			1	
5 consider the productivity of the Hydro and 5 costs, none were able to point to any 6 if an allowance or an adjustment is 6 specific programs directed towards 7 necessary, it can make that kind of 7 efficiency improvement. This was quite 8 adjustment. But in terms of the corporate 8 disconcerting in Hph of the fact that 9 structure, I don't - I'd have to agree with 9 costs had escalated beyond inflationary 10 Mr. Cass. I can't see in the powers of the 10 levels. 11 Public Utility Act that the Board has a 11 And the other area which Newfoundland 12 power to order Newfoundland Power's position on that 13 was reliability. The questioning of 13 Hydro on how it should be structured. I did 13 was reliability. The questioning of 14 want to get that point made upfort and 14 management witnesses in this ins ara focused on 16 issue. 16 raised about what I berry Consulting Group 18 the letter, I wanted to talk about costs in 18 had determined to be an ongoing culture of 20 lengthy hearing here, Newfoundland Power's 20 President of Hydro schowledged there was 21 questioning of wimesses focus of 21 address its tra	5 consider the productivity of the Hydro and 5 costs, none were able to point to any 6 if an allowance or an adjustment is 6 specific programs directed towards 7 neccessary, it can make that kind of 7 costs, none were able to point to any 8 adjustment. But in terms of the corporate 8 disconcerting in light of the fact that 9 structure, 1 don't - I' have to agree with 9 costs had escalated beyond inflationary 10 Mr. Cass. Laan't see in the powers of the 10 levels. 11 Public Uility Art that the Board has a 11 And the other area which Newfoundland 12 power to order Newfoundland and Labrador 12 Power was keen on getting a better handle on 13 Hydro on how it should be structured. I did 13 maaragement witnesses in this area focused on 16 issue. 16 readity acknowledged. There were concerns 17 But before 1 get into the craminder of 17 raised about what Liberty Consulting Group 18 the letter, I wanted to talk about costs in 18 had determined to be an ongoing culture of 21 questioning of wincessof Encoted on ovis in 21 still work to be done on Hydro's cond to 22 order to gain a better understanding of the 22 add	3			
6 if an allowated or an adjustment is 6 specific programs directed towards 7 necessary, it can make that kind of 7 efficiency improvement. This was quite 8 adjustment. But in terms of the corporate 8 disconcriting in light of the fact that 9 structure, I don't - I' a have to agree with 9 costs had escalated beyond inflationary 10 Mr. Cass. Leart 'ssee in the powers of the 10 Levels. 11 Public Utility Act that the Board has a 11 Power was keen on getting a block model on that's Newfoundland Muter 12 13 Hydro on how it should be structured. I did 13 was reliability. The questioning of 14 want to get that point made upfront and 14 management withesess in this area focused on 16 rissue. 16 crasting daotu what Liberty Consulting Group 18 the Hetr, I vanied to talk about costs in 18 had determined to a mogoing culture of 20 lengthy hearing here, Newfoundland Power's 20 President of Hydro acknowledged there was 21 questioning of winesses focused on costs in 21 sill work to be doonen Hydro's end to 22 order to gain better underat	6 if an allowate or an adjustment is 6 specific programs directed towards 7 necessary, it can make that kind of 7 efficiency improvement. This was quite 8 adjustment. But in terms of the corporate 8 disconcriting in light of the fact that 9 structure, I don't – I dhave to agree with 9 costs had escalated beyond inflationary 10 Mr. Cass. I can't see in the powers of the 10 Levels. 11 Public Uitlity Art that the Board has a 11 And the other area which Newfoundland 12 power to order Newfoundland and Labrador 12 Power was keen on getting a better handle on 13 Hydro on how it should be structured. I did 13 management Witnesses in this area focused on 16 issue. 16 creatily acknowledged. There were concerns 17 But before 1 get into the remainder of 17 raised about what Liberty Consulting Group 18 the letter, 1 warted to talk about costs in 18 had determined to be an ongoing culture of 20 order to gain a better understanding of the 22 address its track record in future. And the 23 nature and the reasons for the significant 23 <td></td> <td>-</td> <td>1</td> <td></td>		-	1	
7 necessary, it can make that kind of 7 efficiency improvement. This was quite 8 adjustment. But in terms of the corporate 8 disconcering in light of the fact that 9 structure; I don't - I'd have to agree with 9 costs had escalated beyond inflationary 10 Mr. Cass. I can 't see in the powers of the 10 levels. 11 Public Utility, Act that the Bourd has a 11 Power was keen on getting a better handle on 13 Hydro on how it should be structured. I did 13 was reliability. The questioning of 14 want to get that point made upforth and 14 management witnesses in this area focused on 16 issue. 16 readity achnowledged. There were concerns 17 But before 1 get into the remainder of 17 rasis dato the was and the Vice- 20 lengthy hearing here, Newfoundland Power's 20 President of Hydro schowledged there was 21 questioning of vitmesses focused on costs in 21 sista assing out of the actions and 22 order to gain a better understanding of the 22 address its mack record in future. And the 23 nature and the reasons for the significant 23	7 necessary, it can make that kind of 7 efficiency improvement. This was quite 8 adjustment. But in terms of the corporate 8 efficiency improvement. This was quite 9 structure, I don't - I'd have to agree with 9 costs had secalated beyond inflationary 10 Mr. Cass. I can't see in the powers of the 10 Inflationary levels. 11 Public Utility Act that the Board has a 11 Power vas keen on getting a better handle on 13 Hydro on how it should be structured. I did 13 management witnesses in this area focused on 14 want to get that point made upfront and 14 management witnesses in this area focused on 16 tissue. 16 readily acknowledged. There were concerns 17 But before 1 get into the remainder of 17 raised about what Liberty Consulting Group 18 the letter, I wanted to talk about costs in 18 had determined to be an ongoing culture of 20 lengthy hearing here, Newfoundland Power's 20 President of Iyto'a acknowledged there was 21 questioning of witnesses focused on costs in 21 adress its track record in future. And the 23 natture and	5		5	
8 adjustment. But in terms of the corporate 8 disconcerting in hight of the fact that 9 structure, I don't – I'd have to agree with 9 costs had escalated beyond inflationary 10 Mr. Cass. I can't see in the powers of the 10 levels. 11 Public Utility Act that the Board has a 11 And the other area which Newfoundland 12 power to order Newfoundland and I abrador 12 Power was keen on getting a better handle on 13 Hydro on how it should be structured. I did 13 was reliability deficiencies which were 16 instaw. 16 creatin reliability deficiencies which were 16 issue. 16 readity acknowledged. There were concerns 17 But before I get into the remainder of 17 raised about what I iberty Consulting Group 18 the letter, I wanted to talk about costs in 18 had determined to be an ongoing culture of 20 lengthy hearing here, Newfoundland Power's 20 President of Hydro acknowledged there was 21 questioning of witnesses focused on costs in 21 still work to be done on Hydro's end to 22 order to gain a better understanding of the 22 <	8 adjustment. But in terms of the corporate 9 8 disconcerting in light of the fact that 2 9 structure, I don't – I'd have to agree with 9 9 costs had secialiated beyond inflationary 2 10 Mr. Cass. I can't see in the powers of the 11 11 Public Utility Act that the Board has a 11 11 And the other area which Newfoundland 12 11 Public Utility Act that the Board has a 13 11 And the other area which Newfoundland of 14 12 power to order Newfoundland and Labrador 14 12 Power was keen on getting a better handle on 14 13 Hydro on how it should be structured. I did 15 that's Newfoundland Power's position on that 16 16 readily acknowledged. There were concerns 17 16 issue. 16 readily acknowledged. There were concerns 17 raised about what Liberty Consulting Group 18 the letter, I wanted to talk about costs in 18 18 had determined to be an ongoing culture of 19 genetral. Throughout the hearing, the 19 genetral. Throughout the hearing, the 20 President of Hydro acknowledged there was 21 questioning of witnesses focused on costs in 21 still work to be done on Hydro's end to 23 address its track record in future. And the 24 issues arising out of the actions and 25 operating costs which Hydro has experienced since 24 2007 are indicative of escalations we	6	-		
9 structure, I don't - T' di have to agree with 9 costs had escalated beyond inflationary 10 Mr. Cass. I can't see in the powers of the 10 levels. 11 Public Uility Act that the Board has a 11 Power was keen on getting a better handle on 12 power to order Newfoundland and Labrador 12 Power was keen on getting a better handle on 13 Hydro on how it should be structured. I did 13 was reliability. The questioning of 14 want to get that point made upfront and 14 management witnesses in this area focused on 16 issue. 16 readily acknowledged. There were concerns 17 But before I get into the remainder of 17 raised about what Liberty Consulting Group 18 the letter, I wanted to talk about costs in 18 had determined to be an ongoing culture of 20 lengthy hearing here, Newfoundland Power's 20 President of Hydro acknowledged there was 21 questioning of witnesses focused on costs in 21 still work to be done on Hydro's end to 22 order to gain a better understanding of the 22 address its track record in future. And the 23 nature and the reasons for the significant 23 Prudeue Review put a spotlight on supply 24 increases which Hydro seeks to rec	9 structure, 1 don't – 1'd have to agree with 9 costs had secalated beyond inflationary 10 Mr. Cass. I can't see in the powers of the 10 Levels. 11 Public Utility Act that the Board has a 11 And the other area which Newfoundland 12 power to order Newfoundland and Labrador 12 Power was keen on getting a better handle on 13 Hydro on how it should be structured. I did 13 was reliability. The questioning of 14 want to get that point made upfront and 14 management witnesses in this area focused on 16 issue. 16 readily acknowledged. There were concerns 17 But before 1 get into the renainder of 17 rised about what Liberty Consulting Group 18 the letter, I wanted to talk about costs in 18 had determined to be an ongoing culture of 20 lengthy hearing here, Newfoundland Power's 20 President of Thydro acknowledged there was 21 questioning of witnesses for used an cost in 21 stutewas arising out of the actions and 23 nature and the reasons for the significant 23 Prudence Review put a spotlight on supply 24 increases in revenue requirement and 24 issues arising out of the actions and 25 operating obstep secalations well 4			1	
10 Mr. Cass. I can't see in the powers of the 10 levels. 11 Public Utility Act that the Board has a 11 And the other area which Newfoundland 12 power to order Newfoundland and I abrador 12 Power was keen on getting a better handle on 13 Hydro on how it should be structured. I did 13 was reliability. The questioning of 14 want to get that point made upfont and 14 maagement witnesses in this area focused on 15 that's Newfoundland Power's position on that 15 certain reliability deficiencies which were 16 issue. 16 readily acknowledged. There were concerns 17 But before I get into the remainder of 17 ruised about what Liberty Consulting Group 18 the letter, I wanted to talk about costs in 18 had determined to be an ongoing culture of 20 lengthy hearing here, Newfoundland Power's 20 Predess is track record in future. And the 21 questioning of witnesses focused on costs in 21 still work to be done on Hydro's end to 22 address is track record in future. And the 23 nature and the reasons for the significant 23 23 nature and the r	10 Mr. Cass. I can't see in the powers of the 10 levels. 11 Public Utility Act that the Board has a 11 And the other area which Newfoundland 12 power to order Newfoundland and Labrador 12 Power was keen on getting a better handle on 13 Hydro on how it should be structured. I did 13 was reliability. The questioning of 14 want to get that point made upfront and 14 management witnesses in this area focused on 15 that's Newfoundland Power's position on that 15 certain reliability deficiencies which were 16 issue. 17 raised about what Liberty Consulting Group 18 the letter, I wanted to talk about costs in 18 had determined to be an ongoing culture of 20 lengthy hearing here, Newfoundland Power's 20 President of Hydro a schowledged there was 21 questioning of witnesses focused on costs in 21 still work to be done on Hydro's end to 23 nature and the reasons for the significant 23 Prudence Review put a spotlight on supply 24 increases which Hydro has experienced since 3 rediavant – on the basis of that, I 25 operating costs which hydro has expe	1		1	
11 Public Utility Act that the Board Bas a 11 And the other area which Newfoundland 12 power to order Newfoundland and Labrador 12 Power was keen on getting a better handle on 13 Hydro on how it should be structured. I did 13 was reliability. The questioning of 14 want to get that point made upfront and 14 management witnesses in this area focused on 15 that's Newfoundland Power's position on that 15 certain reliability. The questioning of 16 issue. 16 readily acknowledged. There were concerns 17 But before 1 get into the remainder of 17 raised about what Liberty Consulting Group 18 the letter, I wanted to talk about costs in 18 thad determined to be an ongoing culture of 20 lengthy hearing here, Newfoundland Power's 20 President of Hydro acknowledged there was 21 questoning of wintesses for clused on costs in 21 still work to be done on Hydro's send to 22 order to gain a better understanding of the 22 address it track record in future. And the 23 nature and the reasons for the significant 23 Prudence Review put a spotlight on supply 24 <td< td=""><td>11 Public Utility Act that the Board has a 11 And the other area which Newfoundland 12 power to order Newfoundland and Labrador 12 Power was keen on getting a better handle on 13 Hydro on how it should be structured. I did 13 was reliability. The questioning of 14 want to get that point made upfront and 14 management witnesses in this area focused on 15 that's Newfoundland Power's position on that 15 certain reliability. The evence encerns 16 issue. 16 readuly acknowledged. There were concerns 17 But before I get into the remainder of 17 raised about what Liberty Consulting Group 18 the letter, I wanted to talk about costs in 19 acceptance of rotating outages and the Vice- 20 lengthy hearing here, Newfoundland Power's 20 President O'Ilydro acknowledged there was 21 questioning of witnesses focused on costs in 21 still work to be done on Hydro's end to 22 order to gain a better understanding of the 22 address its track record in future. And the 23 nature and the reasons for the significant 23 Prudence Review put a spotlight on supply 24</td><td></td><td>-</td><td></td><td></td></td<>	11 Public Utility Act that the Board has a 11 And the other area which Newfoundland 12 power to order Newfoundland and Labrador 12 Power was keen on getting a better handle on 13 Hydro on how it should be structured. I did 13 was reliability. The questioning of 14 want to get that point made upfront and 14 management witnesses in this area focused on 15 that's Newfoundland Power's position on that 15 certain reliability. The evence encerns 16 issue. 16 readuly acknowledged. There were concerns 17 But before I get into the remainder of 17 raised about what Liberty Consulting Group 18 the letter, I wanted to talk about costs in 19 acceptance of rotating outages and the Vice- 20 lengthy hearing here, Newfoundland Power's 20 President O'Ilydro acknowledged there was 21 questioning of witnesses focused on costs in 21 still work to be done on Hydro's end to 22 order to gain a better understanding of the 22 address its track record in future. And the 23 nature and the reasons for the significant 23 Prudence Review put a spotlight on supply 24		-		
12 power to order Newfoundland and Labrador 12 Power was keen on getting a better handle on 13 Hydro on how it should be structured. I did 13 was reliability. The questioning of 14 was reliability. The questioning of imanagement witnesses in this area focused on 15 that's Newfoundland Power's position on that 15 certain reliability deficiencies which were 16 issue. 16 readity acknowledged. There were concerns 17 But before I get into the remainder of 17 raised about what Liberty Consulting Group 18 the letter, I vanied to talk about costs in 18 had determinined to be an ongoing culture of 20 lengthy hearing here, Newfoundland Power's 20 President of Hydro acknowledged there was 21 questioning of witnesses focused on costs in 21 still work to be done on Hydro's end to 23 nature and the reasons for the significant 23 Prudence Review put a spotlight on supply 24 increases in revenue requirement and 24 issues arising out of the actions and 25 operating costs which Hydro seeks to recover 25 wanted to turn to Newfoundland Hydro's 3 increases which Hydro has	12 power to order Newfoundland and Labrador 12 Power was keen on getting a better handle on 13 Hydro on how it should be structured. I did 13 was reliability. The questioning of 14 want toget that point made upfont and 14 management witnesses in this area focused on 16 issue. 16 readily acknowledged. There were concerns 17 But before 1 get into the remainder of 17 raised about what Liberty Consulting Group 18 the letter, I wanted to talk about costs in 18 had determined to be an ongoing culture of 20 general. Throughout the hearing, the 19 acceptance of rotating outages and the Vice- 21 questioning of witnesses focused on costs in 21 still work to be done on Hydro's end to 23 nature and the reasons for the significant 23 Prudence Review put a spotlight on supply 24 increases in revenue requirement and 24 issues arising out of the actions and 25 operating costs which Hydro kas experienced since 3 rebut is how would see for a normal 5 3 increases which Hydro has experienced since 3 rebut show would see for a normal 5 one. There's som commenta	1	-		
13Ifydro on how it should be structured. I did13was reliability. The questioning of14want to get that point made upfront and14management witnesses in this area focused on15that's Newfoundland Power's position on that15certain reliability deficiencies which were16issue.16readily acknowledged. There were concerns17But before I get into the remainder of17raised about what Liberty Consulting Group18the letter, I wanted to talk about costs in18had determined to be an ongoing culture of19general. Throughout the hearing, the19acceptance of rotating outges and the Vice-20lengthy hearing here, Newfoundland Power's20President of Hydro acknowledged there was21questioning of witnesses focused on costs in21still work to be done on Hydro's end to22order to gain a better understanding of the22address it tack record in future. And the23nature and the reasons for the significant23Prudence Review put a spotlight to supply24increases in revenue requirement and24issues arising out of the actions and25operating costs which Hydro secks to recover25decisions of management.26put it should be said again, that cost2wanted to tref3increases which Hydro has experienced since3rebutut.42007 are indicative of escalations well5one. There's some commentary there about5above what we would see for a normal	13 Hydro on how it should be structured. I did 13 was reliability. The questioning of 14 want to get that point made upfront and 14 management witnesses in this area focused on 15 that's Newfoundland Power's position on that 15 readily acknowledged. There were concerns 16 issue. 16 readily acknowledged. There were concerns 17 But before I get into the remainder of 17 raised about what Liberty Consulting Group 18 the letter, I wanted to talk about costs in 18 had determined to be an ongoing culture of 20 lengthy hearing here, Newfoundland Power's 20 President of Hydro acknowledged there was 21 questioning of witnesses focused on costs in 21 still work to be done on Hydro's end to 23 nature and the reasons for the significant 23 Prudence Review put a spotlight on supply 24 increases in revoue requirement and 24 issues arising out of the actions and 25 operating costs which Hydro seeks to recover 25 decisions of management. 2007 are indicative of escalations well 4 you to a couple of passages starting at page 3 increases which Hydro has experinced since<	1	-		
14 want to get that point made upfront and 14 management witnesses in this area focused on 15 that's Newfoundland Power's position on that 15 certain reliability deficiencies which were 16 issue. 16 readily acknowledged. There were concerns 17 But before I get into the remainder of 17 raised about what Liberty Consulting Group 18 the letter, I wanted to talk about costs in 18 had determined to be an ongoing culture of 20 lengthy hearing here, Newfoundland Power's 20 President of Hydro acknowledged there was 21 questioning of witnesses focused on costs in 21 still work to be done on Hydro's end to 23 nature and the reasons for the significant 23 Prudence Review put a spotlight on supply 24 increases in revenue requirement and 24 issues arising out of the actions and 25 operating costs which Hydro seeks to recover 25 decisions of management. 28 neutrases which Hydro seeks to recover 2 wanted to turn to Newfoundland Hydro's 3 increases which Hydro has experienced since 3 rebuttal. If we could, I wanted to refer 4 2007 are indicative of esc	14 want to get that point made upfront and 14 management witnesses in this area focused on 15 that's Newfoundland Power's position on that 15 certain reliability deficiencies which were 16 issue. 16 readily acknowledged. There were concerns 17 But before 1 get into the remainder of 17 raised about what Liberty Consulting Group 18 the letter, I wanted to talk about costs in 19 acceptance of rotating outages and the Vice- 20 lengthy hearing here, Newfoundland Power's 20 President of Hydro acknowledged there was 21 questioning of witnesses focused on costs in 21 still work to be done on Hydro's end to 23 nature and the reasons for the significant 23 Prudence Review put a spotlight on supply 24 increases in revenue requirement and 24 issues arising out of the actions and 25 operating costs which Hydro seeks to recover 25 decisions of management. 28 but it should be said again, that cost 2 wanted to turm to Newfoundland Hydro's 3 increases which Hydro has experienced since 3 rebutal. If we could, I wanted to refer 4 2007 are indicative of es	1	•	1	
15 that's Newfoundland Power's position on that 15 certain reliability deficiencies which were 16 issue. 16 readily acknowledged. There were concerns 17 But before 1 get into the remainder of 17 raised about what Liberty Consulting Group 18 the letter, I wanted to talk about costs in 18 had determined to be an ongoing culture of 19 general. Throughout the hearing, the 19 acceptance of rotating outages and the Vice- 20 lengthy hearing here, Newfoundland Power's 20 President of Hydro acknowledged there was 21 questioning of witnesses focued on costs in 21 still work to be done on Hydro's end to 23 nature and the reasons for the significant 23 Prudence Review put a spotlight on supply 24 increases in revenue requirement and 24 issues arising out of the actions and 25 operating costs which Hydro seeks to recover 25 decisions of management. 28 notreases which Hydro has experienced since 3 rebuttal. If we could, I wanted to refer 3 above what we would see for a normal 5 one. There's some commentary there about 6 inflationary levels.	15 that's Newfoundland Power's position on that 15 certain reliability deficiencies which were 16 issue. 16 readily acknowledged. There were concerns 17 But before 1 get into the remainder of 17 raised about what Liberty Consulting Group 18 the letter, I wanted to talk about costs in 18 had determined to be an ongoing culture of 19 general. Throughout the hearing, the 19 acceptance of rotating outages and the Vice- 20 lengthy hearing here, Newfoundland Power's 20 President of Hydro acknowledged there was 21 questioning of witnesses focused on costs in 21 still work to be done on Hydro's end to 23 nature can the reasons for the significant 23 Prudence Review put a spotlight on supply 24 increases in revenue requirement and 24 issues arising out of the actions and 25 operating costs which Hydro seeks to recover 25 decisions of management. 21 in its rates. And I know it's been said, 1 I did want – on the basis of that, I 2 but it should be said again, that cost 2 wanted to turn to Newfoundland Hydro's 3 increases which Hydro kas experience	1	•	1	
16 issue. 16 readily acknowledged. There were concerns 17 But before I get into the remainder of 17 raised about what Liberty Consulting Group 18 the letter, I wanted to talk about costs in 18 had determined to be an ongoing culture of 19 general. Throughout the hearing, the 19 acceptance of rotating outages and the Vice- 20 lengthy hearing here, Newfoundland Power's 20 President of Hydro acknowledged there was 21 questioning of winesses focused on costs in 21 still work to be done on Hydro's end to 23 nature and the reasons for the significant 23 Prudence Review put a spotlight on supply 24 increases in revenue requirement and 24 issues arising out of the actions and 25 operating costs which Hydro seeks to recover 25 decisions of management. 2007 are indicative of escalations well 1 1 did want – on the basis of that, I 2 but it should be said again, that cost 2 wanted to turn to Newfoundland Hydro's 3 increases which Hydro has experienced since 3 rebuttal. If We could, I wanted to refer 4 2007 are indicative of escalations well 4	16 issue. 16 readily acknowledged. There were concerns 17 But before I get into the remainder of 17 raised about what Liberty Consulting Group 18 the letter, I wanted to talk about costs in 18 had determined to be an ongoing culture of 19 general. Throughout the hearing, the 19 acceptance of rotating outages and the Vice- 20 lengthy hearing here, Newfoundland Power's 20 President of Hydro acknowledged there was 21 questioning of witnesses focused on costs in 21 still work to be done on Hydro's end to 23 nature and the reasons for the significant 23 Prudence Review put a spotlight on supply 24 increases in revenue requirement and 24 issues arising out of the actions and 25 operating costs which Hydro bas experienced since 3 rebutt al. fould be said again, that cost 2 3 increases which Hydro has experienced since 3 rebuttal. If we could, I wanted to refer 4 2007 are indicative of escalations well 4 you to a couple of passages starting at page 6 inflationary levels. 6 balancing costs with reliability. So, page 7 Newfoundland	1		1	
17 But before I get into the remainder of 17 raised about what Liberty Consulting Group 18 the letter, I wanted to talk about costs in 18 had determined to be an ongoing culture of 19 general. Throughout the hearing, the 19 acceptance of rotating outages and the Vice- 20 lengthy hearing here, Newfoundland Power's 20 President of Hydro acknowledged there was 21 questioning of witnesses focused on costs in 21 still work to be done on Hydro's end to 22 order to gain a better understanding of the 22 addressi its track record in future. And the 23 nature and the reasons for the significant 23 Prudence Review put a spotlight on supply 24 increases in revenue requirement and 24 issues arising out of the actions and 25 operating costs which Hydro seeks to recover 25 decisions of management. 2 but it should be asid again, that cost 2 wanted to turn to Newfoundland Hydro's 3 increases which Hydro has experienced since 3 rebuttal. If we could, I wanted to refer 4 2007 are indicative of exalations well 4 you to a couple of passages starting at page 6 <	17 But before I get into the remainder of 17 raised about what Liberty Consulting Group 18 the letter, I wanted to talk about costs in 18 had determined to be an ongoing culture of 19 general. Throughout the hearing, the 19 acceptance of rotating outages and the Vice- 20 lengthy hearing here, Newfoundland Power's 20 President of Hydro acknowledged there was 21 questioning of witnesses focused on costs in 21 still work to be done on Hydro's end to 22 order to gain a better understanding of the 22 address its track record in future. And the 23 nature and the reasons for the significant 23 Prudence Review put a spolight on supply 24 increases in revenue requirement and 24 issues arising out of the actions and 25 operating costs which Hydro seeks to recover 25 decisions of management. 2 but it should be said again, that cost 2 wanted to turn to Newfoundland Hydro's 3 increases which Hydro has experienced since 3 rebutal. If we could, I wanted to refer 4 2007 are indicative of secalations well 4 you to a couple of passage starting at page 5	15	that's Newfoundland Power's position on that	15	certain reliability deficiencies which were
18 the letter, I wanted to talk about costs in 18 had determined to be an ongoing culture of 19 general. Throughout the hearing, the 19 acceptance of rotating outages and the Vice- 20 lengthy hearing here, Newfoundland Power's 20 President of Hydro acknowledged there was 21 questioning of witnesses focused on costs in 21 still work to be done on Hydro's end to 22 order to gain a better understanding of the 22 address its track record in future. And the 23 nature and the reasons for the significant 23 Prudence Review put a spotlight on supply 24 increases in revenue requirement and 24 issues arising out of the dations and 25 operating costs which Hydro seeks to recover 25 decisions of management. 23 in its rates. And I know it's been said, 1 I did want – on the basis of that, I 2 but it should be said again, that cost 2 wanted to turn to Newfoundland Hydro's 3 increases which Hydro has experienced since 3 rebuttal. I we could, I wanted to refer 4 2007 are indicative of escalations well 4 you to a couple of passages starting at page 5 abo	18 the letter, I wanted to talk about costs in 18 had determined to be an ongoing culture of 19 general. Throughout the hearing, the 19 acceptance of rotating outages and the Vice- 20 lengthy hearing here, Newfoundland Power's 20 President of Hydro acknowledged there was 21 questioning of witnesses focused on costs in 21 still work to be done on Hydro's end to 22 order to gain a better understanding of the 22 address its track record in future. And the 23 nature and the reasons for the significant 23 Prudence Review put a spotlight on supply 24 increases in revenue requirement and 24 issues arising out of the actions and 25 operating costs which Hydro seeks to recover 25 decisions of management. 28 but it should be said again, that cost 2 wanted to turn to Newfoundland Hydro's 3 increases which Hydro has experienced since 3 rebuttal. If we could, I wanted to refer 4 2007 are indicative of escalations well 4 you to a couple of passages starting at page 5 above what we would see for a normal 6 balancing costs with reliability. So, page 7	16	issue.	16	
19 general. Throughout the hearing, the 19 acceptance of rotating outages and the Vice- 20 lengthy hearing here, Newfoundland Power's 20 President of Hydro acknowledged there was 21 questioning of witnesses focused on costs in 21 still work to be done on Hydro's end to 22 order to gain a better understanding of the 22 address its track record in future. And the 23 nature and the reasons for the significant 23 Prudence Review put a spotlight on supply 24 increases in revenue requirement and 24 issues arising out of the actions and 25 operating costs which Hydro seeks to recover 25 decisions of management. 2 wanted to turn to Newfoundland Hydro's 3 increases which Hydro has experienced since 3 rebuttal. If we could, I wanted to refer 4 2007 are indicative of escalations well 4 you to a couple of passages starting at page 5 above what we would see for a normal 5 one. There's some commentary there about 6 inflationary levels. 8 anterliability, I just wanted to read to 9 you some of the corments here. 11 as whole, have made submissionson Hydro's	19 general. Throughout the hearing, the 19 acceptance of rotating outges and the Vice- 20 lengthy hearing here, Newfoundland Power's 20 President of Hydro acknowledged there was 21 questioning of witnesses focused on costs in 21 still work to be done on Hydro's end to 22 address its track record in future. And the 23 nature and the reasons for the significant 23 23 nature and the reasons for the significant 23 Prudence Review put a spotlight on supply 24 increases in revenue requirement and 24 issues arising out of the actions and 25 operating costs which Hydro seeks to recover 25 decisions of management. 2 but it should be said again, that cost 2 wanted to turn to Newfoundland Hydro's 3 increases which Hydro has experienced since 3 rebuttal. If we could, I wanted to refer 4 2007 are indicative of escalations well 4 you to a couple of passages starting at page 5 above what we would see for a normal 6 balancing costs with reliability. So, page 7 Newfoundland Power has highlighted its 7 one under the heading two, balancing costs 8		-	1	raised about what Liberty Consulting Group
20 lengthy hearing here, Newfoundland Power's 20 President of Hydro acknowledged there was 21 questioning of winesses focused on costs in 21 still work to be done on Hydro's end to 22 order to gain a better understanding of the 22 address its track record in future. And the 23 nature and the reasons for the significant 23 Prudence Review put a spotlight on supply 24 increases in revenue requirement and 24 issues arising out of the actions and 25 operating costs which Hydro seeks to recover 25 decisions of management. 2 but it should be said again, that cost 2 wanted to turn to Newfoundland Hydro's 3 increases which Hydro has experienced since 3 rebuttal. If we could, I wanted to refer 4 2007 are indicative of escalations well 4 you to a couple of passages statring at page 5 above what we would see for a normal 5 one. There's some commentary there about 6 inflationary levels. 6 balancing costs with reliability. So, page 7 Newfoundland Power has highlighted its 7 one under the heading two, balancing costs 8 concerms regarding the reasonab	20 lengthy hearing here, Newfoundland Power's 20 President of Hydro acknowledged there was 21 questioning of witnesses focused on costs in 21 still work to be done on Hydro's end to 22 order to gain a better understanding of the 22 address its track record in future. And the 23 nature and the reasons for the significant 23 Prudence Review put a spotlight on supply 24 increases in revenue requirement and 24 issues arising out of the actions and 25 operating costs which Hydro seeks to recover 25 decisions of management. 26 Page 30 Page 32 1 in its rates. And I know it's been said, 1 I did want – on the basis of that, I 2 but it should be said again, that cost 2 wanted to turn to Newfoundland Hydro's 3 increases which Hydro has experienced since 3 rebuttal. If we could, I wanted to refer 4 2007 are indicative of escalations well 4 you to a couple of passages starting at page 5 above what we would see for a normal 6 balancing costs with reliability. So, page 7 Newfoundland Power has highlighted its 7 one under the heading two	18	the letter, I wanted to talk about costs in	18	had determined to be an ongoing culture of
21 questioning of witnesses focused on costs in 21 still work to be done on Hydro's end to 22 order to gain a better understanding of the 22 address its track record in future. And the 23 nature and the reasons for the significant 23 Prudence Review put a spotlight on supply 24 increases in revenue requirement and 24 issues arising out of the actions and 25 operating costs which Hydro seeks to recover 25 decisions of management. Page 30 Page 32 1 in its rates. And I know it's been said, 1 I did want – on the basis of that, I 2 wanted to turn to Newfoundland Hydro's 3 increases which Hydro has experienced since 3 rebuttal. If we could, I wanted to refer 4 2007 are indicative of escalations well 4 you to a couple of passages starting at page 5 above what we would see for a normal 5 one. There's some commentary there about 6 inflationary levels. 6 balancing costs with reliability. So, page 7 Newfoundland Power has highlighted its 7 one under the heading two, balancing costs 8 concerns	21 questioning of witnesses focused on costs in 21 still work to be done on Hydro's end to 22 order to gain a better understanding of the 22 address its track record in future. And the 23 nature and the reasons for the significant 23 Prudence Review put a spotlight on supply 24 increases in revenue requirement and 24 issues arising out of the actions and 25 operating costs which Hydro seeks to recover 25 decisions of management. 25 but it should be said again, that cost 2 wanted to turn to Newfoundland Hydro's 3 increases which Hydro has experienced since 3 rebuttal. If we could, I wanted to refer 4 2007 are indicative of escalations well 4 you to a couple of passages starting at page 5 above what we would see for a normal 6 balancing costs with reliability. So, page 7 Newfoundland Power has highlighted its 7 one under the heading two, balancing costs 8 concerns regarding the reasonableness of the 8 and reliability. J just wanted to read to 9 cost proposals in its written submission and 9 you some of the comments here. 10 I'm not going	19	general. Throughout the hearing, the	19	acceptance of rotating outages and the Vice-
22 order to gain a better understanding of the 22 address its track record in future. And the 23 nature and the reasons for the significant 23 Prudence Review put a spotlight on supply 24 increases in revenue requirement and 24 issues arising out of the actions and 25 operating costs which Hydro seeks to recover 25 decisions of management. 2 but it should be said again, that cost 2 wanted to turn to Newfoundland Hydro's 3 increases which Hydro has experienced since 3 rebuttal. If we could, I wanted to refer 4 2007 are indicative of escalations well 4 you to a couple of passages starting at page 5 above what we would see for a normal 5 one. There's some commentary there about 6 inflationary levels. 6 balancing costs with reliability. So, page 7 Newfoundland Power has highlighted its 7 one under the heading two, balancing costs 8 concerns regarding the reasonableness of the 8 and reliability. J just wanted to read to 9 cost proposals in its written submission and 9 you some of the comments here. 10 I'm not going to take you through chapte	22 order to gain a better understanding of the 22 address its track record in future. And the 23 nature and the reasons for the significant 23 Prudence Review put a spotlight on supply 24 increases in revenue requirement and 24 issues arising out of the actions and 25 operating costs which Hydro seeks to recover 25 decisions of management. Page 30 Page 32 1 in its rates. And I know it's been said, 1 I did want – on the basis of that, I 2 but it should be said again, that cost 2 wanted to turn to Newfoundland Hydro's 3 increases which Hydro has experienced since 3 rebuttal. If we could, I wanted to refer 4 2007 are indicative of escalations well 4 you to a couple of passages starting at page 5 above what we would see for a normal 6 balancing costs with reliability. So, page 7 Newfoundland Power has highlighted its 7 one under the heading two, balancing costs 8 concerns regarding the reasonableness of the 8 and reliability. J just wanted to read to 9 cost proposals in its written submission and 9 <td< td=""><td>20</td><td></td><td>20</td><td>President of Hydro acknowledged there was</td></td<>	20		20	President of Hydro acknowledged there was
23 nature and the reasons for the significant 23 Prudence Review put a spotlight on supply 24 increases in revenue requirement and 24 issues arising out of the actions and 25 operating costs which Hydro secks to recover 25 decisions of management. Page 30 1 in its rates. And I know it's been said, 1 I did want – on the basis of that, I 2 but it should be said again, that cost 2 wanted to turn to Newfoundland Hydro's 3 increases which Hydro has experienced since 3 rebuttal. If we could, I wanted to refer 4 2007 are indicative of escalations well 4 you to a couple of passages starting at page 5 above what we would see for a normal 5 one. There's some commentary there about 6 inflationary levels. 6 balancing costs with reliability. So, page 7 Newfoundland Power has highlighted its 7 one under the heading two, balancing costs 8 concerns regarding the reasonableness of the 8 and reliability. I just wanted to read to 9 you some of the comments here. 10 "The interveners, both individually and 11 an	23 nature and the reasons for the significant 23 Prudence Review put a spotlight on supply 24 increases in revenue requirement and 24 issues arising out of the actions and 25 operating costs which Hydro seeks to recover 25 decisions of management. 7 Page 30 Page 32 actions of management. 2 but it should be said again, that cost 2 wanted to turn to Newfoundland Hydro's 3 increases which Hydro has experienced since 3 rebuttal. If we could, I wanted to refer 4 2007 are indicative of escalations well 4 you to a couple of passages starting at page 5 above what we would see for a normal 6 balancing costs with reliability. So, page 7 Newfoundland Power has highlighted its 7 one under the heading two, balancing costs 8 concerns regarding the reasonableness of the 8 and reliability, I just wanted to read to 9 cost proposals in its written submission and 9 you some of the comments here. 10 I'm not going to take you through chapter 10 "The interveners, both individually and 13 Hydro has not established that its proposal 13	21	questioning of witnesses focused on costs in		still work to be done on Hydro's end to
24 increases in revenue requirement and 24 issues arising out of the actions and 25 operating costs which Hydro seeks to recover 25 decisions of management. Page 30 1 in its rates. And I know it's been said, 1 I did want – on the basis of that, I 2 but it should be said again, that cost 2 wanted to turn to Newfoundland Hydro's 3 increases which Hydro has experienced since 3 rebuttal. If we could, I wanted to refer 4 2007 are indicative of escalations well 4 you to a couple of passages starting at page 5 above what we would see for a normal 5 one. There's some commentary there about 6 inflationary levels. 6 balancing costs with reliability. So, page 7 Newfoundland Power has highlighted its 7 one under the heading two, balancing costs 8 concerns regarding the reasonableness of the 8 and reliability. I just wanted to read to 9 cost proposals in its written submission and 9 you some of the comments here. 10 The interveners, both individually and The interveners, both individually and 11 and verse of those conc	24 increases in revenue requirement and 24 issues arising out of the actions and 25 operating costs which Hydro seeks to recover 25 decisions of management. Page 30 Page 32 1 in its rates. And I know it's been said, 1 I did want – on the basis of that, I 2 but it should be said again, that cost 2 wanted to turn to Newfoundland Hydro's 3 increases which Hydro has experienced since 3 rebuttal. If we could, I wanted to refer 4 2007 are indicative of escalations well 4 you to a couple of passages starting at page 5 above what we would see for a normal 6 balancing costs with reliability. So, page 7 Newfoundland Power has highlighted its 7 one under the heading two, balancing costs 8 concerns regarding the reasonableness of the 8 and reliability, I just wanted to read to 9 cost proposals in its written submission and 9 you some of the comments here. 10 I'm not going to take you through chapter 10 "The interveners, both individually and 11 and verse of those concerns. But suffice it 11 as a whole, have made submissions on Hydro's <td>22</td> <td></td> <td>22</td> <td>address its track record in future. And the</td>	22		22	address its track record in future. And the
25 operating costs which Hydro seeks to recover 25 decisions of management. Page 30 Page 32 1 in its rates. And I know it's been said, 1 I did want – on the basis of that, I 2 but it should be said again, that cost 2 wanted to turn to Newfoundland Hydro's 3 increases which Hydro has experienced since 3 rebuttal. If we could, I wanted to refer 4 2007 are indicative of escalations well 4 you to a couple of passages starting at page 5 above what we would see for a normal 5 one. There's some commentary there about 6 inflationary levels. 6 balancing costs with reliability. So, page 7 Newfoundland Power has highlighted its 7 one under the heading two, balancing costs 8 concerns regarding the reasonableness of the 8 and reliability. J just wanted to read to 9 cost proposals in its written submission and 9 you some of the comments here. 10 I'm not going to take you through chapter 10 "The interveners, both individually and 11 as a whole, have made submissions on Hydro's 12	25 operating costs which Hydro seeks to recover 25 decisions of management. Page 30 Page 32 1 in its rates. And I know it's been said, 1 I did want – on the basis of that, I 2 but it should be said again, that cost 2 wanted to turn to Newfoundland Hydro's 3 increases which Hydro has experienced since 3 rebuttal. If we could, I wanted to refer 4 2007 are indicative of escalations well 4 you to a couple of passages starting at page 5 above what we would see for a normal 5 one. There's some commentary there about 6 inflationary levels. 6 balancing costs with reliability. So, page 7 Newfoundland Power has highlighted its 7 one under the heading two, balancing costs 8 concerns regarding the reasonableness of the 8 and reliability, I just wanted to read to 9 cost proposals in its written submission and 9 you some of the comments here. 10 I'm not going to take you through chapter 10 "The interveners, both individually and 11 and verse of those concerns. But suffice it 11<		nature and the reasons for the significant	23	Prudence Review put a spotlight on supply
Page 30Page 321in its rates. And I know it's been said,1I did want - on the basis of that, I2but it should be said again, that cost2wanted to turn to Newfoundland Hydro's3increases which Hydro has experienced since3rebuttal. If we could, I wanted to refer42007 are indicative of escalations well4you to a couple of passages starting at page5above what we would see for a normal5one. There's some commentary there about6inflationary levels.6balancing costs with reliability. So, page7Newfoundland Power has highlighted its7one under the heading two, balancing costs8concerns regarding the reasonableness of the8and reliability, I just wanted to read to9cost proposals in its written submission and9you some of the comments here.10I'm not going to take you through chapter10"The interveners, both individually and11and verse of those concerns. But suffice it11as a whole, have made submissions on Hydro's12to say, Newfoundland Power submits that12expenditures that cannot sensibly be13Hydro has not established that its proposal13reconciled with other aspects of their14on costs and overall revenue requirement to14submissions where they seek better15be collected in either of 2014 and 2015 is15reliability and enhanced information and16reasonable.16recording." And if we move down further	Page 30Page 321in its rates. And I know it's been said,1I did want – on the basis of that, I2but it should be said again, that cost2wanted to turn to Newfoundland Hydro's3increases which Hydro has experienced since3rebuttal. If we could, I wanted to refer42007 are indicative of escalations well4you to a couple of passages starting at page5above what we would see for a normal5one. There's some commentary there about6inflationary levels.6balancing costs with reliability. So, page7Newfoundland Power has highlighted its7one under the heading two, balancing costs8concerns regarding the reasonableness of the8and reliability, I just wanted to read to9cost proposals in its written submission and9you some of the comments here.10I'm not going to take you through chapter10"The interveners, both individually and11and verse of those concerns. But suffice it11as a whole, have made submissions on Hydro's12to say, Newfoundland Power submits that12expenditures that cannot sensibly be13Hydro has not established that its proposal13reconciled with other aspects of their14on costs and overall revenue requirement to14submissions where they seek better15be collected in either of 2014 and 2015 is15reliability and enhanced information and16reasonable.16recording." And if we move down further	24	•	24	issues arising out of the actions and
1in its rates. And I know it's been said,1I did want - on the basis of that, I2but it should be said again, that cost2wanted to turn to Newfoundland Hydro's3increases which Hydro has experienced since3rebuttal. If we could, I wanted to refer42007 are indicative of escalations well4you to a couple of passages starting at page5above what we would see for a normal5one. There's some commentary there about6inflationary levels.6balancing costs with reliability. So, page7Newfoundland Power has highlighted its7one under the heading two, balancing costs8concerns regarding the reasonableness of the8and reliability, I just wanted to read to9cost proposals in its written submission and9you some of the comments here.10I'm not going to take you through chapter10"The interveners, both individually and11and verse of those concerns. But suffice it11as a whole, have made submissions on Hydro's12to say, Newfoundland Power submits that12expenditures that cannot sensibly be13Hydro has not established that its proposal13reconciled with other aspects of their14on costs and overall revenue requirement to14submissions where they seek better15be collected in either of 2014 and 2015 is15reliability and enhanced information and16reasonable.16recording." And if we move down further17Now in addition to the rea	1in its rates. And I know it's been said,1I did want – on the basis of that, I2but it should be said again, that cost2wanted to turn to Newfoundland Hydro's3increases which Hydro has experienced since3rebuttal. If we could, I wanted to refer42007 are indicative of escalations well4you to a couple of passages starting at page5above what we would see for a normal5one. There's some commentary there about6inflationary levels.6balancing costs with reliability. So, page7Newfoundland Power has highlighted its7one under the heading two, balancing costs8concerns regarding the reasonableness of the8and reliability, I just wanted to read to9cost proposals in its written submission and9you some of the comments here.10I'm not going to take you through chapter10"The interveners, both individually and11and verse of those concerns. But suffice it11as a whole, have made submissions on Hydro's12to say, Newfoundland Power submits that12expenditures that cannot sensibly be13Hydro has not established that its proposal13reconciled with other aspects of their14on costs and overall revenue requirement to14submissions where they seek better15be collected in either of 2014 and 2015 is15reliability and enhanced information and16reasonable.16recording." And if we move down further17Now in addition to the rea	25	operating costs which Hydro seeks to recover	25	decisions of management.
2but it should be said again, that cost2wanted to turn to Newfoundland Hydro's3increases which Hydro has experienced since3rebuttal. If we could, I wanted to refer42007 are indicative of escalations well4you to a couple of passages starting at page5above what we would see for a normal5one. There's some commentary there about6inflationary levels.6balancing costs with reliability. So, page7Newfoundland Power has highlighted its7one under the heading two, balancing costs8concerns regarding the reasonableness of the8and reliability, I just wanted to read to9cost proposals in its written submission and9you some of the comments here.10I'm not going to take you through chapter10"The interveners, both individually and11and verse of those concerns. But suffice it11as a whole, have made submissions on Hydro's12to say, Newfoundland Power submits that12expenditures that cannot sensibly be13Hydro has not established that its proposal13reconciled with other aspects of their14on costs and overall revenue requirement to14submissions where they seek better15be collected in either of 2014 and 2015 is15reliability and enhanced information and16reasonable.16recording." And if we move down further17Now in addition to the reasons behind17into the next paragraph, there's a comment18the significant cost	2but it should be said again, that cost2wanted to turn to Newfoundland Hydro's3increases which Hydro has experienced since3rebuttal. If we could, I wanted to refer42007 are indicative of escalations well4you to a couple of passages starting at page5above what we would see for a normal5one. There's some commentary there about6inflationary levels.6balancing costs with reliability. So, page7Newfoundland Power has highlighted its7one under the heading two, balancing costs8concerns regarding the reasonableness of the8and reliability, I just wanted to read to9cost proposals in its written submission and9you some of the comments here.10I'm not going to take you through chapter10"The interveners, both individually and11and verse of those concerns. But suffice it11as a whole, have made submissions on Hydro's12to say, Newfoundland Power submits that12expenditures that cannot sensibly be13Hydro has not established that its proposal13reconciled with other aspects of their14on costs and overall revenue requirement to14submissions where they seek better15be collected in either of 2014 and 2015 is15reliability, if not impossible, to16reasonable.16recording." And if we move down further17Now in addition to the reasons behind17into the next paragraph, there's a comment18the significant cost increa		-		
3increases which Hydro has experienced since3rebuttal. If we could, I wanted to refer42007 are indicative of escalations well4you to a couple of passages starting at page5above what we would see for a normal5one. There's some commentary there about6inflationary levels.6balancing costs with reliability. So, page7Newfoundland Power has highlighted its7one under the heading two, balancing costs8concerns regarding the reasonableness of the8and reliability, I just wanted to read to9cost proposals in its written submission and9you some of the comments here.10I'm not going to take you through chapter10"The interveners, both individually and11and verse of those concerns. But suffice it11as a whole, have made submissions on Hydro's12to say, Newfoundland Power submits that12expenditures that cannot sensibly be13Hydro has not established that its proposal13reconciled with other aspects of their14on costs and overall revenue requirement to14submissions where they seek better15be collected in either of 2014 and 2015 is15reliability and enhanced information and16reasonable.16recording." And if we move down further17Now in addition to the reasons behind17into the next paragraph, there's a comment18the significant cost increases, Newfoundland18"it's difficult, if not impossible, to19Power feels i	3increases which Hydro has experienced since3rebuttal. If we could, I wanted to refer42007 are indicative of escalations well4you to a couple of passages starting at page5above what we would see for a normal5one. There's some commentary there about6inflationary levels.6balancing costs with reliability. So, page7Newfoundland Power has highlighted its7one under the heading two, balancing costs8concerns regarding the reasonableness of the8and reliability, I just wanted to read to9cost proposals in its written submission and9you some of the comments here.10I'm not going to take you through chapter10"The interveners, both individually and11and verse of those concerns. But suffice it11as a whole, have made submissions on Hydro's12to say, Newfoundland Power submits that12expenditures that cannot sensibly be13Hydro has not established that its proposal13reconciled with other aspects of their14on costs and overall revenue requirement to14submissions where they seek better15be collected in either of 2014 and 2015 is15reliability and enhanced information and16reasonable.16recording." And if we move down further17Now in addition to the reasons behind17into the next paragraph, there's a comment18the significant cost increases, Newfoundland18"it's difficult, if not impossible, to19Power feels i	1	· · ·		
42007 are indicative of escalations well4you to a couple of passages starting at page5above what we would see for a normal5one. There's some commentary there about6inflationary levels.6balancing costs with reliability. So, page7Newfoundland Power has highlighted its7one under the heading two, balancing costs8concerns regarding the reasonableness of the8and reliability, I just wanted to read to9cost proposals in its written submission and9you some of the comments here.10I'm not going to take you through chapter10"The interveners, both individually and11and verse of those concerns. But suffice it11as a whole, have made submissions on Hydro's12to say, Newfoundland Power submits that12expenditures that cannot sensibly be13Hydro has not established that its proposal13reconciled with other aspects of their14on costs and overall revenue requirement to14submissions where they seek better15be collected in either of 2014 and 2015 is15reliability and enhanced information and16reasonable.16recording." And if we move down further17Now in addition to the reasons behind17into the next paragraph, there's a comment18the significant cost increases, Newfoundland18"it's difficult, if not impossible, to19Power feels it was equally important to get19reconcile these positions. Increased20an understandin	42007 are indicative of escalations well4you to a couple of passages starting at page5above what we would see for a normal5one. There's some commentary there about6inflationary levels.6balancing costs with reliability. So, page7Newfoundland Power has highlighted its7one under the heading two, balancing costs8concerns regarding the reasonableness of the8and reliability, I just wanted to read to9cost proposals in its written submission and9you some of the comments here.10I'm not going to take you through chapter10"The interveners, both individually and11and verse of those concerns. But suffice it11as a whole, have made submissions on Hydro's12to say, Newfoundland Power submits that12expenditures that cannot sensibly be13Hydro has not established that its proposal13reconciled with other aspects of their14on costs and overall revenue requirement to14submissions where they seek better15be collected in either of 2014 and 2015 is15reliability and enhanced information and16reasonable.16recording." And if we move down further17Now in addition to the reasons behind17into the next paragraph, there's a comment18the significant cost increases, Newfoundland18"it's difficult, if not impossible, to19Power feels it was equally important to get19recorcile these positions. Increased20an understandin	2	-	2	-
5above what we would see for a normal5one. There's some commentary there about6inflationary levels.6balancing costs with reliability. So, page7Newfoundland Power has highlighted its7one under the heading two, balancing costs8concerns regarding the reasonableness of the8and reliability, I just wanted to read to9cost proposals in its written submission and9you some of the comments here.10I'm not going to take you through chapter10"The interveners, both individually and11and verse of those concerns. But suffice it11as a whole, have made submissions on Hydro's12to say, Newfoundland Power submits that12expenditures that cannot sensibly be13Hydro has not established that its proposal13reconciled with other aspects of their14on costs and overall revenue requirement to14submissions where they seek better15be collected in either of 2014 and 2015 is15reliability and enhanced information and16reasonable.16recording." And if we move down further17Now in addition to the reasons behind17into the next paragraph, there's a comment18the significant cost increases, Newfoundland18"it's difficult, if not impossible, to19Power feels it was equally important to get19reconcile these positions. Increased20an understanding into the processes which20maintenance has an unavoidable cost and21Hydro has put in	5above what we would see for a normal5one. There's some commentary there about6inflationary levels.6balancing costs with reliability. So, page7Newfoundland Power has highlighted its7one under the heading two, balancing costs8concerns regarding the reasonableness of the8and reliability, I just wanted to read to9cost proposals in its written submission and9you some of the comments here.10I'm not going to take you through chapter10"The interveners, both individually and11and verse of those concerns. But suffice it11as a whole, have made submissions on Hydro's12to say, Newfoundland Power submits that12expenditures that cannot sensibly be13Hydro has not established that its proposal13reconciled with other aspects of their14on costs and overall revenue requirement to14submissions where they seek better15be collected in either of 2014 and 2015 is15reliability and enhanced information and16reasonable.16recording." And if we move down further17Now in addition to the reasons behind17into the next paragraph, there's a comment18the significant cost increases, Newfoundland18"it's difficult, if not impossible, to19Power feels it was equally important to get19reconcile these positions. Increased20an understanding into the processe which20maintenance has an unavoidable cost and21Hydro has put in	3	· ·	3	
6inflationary levels.6balancing costs with reliability. So, page7Newfoundland Power has highlighted its7one under the heading two, balancing costs8concerns regarding the reasonableness of the8and reliability, I just wanted to read to9cost proposals in its written submission and9you some of the comments here.10I'm not going to take you through chapter10"The interveners, both individually and11and verse of those concerns. But suffice it11as a whole, have made submissions on Hydro's12to say, Newfoundland Power submits that12expenditures that cannot sensibly be13Hydro has not established that its proposal13reconciled with other aspects of their14on costs and overall revenue requirement to14submissions where they seek better15be collected in either of 2014 and 2015 is15reliability and enhanced information and16reasonable.16recording." And if we move down further17Now in addition to the reasons behind17into the next paragraph, there's a comment18the significant cost increases, Newfoundland18"it's difficult, if not impossible, to19Power feels it was equally important to get19reconcile these positions. Increased20an understanding into the processes which20maintenance has an unavoidable cost and21Hydro has put in place in order to run a21reducing revenues with a view to cutting22more effic	6inflationary levels.6balancing costs with reliability. So, page7Newfoundland Power has highlighted its7one under the heading two, balancing costs8concerns regarding the reasonableness of the8and reliability, I just wanted to read to9cost proposals in its written submission and9you some of the comments here.10I'm not going to take you through chapter10"The interveners, both individually and11and verse of those concerns. But suffice it11as a whole, have made submissions on Hydro's12to say, Newfoundland Power submits that12expenditures that cannot sensibly be13Hydro has not established that its proposal13reconciled with other aspects of their14on costs and overall revenue requirement to14submissions where they seek better15be collected in either of 2014 and 2015 is15reliability and enhanced information and16reasonable.16recording." And if we move down further17Now in addition to the reasons behind17into the next paragraph, there's a comment18the significant cost increases, Newfoundland18"it's difficult, if not impossible, to19Power feels it was equally important to get19reconcile these positions. Increased20an understanding into the processes which20maintenance has an unavoidable cost and21Hydro has put in place in order to run a21reducing revenues with a view to cutting22more effic	4		4	
7Newfoundland Power has highlighted its 87one under the heading two, balancing costs and reliability, I just wanted to read to you some of the comments here.9cost proposals in its written submission and 99you some of the comments here.10I'm not going to take you through chapter 1110"The interveners, both individually and as a whole, have made submissions on Hydro's12to say, Newfoundland Power submits that 1212expenditures that cannot sensibly be13Hydro has not established that its proposal 1313reconciled with other aspects of their14on costs and overall revenue requirement to 1414submissions where they seek better15be collected in either of 2014 and 2015 is15reliability and enhanced information and16reasonable.16recording." And if we move down further17Now in addition to the reasons behind 1717into the next paragraph, there's a comment18the significant cost increases, Newfoundland 1818"it's difficult, if not impossible, to19Power feels it was equally important to get 20an understanding into the processes which 202021Hydro has put in place in order to run a 2121reducing revenues with a view to cutting 2222more efficient operation, in other words to 2322these costs will require decisions and 2323do more with less. In fact, you may recall23choices to be made that are inconsistent	7Newfoundland Power has highlighted its 87one under the heading two, balancing costs and reliability, I just wanted to read to you some of the comments here.9cost proposals in its written submission and 99you some of the comments here.10I'm not going to take you through chapter 1110"The interveners, both individually and and verse of those concerns. But suffice it 121113Hydro has not established that its proposal 1313reconciled with other aspects of their submissions where they seek better16reasonable.14submissions where they seek better15be collected in either of 2014 and 2015 is 1615recording." And if we move down further17Now in addition to the reasons behind 1917into the next paragraph, there's a comment18the significant cost increases, Newfoundland 2018"it's difficult, if not impossible, to19Power feels it was equally important to get 2019reconcile these positions. Increased 2020an understanding into the processes which 2120maintenance has an unavoidable cost and 2122more efficient operation, in other words to22these costs will require decisions and	5		5	-
8concerns regarding the reasonableness of the 98and reliability, I just wanted to read to you some of the comments here.10I'm not going to take you through chapter10"The interveners, both individually and and verse of those concerns. But suffice it11as a whole, have made submissions on Hydro's12to say, Newfoundland Power submits that12expenditures that cannot sensibly be13Hydro has not established that its proposal13reconciled with other aspects of their14on costs and overall revenue requirement to14submissions where they seek better15be collected in either of 2014 and 2015 is15reliability and enhanced information and16reasonable.16recording." And if we move down further17Now in addition to the reasons behind17into the next paragraph, there's a comment18the significant cost increases, Newfoundland18"it's difficult, if not impossible, to19Power feels it was equally important to get19reconcile these positions. Increased20an understanding into the processes which20maintenance has an unavoidable cost and21Hydro has put in place in order to run a21reducing revenues with a view to cutting22more efficient operation, in other words to22these costs will require decisions and23do more with less. In fact, you may recall23choices to be made that are inconsistent	8concerns regarding the reasonableness of the 98and reliability, I just wanted to read to you some of the comments here.10I'm not going to take you through chapter 1110"The interveners, both individually and and verse of those concerns. But suffice it 1211as a whole, have made submissions on Hydro's as a whole, have made submissions on Hydro's 1212to say, Newfoundland Power submits that 1312expenditures that cannot sensibly be their13Hydro has not established that its proposal 1413reconciled with other aspects of their submissions where they seek better15be collected in either of 2014 and 2015 is 1615reliability and enhanced information and reasonable.17Now in addition to the reasons behind 1917into the next paragraph, there's a comment the significant cost increases, Newfoundland 1819Power feels it was equally important to get 20an understanding into the processes which 202021Hydro has put in place in order to run a 2121reducing revenues with a view to cutting these costs will require decisions and	6		6	
9cost proposals in its written submission and I'm not going to take you through chapter9you some of the comments here.10I'm not going to take you through chapter10"The interveners, both individually and11and verse of those concerns. But suffice it11as a whole, have made submissions on Hydro's12to say, Newfoundland Power submits that12expenditures that cannot sensibly be13Hydro has not established that its proposal13reconciled with other aspects of their14on costs and overall revenue requirement to14submissions where they seek better15be collected in either of 2014 and 2015 is15reliability and enhanced information and16reasonable.16recording." And if we move down further17Now in addition to the reasons behind17into the next paragraph, there's a comment18the significant cost increases, Newfoundland18"it's difficult, if not impossible, to19Power feels it was equally important to get19reconcile these positions. Increased20an understanding into the processes which20maintenance has an unavoidable cost and21Hydro has put in place in order to run a21reducing revenues with a view to cutting22more efficient operation, in other words to22these costs will require decisions and23do more with less. In fact, you may recall23choices to be made that are inconsistent	9cost proposals in its written submission and 109you some of the comments here.10I'm not going to take you through chapter and verse of those concerns. But suffice it 1210"The interveners, both individually and as a whole, have made submissions on Hydro's12to say, Newfoundland Power submits that 1312expenditures that cannot sensibly be reconciled with other aspects of their13Hydro has not established that its proposal 1413reconciled with other aspects of their16reasonable.16recording." And if we move down further17Now in addition to the reasons behind 1917into the next paragraph, there's a comment18the significant cost increases, Newfoundland 2018"it's difficult, if not impossible, to19Power feels it was equally important to get 20an understanding into the processes which 212021Hydro has put in place in order to run a 2221reducing revenues with a view to cutting 2222more efficient operation, in other words to22these costs will require decisions and	7	Newfoundland Power has highlighted its	7	
10I'm not going to take you through chapter10"The interveners, both individually and11and verse of those concerns. But suffice it11as a whole, have made submissions on Hydro's12to say, Newfoundland Power submits that12expenditures that cannot sensibly be13Hydro has not established that its proposal13reconciled with other aspects of their14on costs and overall revenue requirement to14submissions where they seek better15be collected in either of 2014 and 2015 is15reliability and enhanced information and16reasonable.16recording." And if we move down further17Now in addition to the reasons behind17into the next paragraph, there's a comment18the significant cost increases, Newfoundland18"it's difficult, if not impossible, to19Power feels it was equally important to get19reconcile these positions. Increased20an understanding into the processes which20maintenance has an unavoidable cost and21Hydro has put in place in order to run a21reducing revenues with a view to cutting22more efficient operation, in other words to22these costs will require decisions and23do more with less. In fact, you may recall23choices to be made that are inconsistent	10I'm not going to take you through chapter10"The interveners, both individually and11and verse of those concerns. But suffice it11as a whole, have made submissions on Hydro's12to say, Newfoundland Power submits that12expenditures that cannot sensibly be13Hydro has not established that its proposal13reconciled with other aspects of their14on costs and overall revenue requirement to14submissions where they seek better15be collected in either of 2014 and 2015 is15reliability and enhanced information and16reasonable.16recording." And if we move down further17Now in addition to the reasons behind17into the next paragraph, there's a comment18the significant cost increases, Newfoundland18"it's difficult, if not impossible, to19Power feels it was equally important to get19reconcile these positions. Increased20an understanding into the processes which20maintenance has an unavoidable cost and21Hydro has put in place in order to run a21reducing revenues with a view to cutting22more efficient operation, in other words to22these costs will require decisions and	8		8	
11and verse of those concerns. But suffice it11as a whole, have made submissions on Hydro's12to say, Newfoundland Power submits that12expenditures that cannot sensibly be13Hydro has not established that its proposal13reconciled with other aspects of their14on costs and overall revenue requirement to14submissions where they seek better15be collected in either of 2014 and 2015 is15reliability and enhanced information and16reasonable.16recording." And if we move down further17Now in addition to the reasons behind17into the next paragraph, there's a comment18the significant cost increases, Newfoundland18"it's difficult, if not impossible, to19Power feels it was equally important to get19reconcile these positions. Increased20an understanding into the processes which20maintenance has an unavoidable cost and21Hydro has put in place in order to run a21reducing revenues with a view to cutting22more efficient operation, in other words to22these costs will require decisions and23do more with less. In fact, you may recall23choices to be made that are inconsistent	11and verse of those concerns. But suffice it11as a whole, have made submissions on Hydro's12to say, Newfoundland Power submits that12expenditures that cannot sensibly be13Hydro has not established that its proposal13reconciled with other aspects of their14on costs and overall revenue requirement to14submissions where they seek better15be collected in either of 2014 and 2015 is15reliability and enhanced information and16reasonable.16recording." And if we move down further17Now in addition to the reasons behind17into the next paragraph, there's a comment18the significant cost increases, Newfoundland18"it's difficult, if not impossible, to19Power feels it was equally important to get19reconcile these positions. Increased20an understanding into the processes which20maintenance has an unavoidable cost and21Hydro has put in place in order to run a21reducing revenues with a view to cutting22more efficient operation, in other words to22these costs will require decisions and	9	cost proposals in its written submission and	9	you some of the comments here.
12to say, Newfoundland Power submits that12expenditures that cannot sensibly be13Hydro has not established that its proposal13reconciled with other aspects of their14on costs and overall revenue requirement to14submissions where they seek better15be collected in either of 2014 and 2015 is15reliability and enhanced information and16reasonable.16recording." And if we move down further17Now in addition to the reasons behind17into the next paragraph, there's a comment18the significant cost increases, Newfoundland18"it's difficult, if not impossible, to19Power feels it was equally important to get19reconcile these positions. Increased20an understanding into the processes which20maintenance has an unavoidable cost and21Hydro has put in place in order to run a21reducing revenues with a view to cutting22more efficient operation, in other words to22these costs will require decisions and23do more with less. In fact, you may recall23choices to be made that are inconsistent	12to say, Newfoundland Power submits that12expenditures that cannot sensibly be13Hydro has not established that its proposal13reconciled with other aspects of their14on costs and overall revenue requirement to14submissions where they seek better15be collected in either of 2014 and 2015 is15reliability and enhanced information and16reasonable.16recording." And if we move down further17Now in addition to the reasons behind17into the next paragraph, there's a comment18the significant cost increases, Newfoundland18"it's difficult, if not impossible, to19Power feels it was equally important to get19reconcile these positions. Increased20an understanding into the processes which20maintenance has an unavoidable cost and21Hydro has put in place in order to run a21reducing revenues with a view to cutting22more efficient operation, in other words to22these costs will require decisions and	10		10	"The interveners, both individually and
13Hydro has not established that its proposal13reconciled with other aspects of their14on costs and overall revenue requirement to14submissions where they seek better15be collected in either of 2014 and 2015 is15reliability and enhanced information and16reasonable.16recording." And if we move down further17Now in addition to the reasons behind17into the next paragraph, there's a comment18the significant cost increases, Newfoundland18"it's difficult, if not impossible, to19Power feels it was equally important to get19reconcile these positions. Increased20an understanding into the processes which20maintenance has an unavoidable cost and21Hydro has put in place in order to run a21reducing revenues with a view to cutting22more efficient operation, in other words to22these costs will require decisions and23do more with less. In fact, you may recall23choices to be made that are inconsistent	13Hydro has not established that its proposal13reconciled with other aspects of their14on costs and overall revenue requirement to14submissions where they seek better15be collected in either of 2014 and 2015 is15reliability and enhanced information and16reasonable.16recording." And if we move down further17Now in addition to the reasons behind17into the next paragraph, there's a comment18the significant cost increases, Newfoundland18"it's difficult, if not impossible, to19Power feels it was equally important to get19reconcile these positions. Increased20an understanding into the processes which20maintenance has an unavoidable cost and21Hydro has put in place in order to run a21reducing revenues with a view to cutting22more efficient operation, in other words to22these costs will require decisions and	11		11	-
14on costs and overall revenue requirement to14submissions where they seek better15be collected in either of 2014 and 2015 is15reliability and enhanced information and16reasonable.16recording." And if we move down further17Now in addition to the reasons behind17into the next paragraph, there's a comment18the significant cost increases, Newfoundland18"it's difficult, if not impossible, to19Power feels it was equally important to get19reconcile these positions. Increased20an understanding into the processes which20maintenance has an unavoidable cost and21Hydro has put in place in order to run a21reducing revenues with a view to cutting22more efficient operation, in other words to22these costs will require decisions and23do more with less. In fact, you may recall23choices to be made that are inconsistent	14on costs and overall revenue requirement to14submissions where they seek better15be collected in either of 2014 and 2015 is15reliability and enhanced information and16reasonable.16recording." And if we move down further17Now in addition to the reasons behind17into the next paragraph, there's a comment18the significant cost increases, Newfoundland18"it's difficult, if not impossible, to19Power feels it was equally important to get19reconcile these positions. Increased20an understanding into the processes which20maintenance has an unavoidable cost and21Hydro has put in place in order to run a21reducing revenues with a view to cutting22more efficient operation, in other words to22these costs will require decisions and	12	to say, Newfoundland Power submits that	12	expenditures that cannot sensibly be
15be collected in either of 2014 and 2015 is15reliability and enhanced information and16reasonable.16recording." And if we move down further17Now in addition to the reasons behind17into the next paragraph, there's a comment18the significant cost increases, Newfoundland18"it's difficult, if not impossible, to19Power feels it was equally important to get19reconcile these positions. Increased20an understanding into the processes which20maintenance has an unavoidable cost and21Hydro has put in place in order to run a21reducing revenues with a view to cutting22more efficient operation, in other words to22these costs will require decisions and23do more with less. In fact, you may recall23choices to be made that are inconsistent	15be collected in either of 2014 and 2015 is15reliability and enhanced information and16reasonable.16recording." And if we move down further17Now in addition to the reasons behind17into the next paragraph, there's a comment18the significant cost increases, Newfoundland18"it's difficult, if not impossible, to19Power feels it was equally important to get19reconcile these positions. Increased20an understanding into the processes which20maintenance has an unavoidable cost and21Hydro has put in place in order to run a21reducing revenues with a view to cutting22more efficient operation, in other words to22these costs will require decisions and	13	Hydro has not established that its proposal	13	reconciled with other aspects of their
16reasonable.16recording." And if we move down further17Now in addition to the reasons behind17into the next paragraph, there's a comment18the significant cost increases, Newfoundland18"it's difficult, if not impossible, to19Power feels it was equally important to get19reconcile these positions. Increased20an understanding into the processes which20maintenance has an unavoidable cost and21Hydro has put in place in order to run a21reducing revenues with a view to cutting22more efficient operation, in other words to22these costs will require decisions and23do more with less. In fact, you may recall23choices to be made that are inconsistent	16reasonable.16recording." And if we move down further17Now in addition to the reasons behind17into the next paragraph, there's a comment18the significant cost increases, Newfoundland18"it's difficult, if not impossible, to19Power feels it was equally important to get19reconcile these positions. Increased20an understanding into the processes which20maintenance has an unavoidable cost and21Hydro has put in place in order to run a21reducing revenues with a view to cutting22more efficient operation, in other words to22these costs will require decisions and	14	on costs and overall revenue requirement to	14	submissions where they seek better
17Now in addition to the reasons behind17into the next paragraph, there's a comment18the significant cost increases, Newfoundland18"it's difficult, if not impossible, to19Power feels it was equally important to get19reconcile these positions. Increased20an understanding into the processes which20maintenance has an unavoidable cost and21Hydro has put in place in order to run a21reducing revenues with a view to cutting22more efficient operation, in other words to22these costs will require decisions and23do more with less. In fact, you may recall23choices to be made that are inconsistent	17Now in addition to the reasons behind17into the next paragraph, there's a comment18the significant cost increases, Newfoundland18"it's difficult, if not impossible, to19Power feels it was equally important to get19reconcile these positions. Increased20an understanding into the processes which20maintenance has an unavoidable cost and21Hydro has put in place in order to run a21reducing revenues with a view to cutting22more efficient operation, in other words to22these costs will require decisions and	15	be collected in either of 2014 and 2015 is	15	reliability and enhanced information and
18the significant cost increases, Newfoundland18"it's difficult, if not impossible, to19Power feels it was equally important to get19reconcile these positions. Increased20an understanding into the processes which20maintenance has an unavoidable cost and21Hydro has put in place in order to run a21reducing revenues with a view to cutting22more efficient operation, in other words to22these costs will require decisions and23do more with less. In fact, you may recall23choices to be made that are inconsistent	18the significant cost increases, Newfoundland18"it's difficult, if not impossible, to19Power feels it was equally important to get19reconcile these positions. Increased20an understanding into the processes which20maintenance has an unavoidable cost and21Hydro has put in place in order to run a21reducing revenues with a view to cutting22more efficient operation, in other words to22these costs will require decisions and	16	reasonable.	16	recording." And if we move down further
19Power feels it was equally important to get an understanding into the processes which 2019reconcile these positions. Increased maintenance has an unavoidable cost and 2121Hydro has put in place in order to run a 2221reducing revenues with a view to cutting 2222more efficient operation, in other words to 2322these costs will require decisions and 2323do more with less. In fact, you may recall23choices to be made that are inconsistent	19Power feels it was equally important to get an understanding into the processes which 2119reconcile these positions. Increased maintenance has an unavoidable cost and 2121Hydro has put in place in order to run a 2221reducing revenues with a view to cutting these costs will require decisions and	17	Now in addition to the reasons behind	17	into the next paragraph, there's a comment
20an understanding into the processes which20maintenance has an unavoidable cost and21Hydro has put in place in order to run a21reducing revenues with a view to cutting22more efficient operation, in other words to22these costs will require decisions and23do more with less. In fact, you may recall23choices to be made that are inconsistent	20an understanding into the processes which 2120maintenance has an unavoidable cost and 2121Hydro has put in place in order to run a 2221reducing revenues with a view to cutting 2222more efficient operation, in other words to22these costs will require decisions and		the significant cost increases, Newfoundland	18	"it's difficult, if not impossible, to
21Hydro has put in place in order to run a21reducing revenues with a view to cutting22more efficient operation, in other words to22these costs will require decisions and23do more with less. In fact, you may recall23choices to be made that are inconsistent	21Hydro has put in place in order to run a21reducing revenues with a view to cutting22more efficient operation, in other words to22these costs will require decisions and	19	Power feels it was equally important to get	19	reconcile these positions. Increased
22more efficient operation, in other words to 2322these costs will require decisions and choices to be made that are inconsistent23do more with less. In fact, you may recall23choices to be made that are inconsistent	22 more efficient operation, in other words to 22 these costs will require decisions and	20	an understanding into the processes which	20	maintenance has an unavoidable cost and
23do more with less. In fact, you may recall23choices to be made that are inconsistent		21	Hydro has put in place in order to run a	21	reducing revenues with a view to cutting
	23do more with less. In fact, you may recall23choices to be made that are inconsistent	22		22	
		23	do more with less. In fact, you may recall	23	choices to be made that are inconsistent
2^{-1} and 1^{-1} that the resident and 0^{-1} 0^{-1} 1^{-1} with improving relationty.	24that Mr. Martin, the President and CEO of24with improving reliability."	24		24	with improving reliability."
25 Hydro, at the time testified that efficiency 25 I'd like you to consider those	25Hydro, at the time testified that efficiency25I'd like you to consider those	25	Hydro, at the time testified that efficiency	25	I'd like you to consider those

r		1	
	Page 33		Page 35
1	comments. Hydro is suggesting that the	1	untoward about the interveners asking that –
2	interveners would like it both ways and I	2	or putting them to the test of proving those
3	think that's a mischaracterization of the	3	costs to be reasonable and prudent. That's
4	submissions of the parties.	4	the purpose of a general rate application in
5	First and foremost, Hydro has an	5	the first place, to test and audit those
6	obligation to provide reliable service.	6	costs.
7	There's no question with that. So, if	7	Now, as we've outlined in our written
8	increased asset maintenance is required to	8	submissions, there's a number of
9	allow Hydro to provide that reliable	9	inconsistencies with the record and the
10	service, the interveners would expect that	10	evidence disclosing significant
11	that maintenance be done. There's no	11	discrepancies with respect to test year
12	question there. Hydro talks about an	12	forecast and actuals. To the extent there
13	expectation of better reliability. Well,	13	are inconsistencies or inaccuracies or
14	that has to be put into context. No one	14	missing information, any questions should be
15	here is asking that Hydro exceed its	15	resolved in favour of Hydro's customers.
16	statutory obligations. The fact of the	16	Ultimately, Newfoundland Power and the
17	matter is reliability has been shown to have	17	other interveners are not suggesting that
18	declined between 2013 and 2015 and the	18	the Board disallow costs which are proven to
19	interveners expect Hydro to bring that up to	19	be reasonable or prudent. We're just
20	par.	20	suggesting that Hydro be – we're suggesting
21	And with respect to the expenses that	21	that Hydro be allowed those costs, nothing
22	the Board determines are reasonable and	22	more. So you'll have to determine whether
23	prudent, Newfoundland Power agrees that	23	or not Hydro has proven those costs to be
24	Hydro should be entitled to anything that	24	reasonable and you're going to have to
25	they have shown to be reasonable and	25	grapple with the concept that some of these
	Page 34		Page 36
1	prudent. That's not a contentious point.	1	costs have already been incurred or will be
2	Section 82 of the Public Utilities Act	2	incurred. But that doesn't necessarily mean
3	clearly sets that out. But make no mistake,	3	that they're reasonable, and Hydro's
4	it's Hydro who has the burden to prove	4	witnesses seem to agree with that in
5	what's reasonable and prudent.	5	testimony. I'm not so sure Hydro agrees
6	To the extent certain expenditures,	6	with that in its written – in its rebuttal.
7	such as increased maintenance, have been	7	At page 23 of the rebuttal, line 23,
8	shown to be necessary due to imprudent	8	"many interveners, particularly Newfoundland
9	management decisions in the past, Hydro's	9	Power, propose material cost disallowances
10	customers should not bear the responsibility	10	that cannot be sensibly reconciled with
11	of those. Hydro's witnesses have readily	11	other aspects of their submissions in which
12	agreed with the proposition that they have	12	they seek improved reliability and enhanced
13	the burden of proving that their costs are	13	regulatory scrutiny and reporting. The
14	reasonable. Mr. Henderson's evidence on	14	Board must balance the provision of reliable
15	that point was clear.	15	service with cost to provide that service.
16	Now the costs that Hydro seeks to	16	The record of the current proceeding does
17	recover in rates are substantially higher	17	not indicate that the forecast costs in the
18	than what the Board determined was	18	2015 test year, for the purposes of rate
19	reasonable the last time Hydro was before	19	setting, are in excess of the costs that
20	you. For whatever reason, Hydro and its	20	Hydro will incur in providing reliable
21	shareholder, Provincial Government, have	21	service to customers." Well, that may be
22	made the financial decision not to have its	22	the case. Hydro may incur those costs, but
23	costs audited through an earlier GRA, and	23	that doesn't necessarily mean that they will
24	while Hydro submits these costs are	24	be reasonably incurred. The Board has to
25	reasonable and prudent, there's nothing	25	determine that that's the case.

			•
	Page 37		Page 39
1	And another point in its submission,	1	to Hydro's proposed revenue requirements.
2	Hydro appears to suggest the Board's	2	Hydro submits that this decision is
3	deliberations should be guided on whether	3	distinguishable from the present matter in
4	cost disallowances would result in Hydro's	4	two very important aspects. At issue in the
5	actual return on rate base falling outside	5	OPG case were salaries and wages paid above
6	of the allowed range of return. Again,	6	the industry standard. The cost
7	Newfoundland Power takes no issue with the	7	disallowance made by the OEB was targeted to
8	fact that Hydro is entitled to a fair return	8	those salary and wage costs which were
9	on its investment. While we may take issue	9	specifically found to have been
10	with how that would be calculated, we accept	10	unreasonable. Clearly if a specific cost of
11	that – for example, with respect to 2014, we	11	Hydro was not a reasonable and prudent cost
12	take issue with whether the OC applies for	12	to providing service, the Board may exercise
13	rate of return. We do accept it would apply	13	its discretion with respect to that cost and
14	for 2015. But what does it – what does that	14	determine that it will not be permitted to
15	mean? It means that Hydro is entitled to	15	be recovered."
16	the opportunity to earn a return on equity.	16	Now, Newfoundland Power in this case is
17	So, the right to the opportunity to	17	not suggesting that generalized, as Hydro
18	earn a fair return is discreet from the	18	has indicated, generalized cost
19	utility's right to recover the expenses	19	disallowances be awarded against Hydro. In
20	which the Board determines are reasonable	20	our submission, we've provided two summary
21	and prudent. They're two separate analyses.	21	tables dealing with specific cost
22	So, the return, the actual return is	22	disallowances, just as the OPG case here
23	essentially a by-product after you've	23	deals with specific cost allowances for
24	determined what the reasonable costs are.	24	salaries and wages. So, it appears that
25	If that takes determining the reasonable	25	perhaps Newfoundland Power and Newfoundland
	Page 38		Page 40
1	costs takes Hydro outside of or	1	Hydro here are on the same page.
2	disallowances on reasonable – on costs takes	2	But Newfoundland and Labrador Hydro
3	Hydro outside of the allowable return, well	3	says the costs – goes on to say "that cost
4	that's the by-product of the analysis.	4	can properly be deducted from allowed
5	Now, Newfoundland Power had in its	5	revenue requirement. However, it's quite
6	submissions referred to the OPG case. This	6	another thing to suggest, as Newfoundland
7	is the OEB's decision on Ontario Power	7	Power has done at line 6 to 10 of page B13
8	Generation, which found its way to the	8	of its argument, that generalized reduction
9	Supreme Court, and a concept of actual	9	in revenue, short term or otherwise, is
10	versus allowable return was relevant there	10	permissible in this matter." Now, I wanted
11	in the decision. And Hydro has taken some	11	to take you to Newfoundland Power's
12	issue with whether or not that particular	12	submission on that, just to put it into
13	decision has any applicability to this case,	13	context as to what we've said.
14	and I'd like to point to Hydro's rebuttal on	13	It's at B11 actually, yes. So, at B11,
15	that point and just make some comments on	15	line 13, "Newfoundland Power's submission on
16	that.	16	costs, if accepted by the Board, would
17	Page five of Hydro's rebuttal. So,	17	result in significant adjustments to Hydro's
18	Hydro takes issue, and I'm reading from the	18	2014 and 2015 test year revenue
19	rebuttal here, "Hydro also takes issue with	10	requirements. It's Hydro's evidence that
20	the assertion of Newfoundland Power which	20	any such adjustments would be recorded by
20	relies upon a recent Supreme Court of Canada	20	Hydro in its 2016 financial results. On
21	case, Ontario Energy Board versus Ontario	21	that basis, the adjustments recommended in
22 23	Power Generation, 2015 SCC 44, that the	22 23	these written submissions would have
23 24		23	
	Board should order generalized cost disallowances against Hydro or adjustments	24 25	implications for Hydro's opportunity to earn a just and reasonable return in 2016."
25			

		I	
	Page 41		Page 43
1	We go on to say that "the entitlement	1	Hydro was entitled to that actual return.
2	of a utility to earn just and reasonable	2	I'm not sure that's what Hydro is trying to
3	return has been described by Newfoundland	3	say, but that's the way it sounds when I
4	and Labrador Court of Appeal as follows:"	4	read the rebuttal.
5	and cite from the Stated Case.	5	So, again, the reason why the OPG case
6	But the purpose of relying on the OPG	6	is applicable is because unless there's
7	case was to highlight the balance inherent	7	evidence here, which I submit that there
8	in utility regulation. In other words, in	8	isn't, that a short term reduction in
9	the process of considering whether or not	9	Hydro's actual return would have – would put
10	you should disallow specific costs, you have	10	its financial integrity at risk, then
11	to consider a balance between customers and	11	there's no reason why the Board can't make
12	the utility. If as a result of disallowing	12	those disallowances. In other words, it's
13	specific costs, it puts the utility in a	13	acceptable from a regulatory perspective.
14	position where its financial integrity is at	14	And one of the other items I wanted to
15	risk in the long term, well, you have to	15	clarify was an issue raised by the Island
16	consider whether or not those disallowances	16	Industrial Group. It's a minor point, but
17	should be made. But if it doesn't put the	17	it deals with the evidence given on the
18	utility at risk in the long term, the OPG	18	specifically assigned charged for O&M and
19	case suggests that there is nothing untoward	19	specifically deals with the evidence of Mr.
20	about the Board making a determination which	20	Brockman, the expert witness called by
21	would put the utility's return in – to give	21	Newfoundland Power. I just wanted to
22	the utility a lower return in the short	22	briefly refer you to page 38 of the Island
23	term. That's the point to raise in that	23	Industrial Customers' submission, and it's
24	case.	24	line 14, starting at line 14.
25	And Hydro goes on in its rebuttal to	25	"Other experts called during the cost
	Page 42		Page 44
	almost suggest that the Order in Council		of service component of the GRA also
2	somehow sets it apart from the OPG case. If	2	supported Mr. Dean's proposed approach." So
3	we look at page six of the rebuttal, Hydro,	3	they're discussing the approach of the
4	at line 23, Hydro submits that "the OPG case	4	expert called by Vale. "As the Board is
5	is distinguishable from the present matter	5	aware, Mr. Larry Brockman, the expert called
6	as there is no indication in the OPG case of	6	by Newfoundland Power, stated the following
	the presence of a directive to the Board to		of Mr. Dean's proposition:" and the
8	establish a particular return on equity."	8	submission goes on to quote from the record
9	I'm not sure how that's relevant. If we	9	a question from O'Reilly, Q.C. "But do you
10	consider that what the outcome that the	10	understand the point that Mr. Dean was
11	Order in Council is likely addressing the	11	making with respect to the specifically
12	allowable return, not the actual return,	12	assigned charges with respect to O&M?" Mr.
13	then it puts – the OPG case is not	13	Brockman answers "Yes". O'Reilly, Q.C. "And
14	distinguishable because in the OPG case, the	14	the idea that to make the assignment of
15	Ontario Energy Board would have been	15	costs equitable across that some recognition
16	addressing the allowable return as well.	16	had to be had for the cost of" – the
17	The knock-on effect would be a reduce in	17	question isn't finished. Mr. Brockman "I
18	actual return, yes, by making a	18	think theoretically that's correct."
19	disallowance, but it can't be considered	19	O'Reilly, Q.C. "yeah, you'd agree with
20	that the Order in Council here in 2009 063	20	that?" Mr. Brockman "yes". So that's the
21	was suggesting that Hydro was entitled to an	21	extent of the reference that suggests Mr.
22	actual return of what Newfoundland Power's	22	Brockman is supportive of Mr. Dean's
23	most recent return is and that no matter	23	approach.
24	what disallowances were possible by the	24	And I think it's important to put Mr.
25	Board for imprudent action or otherwise,	25	Brockman's evidence in context and the

[Dage 45		Dage 47
1	Page 45	1	Page 47
1	reason why is that essentially Newfoundland		Chair. And just following up on the last
2	Power has taken the position here that the	2	question from the Consumer Advocate. Paul
3	method – any changes in methodology for	3	Coxworthy and Dean Porter for the Island
4	allocation of specifically assigned charges	4	Industrial Customers. Mr. Greneman
5	for O&M should be deferred until completion	5	yesterday was asked with respect to the
6	of Hydro's embedded costs in rate design	6	proposed change to the O&M treatment
7	reviews. And I know you don't have the	7	specifically assign that Vale's expert, Mel
8	transcripts here, but I can briefly refer	8	Dean, has proposed, whether a comprehensive
9	you to Mr. Brockman's other evidence	9	analysis could be done in this general rate
10	surrounding this point and it's not very	10	application, and I believe you indicated you
11	long. In fact, the entire amount of	11	heard his evidence." Mr. Brockman "yes".
12	evidence given by Mr. Brockman runs from	12	Mr. Coxworthy "I think he indicated that he
13	pages 166 to 170 and that's discussions with	13	thought it could be done in this". And Mr.
14	Mr. Johnson, Mr. Coxworthy and Mr. O'Reilly.	14	Brockman says "yes". Mr. Coxworthy "as
15	So it's a fairly short – and it's on	15	opposed to a more comprehensive review, and
16	September 29th, 2015.	16	I think the inference was that that might be
17	At 166, Mr. Johnson puts the question	17	done later?" Mr. Brockman "right". Mr.
18	to him, and starts with "and put that to Mr.	18	Coxworthy "do you have an opinion on that?
19	Greneman. Just finally then on the	19	I realize you haven't studied the issue, but
20	specifically assigned O&M, and I won't call	20	do you have an opinion?" And Mr. Brockman
21	this the speed round, I suppose, in your	21	says "well, I guess I first should say
22	experience, Mr. Brockman, as an expert here	22	theoretically I agree with the idea, I mean
23	at the proceeding, is Hydro's current	23	the idea that sort of bathtub curve and
24	methodology for determining specifically	24	maybe that – I haven't tested that to see
25	assigned O&M costs generally consistent with	25	whether it's applicable to the facilities
	Page 46		Page 48
1	practice elsewhere?" and the answer from Mr.	1	that we're talking about, but assuming it
2	Brockman is "are you talking about the ones	2	is, you know, yeah, you've got high
3	where they don't adjust it for the inflation	3	maintenance in the early years and maybe it
4	and so on?" And Mr. Johnson says "right,	4	flattens out and then goes up later. So, if
5	yeah". Mr. Brockman says "yeah, I think	5	you have a customer with a brand new
6	it's fairly consistent with what I've seen	6	facility dedicated to – maybe there's very
7	elsewhere. I haven't done studies perhaps	7	little costs in O&M to keep him on the
8	some other witnesses have done and say that	8	system for a while."
9	90 percent of the people do it this way and	9	So Mr. Brockman is suggesting, "yeah,
10	ten do it that way, but generally, you know,	10	there's a theoretical analysis that I could
11	I think it's a fair statement that that's	11	agree with here. I haven't done any
12	mostly the way that people do it elsewhere,	12	studies. I'm not aware what the facilities
13	yes." Mr. Johnson says "okay. And Mr.	13	are. I'm not aware whether they're
14	Brockman, are you aware of any jurisdiction	14	applicable in this particular case. But the
15	that uses the methodology that is proposed	15	type of theory of inflation adjusted, yeah,
16	by Vale offhand?" Mr. Brockman says "no,	16	maybe that can be done." But that's what
17	but I haven't done an exhaustive review on	17	Newfoundland Power is suggesting as well,
18	that issue, so I don't know. I haven't seen	18	and to suggest that what Mr. Brockman is
19	it, no, but I haven't really looked at it,	19	saying support – is supportive of Mr. Dean,
20	as to whether they do it – whether they do	20	I think is putting a little bit more into
21	or they don't all across any North America –	21	words in Mr. Brockman's mouth than what's
22	or say North America or anything."	22	there on the page and what was there in the
23	And further on, Mr. Coxworthy asks him,	23	testimony. So, I just wanted to clear that
24	at page – actually at page 167 at line 18,	24	up and suggest that there was a – that Mr.
25	"just one question, I think. Thank you, Mr.	25	Brockman is not taking a different position

1 than Newfoundland Power. 1 consistent that a test year is an annual 2 And the last item 1 just wanted to 2 measurement or 12-month measurement of a 3 touch on before 1 get to the issue of the 3 utility's cost of providing service or its 4 test year was the vacancy adjustment. And 4 revenue requirement. It can be represented 5 the reason I wanted to touch on it was 5 by historical period where forecast 6 merely a comment made by – in the rebuttal 6 measured or a future period where forecast 7 of Newfoundland and Labrador Hydro, and 7 costs are measured. Whether or not a 8 that's at page 17 of the rebuttal. It deals 8 utility has its rates set on the basis of a 9 with the vacancy allowance at line 19. 9 historical period or a future period varies 10 "At page C22 of its submission, 10 from jurisdiction to jurisdiction and in 12 suggestion that lower human resources costs 12 mandate. And as Mr. Cass has indicated, in 13 due to higher vacancies would be offset by 13 this jurisdiction and in most jurisdictions, 11 14 increaset ower time in		Page 49	1	Page 51
2 And the last item 1 just wanted to 2 measurement or 12-month measurement of a 3 touch on before 1 get to the issue of the 3 utility' sost of providing service or its 4 test year was the vacancy adjustment. And 4 revenue requirement. It can be represented 5 the reason 1 wanted to touch on it was 5 by historical period where actual costs are 6 merely a comment made by - in the rebuttal 6 measurement of a 10 where actual costs are 7 of Newfoundland and Labrador Hydro, and 7 costs are measured. Whether or not a 8 that's at page 17 of the rebuttal. It deals 8 utility has its rates set on the basis of a 9 with the vacancey allowance at line 19. 9 historical period or a future period varies 10 "At page C22 of its submission, 10 from jurisdiction and in 11 Newfoundland Power states that Hydro's 11 mantace. And as Mr. Cass has indicated, in 13 due to higher vacancies would be offset by 13 this jurisdictions, 14 14 increase over time in consultant costs was 14 believe, across Canada, the statutory 15 not provid by evidence." So t	1	-		-
3 touch on before I get to the issue of the 3 utility's cost of providing service or its 4 test year was the vacancy adjustment. And 4 revenue requirement. It can be represented 5 the reason I wanted to touch on it was 5 by historical period where actual costs are 6 merely a comment made by – in the rebuttal 6 measured or a future period where forecast 7 of Newfoundland and Labrador Hydro, and 7 costs are measured. Whether or not a 8 that's at page 17 of the rebuttal. It deals 8 utility has its rates set on the basis of a 9 with the vacancy allowance at line 19. 9 historical period or a future period varies 10 "At page C22 of its submission, 10 from jurisdiction to jurisdiction and in 11 Newfoundland Power states that Hydro's 11 mantate. And as Mr. Cass has indicated, in 13 due to higher vacancies would be offset by 13 this jurisdiction and in most jurisdictions, 14 increase over time in consultant costs was 14 1 believe, across Canada, the statutory 15 not proven by evidence." So tha's what was 15 future sety ear. But in any event, in this 17				•
4test year was the vacancy adjustment. And4revenue requirement. It can be represented5the reason I wanted to touch on it was5by historical period where forecast6merely a comment made by - in the rebuttal6measured or a future period where forecast7of Newfoundland and Labrador Hydro, and7costs are measured. Whether or not a8that's at page 17 of the rebuttal. It deals8utility has its rates set on the basis of a9with the vacancy allowance at line 19.9historical period or a future period varies10"At page C22 of its submission,10from jurisdiction to jurisdiction and in11Newfoundland Power states that Hydro's11mandate. And as Mr. Cass has indicated, in13due to higher vacancies would be offset by13this jurisdiction, and in most jurisdictions,14increase over time in consultant costs was141 believe, across Canada, the statutory15not proven by evidence." So that's what was15mandate would be to provide a forecast or16suggested in the Newfoundland Power's16ture test year. But in any event, in this17submission. Hydro goes on to say "this17jurisdiction, that's the mandate.18statement by Newfoundland Power's false.18purpose is. So, in Newfoundland Power's21request, vacancy asing are more than21purpose is. So, in Newfoundland Power's22offset by increased overtime and consultant22submission, the purpose of a test year is to<		5	1	
5 the reason I wanted to touch on it was 5 by historical period where actual costs are 6 merely a comment made by – in the rebuttal 6 merely a comment made by – in the rebuttal 6 7 of Newfoundland and Labrador Hydro, and 7 costs are measured. Whether or not a 8 that's at page 17 of the rebuttal. It deals 8 utility has its rates set on the basis of a 9 with the vacancy allowance at line 19. 9 historical period or a future period varies 10 "At page C22 of its submission, 10 from jurisdiction to jurisdiction and in 11 Newfoundland Power states that Hydro's 11 many cases dependent on the statutory 13 due to higher vacancies would be offset by 13 this jurisdiction and in most jurisdictions, 14 increase over time in consultant costs was 14 believe, across Canada, the statutory 15 not proven by evidence." So that's what was 15 mandate would be to provide a forecast or 17 submission. Hydro goes on to say "this 17 jurisdiction, that's the mandate. 18 statement by Newfoundland Power is false. 18 While a test year is cost of providing service to the revenue to <		-		
6 merely a comment made by – in the rebuttal 6 measured or a future period where forecast 7 of Newfoundland and Labrador Hydro, and 7 costs are measured. Whether or not a 8 that's at page 17 of the rebuttal. It deals 8 utility has its rates set on the basis of a 9 with the vacancy allowance at line 19. 9 historical period or a future period varies 10 "At page C22 of its submission, 10 from jurisdiction to jurisdiction and in 11 Newfoundland Power states that Hydro's 11 mandate. And as Mr. Cass has indicated, in 13 due to higher vacancies would be offset by 13 this jurisdiction and in most jurisdictions, 14 increase over time in consultant costs was 14 I believe, across Canada, the statutory 15 not proven by evidence." So that's what was 15 mandate would be to provide a forecast or 16 suggested in the Newfoundland Power's 16 future period varies is to and 19 As noted in Hydro's Response to Undertaking 20 define it without considering what its 21 request, vacancy savings are more than 21 purpose is. So, in Newfoundland Power's 22 offset b				
7 of Newfoundland and Labrador Hydro, and 7 costs are measured. Whether or not a 8 that's at page 17 of the rebutal. It deals 8 uility has its rates set on the basis of a 9 with the vacancy allowance at line 19. 9 historical period or a future period varies 10 "At page C22 of its submission, 10 from jurisdiction to jurisdiction and in 11 Newfoundland Power states that Hydro's 11 many cases dependent on the statutory 12 suggestion that lower human resources costs 12 mandate. And as Mr. Cass has indicated, in 13 due to higher vacancies would be offset by 13 this jurisdiction and in most jurisdictions, 16 suggestion that Norkofundland Power's 16 future text year. But in any event, in this 17 submission. Hydro goes on to say "this 17 jurisdiction, that's the mandate. 18 statement by Newfoundland Power's is false. 18 While a test year is essentially a 19 As noted in Hydro's Response to Undertaking 20 define it without considering what its 21 request, vacancy savings are more than 21 purpose is. So, in Newfoundland Power's or 23 costs."				
8 that's at page 17 of the rebuttal. It deals 8 utility has its rates set on the basis of a 9 with the vacancy allowance at line 19. 9 historical period or a future period varies 10 "At page C22 of its submission, 10 from jurisdiction to jurisdiction and in 11 New foundland Power states that Hydro's 11 many cases dependent on the statutory 12 suggestion that lower human resources costs 12 mandate. And as Mr. Cass has indicated, in 13 due to higher vacancies would be offset by 13 this jurisdiction and in most jurisdictions, 14 increase over time in consultant costs was 14 I believe, across Canada, the statutory 15 not proven by evidence." So that's what was 15 mandate would be to provide a forecast or 16 suggested in the Newfoundland Power's 16 future test year. But in any event, in this 17 submission. Hydro goes on to say "this 17 jurisdiction, that's the mandate. 18 statement by Newfoundland Power's own undertaking 19 measurement of a 12-month period, you can't 21 request, vacancy savings are more than 21 purpose is. So, in Newfoundland Power's 22 <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>-</td>				-
9with the vacancy allowance at line 19.9historical period or a future period varies10"At page C22 of its submission,10from jurisdiction to jurisdiction and in11Newfoundland Power states that Hydro's11many cases dependent on the statutory12suggestion that lower human resources costs12mandate. And as Mr. Cass has indicated, in13due to higher vacancies would be offset by13this jurisdiction and in most jurisdictions,14increase over time in consultant costs was14I believe, across Canada, the statutory15not proven by evidence." So that's what was15mandate. And as Mr. Cass has indicated, in16suggested in the Newfoundland Power's16future test year. But in any event, in this17submission. Hydro goes on to say "this17jurisdiction, that's the mandate.18statement by Newfoundland Power is false.18While a test year is essentially a20146, Newfoundland Power's own undertaking20define it without considering what its21request, vacancy savings are more than21purpose is. So, in Newfoundland Power's22offset by increased overtime and consultant23allow the regulator to match a utility's23costs."Now Undertaking 146 shows data points24cost of providing service to the revenue to25that show an increase in overtime costs and25be collected from rates. That's the purpose24Now Undertaking, there is no2the utility's revenue requir		-	<i>'</i>	
10"At page C22 of its submission, Newfoundland Power states that Hydro's10from jurisdiction to jurisdiction and in many cases dependent on the statutory12suggestion that lower human resources costs12mandate. And as Mr. Cass has indicated, in this jurisdiction and in most jurisdictions, this jurisdiction and in most jurisdictions, this jurisdiction and in most jurisdictions, this jurisdiction, that's the mandate.14increase over time in consultant costs was14I believe, across Canada, the statutory mandate would be to provide a forecast or future test year. But in any event, in this jurisdiction, that's the mandate.16suggested in the Newfoundland Power's suggested in the Newfoundland Power's false.18While a test year is essentially a measurement of a 12-month period, you can't define it without considering what its 2119As noted in Hydro's Response to Undertaking 2119Purpose is. So, in Newfoundland Power's so wn undertaking 221022offset by increased overtime and consultant 2223allow the regulator to match a utility's revice to the revenue to 2323costs."23allow the regulator to match a utility's revice to the revenue to 2424Now Undertaking 146 shows data points 3rates for a future period.25that show an increase in overtime costs and 242526Page 50rates for a f				-
11Newfoundland Power states that Hydro's11many cases dependent on the statutory12suggestion that lower human resources costs12mandate. And as Mr. Cass has indicated, in13due to higher vacancies would be offset by13this jurisdiction and in most jurisdictions,14increase over time in consultant costs was14I believe, across Canada, the statutory15not proven by evidence." So that's what was15mandate would be to provide a forecast or16suggested in the Newfoundland Power's16future test year. But in any event, in this17submission. Hydro goes on to say "this17jurisdiction, that's the mandate.18statement by Newfoundland Power is false.18While a test year is essentially a19As noted in Hydro's Response to Undertaking20define it without considering what its20146, Newfoundland Power's own undertaking20define it without considering what its21request, vacancy savings are more than21purpose is. So, in Newfoundland Power's23costs."23allow the regulator to match a utility's24Now Undertaking 146 shows data points24cost of providing service to the revenue to25that show an increase in orsulting costs. That's it.1of it. In other words, it's used to audit2You look at that undertaking, there is no2the utility's revenue requirements and set3reconcilation as to how those data points3rates for a future period.4<		-	Í	
12 suggestion that lower human resources costs 12 mandate. And as Mr. Cass has indicated, in 13 due to higher vacancies would be offset by 13 this jurisdiction and in most jurisdictions, 14 increase over time in consultant costs was 14 I believe, across Canada, the statutory 15 not proven by evidence." So that's what was 15 mandate would be to provide a forecast or 16 suggested in the Newfoundland Power's 16 future test year. But in any event, in this 17 submission. Hydro goes on to say "this 17 jurisdiction, that's the mandate. 18 statement by Newfoundland Power's false. 18 While a test year is essentially a 19 As noted in Hydro's Response to Undertaking 19 measurement of a 12-month period, you can't 20 146, Newfoundland Power's own undertaking 20 define it without considering what its 21 request, vacancy savings are more than 21 purpose is. So, in Newfoundland Power's 23 costs." 23 allow the regulator to match a utility's 24 Now Undertaking 146 shows data points 24 cost of providing service to the revenue to 25 that show an increase i				
13 due to higher vacancies would be offset by 13 this jurisdiction and in most jurisdictions, 14 increase over time in consultant costs was 14 I believe, across Canada, the statutory 15 not proven by evidence." So that's what was 15 mandate would be to provide a forecast or 16 suggested in the Newfoundland Power's 16 future test year. But in any event, in this 17 submission. Hydro goes on to say "this 17 jurisdiction, that's the mandate. 18 statement by Newfoundland Power is false. 18 While a test year is essentially a 19 As noted in Hydro's Response to Undertaking 20 define it without considering what its 21 request, vacancy savings are more than 21 purpose is. So, in Newfoundland Power's 23 costs." 23 allow the regulator to match a utility's 24 Now Undertaking 146 shows data points 24 cost of providing service to the revenue to 25 that show an increase in overtime costs and 25 be collected from rates. That's the purpose 2 You look at that undertaking, there is no 2 the utility's revenue requirements and set 3 reconciliation as to how		•		
14increase over time in consultant costs was14I believe, across Canada, the statutory15not proven by evidence." So that's what was15mandate would be to provide a forecast or16suggested in the Newfoundland Power's16future test year. But in any event, in this17submission. Hydro goes on to say "this17jurisdiction, that's the mandate.18statement by Newfoundland Power is false.18While a test year is essentially a19As noted in Hydro's Response to Undertaking19measurement of a 12-month period, you can't20146, Newfoundland Power's own undertaking20define it without considering what its21request, vacancy savings are more than21purpose is. So, in Newfoundland Power's23costs."23allow the regulator to match a utility's24Now Undertaking 146 shows data points24cost of providing service to the revenue to25that show an increase in overtime costs and25be collected from rates. That's the purpose2You look at that undertaking, there is no2the utility's revenue requirements and set3reconciliation as to how those data points3rates for a future period.4have anything to do with a decrease or an4Newfoundland Power is saying that it's5increase in vacancies. Hydro has provided5any other purpose other than setting rates6no evidence on that. And it's on that basis6any other purpose other than setting rates7th				
15not proven by evidence." So that's what was15mandate would be to provide a forecast or16suggested in the Newfoundland Power's16future test year. But in any event, in this17submission. Hydro goes on to say "this17jurisdiction, that's the mandate.18statement by Newfoundland Power is false.18While a test year is essentially a19As noted in Hydro's Response to Undertaking19measurement of a 12-month period, you can't20146, Newfoundland Power's own undertaking20define it without considering what its21request, vacancy savings are more than21purpose is. So, in Newfoundland Power's23costs."23allow the regulator to match a utility's24Now Undertaking 146 shows data points24cost of providing service to the revenue to25that show an increase in overtime costs and25be collected from rates. That's the purpose23reconciliation as to how thos data points3rates for a future period.3reconciliation as to how tha decrease or an4Newfoundland Power is not aware of any4have anything to do with a decrease or an4Newfoundland Power is saying that it's5increase in vacancies. Hydro has provided5accepted practice for using test year for6no evidence on that. And it's on that basis6any other purpose other than setting rates7that Newfoundland Power is saying that it's7nor have we found an accepted definition of8be		•		-
16suggested in the Newfoundland Power's16future test year. But in any event, in this17submission. Hydro goes on to say "this17jurisdiction, that's the mandate.18statement by Newfoundland Power is false.18While a test year is essentially a19As noted in Hydro's Response to Undertaking19measurement of a 12-month period, you can't20146, Newfoundland Power's own undertaking20define it without considering what its21request, vacancy savings are more than21purpose is. So, in Newfoundland Power's22offset by increased overtime and consultant22submission, the purpose of a test year is to23costs."23allow the regulator to match a utility's24Now Undertaking 146 shows data points24cost of providing service to the revenue to25that show an increase in overtime costs and25be collected from rates. That's the purpose24You look at that undertaking, there is no2the utility's revenue requirements and set3reconciliation as to how those data points3rates for a future period.4have anything to do with a decrease or an4Newfoundland Power is saying that it's7that Newfoundland Power is saying that it's7nor have we found an accepted definition of8been unsupported. The suggestion that the8a test year that suggests otherwise.9overtime and consultant costs have offset9Now to just briefly illustrate the10those vaca				
17submission. Hydro goes on to say "this17jurisdiction, that's the mandate.18statement by Newfoundland Power is false.18While a test year is essentially a19As noted in Hydro's Response to Undertaking19measurement of a 12-month period, you can't20146, Newfoundland Power's own undertaking20define it without considering what its21request, vacancy savings are more than21purpose is. So, in Newfoundland Power's22offset by increased overtime and consultant22submission, the purpose of a test year is to23costs."23allow the regulator to match a utility's24Now Undertaking 146 shows data points24cost of providing service to the revenue to25that show an increase in overtime costs and25be collected from rates. That's the purpose27an increase in consulting costs. That's it.1of it. In other words, it's used to audit2You look at that undertaking, there is no2the utility's revenue requirements and set3reconciliation as to how those data points3rates for a future period.4have anything to do with a decrease or an4Newfoundland Power is not aware of any5increase in vacancies. Hydro has provided5accepted practice for using test year for6no evidence on that. And it's on that basis6any other purpose other than setting rates7that Newfoundland Power is saying that it's7nor have we found an accepted definition of8 <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>-</td>				-
18statement by Newfoundland Power is false.18While a test year is essentially a19As noted in Hydro's Response to Undertaking19measurement of a 12-month period, you can't20146, Newfoundland Power's own undertaking20define it without considering what its21request, vacancy savings are more than21purpose is. So, in Newfoundland Power's22offset by increased overtime and consultant22submission, the purpose of a test year is to23costs."23allow the regulator to match a utility's24Now Undertaking 146 shows data points24cost of providing service to the revenue to25that show an increase in overtime costs and25be collected from rates. That's the purpose27an increase in consulting costs. That's it.1of it. In other words, it's used to audit2You look at that undertaking, there is no2the utility's revenue requirements and set3reconciliation as to how those data points3rates for a future period.4have anything to do with a decrease or an4Newfoundland Power is not aware of any5increase in vacancies. Hydro has provided5accepted practice for using test year for6no evidence on that. And it's on that basis6any other purpose other than setting rates7that Newfoundland Power is saying that it's7nor have we found an accepted definition of8been unsupported. The suggestion that the8a test year that suggests otherwise.				
19As noted in Hydro's Response to Undertaking 2019measurement of a 12-month period, you can't define it without considering what its20146, Newfoundland Power's own undertaking 2120define it without considering what its21request, vacancy savings are more than 2221purpose is. So, in Newfoundland Power's22offset by increased overtime and consultant 2322submission, the purpose of a test year is to 2323costs."23allow the regulator to match a utility's24Now Undertaking 146 shows data points 2524cost of providing service to the revenue to 2525that show an increase in overtime costs and 2625be collected from rates. That's the purpose7an increase in consulting costs. That's it. 271of it. In other words, it's used to audit 2828You look at that undertaking, there is no 22the utility's revenue requirements and set 283reconciliation as to how those data points 33rates for a future period.4have anything to do with a decrease or an 44Newfoundland Power is not aware of any accepted practice for using test year for 66no evidence on that. And it's on that basis 66any other purpose other than setting rates any other purpose other than setting rates7that Newfoundland Power is saying that it's 87nor have we found an accepted definition of a test year that suggests otherwise.9overtime and consultant costs have offset 99Now to just			1	-
20146, Newfoundland Power's own undertaking 2120define it without considering what its21request, vacancy savings are more than 2221purpose is. So, in Newfoundland Power's22offset by increased overtime and consultant 2322submission, the purpose of a test year is to23costs."23allow the regulator to match a utility's24Now Undertaking 146 shows data points 2524cost of providing service to the revenue to25that show an increase in overtime costs and 2525be collected from rates. That's the purposePage 50Page 521an increase in consulting costs. That's it.12You look at that undertaking, there is no 32the utility's revenue requirements and set3reconciliation as to how those data points 43rates for a future period.4have anything to do with a decrease or an 54Newfoundland Power is not aware of any accepted practice for using test year for any other purpose other than setting rates7that Newfoundland Power is saying that it's 87nor have we found an accepted definition of a test year that suggests otherwise.9overtime and consultant costs have offset9Now to just briefly illustrate the 1011form has been unsupported. There was no11process of setting rates, I'd just refer you		-		
21request, vacancy savings are more than21purpose is. So, in Newfoundland Power's22offset by increased overtime and consultant22submission, the purpose of a test year is to23costs."23allow the regulator to match a utility's24Now Undertaking 146 shows data points24cost of providing service to the revenue to25that show an increase in overtime costs and25be collected from rates. That's the purpose26Page 50Page 521an increase in consulting costs. That's it.1of it. In other words, it's used to audit2You look at that undertaking, there is no2the utility's revenue requirements and set3reconciliation as to how those data points3rates for a future period.4have anything to do with a decrease or an4Newfoundland Power is not aware of any5increase in vacancies. Hydro has provided5accepted practice for using test year for6no evidence on that. And it's on that basis6any other purpose other than setting rates7that Newfoundland Power is saying that it's7nor have we found an accepted definition of8been unsupported. The suggestion that the8a test year that suggests otherwise.9overtime and consultant costs have offset9Now to just briefly illustrate the10those vacancy costs in some way, shape or10connection between the test year and the11form has been unsupported. There was no11process of set			1	
22offset by increased overtime and consultant costs."22submission, the purpose of a test year is to allow the regulator to match a utility's23costs."23allow the regulator to match a utility's24Now Undertaking 146 shows data points24cost of providing service to the revenue to25that show an increase in overtime costs and25be collected from rates. That's the purposePage 50Page 521an increase in consulting costs. That's it.2You look at that undertaking, there is no2the utility's revenue requirements and set3reconciliation as to how those data points3rates for a future period.4have anything to do with a decrease or an4Newfoundland Power is not aware of any5increase in vacancies. Hydro has provided5accepted practice for using test year for6no evidence on that. And it's on that basis6any other purpose other than setting rates7that Newfoundland Power is saying that it's7nor have we found an accepted definition of8been unsupported. The suggestion that the8a test year that suggests otherwise.9overtime and consultant costs have offset9Now to just briefly illustrate the10those vacancy costs in some way, shape or10connection between the test year and the11form has been unsupported. There was no11process of setting rates, I'd just refer you	1	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	1	-
23costs."23allow the regulator to match a utility's24Now Undertaking 146 shows data points24cost of providing service to the revenue to25that show an increase in overtime costs and25be collected from rates. That's the purposePage 501an increase in consulting costs. That's it.1of it. In other words, it's used to audit2You look at that undertaking, there is no2the utility's revenue requirements and set3reconciliation as to how those data points3rates for a future period.4have anything to do with a decrease or an4Newfoundland Power is not aware of any5increase in vacancies. Hydro has provided5accepted practice for using test year for6no evidence on that. And it's on that basis6any other purpose other than setting rates7that Newfoundland Power is saying that it's7nor have we found an accepted definition of8been unsupported. The suggestion that the8a test year that suggests otherwise.9overtime and consultant costs have offset9Now to just briefly illustrate the10those vacancy costs in some way, shape or10connection between the test year and the11form has been unsupported. There was no11process of setting rates, I'd just refer you			1	
24Now Undertaking 146 shows data points24cost of providing service to the revenue to25that show an increase in overtime costs and25be collected from rates. That's the purposePage 501an increase in consulting costs. That's it.1of it. In other words, it's used to audit2You look at that undertaking, there is no2the utility's revenue requirements and set3reconciliation as to how those data points3rates for a future period.4have anything to do with a decrease or an4Newfoundland Power is not aware of any5increase in vacancies. Hydro has provided5accepted practice for using test year for6no evidence on that. And it's on that basis6any other purpose other than setting rates7that Newfoundland Power is saying that it's7nor have we found an accepted definition of8been unsupported. The suggestion that the8a test year that suggests otherwise.9overtime and consultant costs have offset9Now to just briefly illustrate the10those vacancy costs in some way, shape or10connection between the test year and the11form has been unsupported. There was no11process of setting rates, I'd just refer you	1	-	1	
25that show an increase in overtime costs and Page 5025be collected from rates. That's the purpose Page 521an increase in consulting costs. That's it.1of it. In other words, it's used to audit2You look at that undertaking, there is no2the utility's revenue requirements and set3reconciliation as to how those data points3rates for a future period.4have anything to do with a decrease or an4Newfoundland Power is not aware of any5increase in vacancies. Hydro has provided5accepted practice for using test year for6no evidence on that. And it's on that basis6any other purpose other than setting rates7that Newfoundland Power is saying that it's7nor have we found an accepted definition of8been unsupported. The suggestion that the8a test year that suggests otherwise.9overtime and consultant costs have offset9Now to just briefly illustrate the10those vacancy costs in some way, shape or10connection between the test year and the11form has been unsupported. There was no11process of setting rates, I'd just refer you				
Page 50Page 521an increase in consulting costs. That's it.1of it. In other words, it's used to audit2You look at that undertaking, there is no2the utility's revenue requirements and set3reconciliation as to how those data points3rates for a future period.4have anything to do with a decrease or an4Newfoundland Power is not aware of any5increase in vacancies. Hydro has provided5accepted practice for using test year for6no evidence on that. And it's on that basis6any other purpose other than setting rates7that Newfoundland Power is saying that it's7nor have we found an accepted definition of8been unsupported. The suggestion that the8a test year that suggests otherwise.9overtime and consultant costs have offset9Now to just briefly illustrate the10those vacancy costs in some way, shape or10connection between the test year and the11form has been unsupported. There was no11process of setting rates, I'd just refer you	1		1	
1an increase in consulting costs. That's it.1of it. In other words, it's used to audit2You look at that undertaking, there is no2the utility's revenue requirements and set3reconciliation as to how those data points3rates for a future period.4have anything to do with a decrease or an4Newfoundland Power is not aware of any5increase in vacancies. Hydro has provided5accepted practice for using test year for6no evidence on that. And it's on that basis6any other purpose other than setting rates7that Newfoundland Power is saying that it's7nor have we found an accepted definition of8been unsupported. The suggestion that the8a test year that suggests otherwise.9overtime and consultant costs have offset9Now to just briefly illustrate the10those vacancy costs in some way, shape or10connection between the test year and the11form has been unsupported. There was no11process of setting rates, I'd just refer you	25		25	
2You look at that undertaking, there is no2the utility's revenue requirements and set3reconciliation as to how those data points3rates for a future period.4have anything to do with a decrease or an4Newfoundland Power is not aware of any5increase in vacancies. Hydro has provided5accepted practice for using test year for6no evidence on that. And it's on that basis6any other purpose other than setting rates7that Newfoundland Power is saying that it's7nor have we found an accepted definition of8been unsupported. The suggestion that the8a test year that suggests otherwise.9overtime and consultant costs have offset9Now to just briefly illustrate the10those vacancy costs in some way, shape or10connection between the test year and the11form has been unsupported. There was no11process of setting rates, I'd just refer you	1	•	1	-
3reconciliation as to how those data points3rates for a future period.4have anything to do with a decrease or an4Newfoundland Power is not aware of any5increase in vacancies. Hydro has provided5accepted practice for using test year for6no evidence on that. And it's on that basis6any other purpose other than setting rates7that Newfoundland Power is saying that it's7nor have we found an accepted definition of8been unsupported. The suggestion that the8a test year that suggests otherwise.9overtime and consultant costs have offset9Now to just briefly illustrate the10those vacancy costs in some way, shape or10connection between the test year and the11form has been unsupported. There was no11process of setting rates, I'd just refer you		-	2	
4have anything to do with a decrease or an increase in vacancies. Hydro has provided 64Newfoundland Power is not aware of any accepted practice for using test year for any other purpose other than setting rates 76no evidence on that. And it's on that basis 76any other purpose other than setting rates nor have we found an accepted definition of a test year that suggests otherwise.7that Newfoundland Power is saying that it's 87nor have we found an accepted definition of a test year that suggests otherwise.9overtime and consultant costs have offset 109Now to just briefly illustrate the those vacancy costs in some way, shape or 1110those vacancy costs in some way, shape or 1110process of setting rates, I'd just refer you		-	1	
5increase in vacancies. Hydro has provided 65accepted practice for using test year for any other purpose other than setting rates no evidence on that. And it's on that basis f6any other purpose other than setting rates nor have we found an accepted definition of a test year that suggests otherwise.7that Newfoundland Power is saying that it's been unsupported. The suggestion that the 98a test year that suggests otherwise.9overtime and consultant costs have offset 109Now to just briefly illustrate the those vacancy costs in some way, shape or 111011form has been unsupported. There was no11process of setting rates, I'd just refer you		-		•
6no evidence on that. And it's on that basis6any other purpose other than setting rates7that Newfoundland Power is saying that it's7nor have we found an accepted definition of8been unsupported. The suggestion that the8a test year that suggests otherwise.9overtime and consultant costs have offset9Now to just briefly illustrate the10those vacancy costs in some way, shape or10connection between the test year and the11form has been unsupported. There was no11process of setting rates, I'd just refer you	5		5	
7that Newfoundland Power is saying that it's7nor have we found an accepted definition of8been unsupported. The suggestion that the8a test year that suggests otherwise.9overtime and consultant costs have offset9Now to just briefly illustrate the10those vacancy costs in some way, shape or10connection between the test year and the11form has been unsupported. There was no11process of setting rates, I'd just refer you			6	
8been unsupported. The suggestion that the8a test year that suggests otherwise.9overtime and consultant costs have offset9Now to just briefly illustrate the10those vacancy costs in some way, shape or10connection between the test year and the11form has been unsupported. There was no11process of setting rates, I'd just refer you	7	that Newfoundland Power is saying that it's	7	nor have we found an accepted definition of
9overtime and consultant costs have offset9Now to just briefly illustrate the10those vacancy costs in some way, shape or10connection between the test year and the11form has been unsupported. There was no11process of setting rates, I'd just refer you	8	been unsupported. The suggestion that the	8	
11form has been unsupported. There was no11process of setting rates, I'd just refer you	9		9	
	10	those vacancy costs in some way, shape or	10	connection between the test year and the
	11	form has been unsupported. There was no	11	process of setting rates, I'd just refer you
12 to a couple of the Authorities which we have	12	testimony to show that either. So, I just	12	to a couple of the Authorities which we have
13 wanted to point that out, and then when you 13 filed. The first will be in our letter of	13		13	filed. The first will be in our letter of
14 look at that Undertaking 146, ask yourself 14 January 26th, 2016. The first one is the	14		14	January 26th, 2016. The first one is the
15 does that – is that sufficient evidence that 15 NARUC Rate Case and Audit Manual at page	15	does that – is that sufficient evidence that	15	NARUC Rate Case and Audit Manual at page
16 the vacancy adjustment should – or vacancy 16 eight and nine of our letter. It's actually	16	the vacancy adjustment should – or vacancy	16	eight and nine of our letter. It's actually
17 allowance should not be adjusted. 17 page ten out of the manual.	17	allowance should not be adjusted.	17	page ten out of the manual.
18Turning to the specific questions that18There's a passage here that deals with	18	Turning to the specific questions that	18	There's a passage here that deals with
19 you've asked us to look at here, the first 19 determining the appropriateness of a test	19		19	
20 one, the test year or the concept of a test 20 year. So if I read from that passage, "the	20	one, the test year or the concept of a test	20	year. So if I read from that passage, "the
21 year, I guess. We've completed some 21 test year is a period of measurement for a	21	year, I guess. We've completed some	21	test year is a period of measurement for a
22 research and filed a number of Authorities 22 recent consecutive 12-month period,	22	research and filed a number of Authorities	22	recent consecutive 12-month period,
23 with the Board. They're not lengthy, but 23 consisting of a full year of operations	23	with the Board. They're not lengthy, but	23	consisting of a full year of operations
24 basically, in its simplest terms, it appears 24 where data is readily available." And later	24	basically, in its simplest terms, it appears	24	where data is readily available." And later
25from a review of those Authorities to be25on in the first paragraph, "whether using a	25	from a review of those Authorities to be	25	on in the first paragraph, "whether using a

	Page 53		Page 55
1	future or historic test year, the auditor	1	dollars or profit is obtained by multiplying
2	should judge the appropriateness of the test	2	the allowed rate of return set by the
3	year that has been proposed. Is it	3	regulator by the rate base."
4	representative after adjustments of the	4	And later on, it goes on to say "an
5	period in which rates take effect?" So	5	estimate of revenue requirement is derived
6	that's what the test year is, is to look at	6	from a thorough scrutiny of a total
7	whether it's representative of the period in	7	company's costs during a test year, adjusted
8	which the rates are to take effect.	8	for known changes between the test year or
9	Well, what's that period? If you look	9	period for which rates will come into
10	to the second paragraph here under	10	effect." So the test year is there to set
11	determination – determining the	11	the rates and the rates are set for a future
12	appropriateness of the test year, "when	12	period. I don't – we have been unable to
13	looking at a historic test year, one of the	13	find anything other than text to say that.
14	first questions asked is whether the test	14	So, we have no – Newfoundland Power is
15	year is too stale to make it a reasonable	15	unable to provide you with any authority to
16	basis upon which to establish rates for a	16	suggest that you can use a test year for
17	future period." So you're establishing	17	revenue requirement – sorry, revenue
18	rates for a future period with the test	18	deficiency or otherwise. The test year is
19	year. So, even if you use historic test	19	to set rates in the future.
20	year, you're not establishing rates to be	20	So, where does that leave Newfoundland
21	applied in that particular historical year.	21	and Labrador Hydro with respect to the 2014
22	That would be retroactive rate making.	22	and the 2015 revenue deficiencies, which is
23	Now, in our jurisdiction, a regulatory	23	what we understand the Board is focused on
24	framework generally contemplates that a	24	here. Well, in this proceeding, Hydro has
25	utility would file a general rate	25	filed what it refers to as two test years,
	Page 54		Page 56
1	application with a future forecasted test	1	2014 and 2015. Now, it's certainly not
2	year well in advance of implementing test	2	unheard of in this jurisdiction or other
3	for proposed rates, and that gives the Board	3	jurisdictions for a utility to file two test
4	interveners ample time to audit the	4	years at one time. Newfoundland Power has
5	utility's proposed test year costs for	5	done it in the past, but in both cases, they
6	reasonableness before the rates come into	6	were – in those cases, it was for the
7	effect.	7	purpose of setting rates. And in this
8	There's another passage I'd refer you	8	proceeding, Hydro readily admits that the
9	to from Roger Moran's text, "New Regulatory	9	2014 test year included in its proposal, in
10	Finance" and it's page three of that text	10	its Amended GRA, is not included for the
11	under the heading "overview of the	11	purpose of establishing rates. It's offered
12	regulatory process".	12	for the sole purpose of the recovery of a
13	So there's a brief overview here	13	45.9 million revenue deficiency in the year
14	talking about test year and revenue	14	that was almost complete.
15	requirement and in this passage, Mr. Moran	15	Hydro's proposal to put 2014 forward as
16	states "in a nutshell, the determination of	16	a test year doesn't conform with any
17	rates is implemented by defining a total	17	definition of a test year or any generally
18	revenue requirement, also referred to as the	18	accepted usage of a test year familiar to
19	total cost of service, then by adjusting the	19	Newfoundland Power. The fact that it's
20	rates so as to achieve those totals. More	20	called a test year doesn't necessarily make
21	specifically, the rates set by regulators	21	it a test year. So whether it's based on
22	should be sufficient to cover the utility's	22	historical data or forecast data or a
23	costs, including taxes and depreciation,	23	combination of both, it doesn't conform with
24	plus an adequate dollar return on the	24	the notion of prospective rate making.
25	capital invested. Expected return in	25	Now, the Board, in carrying out its

	Page 57		Page 59
1	duties, has to apply tests that are	1	this application for a 2014 revenue
2	consistent with generally accepted sound	2	deficiency in a year that was almost
3	public utility practice, and Hydro alone	3	complete, at a time when the Board did not
4	bears the onus of establishing that its	4	have appropriate time to consider the
5	proposal accords with generally accepted	5	proposal and indicated so in its order,
6	regulatory principles. Newfoundland Power	6	didn't have enough time to consider the
7	submits that really what Hydro has proposed	7	proposal.
8	here is to recover a prior year's revenue	8	That certainly was Hydro's prerogative
9	deficiency as if it were a cost deferral.	9	to make its management decisions and decide
10	That's what was proposed, and those things	10	to file on that basis, but the decision to
11	are two different beasts.	10	proceed in a way which doesn't accord with
11 12	Cost deferrals have been allowed in	11	
$\begin{vmatrix} 12\\13 \end{vmatrix}$		12	generally accepted regulatory principles
	this jurisdiction in the past in		constituted a financial risk which Hydro
14	extraordinary circumstances. For example,	14	took.
15	to recover variations in unpredictable costs	15	All that said, a deferral account has
16	or to address specific costs which are	16	been set aside by the Board and 45.9 million
17	reasonably quantifiable and clearly	17	has been segregated in that amount for
18	distinguishable from the costs reflected in	18	potential recovery. If the Board decides
19	a utility's rates. But there's no precedent	19	that in principle Hydro should be able to
20	for this type of relief in this	20	recover some or all of that amount, there
21	jurisdiction.	21	remains a question as to how that should be
22	A revenue deficiency is not a cost and	22	determined, how it should be evaluated. And
23	the Board has determined that in its – in	23	when Hydro filed its application for the
24	Order No. PU 36 (2015). It's a net	24	2014 revenue deficiency in November of 2014,
25	financial result of a year of utility	25	Newfoundland Power took the position that it
	Page 58		Page 60
1	operations, not a cost. It's difficult to	1	was unclear as to how the Board was going to
2	see how treating it as a cost would amount	2	evaluate this proposal or how a final amount
3	to anything but retroactive adjustment of	3	could be determined, whether there could be
4	the actions of management.	4	a reduction at all from the final amount,
5	It's Newfoundland Power's submission	5	but the Board has indicated that this final
6	that Hydro should not be entitled to recover	6	amount is subject to reduction.
7	any of the alleged 2014 revenue deficiency	7	So how do you evaluate it? Well,
8	on that basis, on that principle basis. I	8	really all you can evaluate it on is on the
9	know that may sound harsh and I can assure	9	basis of the information that was put before
10	you that Newfoundland Power's intention is	10	you, and Newfoundland Power has indicated
11	not to ask that Hydro be penalized, but	11	that the 45.9 million is subject to
12	Hydro does have the burden of showing and	12	reduction on the basis of Hydro having
13	the Board has the – is bound to apply	13	failed to establish a number of entitlements
14	generally accepted regulatory principles.	14	to costs. And I'd refer you to page D21 of
15	So that has to be considered.	15	Newfoundland Power's submission. There's a
16	And I think it's important to consider	16	table there, Table D10. It's a summary of
17	that it was Hydro that made the decision to	17	adjustments.
18	abandon its 2013 rate case on the eve of the	18	So, Newfoundland and Labrador Hydro
19	hearing. That was a decision made, a	19	filed what they called a combination of
20	financial decision, a management decision	20	actuals and forecast, but they forecast an
21	made by Hydro. It wasn't made by the Board.	21	amount of 45.9 for a deficiency. All their
22	It wasn't ordered by the Board. Wasn't made	22	witnesses indicated that they were not
23	by or suggested by the interveners. And it	23	intending to update that amount or update
24	was Hydro that made the decision to, in	24	the costs in it. The only reason the 2014
25	November of 2014, on November 28th, to file	25	costs got filed really was because the

	Page 61		Page 63
1	interveners wanted to have a look at them	1	given 7.6 with respect to -7.6 million with
2	and they were filed. They were asked to be	2	respect to the RSP interest. They've been
3	filed. And this table, if it's accepted	3	given .8 million with respect to the GRA
4	that these amounts are deducted, would	4	costs and there was 2.2 million in there as
5	completely offset the 45.9 million. The	5	well on another item. And we take no issue
6	total summary of adjustments is in the range	6	with those items.
7	of 64 to 66 million dollars. And we'd	7	But to the extent the Board is going to
8	suggest that those summary adjustments be	8	look at whether Hydro should recover
9	considered and that no amount be recovered	9	anything above and beyond the 19.7 million,
10	from the 45.9 million in any event, whether	10	the Board has to consider all the evidence
11	it's on a principle basis or whether it's on	11	here and whether or not any – all the –
12	the basis that after adjustments there is no	12	whether or not any adjustments should be
13	proven revenue deficiency.	13	made. And in Newfoundland Power's
14	So, what do you do with 2015? Well,	14	submission, we've set out in a table at C20
15	2015 is a little bit different scenario in	15	– a summary table at C34, that's Table C15,
16	that it is a proper test year. It's filed	16	a summary of adjustments in 26 million to 31
17	as a test year. It's filed for the purposes	17	million dollar range. So, if the Board is
18	of setting rates, for setting rates in a	18	going to look at anything more for Hydro for
19	future period. And the fact that rates have	19	2015, the Board has to consider that total.
20	not ultimately been set in 2015 is a result	20	And to the extent those adjustments would
21	of regulatory lag, albeit the lag may	21	reduce the 19.7 million, then that should be
22	partially be due to the lateness in filing	22	done. But in any event, whatever the Board
23	the Amended Application, but in any event,	23	does with the 2015 year, Newfoundland
24	there's lag there. We had a lengthy	24	Power's submission is that it should be done
25	hearing. And the Board has, in the past,	25	on a principle basis as outlined in – the
	Page 62		Page 64
1	allowed cost deferral recoveries when	1	reasons for it outlined in the order is the
2	there's been a delay in rate implementation.	2	basic position that we would take.
3	Usually rates are implemented in the year or	3	I just had a couple of comments on some
4	the recovery in the year, but in this	4	of the Authorities that were filed by Hydro,
5	particular case, rates won't come into	5	one of which was the Directed Energy case.
6	effect until 2016. So, in this particular	6	I believe it's at Tab 6 of Hydro's
7	case, it was certainly open to the Board to	7	Authorities. Now, this was a lengthy case.
8	create a deferral account, which it did,	8	We got it yesterday. I had a brief run
9	subject to the final determination of	9	through it. So, it's difficult really to
10	revenue requirement.	10	make too many comments on the case. In
11	Well, Newfoundland Power had submitted,	11	addition, we heard really no expert
12	during – with respect to that application,	12	regulatory evidence as to whether or not the
13	that the Board should evaluate the revenue	13	Alberta – where or not the AUC has different
14	deficiency for 2015 on the basis of the	14	policies or practices in place in terms of
15	forecast costs for 2015, which is what the	15	dealing with revenue deficiencies and
16	Board – and the Board agreed with that, and	16	dealing with forecast test years and that
17	ultimately, in the Order, the Board set	17	sort of thing. But, I can make a few
18	aside 30.2 million dollars under a number of	18	comments.
19	categories. One of the categories was a	19	First of all, it was clear from Mr.
20	19.7 million dollar revenue deficiency.	20	Cass' comments that the AUC indicates its
21	Now, if I understand my learned friend,	21	normal practice is to set rates on a
22	Mr. Cass, correctly, Hydro is indicating or	22	perspective basis. In this particular case,
23	accepting that that's the cap on what they	23	there was a number of years in which revenue
24	would recover for the 2015 revenue	24	deficiencies were granted, based on actuals,
25	deficiency. They're already – they've been	25	and the AUC appears to have a practice of

	Page 65		Page 67
1	relying on forecast projections for setting	1	October of 1977 and the revenue deficiency
$\begin{bmatrix} 1\\2 \end{bmatrix}$	rates, but also looking for the more up-to-	$\begin{vmatrix} 1\\2 \end{vmatrix}$	dealt with 1978 and they used a 1977
	date information, if possible, where there's	$\begin{vmatrix} 2\\ 3 \end{vmatrix}$	combination of forecast and actuals to set
	a regulatory lag. That seems to be their	4	the revenue deficiency for 1978. I'm not
4			•
5	practice. I'm not aware of any evidence as	5	sure how that helps in terms of your deliberations.
6	to whether or not that's the practice in	6	The Union Gas case from 1998 I believe
7	every other jurisdiction, but that's	7 8	
8	something the Board has to consider as to		is distinguishable, and that's the one at
9	whether or not it's their practice.	9	Tab 5. That's a different scenario there, I
10	The initial application in this	10	believe, in that there was an application
11	Directed Energy case was filed in 2011 and	11	for an order to approve movement to a
12	it was filed for forecast rates in 2012, '13	12	performance based rate scheme, which was to
13	and '14. So the application was filed in	13	commence in 2000. So while there was a 1999
14	2011 and ultimately, from my reading of the	14	rate application filed, it was for rates to
15	case, the reason for the lag had to do with	15	start in 2000. The fact that that's the
16	a Board Order in 2012 where a settlement	16	case, yeah, that's okay. That's applicable
17	agreement was not accepted. A filed	17	to the 2015 test year. I'm not sure how it
18	settlement agreement was not accepted and	18	helps with respect to 2014. But it's
19	the Board directed that a re-filing occur.	19	applicable for the 2015 test year as late in
20	So, the re-filing occurred in 2013 and	20	2014 Hydro filed an application for 2015
21	ultimately there were some – due to the	21	rates. Yes, it was in November. Yes, this
22	regulatory lag, there were revenue	22	one was late in 1999 and was filed for the
23	deficiencies granted for the 2012, 2013,	23	purposes of moving to a new scheme in 2000.
24	2014 periods. Nothing was granted prior to	24	I don't think that there's an issue for the
25	2011. So the case sort of doesn't help	25	parties here with respect to that. So, I'm
	Page 66		Page 68
	Hydro with respect to the 2014 revenue	1	not sure on the basis for filing the case.
2	deficiency, but certainly is helpful in	2	Now, the other point I wanted to make
3	terms of conforming or confirming that a	3	under the test year heading, you've asked
4	2015 revenue deficiency would have been	4	for some comments regarding the adjustment
5	appropriate.	5	of 2014 forecast costs in setting 20 –
6	What's also distinguishing about this	6	sorry, 2015 forecast costs in setting 2016
7	case is that the reason for the regulatory	7	rates. Now, we've assumed that this inquiry
8	lag was related to a Board order and	8	relates to the dispute regarding the
9	instructions to re-file. That wasn't the	9	adjustment to rate base related to the 100
10	case here. Hydro made the decision in June	10	megawatt CT and some of the other projects
11	of 2014 to abandon its 2013 rate case	11	which were included in the opening rate base
12	essentially and to file the 2014 revenue	12	in 2015 in Hydro's initial application for
13	deficiency application and the 2015 test	13	which Hydro agreed to – or has in its
14	year.	14	revenue deficiency application made an
15	The Consumer Gas Company case, at Tab	15	adjustment for 2015 but not for 2016 because
16	5, and that's the – sorry, at Tab 4, that's	16	they weren't in service in 2015. I'm
17	the 1977 case out of the OEB. I'm not sure	17	assuming that the genesis of the question.
18	it provides any assistance to the Board. It	18	So, what has occurred is that in its
19	does show that there's some forecast –	19	application in November of 2014, Hydro filed
20	accommodation of some forecast data and some	20	a forecast average rate base which included
21	actual data used for the purposes of	21	the 100 megawatt CT and a number of other
22	calculating a revenue deficiency, but the	22	projects which they suggest would be in
23	revenue deficiency in that case was	23	service as of January 1, 2015. And I'd
24	calculated prospectively. It was calculated	24	suggest that Hydro knew or ought to have
25	for – the application was to set rates in	25	known at that point in time that they

	Page 69		Page 71
1	wouldn't have been in service and that	1	Newfoundland Power was ordered by the Board
2	forecast average rate base ought to have	2	in that order to file an application for its
3	been adjusted from the start. And it's	3	 – for approval of its 2015 cost of capital
4	Hydro that is asking to have the 2016 rate	4	as well as its 2015 forecast average rate
5	base adjusted to include those items.	5	base. So that was an order of the Board at
6	So, Hydro has acknowledged with its own	6	the time. And Newfoundland Power filed that
7	witnesses that this would depart from normal	7	application for adjustment to the rate base
8	regulatory practice. Normal regulatory	8	and it was approved after it was thoroughly
9	practice would be that you'd set your rate	9	reviewed by the Board's financial
10	base in your test year and you kept your	10	consultants.
11	rate – you keep your rate base in your test	11	Hydro hasn't filed a complete 2016
12	year unless further ordered to adjust it or	12	forecast average rate base to determine
13	unless another rate application follows.	13	whether there's any puts and takes in there
14	That's the normal practice.	14	to suggest that the rate base should be
15	Hydro says the reason it asks to	15	changed. So, ultimately this appears to be
16	include these in 2016 for rates is because	16	nothing more than spot rate making.
17	otherwise it would be deprived of the	17	The next item that I wanted to touch on
18	opportunity to earn a just and reasonable	18	was the interpretation of the OC with
19	return in 2016. Now, even if that were a	19	respect to the rate of return. Now, you've
20	reason to depart from regulatory practice,	20	asked us to consider the significance of the
21	how are we to determine that Hydro will not	21	treatment of forecast costs on the
22	earn a reasonable return in 2016? Hydro	22	interpretation of the Order in Council
23	hasn't produced or hasn't presented its 2016	23	relating to Hydro's return.
24	costs in a manner that they can be tested.	24	Now, that order is stated to the effect
25	It was asked to provide 2016 forecast costs	25	of from Hydro's next GRA following 2009, as
	Page 70		Page 72
1	and they were provided and certain costs	1	Mr. Cass has indicated. So it should be
2	were provided after budget was completed at	2	interpreted as speaking with reference to
3	the end of the hearing, but none of them	3	the generally accepted purpose of a GRA, a
4	were tested.	4	general rate application. The generally
5	So, the assertion here is therefore	5	accepted purpose of a general rate
6	based on estimates of Hydro's 2016 return	6	application is to establish new rates. In
7	that haven't been tested – costs that	7	this jurisdiction, the practice has been to
8	haven't been tested. Accordingly, Hydro's	8	set rates on a prospective basis based on
9	2016 cost estimate hasn't been shown to be a	9	forecast costs. In Hydro's case, new rates
10	reasonable basis for a regulatory decision	10	are proposed for 2015 and a 2015 rate change
11	to be made by this Board to include those	11	has really been implemented already, albeit
12	particular items in rate base.	12	on an interim basis, but no rates were
13	Now, Hydro's rebuttal submission has	13	proposed for 2014.
14	cited Newfoundland Power's last GRA order	14	I don't want to steal Mr. O'Reilly's
15	from 2013, PU 13 (2013) as a precedent for	15	thunder, but I think he put it succinctly in
16	allowing the addition of new investment in	16	Vale's submission filed in the case when he
17	utility assets in rate base outside of the	17	said that Hydro's application to recover its
18	test year. Now that case is somewhat	18	stated 2014 revenue deficiency is brought
19	distinguishable in that in its GRA at the	19	coincident with the 2013 Amended General
20	time, Newfoundland Power had its automatic	20	Rate Application but is not itself a general
21	adjustment formula suspended, its cost of	21	rate application. It's a separate
22	capital in rates were set for 2013 and 2014	22	application. And the Board asked that Hydro
23	and Newfoundland Power was ordered to file a	23	file a separate application.
24	GRA in 2015 for 2016 rates. As the cost of	24	The mere fact that Hydro has included
25	capital had not been set for 2015,	25	the request for recovery of a 2014 revenue

Page 73Page1deficiency in its GRA shouldn't have a1recover anything in the 2014 revenue2bearing on whether the directed return2deficiency amount, it's limited itself to a3becomes effective. If such an effect were3return on equity equal to its marginal cost4intended, it should have been clearly stated4of debt as approved in the 2007 rate order.5in the OC and the OC says general rate5With respect to the adjustment6application when it comes into effect. That6mechanism, I'd have to acknowledge them7means setting rates.7nothing in the Order in Council which talk8The OC makes no mention of a revenue8about an adjustment mechanism on the rat9deficiency for test years past or present,9return on equity in between general rate10just rate applications, it's necessary –10applications. So, we can provide very11it's next general rate application. The11little guidance on the actual intent of12purpose of and contextual reading of this12Government in that regard, other than to s13order can only lead to the conclusion that13if you read the OC as assuming that the14the intent was that Hydro would only be able14intention is to make their same – is to15to recover when it – the change in return15provide for the same rate making ROE for16when it applied for a change in rates; could16both utilities, it wo	i's s e of y nould and would
2bearing on whether the directed return2deficiency amount, it's limited itself to a3becomes effective. If such an effect were3return on equity equal to its marginal cost4intended, it should have been clearly stated4of debt as approved in the 2007 rate order.5in the OC and the OC says general rate5With respect to the adjustment6application when it comes into effect. That6mechanism, I'd have to acknowledge ther7means setting rates.7nothing in the Order in Council which talk8The OC makes no mention of a revenue8about an adjustment mechanism on the rat9deficiency for test years past or present,9return on equity in between general rate10just rate applications, it's necessary –10applications. So, we can provide very11it's next general rate application. The11little guidance on the actual intent of12purpose of and contextual reading of this12Government in that regard, other than to s13order can only lead to the conclusion that13if you read the OC as assuming that the14the intent was that Hydro would only be able14intention is to make their same – is to15to recover when it – the change in rates; could16both utilities, it would appear that an17not have been intended that it would recover17adjustment mechanism ROE for18otherwise. Otherwise, it would have been18occur when there's a change to Newfound1	e's s e of iy nould and would
3becomes effective. If such an effect were3return on equity equal to its marginal cost4intended, it should have been clearly stated4of debt as approved in the 2007 rate order.5in the OC and the OC says general rate5With respect to the adjustment6application when it comes into effect. That6mechanism, I'd have to acknowledge there7means setting rates.7nothing in the Order in Council which talk8The OC makes no mention of a revenue8about an adjustment mechanism on the rat9deficiency for test years past or present,9return on equity in between general rate10just rate applications, it's necessary –10applications. So, we can provide very11it's next general rate application. The11little guidance on the actual intent of12purpose of and contextual reading of this12Government in that regard, other than to s13order can only lead to the conclusion that13if you read the OC as assuming that the14the intent was that Hydro would only be able14intention is to make their same – is to15to recover when it – the change in rates; could16both utilities, it would appear that an17not have been intended that it would recover17adjustment of Hydro's rate making ROE s18otherwise. Otherwise, it would have been18occur when there's a change to Newfound19open to Hydro really to file its general19Power's ROE. An adjustment mechanism	e's s e of iy nould and would
4intended, it should have been clearly stated4of debt as approved in the 2007 rate order.5in the OC and the OC says general rate5With respect to the adjustment6application when it comes into effect. That6mechanism, I'd have to acknowledge there7means setting rates.7nothing in the Order in Council which talk8The OC makes no mention of a revenue8about an adjustment mechanism on the rat9deficiency for test years past or present,9return on equity in between general rate10just rate applications, it's necessary –10applications. So, we can provide very11it's next general rate application. The11little guidance on the actual intent of12purpose of and contextual reading of this12Government in that regard, other than to s13order can only lead to the conclusion that13if you read the OC as assuming that the14the intent was that Hydro would only be able14intention is to make their same – is to15to recover when it – the change in return15provide for the same rate making ROE so16when it applied for a change in rates; could16both utilities, it would appear that an17not have been intended that it would recover17adjustment mechanism18otherwise, it would have been18occur when there's a change to Newfound19open to Hydro really to file its general19Power's ROE. An adjustment mechanism20rate application	e's s e of iy nould and would
5in the OC and the OC says general rate5With respect to the adjustment6application when it comes into effect. That6mechanism, I'd have to acknowledge there7means setting rates.7nothing in the Order in Council which talk8The OC makes no mention of a revenue8about an adjustment mechanism on the rat9deficiency for test years past or present,9return on equity in between general rate10just rate applications, it's necessary –10applications. So, we can provide very11it's next general rate application. The11little guidance on the actual intent of12purpose of and contextual reading of this12Government in that regard, other than to s13order can only lead to the conclusion that13if you read the OC as assuming that the14the intent was that Hydro would only be able14intention is to make their same – is to15to recover when it – the change in return15provide for the same rate making ROE for16when it applied for a change in rates; could16both utilities, it would appear that an17not have been intended that it would recover17adjustment of Hydro's rate making ROE so18otherwise. Otherwise, it would have been18occur when there's a change to Newfound19open to Hydro really to file its general19Power's ROE. An adjustment mechanism20rate application and look for the change in20provide for that.21return ba	e's s e of iy nould and would
6application when it comes into effect. That6mechanism, I'd have to acknowledge there7means setting rates.7nothing in the Order in Council which talk8The OC makes no mention of a revenue8about an adjustment mechanism on the rat9deficiency for test years past or present,9return on equity in between general rate10just rate applications, it's necessary –10applications. So, we can provide very11it's next general rate application. The11little guidance on the actual intent of12purpose of and contextual reading of this12Government in that regard, other than to s13order can only lead to the conclusion that13if you read the OC as assuming that the14the intent was that Hydro would only be able14intention is to make their same – is to15to recover when it – the change in return15provide for the same rate making ROE for16when it applied for a change in rates; could16both utilities, it would appear that an17not have been intended that it would recover17adjustment of Hydro's rate making ROE s18otherwise. Otherwise, it would have been18occur when there's a change to Newfound19open to Hydro really to file its general19Power's ROE. An adjustment mechanism20rate application and look for the change in20provide for that.21return back to 2010. Revenue deficiency and21I touched on the management struc22	s e of y nould and would
7means setting rates.7nothing in the Order in Council which talk8The OC makes no mention of a revenue8about an adjustment mechanism on the rat9deficiency for test years past or present,9return on equity in between general rate10just rate applications, it's necessary –10applications. So, we can provide very11it's next general rate application. The11little guidance on the actual intent of12purpose of and contextual reading of this12Government in that regard, other than to s13order can only lead to the conclusion that13if you read the OC as assuming that the14the intent was that Hydro would only be able14intention is to make their same – is to15to recover when it – the change in return15provide for the same rate making ROE for16when it applied for a change in rates; could16both utilities, it would appear that an17not have been intended that it would recover17adjustment of Hydro's rate making ROE s18otherwise. Otherwise, it would have been18occur when there's a change to Newfound19open to Hydro really to file its general19Power's ROE. An adjustment mechanism20rate application and look for the change in20provide for that.21return back to 2010. Revenue deficiency and21I touched on the management struct22a change of return back to 2010, that22and item number three already. Again, if23cou	s e of y nould and would
8The OC makes no mention of a revenue8about an adjustment mechanism on the rat9deficiency for test years past or present,9return on equity in between general rate10just rate applications, it's necessary –10applications. So, we can provide very11it's next general rate application. The11little guidance on the actual intent of12purpose of and contextual reading of this12Government in that regard, other than to s13order can only lead to the conclusion that13if you read the OC as assuming that the14the intent was that Hydro would only be able14intention is to make their same – is to15to recover when it – the change in return15provide for the same rate making ROE for18otherwise. Otherwise, it would recover17adjustment of Hydro's rate making ROE s19open to Hydro really to file its general19Power's ROE. An adjustment mechanism20rate application and look for the change in20provide for that.21return back to 2010. Revenue deficiency and21I touched on the management struct22a change of return back to 2010, that22and item number three already. Again, if23couldn't have been the case. That would23the Board is satisfied Hydro is not	e of y nould and would
9deficiency for test years past or present, just rate applications, it's necessary –9return on equity in between general rate applications. So, we can provide very11it's next general rate application. The11little guidance on the actual intent of12purpose of and contextual reading of this12Government in that regard, other than to s13order can only lead to the conclusion that13if you read the OC as assuming that the14the intent was that Hydro would only be able14intention is to make their same – is to15to recover when it – the change in return15provide for the same rate making ROE for16when it applied for a change in rates; could16both utilities, it would appear that an17not have been intended that it would recover17adjustment of Hydro's rate making ROE s18otherwise. Otherwise, it would have been18occur when there's a change to Newfound19open to Hydro really to file its general19Power's ROE. An adjustment mechanism20rate application and look for the change in20I touched on the management struct21return back to 2010. Revenue deficiency and21I touched on the management struct22a change of return back to 2010, that22and item number three already. Again, if23couldn't have been the case. That would23the Board is satisfied Hydro is not	nould and would
10just rate applications, it's necessary –10applications. So, we can provide very11it's next general rate application. The11little guidance on the actual intent of12purpose of and contextual reading of this12Government in that regard, other than to s13order can only lead to the conclusion that13if you read the OC as assuming that the14the intent was that Hydro would only be able14intention is to make their same – is to15to recover when it – the change in return15provide for the same rate making ROE for16when it applied for a change in rates; could16both utilities, it would appear that an17not have been intended that it would recover17adjustment of Hydro's rate making ROE s18otherwise. Otherwise, it would have been18occur when there's a change to Newfound19open to Hydro really to file its general19Power's ROE. An adjustment mechanism20rate application and look for the change in20provide for that.21return back to 2010. Revenue deficiency and21I touched on the management struct23couldn't have been the case. That would23the Board is satisfied Hydro is not	nould and would
11it's next general rate application. The11little guidance on the actual intent of12purpose of and contextual reading of this12Government in that regard, other than to s13order can only lead to the conclusion that13if you read the OC as assuming that the14the intent was that Hydro would only be able14intention is to make their same – is to15to recover when it – the change in return15provide for the same rate making ROE for16when it applied for a change in rates; could16both utilities, it would appear that an17not have been intended that it would recover17adjustment of Hydro's rate making ROE s18otherwise. Otherwise, it would have been18occur when there's a change to Newfound19open to Hydro really to file its general19provide for that.20rate application and look for the change in20provide for that.21return back to 2010. Revenue deficiency and21I touched on the management struct22a change of return back to 2010, that22and item number three already. Again, if23couldn't have been the case. That would23the Board is satisfied Hydro is not	nould and would
12purpose of and contextual reading of this12Government in that regard, other than to s13order can only lead to the conclusion that13if you read the OC as assuming that the14the intent was that Hydro would only be able14intention is to make their same – is to15to recover when it – the change in return15provide for the same rate making ROE for16when it applied for a change in rates; could16both utilities, it would appear that an17not have been intended that it would recover17adjustment of Hydro's rate making ROE s18otherwise. Otherwise, it would have been18occur when there's a change to Newfound19open to Hydro really to file its general19Power's ROE. An adjustment mechanism20rate application and look for the change in20I touched on the management struct21return back to 2010. Revenue deficiency and21I touched on the management struct23couldn't have been the case. That would23the Board is satisfied Hydro is not	nould and would
13order can only lead to the conclusion that13if you read the OC as assuming that the14the intent was that Hydro would only be able14intention is to make their same – is to15to recover when it – the change in return15provide for the same rate making ROE for16when it applied for a change in rates; could16both utilities, it would appear that an17not have been intended that it would recover17adjustment of Hydro's rate making ROE s18otherwise. Otherwise, it would have been18occur when there's a change to Newfound19open to Hydro really to file its general19Power's ROE. An adjustment mechanism20rate application and look for the change in20provide for that.21return back to 2010. Revenue deficiency and21I touched on the management struct22a change of return back to 2010, that22and item number three already. Again, if23couldn't have been the case. That would23the Board is satisfied Hydro is not	nould and would
14the intent was that Hydro would only be able14intention is to make their same – is to15to recover when it – the change in return15provide for the same rate making ROE for16when it applied for a change in rates; could16both utilities, it would appear that an17not have been intended that it would recover17adjustment of Hydro's rate making ROE s18otherwise. Otherwise, it would have been18occur when there's a change to Newfound19open to Hydro really to file its general19Power's ROE. An adjustment mechanism20rate application and look for the change in20provide for that.21return back to 2010. Revenue deficiency and21I touched on the management struct22a change of return back to 2010, that22and item number three already. Again, if23couldn't have been the case. That would23the Board is satisfied Hydro is not	nould and would
15to recover when it – the change in return15provide for the same rate making ROE for16when it applied for a change in rates; could16both utilities, it would appear that an17not have been intended that it would recover17adjustment of Hydro's rate making ROE s18otherwise. Otherwise, it would have been18occur when there's a change to Newfound19open to Hydro really to file its general19Power's ROE. An adjustment mechanism20rate application and look for the change in20provide for that.21return back to 2010. Revenue deficiency and21I touched on the management struct22a change of return back to 2010, that22and item number three already. Again, if23couldn't have been the case. That would23the Board is satisfied Hydro is not	nould and would
16when it applied for a change in rates; could16both utilities, it would appear that an17not have been intended that it would recover17adjustment of Hydro's rate making ROE s18otherwise. Otherwise, it would have been18occur when there's a change to Newfound19open to Hydro really to file its general19Power's ROE. An adjustment mechanism20rate application and look for the change in20provide for that.21return back to 2010. Revenue deficiency and21I touched on the management struct22a change of return back to 2010, that22and item number three already. Again, if23couldn't have been the case. That would23the Board is satisfied Hydro is not	nould and would
17not have been intended that it would recover17adjustment of Hydro's rate making ROE s18otherwise. Otherwise, it would have been18occur when there's a change to Newfound19open to Hydro really to file its general19Power's ROE. An adjustment mechanism20rate application and look for the change in20provide for that.21return back to 2010. Revenue deficiency and21I touched on the management struct22a change of return back to 2010, that22and item number three already. Again, if23couldn't have been the case. That would23the Board is satisfied Hydro is not	and would
18otherwise. Otherwise, it would have been18occur when there's a change to Newfound19open to Hydro really to file its general19Power's ROE. An adjustment mechanism20rate application and look for the change in20provide for that.21return back to 2010. Revenue deficiency and21I touched on the management struct22a change of return back to 2010, that22and item number three already. Again, if23couldn't have been the case. That would23the Board is satisfied Hydro is not	and would
19open to Hydro really to file its general19Power's ROE. An adjustment mechanism20rate application and look for the change in20provide for that.21return back to 2010. Revenue deficiency and21I touched on the management struct22a change of return back to 2010, that22and item number three already. Again, if23couldn't have been the case. That would23the Board is satisfied Hydro is not	would
20rate application and look for the change in return back to 2010. Revenue deficiency and a change of return back to 2010, that20provide for that.21return back to 2010. Revenue deficiency and a change of return back to 2010, that21I touched on the management struct and item number three already. Again, if 2323couldn't have been the case. That would23the Board is satisfied Hydro is not	
21return back to 2010. Revenue deficiency and 2221I touched on the management struct and item number three already. Again, if 2321a change of return back to 2010, that couldn't have been the case. That would21I touched on the management struct and item number three already. Again, if the Board is satisfied Hydro is not	ture
22a change of return back to 2010, that22and item number three already. Again, if23couldn't have been the case. That would23the Board is satisfied Hydro is not	ture
23 couldn't have been the case. That would 23 the Board is satisfied Hydro is not	
24 constitute retroactive rate making and be – 24 operating efficiently, it can impose a	
25and require clear indication of legislative25productivity allowance, but it's	
Page 74 Pag	
1intent.1Newfoundland Power's position that the E	
2 The fact is, it was open to Hydro since 2 does not have the power to order Hydro he	W
3 2009 to file a GRA seeking the directed rate 3 to structure itself corporately.	
4 of return on equity and the change. It was 4 And the only other comments I have	e with
5 Hydro's choice not to do this. This was a 5 respect to the fuel price are limited. We'd	
6 financial decision made by Hydro, not the 6 have to state that with respect to the fuel	
7 interveners, not the Board, and Hydro 7 prices for 2014 and 2015, it's Newfoundla	nd
8 continued on with the originally scheduled – 8 Power's position that the basic principle	
9 had Hydro continued on with the originally 9 should be that Hydro should be no better of	
10scheduled hearing in July of 2013, Hydro10and no worse off than the status quo which	L
11 would have been entitled to recover an ROE 11 exists under the RSP. Essentially that	
12 commensurate with Newfoundland Power's ROE 12 Hydro should be entitled to recover the	
13at the time in 2014 rates once they were13reasonable actual cost of fuel at a	
14 implemented. Hydro chose to abandon its 14 reasonable burn rate. Right now, Hydro is	
152013 test year in favour of a 2015 test15essentially entitled to recover the	
16 year. Hydro's witnesses have indicated that 16 difference between volume of fuel, market	
17 this was done due to the fact that it was 17 price of fuel and energy sales as expressed	
18 forecasting increases in costs above and 18 in rates in the actuals and Hydro will have	
19beyond what was included in the 2013 test19to file that information with you in a	
20year costs. But this was a choice made by20compliance filing. With respect to the 201	6
21 Hydro and having made the decision, Hydro 21 year, the most updated full cost, I guess,	
22 has effectively made the 2015 test year its 22 would be the appropriate fuel cost to use,	
23 first general rate application following the 23 and that's something Hydro have to deal w	ith
242009 Order in Council.24in a compliance filing. Those are my	
25To the extent Hydro is entitled to25submissions, Mr. Chair. Thank you.	

	Page 77		Page 79
	•	1	•
	CHAIRMAN:		distributed last night - or yesterday
2	Q. Okay. It seems like it's a good time for a	2	afternoon which I only saw last evening, and
3	break. Is that okay with you, Mr. Johnson?	3	I think it would be appropriate so that the
4	JOHNSON, Q.C.:	4	Board is not at the risk of putting an
5	Q. Certainly, thank you.	5	emphasis on these authorities from Hydro
6	(RECESS)	6	that they don't deserve, for the parties to
7	CHAIRMAN:	7	be given a brief amount of time to provide a
8	Q. Mr. Johnson, I believe we commence with you,	8	written comment as to where these decisions
9	sir.	9	fit and what weight they should be given and
10	JOHNSON, Q.C.:	10	what distinguishing features they should
11	Q. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman,	11	have; otherwise, we're sort of drinking from
12	Commissioners. My intent is mainly to	12	a fire hose and trying to do our best with
13	address the matters as best I can that the	13	what's been filed. As I say, the time
14	Board wanted the parties to address in its	14	constraint hasn't allowed us to do our best,
15	correspondence of January 18th, but before	15	frankly, on that.
16	going to that main task, and again my intent	16	So if we turn then to the Board's
17	would not be to provide a summary argument	17	issues regarding the definition of a test
18	on matters that we've laid out in our	18	year and accepted regulatory practice about
19	submissions, but before going to that, I	19	the use of test years, whether they be
20	would just like to touch briefly on Hydro's	20	historical and forecast, I think the key
21	Reply Brief under the Section, "Balancing	21	here is to differentiate between a test year
22	costs and reliability" that Mr. O'Brien	22	and a rate year. The test year, whether
23	spoke about this morning. As I read that	23	historical or future, is in all cases being
24	submission, Hydro has basically argued that	24	used as the basis for determining allowable
25	it's impossible for Hydro to provide better	25	costs and revenue requirement for a
	Page 78		Page 80
1	reliability and enhanced reporting without a	1	prospective rate year. Just to illustrate
2	corresponding increase in expenditures. In	2	the point, if we could just turn to the
3	a sense, it's saying if you want more from	3	materials that Newfoundland Power has filed,
4	us, you've got to give us more money, and	4	in particular the Phillips materials at page
5	they made the statement that if we reduce	5	196, and look at those comments in the
6	costs like the interveners want us, we'll	6	context of a historic test year situation.
7	have to make decisions that are inconsistent	7	So Phillips starts off at the top of page
8	with improving reliability. This position	8	196 saying, "The company, with the
9	is, to say the least, untenable, for the	9	concurrence of the Commission or its staff,
10	reasons that my friend, Mr. O'Brien, Counsel	10	will generally select a test year,
11	for Newfoundland Power, has already stated	11	frequently the latest twelve-month period
12	and with which I fully agree. The fact is	12	for which complete data are available. The
13	that the evidence discloses that Hydro has	13	purposes of such a test year are as follows.
14	seen its expenses rise dramatically, vastly	14	In the first place, Commission staff must
15	exceeding the pace of inflation, and while	15	audit the utility's books. For rate making
16	Hydro's witnesses testified that cost	16	purposes, only just and reasonable expenses
17	control was reasonable at that organization,	17	are allowed. Only used and useful property,
18	the evidence simply does not square with and	18	with certain exceptions, is permitted in the
19	is not consistent with that assertion, as	19	rate base. In the second place, the
20	set out in our brief, and in the briefs of	20	Commission must have a basis for estimating
21	all the other parties who've intervened in	21	future revenue requirements. This estimate
22	this matter. The second area now that I	22	is one of the most difficult problems in a
23	just wish to address briefly before going	23	rate case. A Commission is setting rates for
24	into the terms of the Board's letter is	24	the future, but it has only past experienced
25	there were a vast number of pages	25	revenues, demand conditions, to use as a

	Page 81		Page 83
1	guide". Of course, that pertains to a	1	JOHNSON, Q.C.:
2	historical test year. "Philosophically, the	2	Q. So a utility that is seeking to set rates
3	strict test year assumes the past	3	prospectively for 2014 in a future test year
4	relationship among revenues, cost, and net	4	regime such as we have, would file an
5	investment during the test year will	5	application in 2013 for 2014 rates using a
6	continue into the future. To the extent	6	forecast of 2014 test year costs. So, of
7	that these relationships are not constant,	7	course, we see there "relative to the date
8	the actual rate of return earned by utility	8	of the application", 2014 is a future test
9	may be quite different from the rate allowed	9	year. So in a historic test year regime, a
10	by the Commission. For many years,	10	utility seeking to set rates prospectively
11	Commissions have adjusted test year data for	11	for 2014 would apply in 2013 using 2012
12	known changes that is a change that actually	12	actuals as the basis for determining the
13	took place during or after the test period,	13	allowed 2014 revenue requirement, and hence
14	such as a new age agreement that occurred	14	rates. This time under that scenario,
15	toward the end of the year. More recently	15	relative to the date of the utility's
16	due to inflation, a few commissions have	16	application, the filing in 2013, 2012 is a
17	modified the traditional historic test year	17	historic test year.
18	approach by using a forward test year,	18	Now to round this out a little bit
19	either partial forecast or by permitting pro	19	more, in the materials filed from Mr. Moran
20	forma expense and revenue adjustments". Now	20	filed by Newfoundland Power, he also speaks
21	the terminology then of historic test year	21	of besides historical or forward test year,
22	or future test year speaks to the year for	22	you can also have a current test year. So
23	which costs are being used relative to the	23	in a current test year regime or situation,
24	date of the utility's application, but in	24	the utility seeking to set rates
25	all cases the rate year is in the future.	25	prospectively for 2014 would apply in 2013
	Page 82		Page 84
1	In all cases the rate making is prospective.	1	using current year 2013 estimated costs,
2	So a utility that is seeking to set rates	2	part actual, part forecast, as the cost to
3	prospectively for 2014 –	3	establish the 2014 revenue requirement and
4	CHAIRMAN:	4	rates. So in all cases regardless of the
5	Q. Prospective, isn't it?	5	test year regime, the rate year is in the
6	JOHNSON, Q.C.:	6	future, the rate making remains prospective.
7	Q. Prospectively.	7	Now this discussion so far should make it
8	CHAIRMAN:	8	fairly obvious that Hydro has a first order
9	Q. Is it.	9	principles problem with its purported use of
10	JOHNSON, Q.C.:	10	what it calls a 2014 test year.
11	Q. Or prospectively.	11	Let us leave to the side for the moment
12	CHAIRMAN:	12	whether a utility can use a test year for
13	Q. Prospect, I think.	13	the purpose of determining a revenue
14	JOHNSON, Q.C.:	14	deficiency as Hydro refers to it. We'll
15	Q. It's probably right, prospectively, in	15	come back to that, but the first order
16	retrospect.	16	principles problem is that a test year
17	CHAIRMAN;	17	regime, whether historic, future, or
18	Q. I have a grammar obsession. I don't know	18	current, has as a basic principle the
19	why, but I'm sure it's prospect because	19	concept that the utility be incented to
20	you're looking to the future.	20	manage its costs because the actual rate of
21	JOHNSON, Q.C.:	21	return earned by the utility in the rate
22	Q. I think our discussion is going to look	22	year may be quite different than the rate
23	weird on the transcript.	23	allowed by the Commission. So we don't
24	CHAIRMAN:	24	allow utilities to use 2014 as a test year
25	Q. It would fit in.	25	to set rates in 2014. No rate regime,

	Page 85		Page 87
1	whether future, historic, or current,	1	setting customer rates, and the Board asked
2	permits this because the rates are to be set	2	for any applicable authorities. Now Hydro,
3	prospectively. So although Hydro's	3	as Mr. O'Brien has stated this morning,
4	application which was filed in November of	4	clearly bears the onus of showing that its
5	2014 is not seeking to have rates set for	5	2014 revenue deficiency proposal accords
6	2014, and it seeks a recovery of a 2014	6	with regulatory practice. We don't believe
7	deficiency, conceptually a rate application	7	that Hydro has met this onus. Ms. Russell
8	serves the same purpose, and that is to	8	testified during the hearing that Hydro had
9	recover a revenue deficiency through	9	not, to her knowledge, consulted with a
10	increased rates. Now Hydro says we should	10	regulatory expert with respect to this
11	be allowed to recovery these 2014 costs	11	approach. She said that on November 19th,
12	because they were prudently incurred and	12	page 38. So as we sit here today, clearly
13	they were tested during the GRA process, but	13	Hydro wishes the Board, in our submission,
14	that approach, in our submission, undermines	13	to be the first to go down this road, and to
15	the whole principle of the utility's	15	do so without any expert evidence supporting
16	accountability to manage within a	16	the notion that this would be in accordance
17	preapproved revenue requirement budget, and	17	with regulatory and rate making principles.
18	to be incented to do so. Our argument very	18	With respect, we believe the Board should
19	much is one of principle, and I would point	19	decline Hydro's invitation in this regard.
20	out here that Hydro is not claiming that its	20	It is of significance in my view that
21	financial integrity is placed at risk if the	21	Newfoundland Power, a utility intervener,
22	Board doesn't deviate from normal regulatory	22	has stated in its written argument that
23	practice in this regard. So what we have to	23	Hydro's application for recovery of the
24	ask ourselves is if what Hydro is seeking in	24	proposed 2014 revenue deficiency is
25	respect of 2014, if that were to be endorsed	25	inconsistent with generally accepted
	Page 86		Page 88
1	as an ongoing practice, would it be	1	regulatory practice. As Newfoundland Power
2	acceptable. Would it be acceptable for	2	has pointed out, it's difficult to
3	Newfoundland Power, for example, to file in	3	understand how the deferred recovery of a
4	September in each year using actuals for	4	revenue deficiency from a prior year to
5	part of the year and forecasts for the rest	5	recover the incurred costs of operating the
6	of the year and say we want our revenue	6	utility would not be a retroactive
7	requirement for this year approved for	7	adjustment of the actions of management.
8	either rate of deficiency recovery purposes,	8	Now Hydro has submitted in its rebuttal that
9	or would it be appropriate for Hydro to come	9	denying the recovery of the 2014 revenue
10	back and do the same thing as they've done	10	deficiency is tantamount, as it says, to
11	this time on the basis that it couldn't file	11	denying Hydro its statutory entitlement to
12	its application on a more timely basis.	12	the opportunity to earn annually a just and
13	We submit to the Board that this	13	reasonable return on its rate base.
14	obviously would not be an acceptable	14	Hydro continues on to say in its
15	practice because it undermines fundamental	15	written reply that "It is incumbent upon the
16	principles. Utilities must make proper use	16	Board to use its discretion to act as
17	of test years; otherwise, the principles of	17	necessary and appropriate to effect recovery
18	utility accountability and incentives will	18	of Hydro's 2014 revenue deficiency
19	be undermined, and these principles matter	19	consistent with ensuring Hydro's customers
20	because if we don't adhere to them, they	20	obtain adequate service at reasonable
21	disappear.	21	rates". With all due respect to Hydro in
22	So then we next return to the issue of	22	this regard, this overlooks the
23	whether a utility can make use of a test	23	responsibility of the utility of Hydro to
24	year forecast for purposes other than	24	file in a timely basis. The concept of
25	determining a revenue requirement for	25	filing revenue requirement and rate

	D 90		D 01
1	Page 89	1	Page 91
	applications on a timely basis is so deeply		treated the same as 2014, and this is IV of
2	embedded in generally accepted regulatory	$\begin{vmatrix} 2 \\ 2 \end{vmatrix}$	the Board's letter. Again I would echo here
3	practice that most regulators do not	3	the comments of Mr. O'Brien this morning
4	consider an explicit policy statement to be	4	that the 2015 does not have the same problem
5	necessary. It is well understood by all	5	that the 2014 clearly has, because the GRA
6	participants in regulatory processes, except	6	filed by Hydro in November of 2014 properly
7	it seems, Hydro, that rates and revenue	7	used a forward test year of 2015 and applied
8	requirements must be set on a prospective	8	to set rates in 2015 on a prospective basis.
9	basis and that this requires costs to be	9	So other than saying that I would
10	filed in advance of the rate year. To do	10	respectfully concur with the comments made
11	otherwise would undermine the accountability	11	by Newfoundland Power in his addressing that
12	of management to manage within a budget that	12	submission to the Board this morning.
13	it commits to in advance.	13	Again IV of the letter, should forecast
14	The company in our respectful	14	or actual cost be used to determine a
15	submission demonstrates a profound	15	revenue deficiency, we would there submit
16	misunderstanding of the prospective nature	16	that it would have to be a fully forecast
17	of the rate setting regime when it suggests	17	cost to ground any revenue deficiency
18	that the Board has a statutory duty to allow	18	because otherwise you'd be undermining the
19	Hydro to recover a revenue deficiency that	19	utility incentive.
20	was not identified on a timely basis. The	20	The next topic had to do with the
21	regulatory reality is quite the opposite.	21	regulatory practice regarding the adjustment
22	To allow the company to recover a revenue	22	of 2015 forecast cost in setting 2016 rates.
23	deficiency for 2014 that was not disclosed	23	We interpreted, likewise as Newfoundland
24	to the Board until November of that year,	24	Power did, to be dealing with the CT issue,
25	would not only deviate from the principle of	25	and in our submission, a test year is a test
	Page 90		Page 92
1	determining revenue requirements on a	1	year. If Hydro knew there was a problem in
2	prospective basis, but in doing so set a	2	2016, it would need to file for 2016 rates
3	precedent that would open the door to	3	in 2015 using a 2016 test year, not make
4	allowing cost recovery not on the basis of a	4	adjustments to the 2015 test year. Hydro,
5	before the fact determination of a	5	as has been pointed out in the written
6	reasonable revenue requirement, but instead	6	materials and here this morning, proposes
7	to give utilities a licence to spend freely	7	that the Holyrood CT remain rate base for
8	first, then justify past spending, rather	8	rate making purposes even though it was not
9	than to submit to a review of the prudence	9	in service at the beginning of 2015. It's
10	of their budget plans in advance.	10	been acknowledged that this is a clear
11	So I then turn to III of the Board's	11	departure from generally accepted regulatory
12	letter, turning to the Board's query that if	12	practice, for which Hydro has not provided
13	the 2014 forecast is used to determine a	13	any expert support. Any number of changes
14	revenue deficiency, can it also be used for	14	can be experienced in Hydro's 2016 cost and
15	determining a credit to customers if the	15	revenues and it would not be, in our
16	utility has collected more than the revenue	16	respectful submission, appropriate to make
17	requirement for the years determined by the	17	this judgment. We referred to it in our
18	regulator. Just to be clear on this, of	18	brief as "single issue rate making", and I
19	course, as you will have gathered, we don't	19	think that that comment fairly applies to
20	accept that the 2014 forecast can be used to	20	that request.
21	determine a revenue deficiency. However, if	21	Turning then to this interpretation of
22	the Board is persuaded otherwise, then	22	Order in Council, 2009-063, back several
23	surely it would follow that it would not be	23	years ago in 2009, that Order in Council was
24	just for deficiencies, but also for credits.	24	issued to direct the Board that in all
25	The Board then asked whether 2015 should be	25	future general rate applications by

	Dago 02		Daga 05
	Page 93	1	Page 95
	Newfoundland and Labrador Hydro, commencing		for new rates on a prospective basis, would
$\begin{bmatrix} 2\\ 3 \end{bmatrix}$	with the first general rate application by	$\begin{vmatrix} 2\\ 3 \end{vmatrix}$	not be reading the term "general rate
	Hydro after January 1st, 2009, that in		application", as used in the Order in
4	calculating the return on rate base for	4	Council in its ordinary sense, nor would it
5	Hydro, to set the same target return on	5	be reading the Order in Council harmoniously
6	equity as was most recently set for	6	with the scheme of our legislation. Our
7	Newfoundland Power through a general rate	7	legislation sets rates on a prospective
8	application, or calculated through	8	basis and as the Court of Appeal said in the
9	Newfoundland Power's automatic adjustment	9	stated case, Hydro must manage its business so as to minimize the risks and maximize its
10	mechanism. The Supreme Court of Canada in	10	
11	the Rizzo Shoes decision, which I've	11	opportunities for a just and reasonable
12	provided to the parties and to the panel	12	return. Hydro is not guaranteed to earn the
13	sets out succinctly that – and in that	13	established return. To read the Order in
14	regard, I think I'd be referring to	14	Council as mandating that Hydro be entitled
15	paragraph 21 of the case, as has been	15	to return in a year where it has not sought
16	presented, where the court states and	16	rates on a prospective basis, and in a year
17	approved of the following statement, "Today	17	where it is putting forward a current year
18	there is only one principle or approach;	18	forecast to ground relief in that very year
19	namely, the words of an Act are to be read	19	is to change our framework. It is certainly
20	in their entire context, and in their	20	not to act harmonious with it.
21	grammatical and ordinary sense, harmoniously	21	Finally, on the issue of whether the
22	with the scheme of the Act, the object of	22	Order in Council affects the adjustment of
23	the Act, and in the intention of	23	Hydro's return on equity between its rate
24	Parliament", and the Consumer Advocate,	24	cases based on changes in Newfoundland
25	Newfoundland Power, and Vale, have submitted	25	Power's return, the Order in Council does
	Page 94		Page 96
1	that the Order in Council is not applicable	1	not mandate that Hydro's return can only be
2	to 2014, since 2014 is not a year in which	2	adjusted after a Hydro GRA, in my view, did
3	new rates are being set by the Board.	3	not cut down on the Board's ability to
4	In regulatory practice, a general rate	4	fashion an adjustment mechanism, and at the
5	application typically involves consideration	5	hearing, I thought that Hydro had conceded
6	of a utility's proposal for new rates,	6	that the Board would have the jurisdiction
7	tolls, and charges. In this jurisdiction,	7	to change Hydro's return on equity by way of
8	rates are designed to recover the utility's	8	an automatic adjustment formula in the event
9	revenue requirement based on a forecast test	9	that Newfoundland Power's target rate was
10	year. That's the only type of general rate	10	changed. Certainly that approach would much
11	application that this jurisdiction, at least	11	better ensure that Hydro's return on equity
12	to my knowledge, has ever had. In this	12	tracked the ROE most recently set for
13	case, Hydro, as we've discussed, Hydro's	13	Newfoundland Power, which seems to be at the
14	application not only proposed that the Board	14	heart of the issue in the Order in Council.
15	approve new rates based on a 2015 test year.	15	I think it would be far better. We have a
16	They went further and in its November, 2014,	16	case now on the immediate horizon with
17	filing, also filed a test year forecast of	17	Newfoundland Power, and certainly from a
18	2014 cost as a basis for recovery of a 2014	18	policy standpoint, it certainly makes sense
19	revenue deficiency. That is a novel use of	19	to have an adjustment so we don't get the
20	a test year that is unknown in these parts	20	two returns being out of step, seeing that
21	and represents a department from normal	21	the province has entered the field on this
22	regulatory practice. So to read the	22	matter.
23	directive as mandating that Newfoundland	23	As regards the corporate structure, the
24	Power's return be applied in respect of	24	Board has asked the parties to address what
25	2014, a year for which Hydro did not apply	25	remedial actions can and should the Board

	Page 97		Page 99
1	consider in respect of any deficiency that	1	As the Board put it in its Order PU-14-2004
2	may be determined by the Board to exist as	2	at page 27, "The role of the Board is not to
3	regards the transparency, clarity, and	$\begin{vmatrix} 2\\ 3 \end{vmatrix}$	exercise managerial influence, but to ensure
4	effectiveness of the current organizational	4	appropriate reporting/compliance mechanisms
5	structure, as well as certain practices as	5	are in place such that regulatory objectives
6	regards inter-company charges.	6	are met".
7	Let me take the last part first, what	7	In our brief, we pointed to a number of
8	the Board can and should do regarding	8	concerns. We said while Hydro remains part
9	deficiencies as regards inter-company	9	of its matrix organization, there must be
10	charges. The Consumer Advocate has called	10	clearly known and applicable rules governing
11	for revenue requirement reductions to	11	the identification and resolution of
12	address the fully burdening issue, and the	12	conflicts. The Board can and should order
13	issue pertaining to the fact that all of the	13	Hydro to develop and file strict rules
14	personnel providing core shared services for	14	regarding these matters. As a parallel, the
15	Nalcor's line of business are Hydro	15	Board in Newfoundland Power's 2007 GRA Order
16	employees. Because these costs are	16	accepted the Consumer Advocate's proposal
17	allocated based on total FTEs of the Nalcor	17	for the utility to develop a formal code of
18	group, more of the cost of common services	18	conduct for affiliates. So this is clearly
19	are allocated to Hydro. It would not be	19	within the power of the Board.
20	proper for the Board, in my judgment, to	20	Another concern that we highlighted
21	dictate that these employees should be taken	$\begin{vmatrix} 20\\ 21 \end{vmatrix}$	with the matrix model is that in our
22	off Hydro's employment rolls, but it is	22	judgement it diluted executive focus on
23	certainly legitimate to order a revenue	23	Hydro. The Board cannot dictate, in our
24	requirement reduction as if these employees	24	view, how Hydro organizes itself, but it can
25	were based in the parent. The Consumer	25	get alignment on the performance indicators
	Page 98		Page 100
1	Advocate has also called for Hydro to be	1	that are reported to it, so that the Board
2	ordered to charge a markup in respect of	2	can monitor what the utility is measuring
3	certain services it provides to Nalcor and	3	itself against. I note that the Board in
4	related businesses. I won't revisit the	4	its 2004 GRA Order ordered Hydro, amongst
5	reasons for this request, as they are set	5	other things, to report on initiatives
6	out in the brief, but the point here is that	6	targeting productivity or efficiency
7	the Board certainly has the power to ensure	7	improvements and the like. So these are
8	a markup is at least reflected in customer	8	certainly matters that can, and in our
9	rates. In that regard, I note that in	9	judgement should be the subject of such
10	Newfoundland Power's 2007 GRA and the order	10	orders.
11	following same, the Board ordered	11	As regards the fuel price to be used, I
12	Newfoundland Power to file a fair market	12	would just end by saying that as regards
13	value determination for insurance services	13	2016, these certainly should be as up to
14	provided by Newfoundland Power to Fortis	14	date as we can get them. Hydro has
15	affiliates with an appropriate charge out	15	indicated a willingness to have these
16	rate to be recommended.	16	updated. That would be a welcome and
17	Now going back to what the Board can	17	advisable thing to do, and as regards 2014
18	and should do as regards any deficiencies	18	and 2015, again we would, for the sake of
19	found in regards to transparency, clarity,	19	brevity on the point, align ourselves with
20	and effectiveness of the matrix	20	what Newfoundland Power has said on the
21	organizational structure, as the Board has	21	matter this morning. I guess, I would just
22	noted in past GRA orders, the Court of	22	finally like to echo my friend, Mr.
23	Appeal has stated that the Board can be	23	O'Brien's comments, I'd like to thank the
24	regulative and corrective, but not	24	Board and the Board staff, and the other
25	managerial in its management of a utility.	25	parties for everybody's constructive role in

	Page 101		Page 103
1	the hearing. Thank you very much.	1	think the important ones to the issues that
$\begin{vmatrix} 1\\2 \end{vmatrix}$	CHAIRMAN:	2	the Board has asked us to speak to in
$\begin{vmatrix} 2\\ 3 \end{vmatrix}$	Q. Thank you. Sir, you are on.	$\begin{vmatrix} 2\\ 3 \end{vmatrix}$	respect of the test year are number two and
4	MR. COXWORTHY:		number five, but the Board has a broad
I .		4	
5	Q. Thank you, Mr. Chair. Mr. Chair, I'll start	5	discretion and hence a large jurisdiction in
6	with the first set of issues that the Board	6	its choice of methodologies and approaches
7	has asked the parties to address with	7	to be adopted to achieve the purposes of the
8	respect to the test year, and it's been	8	legislation and to implement the provincial
9	referred to and perhaps it does not need to	9	power policy. In fact, although I said two
10	be referred to at length, but I do feel the	10	and five, I think three follows, principle
11	need to turn to the stated case which has	11	number three, that the failure to identify a
12	been filed, I think, as Tab 2 to Hydro's	12	specific statutory power in the Board to
13	authorities today. It is, I think, and	13	undertake a particularly impugned action
14	still remains the foundational document for	14	does not mean that the jurisdiction of the
15	this Board in considering the scope of its	15	Board is thereby prescribed. In other
16	authority and discretion to grant the type	16	words, we need to be careful not to put the
17	of relief that Hydro is requesting in	17	blinders on too much in terms of what the
18	relation to the 2014 test year that its	18	Act says and what it doesn't say, and look
19	proposed and the 2015.	19	at it in the broader context of what is the
20	So if I could refer to paragraph 18 of	20	legislation trying to achieve, and in
21	the stated case, and, of course, the Court	21	principle five, I think, in the context –
22	of Appeal there warns against supplying a	22	because this is the issue that Hydro has
23	two literal or technocratic interpretation	23	brought to the Board and has asked the Board
24	of the Act, the Public Utilities Act, and	24	to grant relief on, and that is will it be
25	favour an interpretation that will advance	25	earning a just and reasonable rate of return
	Page 102		Page 104
$\begin{vmatrix} 1 \\ 2 \end{vmatrix}$	the underlying purpose of the legislation,		in 2014 and 2015. So principle five speak
2	the Public Utilities Act, as well as the	2	to this, "The setting of a just and
3	power policy of the province, which is	3	reasonable rate of return is of fundamental
4	expressed in the Electrical Power Control	4	importance to the utility, just always be an
5	Act, but also in Orders in Council that have	5	important focus of the Board's
6	been issued by government, and be consistent	6	deliberations", however, and I think this
7	with generally accepted and sound public	7	goes to the point that's been made by my
8	utility practice. So we have a three-legged	8	other learned friends here today, "The
9	stool, as I would propose to use on a homely	9	entitlement of the utility to adjust a
10	analogy. One doesn't dominate over the	10	reasonable rate of return does not guarantee
11	other or certainly can't be ignored;	11	that level of return". The entitlement is
12	otherwise, the stool doesn't stand. So all	12	to have the Board address that issue and
13	three need to be considered, need to be	13	make its best prospective estimate based on
14	balanced against each other.	14	its full consideration of all available
15	So the consistent with generally	15	evidence for the purpose of setting rates,
16	accepted sound public utility practice is	16	tolls, and charges. So that's the
17	important. It's also important to consider	17	entitlement. I think it's certainly
18	it in light of the direction to the Board	18	consistent, I would submit, with the
19	provided by legislation and by the Orders in	19	submission that have been made by my
20	Council.	20	friends, Newfoundland Power, and the
21	I'd like to then turn to paragraph 36	21	Consumer Advocate, that least generally
22	in the stated case, and the Court of Appeal,	22	speaking, when we think about a just and
23	after its review of the case law, stated	23	reasonable rate of return for Hydro, it's a
24	some general principles to be used in the	24	prospective looking forward exercise. It's
25	interpretation of the legislation, and I	25	also to be one that's based on full

Page 109Page 1111can't do it because if's not prospective1that was appropriate circumstances to2rate making. Again Hydro has not made the2be used in the appropriate circumstances to3case for that in this particular, that it's3determine credits to customers.4necessary for them to achieve a just and4With respect to the fourth question,5reasonable return in 2014. A financial5should 2015 and rate changes will not be effective8made in the submission of the Industrial8until 2016, the Island Industrial Customers.9Customers.9arc of the view that generally speaking, if10If you could turn to the specific10a 2014 test year were to be used by the11questions that have been asked by the Board,11Board or applied by the Board, generally12there is no statutory definition of test12speaking, yes, they would be treated the13year, and we would agree that usually it's13same. The only exception, which 1 think has14in accordance with accepted regulatory14been referred to, is with respect to fuel15practice to use test years to establish15cost was appropriate, the shand fuel specific, which 1 think has16prospective rates. Again with reference to18as updated in October, 2015.17the stated case, we wouldh to go to far as to17addressed in 2014 by Hydro's fuel forecast18say that means that a test year could not be18 <th></th> <th>D 100</th> <th>1</th> <th>D. 111</th>		D 100	1	D. 111
2 rate making. Again Hydro has not made the 2 be used in the appropriate circumstances to 3 case for that in this particular, that it's 3 determine credits to customers. 4 necessary for them to achieve a just and 4 With respect to the fourth question, 5 reasonable return in 2014. A financial 5 should 2015 be treated the same as 2014 as a 6 integrity case has not been made, the 6 deferral account has been established for 7 direction to the Board case has not been 7 2015 and rate changes will not be effective 8 made in the submission of the Industrial 8 until 2016, the Island Industrial Customers 9 Care of the view that generally packating, yes, they would be treated the 11 Board or applied by the Board, generally 12 there is no statutory definition of test 12 speaking, yes, they would be treated the 13 year, and we would agree that usually it's 13 same. The only exception, which I think has 14 in accordance with accepted regulatory 14 been referred to, is with respect to fuel 15 practice to use test years to establish 15 cost. Fuel cost was addressed in the 2014	1	•	1	•
3case for that in this particular, that it's3determine credits to customers.4necessary for them to achieve a just and4With respect to the fourth question,5reasonable return in 2014. A financial5should 2015 be treated the same as 2014 as a6integrity case has not been made, the6deferral account has been established for7direction to the Board case has not been72015 and rate changes will not be effective8made in the submission of the Industrial8until 2016, the Island Industrial Ustomers9Customers.9are of the view that generally speaking, if10If you could turn to the specific10a 2014 test year were to be used by the11questions that have been asked by the Board,11Board or applied by the Board, generally12there is no statutory definition of test12speaking, yes, they would be treated the13year, and we would agree that usually it's13same. The only exception, which I think has14in accordance with accepted regulatory14been referred to, is with respect to fuel15practice to use test years to establish15cost. Fuel cost was addressed in the 201416prospective rates. Again with reference to16by operation of the RSP. It's been17the stated case, we would not ba as to 17addressed in 2015 by Hydro's fuel forecast18say that means that a test year could not be18as updated in October, 2015.19used for other purpo				
4necessary for them to achieve a just and reasonable return in 2014. A financial integrity case has not been made, the deferral account has been established for deferral account has been established for account has been established for accutomers.9Customers.9are of the view that generally speaking, if a 2014 text year were to be used by the accutomers.10If you could turn to the specific there is no statutory definition of test in accordince with acceptide regulatory is no statutory definition of test in accordince with acceptide regulatory is no exception, which 1 think has been referred to, is with respect to fuel there is no statutory definition of test the acception which accepting the acception of the RSP. If's been the stated case, we would rig to so far as to the stated case, we would not be or fore acception of the RSP. If's been to fuel corecast action of the RSP. If's been to practice to use test year site or circumstances to busine a revenue deficiency, the Island to obtained - Hydro has not made the case in 20 obtained - Hydro has not made the case in 20 to busined - Hydro has not made the case in 21 this particular matter that it can be used 22 to those other purposes. The auster date acception two, I think 23 this particular matter that it can be used 24 to those other purposes. The acception two, I think 23 the spection two, I think 24 the follows from the submissions we made in 24 the to dustring dustr				
5reasonable return in 2014. A financial5should 2015 be treated the same as 2014 as a6integrity case has not been made, the6defernal account has been established for7direction to the Board case has not been72015 and rate changes will not be effective8made in the submission of the Industrial8until 2016, the Island Industrial Customers9Customers.9are of the view that generally speaking, if10If you could turn to the specific10a 2014 test year were to be used by the11questions that have been asked by the Board,11Board or applied by the Board, generally12there is no statutory definition of test12speaking, yes, they would be treated the13year, and we would agree that usually it's13same. The only exception, which I think has16prospective rates. Again with reference to16by operation of the RSP. It's been17the stated case, we wouldn't go so far as to17addressed in 2015 by Hydro's fuel forecast18say that means that a test year could not be18as updated in October, 2015.20obtained - Hydro has not made the case in20fortecast or actual costs he used to21this particular matter that it can be used21determine arevenue deficiency, the Island22for those other purposes.22Industrial Customers feel that, generally23With respect to question two, I think23speaking, forecast costs should be used,24it foll				
6integrity case has not been made, the6deferral account has been established for7direction to the Board case has not been72015 and rate changes will not be effective8made in the submission of the Industrial8until 2016, the Island Industrial Customers9Customers.9are of the view that generally speaking, if10If you could turn to the specific10a 2014 test year were to be used by the11questions that have been asked by the Board,11Board or applied by the Board, generally12there is no statutory definition of test12speaking, yes, they would be treated the13year, and we would agree that usually it's13same. The only exception, which I think has14in accordance with accepted regulatory14been referred to, is with respect to fuel15practice to use test years to establish15cost. Fuel cost was addressed in the 201416prospective rates. Again with reference to16by operation of the RSP. It's been17the stated case, we wouldn't go so far as to17addressed in 2015 by Hydro's fuel forecast18say that means that a test year could not be18as updated in October, 2015.19used for other purposes.20forecast or actual costs be used to21this particular matter that it can be used21Industrial Customers feel that, generally23With respect to question two, I think23speaking, forecast costs should be used,24it follows f				
7 direction to the Board case has not been 7 2015 and rate changes will not be effective 8 made in the submission of the Industrial 8 until 2016, the Island Industrial Customers 9 Customers. 9 are of the view that generally speaking, if 10 If you could turn to the specific 10 a 2014 test year were to be used by the 11 questions that have been asked by the Board, 11 Board or applied by the Board, generally 12 there is no statutory definition of test 12 speaking, yee, they would be treated the 13 year, and we would agree that usually it's 13 same. The only exception, which I think has 14 in accordance with accepted regulatory 14 been referred to, is with respect to fuel 15 practice to use test years to establish 15 cost. Fuel Cost was addressed in the 2014 16 prospective rates. Again with reference to 16 by operation of the RSP. It's been 17 the stated case, we wouldn't go so far as to 17 addressed in 2015. 19 used for other purposes if the circumstances 19 With respect to the question, should 20 obtained - Hydro has not made the case in<				
8 made in the submission of the Industrial 8 until 2016, the Island Industrial Customers 9 Customers. 9 are of the view that generally speaking, if 10 If you could turn to the specific 10 a 2014 test year wret to be used by the 11 questions that have been asked by the Board, 11 Board or applied by the Board, generally 12 there is no statutory definition of test 12 speaking, yes, they would be treated the 13 year, and we would agree that usually it's 13 same. The only exception, which I think has 14 in accordance with accepted regulatory 14 been referred to, is with respect to fuel 15 practice to use test years to establish 15 cost. Fuel cost was addressed in the 2014 16 prospective rates. Again with reference to 16 by operation of the RSP. It's been 17 the stated case, we wouldn't go so far as to 17 addressed in 2015 by Hydro's fuel forecast 18 say that means that a test year could not be 18 as updated in October, 2015. 19 20 obtained - Hydro has not made the case in 20 for those other purposes. 22 Industrial Customers feel that, generally<				
9Customers.9are of the view that generally speaking, if10If you could turn to the specific10a 2014 test year were to be used by the11questions that have been asked by the Board,11Board or applied by the Board, generally12there is no statutory definition of test12speaking, yes, they would be treated the13year, and we would agree that usually it's13same. The only exception, which I think has14in accordance with accepted regulatory14been referred to, is with respect to fuel15practice to use test years to establish15cost. Fuel cost was addressed in the 201416prospective rates. Again with reference to16by operation of the RSP. It's been17the stated case, we wouldn't go so far as to17addressed in 2015 by Hydro's fuel forecast18say that means that a test year could not be18as updated in October, 2015.19used for other purposes if the circumstances19With respect to the question, should20obtained - Hydro has not made the case in20forecast or actual costs be used to21this particular matter that it can be used21determine a revenue deficiency, the Island22this particular matter that it can be used21determine a revenue deficiency, the Island23With respect to question two, I think23speaking, forecast costs should be used, at though we would note that the EPCE,25relation to number one. Number three, yes,25Paragraph 3(a)(3)				-
10If you could turn to the specific10a 2014 test year were to be used by the11questions that have been asked by the Board,11Board or applied by the Board, generally12there is no statutory definition of test12speaking, yes, they would be treated the13year, and we would agree that usually it's13same. The only exception, which 1 think has14in accordance with accepted regulatory14been referred to, is with respect to fuel15practice to use test years to establish15cost. Fuel cost was addressed in the 201416prospective rates. Again with reference to16by operation of the RSP. It's been17the stated case, we wouldn't go so far as to17addressed in 2015 by Hydro's fuel forecast18say that means that a test year could not be18as updated in October, 2015.19used for other purposes if the circumstances19With respect to the question, should20obtained - Hydro has not made the case in20for those other purposes.2221third transpect to question two, 1 think23speaking, forecast costs should be used,23With respect to question two, 1 think23speaking, forecast costs hould be used,24it follows from the submissions we made in24although we would note that the EPCE,25relation to number one. Number three, yes,25Paragraph 3(a)(3) does refer to forecast2that certainly if there can be recovery2the lalan Industrial Customers certain				
11questions that have been asked by the Board,11Board or applied by the Board, generally12there is no statutory definition of test12speaking, yes, they would be treated the13year, and we would agree that usually it's13same. The only exception, which I think has14in accordance with accepted regulatory14been referred to, is with respect to fuel15practice to use test years to establish15cost. Fuel cost was addressed in the 201416prospective rates. Again with reference to16by operation of the RSP. It's been17the stated case, we wouldn't go so far as to17addressed in 2015 by Hydro's fuel forecast18say that means that a test year could not be18as updated in October, 2015.19used for other purposes if the circumstances19With respect to the question, should20obtained - Hydro has not made the case in20forecast or actual costs be used to21this particular matter that it can be used21determine a revenue deficiency, the Island22for those other purposes.22Industrial Customers feel that, generally23With respect to question two, I think23speaking, forecast costs should be used,24it follows from the submissions we made in24although we would note that the EPCE,25relation to number one. Number three, yes,25Paragraph 3(a)(3) does refer to forecast2that certainly if there consumer Advocate1costs being used whenever practicable.			-	
12 there is no statutory definition of test 12 speaking, yes, they would be treated the 13 year, and we would agree that usually it's 13 same. The only exception, which I think has 14 in accordance with accepted regulatory 14 been referred to, is with respect to fuel 15 practice to use test years to establish 15 cost. Fuel cost was addressed in the 2014 16 prospective rates. Again with reference to 16 by operation of the RSP. It's been 17 the stated case, we wouldn't go so far as to 17 addressed in 2015 by Hydro's fuel forecast 18 say that means that a test year could not be 18 as updated in October, 2015. 19 used for other purposes if the circumstances 19 With respect to the question, should 22 for those other purposes. 22 Industrial Customers feel that, generally 23 With respect to question two, I think 23 speaking, forecast costs should be used, 24 it follows from the submissions we made in 24 although we would note that the EPCE, 25 relation to number one. Number three, yes, 25 Paragraph 3(a)(3) does refer to forecast 2 that certain				
13 year, and we would agree that usually it's 13 same. The only exception, which I think has 14 in accordance with accepted regulatory 14 been referred to, is with respect to fuel 15 practice to use test years to establish 15 cost. Fuel cost was addressed in the 2014 16 prospective rates. Again with reference to 16 by operation of the RSP. It's been 17 the stated case, we wouldn't go so far as to 17 addressed in 2015 by Hydro's fuel forecast 18 say that means that a test year could not be 18 as updated in October, 2015. 19 used for other purposes if the circumstances 19 With respect to the question, should 20 obtained - Hydro has not made the case in 20 forecast or actual costs be used to 21 this particular matter that it can be used 21 determine a revenue deficiency, the Island 22 for those other purposes. 22 Industrial Customers feel that, generally 23 With respect to question two, I think 23 speaking, forecast costs should be used, 24 it follows from the submissions we made in 24 although we would note that the EPCE, 25 relation to n		• • • •		
14 in accordance with accepted regulatory 14 been referred to, is with respect to fuel 15 practice to use test years to establish 15 cost. Fuel cost was addressed in the 2014 16 prospective rates. Again with reference to 16 by operation of the RSP. It's been 17 the stated case, we wouldn't go so far as to 17 addressed in 2015 by Hydro's fuel forecast 18 say that means that a test year could not be 18 as updated in October, 2015. 19 used for other purposes if the circumstances 19 With respect to the question, should 20 obtained - Hydro has not made the case in 20 for those other purposes. 22 21 this particular matter that it can be used 21 determine a revenue deficiency, the Island 22 for those other purposes. 22 Industrial Customers feel that, generally 23 With respect to question two, I think 23 speaking, forecast costs should be used, 24 it follows from the submissions we made in 24 although we would note that the EPCE, 25 relation to number one. Number three, yes, 25 Paragraph 3(a)(3) does refer to forecast 2 that cert		-		
15practice to use test years to establish15cost. Fuel cost was addressed in the 201416prospective rates. Again with reference to16by operation of the RSP. It's been17the stated case, we wouldn't go so far as to17addressed in 2015 by Hydro's fuel forecast18say that means that a test year could not be18as updated in October, 2015.19used for other purposes if the circumstances19With respect to the question, should20obtained - Hydro has not made the case in20forecast or actual costs be used to21this particular matter that it can be used21determine a revenue deficiency, the Island22for those other purposes.22Industrial Customers feel that, generally23With respect to question two, I think23speaking, forecast costs should be used,24it follows from the submissions we made in24although we would note that the EPCE,25relation to number one. Number three, yes,25Paragraph 3(a)(3) does refer to forecast2that certainly if there can be recovery2the Island Industrial Customers certainly do3based on 2014, forecast for 2015, if that3not feel that i's an absolute purity test4were to be the finding of the Board to4that you could never use actual costs.5determine revenue deficiency, equally how5Certainly they should be used to test the6could that not apply if the circumstances6reasonableness of forecast costs can be tested<				
16 prospective rates. Again with reference to 16 by operation of the RSP. It's been 17 the stated case, we wouldn't go so far as to 17 addressed in 2015 by Hydro's fuel forecast 18 say that means that a test year could not be 18 as updated in October, 2015. 19 used for other purposes if the circumstances 19 With respect to the question, should 20 obtained - Hydro has not made the case in 20 forecast or actual costs be used to 21 this particular matter that it can be used 21 determine a revenue deficiency, the Island 22 for those other purposes. 22 Industrial Customers feel that, generally 23 With respect to question two, I think 23 speaking, forecast costs should be used, 24 it follows from the submissions we made in 24 although we would note that the EPCE, 25 relation to number one. Number three, yes, 25 Paragraph 3(a)(3) does refer to forecast 2 that certainly if there can be recovery 2 the Island Industrial Customers certainly do 3 based on 2014, forecast for 2015, if that 3 not feel that it's an absolute purity test 4 were to be the				-
17the stated case, we wouldn't go so far as to17addressed in 2015 by Hydro's fuel forecast18say that means that a test year could not be18as updated in October, 2015.19used for other purposes if the circumstances19With respect to the question, should20obtained - Hydro has not made the case in20forecast or actual costs be used to21this particular matter that it can be used21determine a revenue deficiency, the Island22for those other purposes.22Industrial Customers feel that, generally23With respect to question two, I think23speaking, forecast costs should be used,24it follows from the submissions we made in24although we would note that the EPCE,25relation to number one. Number three, yes,25Paragraph 3(a)(3) does refer to forecast2that certainly if there can be recovery2the Island Industrial Customers certainly do3based on 2014, forecast for 2015, if that3not feel that it's an absolute purity test4were to be the finding of the Board to4that you could never use actual costs.5determine revenue deficiency, equally how5Certainly they should be tested8back to the customers. I would refer in8so that the forecast costs can be tested9this regard to Section 3(a) of the EPCA, of9against the actual costs.10the Electrical Power Control Act, and it10within a reasonable range. There may be11seems				
18say that means that a test year could not be18as updated in October, 2015.19used for other purposes if the circumstances19With respect to the question, should20obtained - Hydro has not made the case in20forecast or actual costs be used to21this particular matter that it can be used21determine a revenue deficiency, the Island22for those other purposes.22Industrial Customers feel that, generally23With respect to question two, I think23speaking, forecast costs should be used,24it follows from the submissions we made in24although we would note that the EPCE,25relation to number one. Number three, yes,25Paragraph 3(a)(3) does refer to forecast2that certainly if there can be recovery2the Island Industrial Customers certainly do3based on 2014, forecast for 2015, if that3not feel that it's an absolute purity test4were to be the finding of the Board to4that you could never use actual costs.5determine revenue deficiency, equally how5Certainly they should be used to test the6could that not apply if the circumstances6reasonableness of forecast costs cost sc an timinum.7were otherwise to justify a credit going7If they're available, they should be tested8back to the customers. I would refer in8so that the forecast costs cost sc an be tested9this regard to Section 3(a) of the EPCA, of9against the actual costs. It's				
19used for other purposes if the circumstances19With respect to the question, should20obtained - Hydro has not made the case in20forecast or actual costs be used to21this particular matter that it can be used21determine a revenue deficiency, the Island22for those other purposes.22Industrial Customers feel that, generally23With respect to question two, I think23speaking, forecast costs should be used,24it follows from the submissions we made in24although we would note that the EPCE,25relation to number one. Number three, yes,25Paragraph 3(a)(3) does refer to forecast26we would agree with the Consumer Advocate1costs being used whenever practicable. So2that certainly if there can be recovery2the Island Industrial Customers certainly do3based on 2014, forecast for 2015, if that3not feel that it's an absolute purity test4were to be the finding of the Board to4that you could never use actual costs.5determine revenue deficiency, equally how5Certainly they should be used to test the6could that not apply if the circumstances6reasonableness of forecast costs can be tested8back to the customers. I would refer in8so that the forecast costs to see do they fall10the Electrical Power Control Act, and it10within a reasonable rage. There may be11seems to me that there has to be a11circumstances where it's appropriate to <td></td> <td>2</td> <td></td> <td></td>		2		
20obtained - Hydro has not made the case in 2120forecast or actual costs be used to determine a revenue deficiency, the Island 2221this particular matter that it can be used 2221determine a revenue deficiency, the Island 2223With respect to question two, I think 2323speaking, forecast costs should be used, although we would note that the EPCE, 2524it follows from the submissions we made in 2424although we would note that the EPCE, 2525relation to number one. Number three, yes, 2525Paragraph 3(a)(3) does refer to forecast20we would agree with the Consumer Advocate 21costs being used whenever practicable. So2that certainly if there can be recovery 32the Island Industrial Customers certainly do3based on 2014, forecast for 2015, if that 43not feel that it's an absolute purity test4were to be the finding of the Board to 54that you could never use actual costs.5determine revenue deficiency, equally how 65Certainly they should be used to test the 66could that not apply if the circumstances 86reasonableness of forecast costs and be tested 89this regard to Section 3(a) of the EPCA, of 99against the actual costs to see do they fall 910the Electrical Power Control Act, and it 1110within a reasonable range. There may be 1111seems to me that there has to be a 1111circumstances where it's appropriate to 12				•
21this particular matter that it can be used21determine a revenue deficiency, the Island22for those other purposes.22Industrial Customers feel that, generally23With respect to question two, I think23speaking, forecast costs should be used,24it follows from the submissions we made in24although we would note that the EPCE,25relation to number one. Number three, yes,25Paragraph 3(a)(3) does refer to forecastPage 110Page 110Page 112to we would agree with the Consumer Advocate2that certainly if there can be recovery23based on 2014, forecast for 2015, if that3not feel that it's an absolute purity test4were to be the finding of the Board to4that you could never use actual costs.5determine revenue deficiency, equally how5Certainly they should be used to test the6could that not apply if the circumstances6reasonableness of forecast costs can be tested8back to the customers. I would refer in8so that the forecast costs can be tested9this regard to Section 3(a) of the EPCA, of9against the actual costs. to see do they fall10the Electrical Power Control Act, and it10within a reasonable range. There may be11seems to me that there has to be a11circumstances where it's appropriate to12balancing. Hydro has an interest under12actually use the known actual costs.				
22for those other purposes.22Industrial Customers feel that, generally23With respect to question two, I think23speaking, forecast costs should be used,24it follows from the submissions we made in24although we would note that the EPCE,25relation to number one. Number three, yes,25Paragraph 3(a)(3) does refer to forecastPage 110Page 1121we would agree with the Consumer Advocate1costs being used whenever practicable. Sothat certainly if there can be recovery2the Island Industrial Customers certainly do3other would agree with the Consumer Advocate1costs being used whenever practicable. Sothat certainly if there can be recovery2the Island Industrial Customers certainly do3other wise to 2014, forecast for 2015, if that3not feel that it's an absolute purity test4that you could never use actual costs.5Certainly they should be used to test thecould that not apply if the circumstances6reasonableness of forecast costs at minimum.7If they're available, they should be tested9this regard to Section 3(a) of the EPCA, of9against the actual costs to see do they fall10the			20	forecast or actual costs be used to
23With respect to question two, I think23speaking, forecast costs should be used,24it follows from the submissions we made in24although we would note that the EPCE,25relation to number one. Number three, yes,25Paragraph 3(a)(3) does refer to forecast26Page 110Page 1121we would agree with the Consumer Advocate1costs being used whenever practicable. So2that certainly if there can be recovery2the Island Industrial Customers certainly do3based on 2014, forecast for 2015, if that3not feel that it's an absolute purity test4were to be the finding of the Board to4that you could never use actual costs.5determine revenue deficiency, equally how5Certainly they should be used to test the6could that not apply if the circumstances6reasonableness of forecast costs at minimum.7were otherwise to justify a credit going7If they're available, they should be tested8back to the customers. I would refer in8so that the forecast costs can be tested9this regard to Section 3(a) of the EPCA, of9against the actual costs to see do they fall10the Electrical Power Control Act, and it10within a reasonable range. There may be11seems to me that there has to be a11circumstances where it's appropriate to12balancing. Hydro has an interest under12actually use the known actual costs. It's13Section 3(a)(iii) to have just and	21	this particular matter that it can be used	21	determine a revenue deficiency, the Island
24it follows from the submissions we made in 2524although we would note that the EPCE, Paragraph 3(a)(3) does refer to forecast25Paragraph 3(a)(3) does refer to forecastPage 110Page 1121we would agree with the Consumer Advocate1costs being used whenever practicable. So2that certainly if there can be recovery2the Island Industrial Customers certainly do3based on 2014, forecast for 2015, if that3not feel that it's an absolute purity test4were to be the finding of the Board to4that you could never use actual costs.5determine revenue deficiency, equally how5Certainly they should be used to test the6could that not apply if the circumstances6reasonableness of forecast costs at minimum.7were otherwise to justify a credit going7If they're available, they should be tested8back to the customers. I would refer in8so that the forecast costs cost so ead othey fall10the Electrical Power Control Act, and it10within a reasonable range. There may be12balancing. Hydro has an interest under12actually use the known actual costs. It's13Section 3(a)(iii) to have just and13not an absolute purity test that you can14reasonable rates of return. That's also a14only use forecast costs. Again I turn to		for those other purposes.	22	Industrial Customers feel that, generally
25relation to number one. Number three, yes,25Paragraph 3(a)(3) does refer to forecastPage 110Page 110Page 1121we would agree with the Consumer Advocate1costs being used whenever practicable. So2that certainly if there can be recovery2the Island Industrial Customers certainly do3based on 2014, forecast for 2015, if that3not feel that it's an absolute purity test4were to be the finding of the Board to4that you could never use actual costs.5determine revenue deficiency, equally how5Certainly they should be used to test the6could that not apply if the circumstances6reasonableness of forecast costs at minimum.7were otherwise to justify a credit going7If they're available, they should be tested8back to the customers. I would refer in8so that the forecast costs can be tested9this regard to Section 3(a) of the EPCA, of9against the actual costs to see do they fall10the Electrical Power Control Act, and it10within a reasonable range. There may be12balancing. Hydro has an interest under12actually use the known actual costs. It's13Section 3(a)(ii) to have just and13not an absolute purity test that you can14reasonable rates of return. That's also a14only use forecast costs. Again I turn to	23	With respect to question two, I think	23	speaking, forecast costs should be used,
Page 110Page 1121we would agree with the Consumer Advocate1costs being used whenever practicable. So2that certainly if there can be recovery2the Island Industrial Customers certainly do3based on 2014, forecast for 2015, if that3not feel that it's an absolute purity test4were to be the finding of the Board to4that you could never use actual costs.5determine revenue deficiency, equally how5Certainly they should be used to test the6could that not apply if the circumstances6reasonableness of forecast costs at minimum.7were otherwise to justify a credit going7If they're available, they should be tested8back to the customers. I would refer in8so that the forecast costs can be tested9this regard to Section 3(a) of the EPCA, of9against the actual costs to see do they fall10the Electrical Power Control Act, and it10within a reasonable range. There may be12balancing. Hydro has an interest under12actually use the known actual costs. It's13Section 3(a)(iii) to have just and13not an absolute purity test that you can14reasonable rates of return. That's also a14only use forecast costs. Again I turn to	24	it follows from the submissions we made in	24	although we would note that the EPCE,
1we would agree with the Consumer Advocate1costs being used whenever practicable. So2that certainly if there can be recovery2the Island Industrial Customers certainly do3based on 2014, forecast for 2015, if that3not feel that it's an absolute purity test4were to be the finding of the Board to4that you could never use actual costs.5determine revenue deficiency, equally how5Certainly they should be used to test the6could that not apply if the circumstances6reasonableness of forecast costs at minimum.7were otherwise to justify a credit going7If they're available, they should be tested8back to the customers. I would refer in8so that the forecast costs can be tested9this regard to Section 3(a) of the EPCA, of9against the actual costs to see do they fall10the Electrical Power Control Act, and it10within a reasonable range. There may be12balancing. Hydro has an interest under12actually use the known actual costs. It's13Section 3(a)(iii) to have just and13not an absolute purity test that you can14reasonable rates of return. That's also a14only use forecast costs. Again I turn to	25	relation to number one. Number three, yes,	25	Paragraph 3(a)(3) does refer to forecast
2that certainly if there can be recovery2the Island Industrial Customers certainly do3based on 2014, forecast for 2015, if that3not feel that it's an absolute purity test4were to be the finding of the Board to4that you could never use actual costs.5determine revenue deficiency, equally how5Certainly they should be used to test the6could that not apply if the circumstances6reasonableness of forecast costs at minimum.7were otherwise to justify a credit going7If they're available, they should be tested8back to the customers. I would refer in8so that the forecast costs can be tested9this regard to Section 3(a) of the EPCA, of9against the actual costs to see do they fall10the Electrical Power Control Act, and it10within a reasonable range. There may be11seems to me that there has to be a11circumstances where it's appropriate to12balancing. Hydro has an interest under12actually use the known actual costs. It's13Section 3(a)(iii) to have just and13not an absolute purity test that you can14reasonable rates of return. That's also a14only use forecast costs. Again I turn to		•		•
3based on 2014, forecast for 2015, if that3not feel that it's an absolute purity test4were to be the finding of the Board to4that you could never use actual costs.5determine revenue deficiency, equally how5Certainly they should be used to test the6could that not apply if the circumstances6reasonableness of forecast costs at minimum.7were otherwise to justify a credit going7If they're available, they should be tested8back to the customers. I would refer in8so that the forecast costs can be tested9this regard to Section 3(a) of the EPCA, of9against the actual costs to see do they fall10the Electrical Power Control Act, and it10within a reasonable range. There may be11seems to me that there has to be a11circumstances where it's appropriate to12balancing. Hydro has an interest under12actually use the known actual costs. It's13Section 3(a)(iii) to have just and13not an absolute purity test that you can14reasonable rates of return. That's also a14only use forecast costs. Again I turn to				
4were to be the finding of the Board to4that you could never use actual costs.5determine revenue deficiency, equally how5Certainly they should be used to test the6could that not apply if the circumstances6reasonableness of forecast costs at minimum.7were otherwise to justify a credit going7If they're available, they should be tested8back to the customers. I would refer in8so that the forecast costs can be tested9this regard to Section 3(a) of the EPCA, of9against the actual costs to see do they fall10the Electrical Power Control Act, and it10within a reasonable range. There may be11seems to me that there has to be a11circumstances where it's appropriate to12balancing. Hydro has an interest under12actually use the known actual costs. It's13Section 3(a)(iii) to have just and13not an absolute purity test that you can14reasonable rates of return. That's also a14only use forecast costs. Again I turn to				-
5determine revenue deficiency, equally how5Certainly they should be used to test the6could that not apply if the circumstances6reasonableness of forecast costs at minimum.7were otherwise to justify a credit going7If they're available, they should be tested8back to the customers. I would refer in8so that the forecast costs can be tested9this regard to Section 3(a) of the EPCA, of9against the actual costs to see do they fall10the Electrical Power Control Act, and it10within a reasonable range. There may be11seems to me that there has to be a11circumstances where it's appropriate to12balancing. Hydro has an interest under12actually use the known actual costs. It's13Section 3(a)(iii) to have just and13not an absolute purity test that you can14reasonable rates of return. That's also a14only use forecast costs. Again I turn to	3		3	
6could that not apply if the circumstances6reasonableness of forecast costs at minimum.7were otherwise to justify a credit going7If they're available, they should be tested8back to the customers. I would refer in8so that the forecast costs can be tested9this regard to Section 3(a) of the EPCA, of9against the actual costs to see do they fall10the Electrical Power Control Act, and it10within a reasonable range. There may be11seems to me that there has to be a11circumstances where it's appropriate to12balancing. Hydro has an interest under12actually use the known actual costs. It's13Section 3(a)(iii) to have just and13not an absolute purity test that you can14reasonable rates of return. That's also a14only use forecast costs. Again I turn to	4			•
7were otherwise to justify a credit going7If they're available, they should be tested8back to the customers. I would refer in8so that the forecast costs can be tested9this regard to Section 3(a) of the EPCA, of9against the actual costs to see do they fall10the Electrical Power Control Act, and it10within a reasonable range. There may be11seems to me that there has to be a11circumstances where it's appropriate to12balancing. Hydro has an interest under12actually use the known actual costs. It's13Section 3(a)(iii) to have just and13not an absolute purity test that you can14reasonable rates of return. That's also a14only use forecast costs. Again I turn to	5	5, 1 5	5	
8back to the customers. I would refer in8so that the forecast costs can be tested9this regard to Section 3(a) of the EPCA, of9against the actual costs to see do they fall10the Electrical Power Control Act, and it10within a reasonable range. There may be11seems to me that there has to be a11circumstances where it's appropriate to12balancing. Hydro has an interest under12actually use the known actual costs. It's13Section 3(a)(iii) to have just and13not an absolute purity test that you can14reasonable rates of return. That's also a14only use forecast costs. Again I turn to	6	could that not apply if the circumstances	6	reasonableness of forecast costs at minimum.
9this regard to Section 3(a) of the EPCA, of 109against the actual costs to see do they fall within a reasonable range. There may be to seems to me that there has to be a11seems to me that there has to be a11circumstances where it's appropriate to to actually use the known actual costs. It's12balancing. Hydro has an interest under12actually use the known actual costs. It's13Section 3(a)(iii) to have just and13not an absolute purity test that you can only use forecast costs. Again I turn to			7	
10the Electrical Power Control Act, and it10within a reasonable range. There may be11seems to me that there has to be a11circumstances where it's appropriate to12balancing. Hydro has an interest under12actually use the known actual costs. It's13Section 3(a)(iii) to have just and13not an absolute purity test that you can14reasonable rates of return. That's also a14only use forecast costs. Again I turn to			8	
11seems to me that there has to be a11circumstances where it's appropriate to12balancing. Hydro has an interest under12actually use the known actual costs. It's13Section 3(a)(iii) to have just and13not an absolute purity test that you can14reasonable rates of return. That's also a14only use forecast costs. Again I turn to	9	this regard to Section 3(a) of the EPCA, of	9	against the actual costs to see do they fall
12balancing. Hydro has an interest under12actually use the known actual costs. It's13Section 3(a)(iii) to have just and13not an absolute purity test that you can14reasonable rates of return. That's also a14only use forecast costs. Again I turn to	10	the Electrical Power Control Act, and it	10	
13Section 3(a)(iii) to have just and reasonable rates of return. That's also a13not an absolute purity test that you can only use forecast costs. Again I turn to	11	seems to me that there has to be a	11	circumstances where it's appropriate to
14reasonable rates of return. That's also a14only use forecast costs. Again I turn to	12	balancing. Hydro has an interest under	12	actually use the known actual costs. It's
	13		13	not an absolute purity test that you can
15 direction to the Board, and found in Section 15 the reference that's made in the stated case	14	reasonable rates of return. That's also a	14	only use forecast costs. Again I turn to
	15	direction to the Board, and found in Section	15	the reference that's made in the stated case
16 8 of the Act, but that has to be balanced 16 to the Board having reference to all of the	16	8 of the Act, but that has to be balanced	16	to the Board having reference to all of the
17against the customer's interest under17available information. So how could the	17	against the customer's interest under	17	available information. So how could the
18Section 3(a)(i) in rates that are reasonable18Board not take into account, if it's		Section 3(a)(i) in rates that are reasonable	18	Board not take into account, if it's
19and the stated case talks about this. The19available, the actual costs, but does that	19	and the stated case talks about this. The	19	available, the actual costs, but does that
20stated case talks about that balancing. I20mean it has to substitute, swap out the	20	stated case talks about that balancing. I	20	mean it has to substitute, swap out the
21think, bearing in mind that balancing, it21forecast costs in every category for the	21	think, bearing in mind that balancing, it	21	forecast costs in every category for the
22 certainly cannot be a one-way exercise that 22 actual costs; no, it doesn't mean that. You	22	certainly cannot be a one-way exercise that	22	actual costs; no, it doesn't mean that. You
23 if this Board were to use 2014 and 2015 23 could, but you don't have to, but it	23	if this Board were to use 2014 and 2015	23	could, but you don't have to, but it
24forecasts for determining a revenue24certainly at minimum provides a test to test	24	forecasts for determining a revenue	24	certainly at minimum provides a test to test
	25	deficiency, if the Board were to find that	25	the reasonableness of the forecast.

	D 112		D. 116
1	Page 113	1	Page 115
	With respect to VI, the regulatory		Newfoundland Power's rate of return that
2	practice regarding adjustment of 2015	$\begin{vmatrix} 2 \\ 2 \end{vmatrix}$	might occur between Hydro GRAs. The Order
3	forecast costs and setting 2016 rates up, it's the submission of the Island Industrial	3	in Council does not prohibit that. Whether
4		4	that's a good idea or not, we haven't seen a
5	Customers that that should be generally	5	model in terms of how that type of mechanism would work. I understand that Newfoundland
6	avoided, making adjustments in the 2015	6	
7 8	forecast cost; otherwise, we're going down	7 8	Power's automatic adjustment mechanism
9	the slippery slope of using a de facto, an inadequately tested 2016 test year or	9	perhaps could be a model for how that would
10	1 5 5	10	work for Hydro. Today I'm not here to advocate for any particular model or
10	putting some things in that would otherwise only be used in the context of the full	10	mechanism. I would presume that if this
11	-	11	Board does order that such a mechanism
12	testing of all the issues you would look at	12	should be considered, that there'd be some
13	in the test year. The RSP is the mechanism	13	
	to make the adjustments based on factors in		filing by Hydro and an opportunity for the
15	future years, such as in 2016.	15	parties to address any concerns that might
16	With respect to the Order in Council,	16	arise from the mechanism, but in terms of
17	I've already spoken to whether it requires	17	the law, again the Island Industrial Customers are of the view that there's no
18	the Board to apply a different criteria with	18	
19	respect to what is a reasonable rate of	19	absolute impediment to the Board arising out
20	return for Hydro that might otherwise be the	20	of the Order in Council implementing that
21	case. With respect to the automatic	21	type of mechanism if the Board feels that
22	adjustment point, my learned friend, Mr.	22	that is appropriate. The other thing to
23	Cass, has made reference to the fact that	23	bear in mind, of course, is the importance
24	the wording of the Order in Council talks	24	particularly if such a mechanism is not put
25	about the Board being directed to adopt	25	in place, of ensuring that we do not have
1	Page 114 policies as follows for all future general	1	Page 116 long gaps between GRAs. I understand
2	rate applications, and Mr. Cass has made the	2	pursuant to settlement agreements that
3	submission that that must mean that you can	$\frac{2}{3}$	there's an agreement that the GRA be brought
4	only change the rate of return in a general	4	forward within a reasonable period of time,
5	rate application. I would note that in past	5	within a set and fixed period of time on the
6	general rate applications, this Board has	6	next GRA, but that would be a concern that
7	implemented mechanisms, such as the rate	7	if for some reason that GRA did not proceed
8	stabilization plan, which operate between,	8	at that time, what would be the consequences
9	in the interim periods between general rate	9	of not having such an automatic adjustment
10	applications, and it's not unknown for a	10	mechanism in place.
11	general rate application to use those types	10	With respect to Hydro's corporate
12	of mechanisms. I think when I read the	11	structure, certainly the Island Industrial
12	policies as follows for all future general	12	Customers would agree with the position
13	rate applications, I don't see that as	13	expressed by Newfoundland Power and by the
15		14	Consumer Advocate that this Board doesn't
15	language that is reasonably to be	15	
17	interpreted as constraining the Board in using those types of mechanisms; mechanisms	10	have the authority, the jurisdiction, to mandate or require a particular corporate
18 19	that have always been available to it to	18 19	structure to say that Hydro shouldn't or
	address changes between general rate		can't participate in a matrix type
20	applications.	20	organization with its parent, Nalcor. We
21	So based on that interpretation, I	21	would agree that those are not issues with the purview of this Poard Py you of the
22	would say that there is no legal impediment	22	the purview of this Board. By way of the
23	in the Order in Council to this Board	23	submissions that were filed by the Island
24	adopting a mechanism for automatic change of	24	Industrial Customer group, we made what we
25	the rate of return based on any change in	25	thought was a fairly modest proposal for

	Decc. 117	1	Daga 110
1	Page 117	1	Page 119
	ansparent policies and tracking of		is a reasonable proposal to make and for
-	ins to Hydro from Nalcor and its	$\begin{vmatrix} 2 \\ 2 \end{vmatrix}$	Hydro to seek to implement before the next
	aries in respect of the Muskrat Falls	3	GRA. With respect to the 2014, 2015, 2016
-	tion Order, and the direction in that hat certain costs were not to be	4	With respect to the 2014, 2015, 2016
		56	fuel price, again we would agree with the submissions of Newfoundland Power that Hydro
	ed in rates, and again today I'm not interpret exactly what those costs	7	certainly shouldn't be entitled to anything
	here's been no filings made in	8	more in terms of fuel price than what would
	of what they are, whether they've	9	be expected would be the normal case under
1	curred yet, when they might start to	10	the RSP. With respect to 2014, that is how
	irred, but certainly there's clear	10	that fuel price has already been adjusted.
	on in that Exemption Order that	12	With respect to 2015, the Industrial
	something that isn't to be included	12	Customers are satisfied with the forecast
	s, and I think identifying, having	13	cost as adjusted in October of 2015. If
	identify what they understand that	15	there's a further adjustment that comes
5	ing to be, and reporting on that	16	forward, that may be appropriate as well,
	ing and tracking on those costs is	17	but the Industrial Customers are not
	ing that's appropriate to do and it's	18	opposing fuel price being determined on that
	riate to start doing from this GRA, so	19	basis. For 2016, we would expect that there
11 1	hen we come back before this Board in	20	would be a revision of the RSP rider as part
	t GRA, that information is available,	20	of the compliance applications that will be
	t have to be reconstructed after the	21	filed by Hydro coming out of the GRA
	's available in a way that everyone	23	decision, which will set the appropriate
	derstand what the rules were that	24	fuel price rider for 2016 based on market
	I to the tracking of that information,	25	prices at that time.
	Page 118		Page 120
1 and we	go beyond that to say, look, not just	1	There is one other issue which I don't
	emption Order cost, but all the	2	want to belabour, but I do want to raise it
	tion costs, and I use integration in	3	and that's the question of award of costs to
4 the sen	se that it was used by Hydro's	4	the parties in this GRA hearing. Hydro, in
5 witness	ses throughout the GRA. The cost	5	their reply or rebuttal document, made
6 involve	ed with integrating Hydro's	6	reference, and I believe it's the first
7 organiz	zation with the upcoming Muskrat Falls	7	reference on the record to the Board, as I
8 in-feed	, and the Maritime Link, the Labrador	8	understand it, perhaps re-examining the
9 Link, tl	hat is all that the Island Industrial	9	manner in which it has awarded costs, and I
10 Custon	ners have proposed in terms of	10	believe it was directed – Hydro's submission
11 trackin	g. Obviously, there are other costs	11	were directed to the interveners, and
12 that are	e charged in from Nalcor subsidiaries	12	awarded costs to interveners and there was
13 to Hyd	ro. There are other policies perhaps	13	provided to the Board as part of that reply
	uld be adopted, such as the Consumer	14	a rule that has been implemented in Alberta
	ate has indicated with respect to	15	by the Alberta Utilities Commission in
	t, and the Island Industrial	16	respect to award of costs. We have filed a
	ners certainly are not opposed to that,	17	case, a 2014 case, the ATCO decision, and
	m the Island Industrial Customers	18	the purpose of filing that, and again I
-	f view, at least a modest start to	19	don't want to spend a lot of time on it
	g costs that are being incurred. If	20	because my ultimate submission will be that
-	not being incurred now, they're	21	if the Board does feel that there needs to
	o be incurred in the very near future	22	be time spent on it, that there should be a
	in respect of one category of them.	23	separate process to establish that, but the
	s been direction from government that	24	point we wanted to make by filing the ATCO
25 it's not	to be included in rates, but that	25	decision, and I think it can be made in a

	Page 121	1		Page 123
1	reasonably brief fashion, is that it's not a	1		could be adopted in this jurisdiction.
	matter of simply looking at Rule 22 or it	$\begin{vmatrix} 1\\2 \end{vmatrix}$		Thank you, Mr. Chair, Commissioners, those
$\begin{bmatrix} 2\\ 2 \end{bmatrix}$		$\begin{vmatrix} 2\\ 3 \end{vmatrix}$		are our submissions.
3	oughtn't to be a matter of simply looking at	1	CHAIRMAN:	are our submissions.
4	Rule 22 as filed by the Board, and sort of nicking and chaosing out of that ab that	4 5		Mr. Fleming, sir.
5	picking and choosing out of that, oh, that	$\begin{vmatrix} 3\\6 \end{vmatrix}$	Q. MR. FLEMIN	
6	looks like a good idea, let's use that, and this other stuff over there, maybe we don't	Ť		
7 8	this other stuff over there, maybe we don't	7 8		Thank you. First of all, I'd like to start by thanking the Board, the Board staff, and
9	need to. It's part of a comprehensive			
	scheme in Alberta with respect to costs; not	9		all the parties for all their efforts in
10	only costs of interveners, but costs of the			making this hearing run so efficiently. At
11	utility, and if you look through what's been	11		times it might have seemed to us like it
12	filed by Hydro, you will see that that rule	12		would never end, but I think we can all
13	doesn't just apply to interveners, it	13		agree that it ran very, very well
14	applies to the applicant, and the applicant	14		procedurally. Vale adopts and supports the
15	has certain obligations as well. We are not	15		submissions of those who came before them
16	suggesting that in this GRA at the end of	16		today –
17	the GRA process that this Board should be	17	MS. GLYNN:	
18	adopting those types of rules either for	18		Mr. Fleming, can you speak further into the
19	Hydro or for the interveners. We think that	19	MR. FLEMIN	mic. I don't think we can hear you –
20	that would be procedurally unfair to do that	20		
21	at the end of the GRA process. If you look	21		Can't hear me. It's the second time I've
22	at Rule 22, you will see that there is a	22		heard that complaint, and both times it's
23	line in there that says, "This is to apply	23		been here.
24 25	to future general rate applications", and certainly if this Board feels that there is	24 25	CHAIRMAN: O.	You're worthy of being heard, you know.
12.)				TOUTE WORTHV OF DEILY REALCE VOLCENOW
		25	<u>ې</u>	
	Page 122	1		Page 124
1	Page 122 value in setting rules or guidelines around	1	MR. FLEMIN	Page 124 G:
1 2	Page 122 value in setting rules or guidelines around award of costs, and we would submit not just	1 2	MR. FLEMIN Q.	Page 124 G: I don't have a lot to say today, thankfully.
1 2 3	Page 122 value in setting rules or guidelines around award of costs, and we would submit not just to interveners, but also in respect of	1 2 3	MR. FLEMIN Q.	Page 124 G: I don't have a lot to say today, thankfully. We support the – on each of the issues, the
1 2 3 4	Page 122 value in setting rules or guidelines around award of costs, and we would submit not just to interveners, but also in respect of Hydro's costs to the extent that those are	1 2 3 4	MR. FLEMIN Q.	Page 124 G: I don't have a lot to say today, thankfully. We support the – on each of the issues, the parties seem to be pretty much in alignment.
1 2 3 4 5	Page 122 value in setting rules or guidelines around award of costs, and we would submit not just to interveners, but also in respect of Hydro's costs to the extent that those are recovered from customers, that a separate	1 2 3 4 5	MR. FLEMIN Q.	Page 124 G: I don't have a lot to say today, thankfully. We support the – on each of the issues, the parties seem to be pretty much in alignment. On issue one, the Industrial Customers
1 2 3 4	Page 122 value in setting rules or guidelines around award of costs, and we would submit not just to interveners, but also in respect of Hydro's costs to the extent that those are recovered from customers, that a separate process, whether as part of this GRA or	1 2 3 4	MR. FLEMIN Q.	Page 124 G: I don't have a lot to say today, thankfully. We support the – on each of the issues, the parties seem to be pretty much in alignment. On issue one, the Industrial Customers raises a point about whether revenue
1 2 3 4 5 6 7	Page 122 value in setting rules or guidelines around award of costs, and we would submit not just to interveners, but also in respect of Hydro's costs to the extent that those are recovered from customers, that a separate process, whether as part of this GRA or subsequent to this GRA, but prior to the	1 2 3 4 5 6 7	MR. FLEMIN Q.	Page 124 G: I don't have a lot to say today, thankfully. We support the – on each of the issues, the parties seem to be pretty much in alignment. On issue one, the Industrial Customers raises a point about whether revenue deficiency could ever be collected in such a
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8	Page 122 value in setting rules or guidelines around award of costs, and we would submit not just to interveners, but also in respect of Hydro's costs to the extent that those are recovered from customers, that a separate process, whether as part of this GRA or subsequent to this GRA, but prior to the next GRA where all parties would have an	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8	MR. FLEMIN Q.	Page 124 G: I don't have a lot to say today, thankfully. We support the – on each of the issues, the parties seem to be pretty much in alignment. On issue one, the Industrial Customers raises a point about whether revenue deficiency could ever be collected in such a manner as is being proposed by Hydro.
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	Page 122 value in setting rules or guidelines around award of costs, and we would submit not just to interveners, but also in respect of Hydro's costs to the extent that those are recovered from customers, that a separate process, whether as part of this GRA or subsequent to this GRA, but prior to the next GRA where all parties would have an opportunity to put in input on that would be	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	MR. FLEMIN Q.	Page 124 G: I don't have a lot to say today, thankfully. We support the – on each of the issues, the parties seem to be pretty much in alignment. On issue one, the Industrial Customers raises a point about whether revenue deficiency could ever be collected in such a manner as is being proposed by Hydro. Putting that aside, we support the
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10	Page 122 value in setting rules or guidelines around award of costs, and we would submit not just to interveners, but also in respect of Hydro's costs to the extent that those are recovered from customers, that a separate process, whether as part of this GRA or subsequent to this GRA, but prior to the next GRA where all parties would have an opportunity to put in input on that would be appropriate. Certainly, I will conclude by	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10	MR. FLEMIN Q.	Page 124 G: I don't have a lot to say today, thankfully. We support the – on each of the issues, the parties seem to be pretty much in alignment. On issue one, the Industrial Customers raises a point about whether revenue deficiency could ever be collected in such a manner as is being proposed by Hydro. Putting that aside, we support the submissions of those who came before us on
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11	Page 122 value in setting rules or guidelines around award of costs, and we would submit not just to interveners, but also in respect of Hydro's costs to the extent that those are recovered from customers, that a separate process, whether as part of this GRA or subsequent to this GRA, but prior to the next GRA where all parties would have an opportunity to put in input on that would be appropriate. Certainly, I will conclude by saying that the Island Industrial Customers	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11	MR. FLEMIN Q.	Page 124 G: I don't have a lot to say today, thankfully. We support the – on each of the issues, the parties seem to be pretty much in alignment. On issue one, the Industrial Customers raises a point about whether revenue deficiency could ever be collected in such a manner as is being proposed by Hydro. Putting that aside, we support the submissions of those who came before us on each of the four issues, and, of course, the
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12	Page 122 value in setting rules or guidelines around award of costs, and we would submit not just to interveners, but also in respect of Hydro's costs to the extent that those are recovered from customers, that a separate process, whether as part of this GRA or subsequent to this GRA, but prior to the next GRA where all parties would have an opportunity to put in input on that would be appropriate. Certainly, I will conclude by saying that the Island Industrial Customers would submit that it would be procedurally	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12	MR. FLEMIN Q.	Page 124 G: I don't have a lot to say today, thankfully. We support the – on each of the issues, the parties seem to be pretty much in alignment. On issue one, the Industrial Customers raises a point about whether revenue deficiency could ever be collected in such a manner as is being proposed by Hydro. Putting that aside, we support the submissions of those who came before us on each of the four issues, and, of course, the other interveners.
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	Page 122 value in setting rules or guidelines around award of costs, and we would submit not just to interveners, but also in respect of Hydro's costs to the extent that those are recovered from customers, that a separate process, whether as part of this GRA or subsequent to this GRA, but prior to the next GRA where all parties would have an opportunity to put in input on that would be appropriate. Certainly, I will conclude by saying that the Island Industrial Customers would submit that it would be procedurally unfair to at the end of a hearing process	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	MR. FLEMIN Q.	Page 124 G: I don't have a lot to say today, thankfully. We support the – on each of the issues, the parties seem to be pretty much in alignment. On issue one, the Industrial Customers raises a point about whether revenue deficiency could ever be collected in such a manner as is being proposed by Hydro. Putting that aside, we support the submissions of those who came before us on each of the four issues, and, of course, the other interveners. The only thing that I'd like to discuss
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	Page 122 value in setting rules or guidelines around award of costs, and we would submit not just to interveners, but also in respect of Hydro's costs to the extent that those are recovered from customers, that a separate process, whether as part of this GRA or subsequent to this GRA, but prior to the next GRA where all parties would have an opportunity to put in input on that would be appropriate. Certainly, I will conclude by saying that the Island Industrial Customers would submit that it would be procedurally unfair to at the end of a hearing process apply the type of rules that they have in	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	MR. FLEMIN Q.	Page 124 G: I don't have a lot to say today, thankfully. We support the – on each of the issues, the parties seem to be pretty much in alignment. On issue one, the Industrial Customers raises a point about whether revenue deficiency could ever be collected in such a manner as is being proposed by Hydro. Putting that aside, we support the submissions of those who came before us on each of the four issues, and, of course, the other interveners. The only thing that I'd like to discuss very briefly is the interpretation of the
$ \begin{array}{c} 1\\2\\3\\4\\5\\6\\7\\8\\9\\10\\11\\12\\13\\14\\15\end{array} $	Page 122 value in setting rules or guidelines around award of costs, and we would submit not just to interveners, but also in respect of Hydro's costs to the extent that those are recovered from customers, that a separate process, whether as part of this GRA or subsequent to this GRA, but prior to the next GRA where all parties would have an opportunity to put in input on that would be appropriate. Certainly, I will conclude by saying that the Island Industrial Customers would submit that it would be procedurally unfair to at the end of a hearing process apply the type of rules that they have in Alberta, which are part of a legislative	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15	MR. FLEMIN Q.	Page 124 G: I don't have a lot to say today, thankfully. We support the – on each of the issues, the parties seem to be pretty much in alignment. On issue one, the Industrial Customers raises a point about whether revenue deficiency could ever be collected in such a manner as is being proposed by Hydro. Putting that aside, we support the submissions of those who came before us on each of the four issues, and, of course, the other interveners. The only thing that I'd like to discuss very briefly is the interpretation of the Order in Council which was issued. In
$ \begin{array}{c} 1\\2\\3\\4\\5\\6\\7\\8\\9\\10\\11\\12\\13\\14\\15\\16\end{array} $	Page 122 value in setting rules or guidelines around award of costs, and we would submit not just to interveners, but also in respect of Hydro's costs to the extent that those are recovered from customers, that a separate process, whether as part of this GRA or subsequent to this GRA, but prior to the next GRA where all parties would have an opportunity to put in input on that would be appropriate. Certainly, I will conclude by saying that the Island Industrial Customers would submit that it would be procedurally unfair to at the end of a hearing process apply the type of rules that they have in Alberta, which are part of a legislative scheme, which the legislature has	$ \begin{array}{c} 1\\2\\3\\4\\5\\6\\7\\8\\9\\10\\11\\12\\13\\14\\15\\16\end{array} $	MR. FLEMIN Q.	Page 124 G: I don't have a lot to say today, thankfully. We support the – on each of the issues, the parties seem to be pretty much in alignment. On issue one, the Industrial Customers raises a point about whether revenue deficiency could ever be collected in such a manner as is being proposed by Hydro. Putting that aside, we support the submissions of those who came before us on each of the four issues, and, of course, the other interveners. The only thing that I'd like to discuss very briefly is the interpretation of the Order in Council which was issued. In Hydro's submissions, it was focused on the
$ \begin{array}{c} 1\\2\\3\\4\\5\\6\\7\\8\\9\\10\\11\\12\\13\\14\\15\\16\\17\end{array} $	Page 122 value in setting rules or guidelines around award of costs, and we would submit not just to interveners, but also in respect of Hydro's costs to the extent that those are recovered from customers, that a separate process, whether as part of this GRA or subsequent to this GRA, but prior to the next GRA where all parties would have an opportunity to put in input on that would be appropriate. Certainly, I will conclude by saying that the Island Industrial Customers would submit that it would be procedurally unfair to at the end of a hearing process apply the type of rules that they have in Alberta, which are part of a legislative scheme, which the legislature has specifically authorized the Board to make	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	MR. FLEMIN Q.	Page 124 G: I don't have a lot to say today, thankfully. We support the – on each of the issues, the parties seem to be pretty much in alignment. On issue one, the Industrial Customers raises a point about whether revenue deficiency could ever be collected in such a manner as is being proposed by Hydro. Putting that aside, we support the submissions of those who came before us on each of the four issues, and, of course, the other interveners. The only thing that I'd like to discuss very briefly is the interpretation of the Order in Council which was issued. In Hydro's submissions, it was focused on the portion of the Order in Council that states
$ \begin{array}{c} 1\\2\\3\\4\\5\\6\\7\\8\\9\\10\\11\\12\\13\\14\\15\\16\\17\\18\end{array} $	Page 122 value in setting rules or guidelines around award of costs, and we would submit not just to interveners, but also in respect of Hydro's costs to the extent that those are recovered from customers, that a separate process, whether as part of this GRA or subsequent to this GRA, but prior to the next GRA where all parties would have an opportunity to put in input on that would be appropriate. Certainly, I will conclude by saying that the Island Industrial Customers would submit that it would be procedurally unfair to at the end of a hearing process apply the type of rules that they have in Alberta, which are part of a legislative scheme, which the legislature has specifically authorized the Board to make regulations about awarding of costs to	$ \begin{array}{c} 1\\2\\3\\4\\5\\6\\7\\8\\9\\10\\11\\12\\13\\14\\15\\16\\17\\18\end{array} $	MR. FLEMIN	Page 124 G: I don't have a lot to say today, thankfully. We support the – on each of the issues, the parties seem to be pretty much in alignment. On issue one, the Industrial Customers raises a point about whether revenue deficiency could ever be collected in such a manner as is being proposed by Hydro. Putting that aside, we support the submissions of those who came before us on each of the four issues, and, of course, the other interveners. The only thing that I'd like to discuss very briefly is the interpretation of the Order in Council which was issued. In Hydro's submissions, it was focused on the portion of the Order in Council that states that this Order in Council commences with
$ \begin{array}{c} 1\\2\\3\\4\\5\\6\\7\\8\\9\\10\\11\\12\\13\\14\\15\\16\\17\\18\\19\end{array} $	Page 122 value in setting rules or guidelines around award of costs, and we would submit not just to interveners, but also in respect of Hydro's costs to the extent that those are recovered from customers, that a separate process, whether as part of this GRA or subsequent to this GRA, but prior to the next GRA where all parties would have an opportunity to put in input on that would be appropriate. Certainly, I will conclude by saying that the Island Industrial Customers would submit that it would be procedurally unfair to at the end of a hearing process apply the type of rules that they have in Alberta, which are part of a legislative scheme, which the legislature has specifically authorized the Board to make regulations about awarding of costs to interveners, and the legislative scheme here	$ \begin{array}{c} 1\\2\\3\\4\\5\\6\\7\\8\\9\\10\\11\\12\\13\\14\\15\\16\\17\\18\\19\end{array} $	MR. FLEMIN	Page 124 G: I don't have a lot to say today, thankfully. We support the – on each of the issues, the parties seem to be pretty much in alignment. On issue one, the Industrial Customers raises a point about whether revenue deficiency could ever be collected in such a manner as is being proposed by Hydro. Putting that aside, we support the submissions of those who came before us on each of the four issues, and, of course, the other interveners. The only thing that I'd like to discuss very briefly is the interpretation of the Order in Council which was issued. In Hydro's submissions, it was focused on the portion of the Order in Council that states that this Order in Council commences with the first general rate application. While
$ \begin{array}{c} 1\\2\\3\\4\\5\\6\\7\\8\\9\\10\\11\\12\\13\\14\\15\\16\\17\\18\\19\\20\end{array} $	Page 122 value in setting rules or guidelines around award of costs, and we would submit not just to interveners, but also in respect of Hydro's costs to the extent that those are recovered from customers, that a separate process, whether as part of this GRA or subsequent to this GRA, but prior to the next GRA where all parties would have an opportunity to put in input on that would be appropriate. Certainly, I will conclude by saying that the Island Industrial Customers would submit that it would be procedurally unfair to at the end of a hearing process apply the type of rules that they have in Alberta, which are part of a legislative scheme, which the legislature has specifically authorized the Board to make regulations about awarding of costs to interveners, and the legislative scheme here in Newfoundland is different. Newfoundland	$ \begin{array}{c} 1\\2\\3\\4\\5\\6\\7\\8\\9\\10\\11\\12\\13\\14\\15\\16\\17\\18\\19\\20\end{array} $	MR. FLEMIN Q.	Page 124 G: I don't have a lot to say today, thankfully. We support the – on each of the issues, the parties seem to be pretty much in alignment. On issue one, the Industrial Customers raises a point about whether revenue deficiency could ever be collected in such a manner as is being proposed by Hydro. Putting that aside, we support the submissions of those who came before us on each of the four issues, and, of course, the other interveners. The only thing that I'd like to discuss very briefly is the interpretation of the Order in Council which was issued. In Hydro's submissions, it was focused on the portion of the Order in Council that states that this Order in Council commences with the first general rate application. While that part of the Order speaks of the timing
$ \begin{array}{c} 1\\2\\3\\4\\5\\6\\7\\8\\9\\10\\11\\12\\13\\14\\15\\16\\17\\18\\19\\20\\21\end{array} $	Page 122 value in setting rules or guidelines around award of costs, and we would submit not just to interveners, but also in respect of Hydro's costs to the extent that those are recovered from customers, that a separate process, whether as part of this GRA or subsequent to this GRA, but prior to the next GRA where all parties would have an opportunity to put in input on that would be appropriate. Certainly, I will conclude by saying that the Island Industrial Customers would submit that it would be procedurally unfair to at the end of a hearing process apply the type of rules that they have in Alberta, which are part of a legislative scheme, which the legislature has specifically authorized the Board to make regulations about awarding of costs to interveners, and the legislative scheme here in Newfoundland is different. Newfoundland and Labrador is different. Again I don't	$ \begin{array}{c} 1\\2\\3\\4\\5\\6\\7\\8\\9\\10\\11\\12\\13\\14\\15\\16\\17\\18\\19\\20\\21\end{array} $	MR. FLEMIN Q.	Page 124 G: I don't have a lot to say today, thankfully. We support the – on each of the issues, the parties seem to be pretty much in alignment. On issue one, the Industrial Customers raises a point about whether revenue deficiency could ever be collected in such a manner as is being proposed by Hydro. Putting that aside, we support the submissions of those who came before us on each of the four issues, and, of course, the other interveners. The only thing that I'd like to discuss very briefly is the interpretation of the Order in Council which was issued. In Hydro's submissions, it was focused on the portion of the Order in Council that states that this Order in Council commences with the first general rate application. While that part of the Order speaks of the timing of when the order is to come into effect,
$ \begin{array}{c} 1\\2\\3\\4\\5\\6\\7\\8\\9\\10\\11\\12\\13\\14\\15\\16\\17\\18\\19\\20\\21\\22\end{array} $	Page 122 value in setting rules or guidelines around award of costs, and we would submit not just to interveners, but also in respect of Hydro's costs to the extent that those are recovered from customers, that a separate process, whether as part of this GRA or subsequent to this GRA, but prior to the next GRA where all parties would have an opportunity to put in input on that would be appropriate. Certainly, I will conclude by saying that the Island Industrial Customers would submit that it would be procedurally unfair to at the end of a hearing process apply the type of rules that they have in Alberta, which are part of a legislative scheme, which the legislature has specifically authorized the Board to make regulations about awarding of costs to interveners, and the legislative scheme here in Newfoundland is different. Newfoundland and Labrador is different. Again I don't want to get into interpretation, but I think	$ \begin{array}{c} 1\\2\\3\\4\\5\\6\\7\\8\\9\\10\\11\\12\\13\\14\\15\\16\\17\\18\\19\\20\\21\\22\end{array} $	MR. FLEMIN Q.	Page 124 G: I don't have a lot to say today, thankfully. We support the – on each of the issues, the parties seem to be pretty much in alignment. On issue one, the Industrial Customers raises a point about whether revenue deficiency could ever be collected in such a manner as is being proposed by Hydro. Putting that aside, we support the submissions of those who came before us on each of the four issues, and, of course, the other interveners. The only thing that I'd like to discuss very briefly is the interpretation of the Order in Council which was issued. In Hydro's submissions, it was focused on the portion of the Order in Council that states that this Order in Council commences with the first general rate application. While that part of the Order speaks of the timing of when the order is to come into effect, the preceding sentence says it's for all
$ \begin{array}{c} 1\\2\\3\\4\\5\\6\\7\\8\\9\\10\\11\\12\\13\\14\\15\\16\\17\\18\\19\\20\\21\\22\\23\end{array} $	Page 122 value in setting rules or guidelines around award of costs, and we would submit not just to interveners, but also in respect of Hydro's costs to the extent that those are recovered from customers, that a separate process, whether as part of this GRA or subsequent to this GRA, but prior to the next GRA where all parties would have an opportunity to put in input on that would be appropriate. Certainly, I will conclude by saying that the Island Industrial Customers would submit that it would be procedurally unfair to at the end of a hearing process apply the type of rules that they have in Alberta, which are part of a legislative scheme, which the legislature has specifically authorized the Board to make regulations about awarding of costs to interveners, and the legislative scheme here in Newfoundland is different. Newfoundland and Labrador is different. Again I don't want to get into interpretation, but I think that would have to be considered through a	$ \begin{array}{c} 1\\2\\3\\4\\5\\6\\7\\8\\9\\10\\11\\12\\13\\14\\15\\16\\17\\18\\19\\20\\21\\22\\23\end{array} $	MR. FLEMIN Q.	Page 124 G: I don't have a lot to say today, thankfully. We support the – on each of the issues, the parties seem to be pretty much in alignment. On issue one, the Industrial Customers raises a point about whether revenue deficiency could ever be collected in such a manner as is being proposed by Hydro. Putting that aside, we support the submissions of those who came before us on each of the four issues, and, of course, the other interveners. The only thing that I'd like to discuss very briefly is the interpretation of the Order in Council which was issued. In Hydro's submissions, it was focused on the portion of the Order in Council that states that this Order in Council commences with the first general rate application. While that part of the Order speaks of the timing of when the order is to come into effect, the preceding sentence says it's for all future general rate applications, and as
$ \begin{array}{c} 1\\2\\3\\4\\5\\6\\7\\8\\9\\10\\11\\12\\13\\14\\15\\16\\17\\18\\19\\20\\21\\22\end{array} $	Page 122 value in setting rules or guidelines around award of costs, and we would submit not just to interveners, but also in respect of Hydro's costs to the extent that those are recovered from customers, that a separate process, whether as part of this GRA or subsequent to this GRA, but prior to the next GRA where all parties would have an opportunity to put in input on that would be appropriate. Certainly, I will conclude by saying that the Island Industrial Customers would submit that it would be procedurally unfair to at the end of a hearing process apply the type of rules that they have in Alberta, which are part of a legislative scheme, which the legislature has specifically authorized the Board to make regulations about awarding of costs to interveners, and the legislative scheme here in Newfoundland is different. Newfoundland and Labrador is different. Again I don't want to get into interpretation, but I think	$ \begin{array}{c} 1\\2\\3\\4\\5\\6\\7\\8\\9\\10\\11\\12\\13\\14\\15\\16\\17\\18\\19\\20\\21\\22\end{array} $	MR. FLEMIN Q.	Page 124 G: I don't have a lot to say today, thankfully. We support the – on each of the issues, the parties seem to be pretty much in alignment. On issue one, the Industrial Customers raises a point about whether revenue deficiency could ever be collected in such a manner as is being proposed by Hydro. Putting that aside, we support the submissions of those who came before us on each of the four issues, and, of course, the other interveners. The only thing that I'd like to discuss very briefly is the interpretation of the Order in Council which was issued. In Hydro's submissions, it was focused on the portion of the Order in Council that states that this Order in Council commences with the first general rate application. While that part of the Order speaks of the timing of when the order is to come into effect, the preceding sentence says it's for all

	Page 125	1	Page 127
1	deficiency applications here were not	1	the rate does not account for the fact that
$\begin{vmatrix} 1\\2 \end{vmatrix}$	general rate applications. So regardless of	2	the new customer requires new capital cost
$\begin{vmatrix} 2\\ 3 \end{vmatrix}$	when this Order in Council, or this policy	$\begin{vmatrix} 2\\ 3 \end{vmatrix}$	in order to be served. In effect, the rate,
4	in the Order in Council was to commence, it	4	as proposed by Hydro, would permit a new
5	shouldn't be used for revenue deficiency	5	customer to pass on their network upgrade
6	applications as Hydro is proposing in the	6	costs to existing customers. All this was
7	applications brought at the same time as the		presented in Innu Nation's evidence. I draw
8	2013 amended general rate application. So	8	your particular attention, Commissioners, to
9	subject to that, we have no further comments	9	the testimony of Mr. Raphals on September
10	on the four issues.	10	29th at page 19 of the transcripts, as well
11	CHAIRMAN:	11	as Section 4.2.2 of his evidence, and I'd
12	Q. Okay, sir. Mr. Luk, you're next.	12	like to note that that evidence has not been
13	MR. LUK:	13	controverted or impeached by any party, and
14	Q. Good afternoon. Thank you, Mr. Chair, thank	14	it's square before the Board, and it's
15	you, Commissioners. Innu Nation doesn't	15	squarely before the Board to the effect that
16	have any submissions to make with respect to	16	the rate as proposed does cause potential
17	the four issues stated by the Board, but we	17	risks to existing users in terms of new
18	do have one brief submission with respect to	18	customers imposing their transmission costs
19	another issue, which is the Labrador	19	upon existing users. What's new in this
20	industrial transmission rate, approval for	20	puzzle is Hydro's reply at page 82 to the
21	which Hydro is applying for the first time	21	extent that they're acknowledging that the
22	at this GRA. Now just generally speaking,	22	Labrador industrial transmission rate, as
23	transmission rates are meant to capture cost	23	applied for, does not address the demand
24	causation for transmission infrastructure,	24	arising from interruptible loads. As I said
25	and the rate that Hydro is applying for is	25	before, as we submitted before, the rate
	Page 126		Page 128
1	quite simple. It only contains one	1	they're applying for contains only one
2	variable. The rate depends on that one	2	variable, that's firm demand. It doesn't
3	variable and that one variable is firm	3	even take into account interruptible demand.
4	demand, and you can see that at the Table	4	So we submit that Hydro's reply is an
5	4.14 at page 4.48 of the application. I	5	implicit acknowledgement that the rate that
6	think that page has been before the Commissioners before, so I don't need to		they have applied for is problematic in that
8		8	it's too simple. They have acknowledged
9	bring you back to that. Basically, in essence, the higher the firm demand, the	9	this as a problem and they're suggesting that they will rectify it by filing a
10	higher the transmission rate. Now Innu	10	further application some time in January
10	Nation has let evidence to the effect that	10	2016 to included interruptible load as a
11	transmission rates can be tricky things that	11	factor in the transmission rate. So Innu
12	can potentially burden existing users with a	12	Nation supports this further refinement of
14	cost generated by new customers on that	14	the transmission rate to include
15	rate. Now if there are no new customers,	15	interruptible load, but we submit that
16	then the rate as proposed is not	16	further refinements are necessary to the
17	problematic, customers pay according to the	17	rate as proposed. So among other issues,
18	amount of firm demand that they require, but	18	the design of the rate must protect existing
19	the problem arises when a new customer	19	customers from the network upgrade costs
20	enters the scene. They require network	20	caused by new customers. Mr. Raphals gave
21	upgrades like new transmission assets and	21	evidence both in his report and his life
22	the cost of these new transmission assets	22	examination about the "higher of policy"
23	would be recovered through the transmission	23	under the FERC regulatory framework in the
24	rate. However, if the transmission rate is	24	US. In this framework, a new customer must
	as proposed, only dependent on firm demand,	25	pay the higher rate, the higher of the
25	us proposed, only dependent on min demand.		

	Page 129			Page 131
1	incremental cost or the imbedded cost of the	1		incurred by new customers. Short of doing
1 2	upgrade. So if the imbedded cost is higher	2		that, if the Board approves the existing
$\frac{2}{3}$	to the new customer, then that's what the	2 3		rate, then any new entrants to the Labrador
	*			
4	new customer pays. If the incremental cost	4		system does point cost to existing customers
5	is higher to the customer, then that's what	5		at risk. Now we understand that Hydro is
6	the new customer pays. There's a succinct	6		due to enter a new GRA process in the not
7	explanation of that in Appendix "A" of Mr.	7		too distant future, and that's why we
8	Raphals evidence, which is quoting from	8		submitted that it would be acceptable for
9	evidence given before the Regis in Quebec	9		the Board to approve the rate as applied for
10	about what this FERC policy entails. So	10		by Hydro only provisionally until the next
11	I'll just read from it briefly, "At the time	11		GRA, so that in the short time between the
12	of restructuring, FERC's primary policy	12		approval of these rates and the next GRA,
13	objective was to ensure that transmission	13		there is a risk of a new entrant coming into
14	providers offered non-discriminatory, open	14		the market and imposing their cost on
15	access to the transmission network,	15		existing customers, but that risk would not
16	particularly for customers that were not	16		be so great, given the short time frame
17	traditional native load. However, since	17		until the next GRA. So we submit that until
18	native load customers prior to restructuring	18		Hydro submits a rate that does take into
19	had funded and were going to continue to	19		account the potential risk to existing
20	fund the infrastructure that made the	20		customers, the Board can ask Hydro to submit
21	delivery of power to them possible, FERC	21		a rate that does protect existing customers
22	also wanted to ensure that existing	22		or to conduct a hearing to fully assess what
23	transmission users would not be unduly	23		kind of rate would be required to achieve
24	harmed by cost imposed by customers	24		that objective, but until those steps are
25	requesting transmission service involving	25		made, that the approval of the transmission
	Page 130			Page 132
				•
1	network upgrades that could increase the	1		rate be only provisional, and that Hydro's
2	imbedded cost of the system. Thus, FERC's	2		rate be only provisional, and that Hydro's amendment to its transmission rate that it
	imbedded cost of the system. Thus, FERC's initial higher up policy was designed to			rate be only provisional, and that Hydro's amendment to its transmission rate that it is proposing to make some time in January,
2 3 4	imbedded cost of the system. Thus, FERC's initial higher up policy was designed to ensure that existing and growing need of	2 3 4		rate be only provisional, and that Hydro's amendment to its transmission rate that it is proposing to make some time in January, 2016, also be only approved provisionally
2 3	imbedded cost of the system. Thus, FERC's initial higher up policy was designed to ensure that existing and growing need of load was protected while the wholesale	2 3		rate be only provisional, and that Hydro's amendment to its transmission rate that it is proposing to make some time in January, 2016, also be only approved provisionally until there is fuller information on the
2 3 4	imbedded cost of the system. Thus, FERC's initial higher up policy was designed to ensure that existing and growing need of load was protected while the wholesale market developed, allowing new customers to	2 3 4		rate be only provisional, and that Hydro's amendment to its transmission rate that it is proposing to make some time in January, 2016, also be only approved provisionally until there is fuller information on the impacts of a transmission rate on existing
2 3 4 5	imbedded cost of the system. Thus, FERC's initial higher up policy was designed to ensure that existing and growing need of load was protected while the wholesale	2 3 4 5		rate be only provisional, and that Hydro's amendment to its transmission rate that it is proposing to make some time in January, 2016, also be only approved provisionally until there is fuller information on the
2 3 4 5	imbedded cost of the system. Thus, FERC's initial higher up policy was designed to ensure that existing and growing need of load was protected while the wholesale market developed, allowing new customers to interconnect through the existing transmission network that was predominantly	2 3 4 5		rate be only provisional, and that Hydro's amendment to its transmission rate that it is proposing to make some time in January, 2016, also be only approved provisionally until there is fuller information on the impacts of a transmission rate on existing customers. So those are Innu Nation's submission on this issue, and I'd like to
2 3 4 5 6 7	imbedded cost of the system. Thus, FERC's initial higher up policy was designed to ensure that existing and growing need of load was protected while the wholesale market developed, allowing new customers to interconnect through the existing transmission network that was predominantly funded by existing native load. In a policy	2 3 4 5 6 7		rate be only provisional, and that Hydro's amendment to its transmission rate that it is proposing to make some time in January, 2016, also be only approved provisionally until there is fuller information on the impacts of a transmission rate on existing customers. So those are Innu Nation's submission on this issue, and I'd like to conclude by thanking the Board and all
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10	imbedded cost of the system. Thus, FERC's initial higher up policy was designed to ensure that existing and growing need of load was protected while the wholesale market developed, allowing new customers to interconnect through the existing transmission network that was predominantly funded by existing native load. In a policy statement in the mid 1990s, FERC stated that	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10		rate be only provisional, and that Hydro's amendment to its transmission rate that it is proposing to make some time in January, 2016, also be only approved provisionally until there is fuller information on the impacts of a transmission rate on existing customers. So those are Innu Nation's submission on this issue, and I'd like to conclude by thanking the Board and all counsel for a very collegial relationship
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11	imbedded cost of the system. Thus, FERC's initial higher up policy was designed to ensure that existing and growing need of load was protected while the wholesale market developed, allowing new customers to interconnect through the existing transmission network that was predominantly funded by existing native load. In a policy statement in the mid 1990s, FERC stated that one of the goals of its new pricing policy	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11		rate be only provisional, and that Hydro's amendment to its transmission rate that it is proposing to make some time in January, 2016, also be only approved provisionally until there is fuller information on the impacts of a transmission rate on existing customers. So those are Innu Nation's submission on this issue, and I'd like to conclude by thanking the Board and all counsel for a very collegial relationship that has made the progress of this hearing
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12	imbedded cost of the system. Thus, FERC's initial higher up policy was designed to ensure that existing and growing need of load was protected while the wholesale market developed, allowing new customers to interconnect through the existing transmission network that was predominantly funded by existing native load. In a policy statement in the mid 1990s, FERC stated that one of the goals of its new pricing policy was to hold native load customers harmless".	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10		rate be only provisional, and that Hydro's amendment to its transmission rate that it is proposing to make some time in January, 2016, also be only approved provisionally until there is fuller information on the impacts of a transmission rate on existing customers. So those are Innu Nation's submission on this issue, and I'd like to conclude by thanking the Board and all counsel for a very collegial relationship
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11	imbedded cost of the system. Thus, FERC's initial higher up policy was designed to ensure that existing and growing need of load was protected while the wholesale market developed, allowing new customers to interconnect through the existing transmission network that was predominantly funded by existing native load. In a policy statement in the mid 1990s, FERC stated that one of the goals of its new pricing policy was to hold native load customers harmless". So we submit that the FERC policy would be	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11		rate be only provisional, and that Hydro's amendment to its transmission rate that it is proposing to make some time in January, 2016, also be only approved provisionally until there is fuller information on the impacts of a transmission rate on existing customers. So those are Innu Nation's submission on this issue, and I'd like to conclude by thanking the Board and all counsel for a very collegial relationship that has made the progress of this hearing
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12	imbedded cost of the system. Thus, FERC's initial higher up policy was designed to ensure that existing and growing need of load was protected while the wholesale market developed, allowing new customers to interconnect through the existing transmission network that was predominantly funded by existing native load. In a policy statement in the mid 1990s, FERC stated that one of the goals of its new pricing policy was to hold native load customers harmless". So we submit that the FERC policy would be one option for the Board to consider in	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12	CHAIRMAN: Q.	rate be only provisional, and that Hydro's amendment to its transmission rate that it is proposing to make some time in January, 2016, also be only approved provisionally until there is fuller information on the impacts of a transmission rate on existing customers. So those are Innu Nation's submission on this issue, and I'd like to conclude by thanking the Board and all counsel for a very collegial relationship that has made the progress of this hearing very efficient and pleasant. Thank you. Thank you. So have we got questions up here?
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	imbedded cost of the system. Thus, FERC's initial higher up policy was designed to ensure that existing and growing need of load was protected while the wholesale market developed, allowing new customers to interconnect through the existing transmission network that was predominantly funded by existing native load. In a policy statement in the mid 1990s, FERC stated that one of the goals of its new pricing policy was to hold native load customers harmless". So we submit that the FERC policy would be one option for the Board to consider in designing a transmission – approving of a	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	CHAIRMAN: Q.	rate be only provisional, and that Hydro's amendment to its transmission rate that it is proposing to make some time in January, 2016, also be only approved provisionally until there is fuller information on the impacts of a transmission rate on existing customers. So those are Innu Nation's submission on this issue, and I'd like to conclude by thanking the Board and all counsel for a very collegial relationship that has made the progress of this hearing very efficient and pleasant. Thank you. Thank you. So have we got questions up here? Do I go here or go to you? I thought you
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	imbedded cost of the system. Thus, FERC's initial higher up policy was designed to ensure that existing and growing need of load was protected while the wholesale market developed, allowing new customers to interconnect through the existing transmission network that was predominantly funded by existing native load. In a policy statement in the mid 1990s, FERC stated that one of the goals of its new pricing policy was to hold native load customers harmless". So we submit that the FERC policy would be one option for the Board to consider in	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	CHAIRMAN: Q.	rate be only provisional, and that Hydro's amendment to its transmission rate that it is proposing to make some time in January, 2016, also be only approved provisionally until there is fuller information on the impacts of a transmission rate on existing customers. So those are Innu Nation's submission on this issue, and I'd like to conclude by thanking the Board and all counsel for a very collegial relationship that has made the progress of this hearing very efficient and pleasant. Thank you. Thank you. So have we got questions up here?
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15	imbedded cost of the system. Thus, FERC's initial higher up policy was designed to ensure that existing and growing need of load was protected while the wholesale market developed, allowing new customers to interconnect through the existing transmission network that was predominantly funded by existing native load. In a policy statement in the mid 1990s, FERC stated that one of the goals of its new pricing policy was to hold native load customers harmless". So we submit that the FERC policy would be one option for the Board to consider in designing a transmission – approving of a	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15	CHAIRMAN: Q.	rate be only provisional, and that Hydro's amendment to its transmission rate that it is proposing to make some time in January, 2016, also be only approved provisionally until there is fuller information on the impacts of a transmission rate on existing customers. So those are Innu Nation's submission on this issue, and I'd like to conclude by thanking the Board and all counsel for a very collegial relationship that has made the progress of this hearing very efficient and pleasant. Thank you. Thank you. So have we got questions up here? Do I go here or go to you? I thought you had the last kick at the cat.
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	imbedded cost of the system. Thus, FERC's initial higher up policy was designed to ensure that existing and growing need of load was protected while the wholesale market developed, allowing new customers to interconnect through the existing transmission network that was predominantly funded by existing native load. In a policy statement in the mid 1990s, FERC stated that one of the goals of its new pricing policy was to hold native load customers harmless". So we submit that the FERC policy would be one option for the Board to consider in designing a transmission – approving of a transmission rate designed by Hydro in the	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	CHAIRMAN: Q.	rate be only provisional, and that Hydro's amendment to its transmission rate that it is proposing to make some time in January, 2016, also be only approved provisionally until there is fuller information on the impacts of a transmission rate on existing customers. So those are Innu Nation's submission on this issue, and I'd like to conclude by thanking the Board and all counsel for a very collegial relationship that has made the progress of this hearing very efficient and pleasant. Thank you. Thank you. So have we got questions up here? Do I go here or go to you? I thought you had the last kick at the cat.
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	imbedded cost of the system. Thus, FERC's initial higher up policy was designed to ensure that existing and growing need of load was protected while the wholesale market developed, allowing new customers to interconnect through the existing transmission network that was predominantly funded by existing native load. In a policy statement in the mid 1990s, FERC stated that one of the goals of its new pricing policy was to hold native load customers harmless". So we submit that the FERC policy would be one option for the Board to consider in designing a transmission – approving of a transmission rate designed by Hydro in the Labrador system, but prior to that, prior to	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	CHAIRMAN: Q. MR. YOUNG: Q.	rate be only provisional, and that Hydro's amendment to its transmission rate that it is proposing to make some time in January, 2016, also be only approved provisionally until there is fuller information on the impacts of a transmission rate on existing customers. So those are Innu Nation's submission on this issue, and I'd like to conclude by thanking the Board and all counsel for a very collegial relationship that has made the progress of this hearing very efficient and pleasant. Thank you. Thank you. So have we got questions up here? Do I go here or go to you? I thought you had the last kick at the cat.
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	 imbedded cost of the system. Thus, FERC's initial higher up policy was designed to ensure that existing and growing need of load was protected while the wholesale market developed, allowing new customers to interconnect through the existing transmission network that was predominantly funded by existing native load. In a policy statement in the mid 1990s, FERC stated that one of the goals of its new pricing policy was to hold native load customers harmless". So we submit that the FERC policy would be one option for the Board to consider in designing a transmission – approving of a transmission rate designed by Hydro in the Labrador system, but prior to that, prior to approving of a transmission rate generally, 	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	CHAIRMAN: Q. MR. YOUNG: Q.	rate be only provisional, and that Hydro's amendment to its transmission rate that it is proposing to make some time in January, 2016, also be only approved provisionally until there is fuller information on the impacts of a transmission rate on existing customers. So those are Innu Nation's submission on this issue, and I'd like to conclude by thanking the Board and all counsel for a very collegial relationship that has made the progress of this hearing very efficient and pleasant. Thank you. Thank you. So have we got questions up here? Do I go here or go to you? I thought you had the last kick at the cat.
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	 imbedded cost of the system. Thus, FERC's initial higher up policy was designed to ensure that existing and growing need of load was protected while the wholesale market developed, allowing new customers to interconnect through the existing transmission network that was predominantly funded by existing native load. In a policy statement in the mid 1990s, FERC stated that one of the goals of its new pricing policy was to hold native load customers harmless". So we submit that the FERC policy would be one option for the Board to consider in designing a transmission – approving of a transmission rate designed by Hydro in the Labrador system, but prior to that, prior to approving of a transmission rate that Hydro is 	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	CHAIRMAN: Q. MR. YOUNG: Q.	rate be only provisional, and that Hydro's amendment to its transmission rate that it is proposing to make some time in January, 2016, also be only approved provisionally until there is fuller information on the impacts of a transmission rate on existing customers. So those are Innu Nation's submission on this issue, and I'd like to conclude by thanking the Board and all counsel for a very collegial relationship that has made the progress of this hearing very efficient and pleasant. Thank you. Thank you. So have we got questions up here? Do I go here or go to you? I thought you had the last kick at the cat. We normally would. Mr. Chair, I wonder if we could have a brief, and I mean a brief
$ \begin{array}{c} 2\\3\\4\\5\\6\\7\\8\\9\\10\\11\\12\\13\\14\\15\\16\\17\\18\\19\\20\end{array} $	imbedded cost of the system. Thus, FERC's initial higher up policy was designed to ensure that existing and growing need of load was protected while the wholesale market developed, allowing new customers to interconnect through the existing transmission network that was predominantly funded by existing native load. In a policy statement in the mid 1990s, FERC stated that one of the goals of its new pricing policy was to hold native load customers harmless". So we submit that the FERC policy would be one option for the Board to consider in designing a transmission – approving of a transmission rate designed by Hydro in the Labrador system, but prior to that, prior to approving of a transmission rate generally, we submit that this rate that Hydro is applying for currently is too incomplete to	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	CHAIRMAN: Q. MR. YOUNG: Q.	rate be only provisional, and that Hydro's amendment to its transmission rate that it is proposing to make some time in January, 2016, also be only approved provisionally until there is fuller information on the impacts of a transmission rate on existing customers. So those are Innu Nation's submission on this issue, and I'd like to conclude by thanking the Board and all counsel for a very collegial relationship that has made the progress of this hearing very efficient and pleasant. Thank you. Thank you. So have we got questions up here? Do I go here or go to you? I thought you had the last kick at the cat. We normally would. Mr. Chair, I wonder if we could have a brief, and I mean a brief moment to speak about the matters that have
$ \begin{array}{c} 2\\3\\4\\5\\6\\7\\8\\9\\10\\11\\12\\13\\14\\15\\16\\17\\18\\19\\20\\21\end{array} $	imbedded cost of the system. Thus, FERC's initial higher up policy was designed to ensure that existing and growing need of load was protected while the wholesale market developed, allowing new customers to interconnect through the existing transmission network that was predominantly funded by existing native load. In a policy statement in the mid 1990s, FERC stated that one of the goals of its new pricing policy was to hold native load customers harmless". So we submit that the FERC policy would be one option for the Board to consider in designing a transmission – approving of a transmission rate designed by Hydro in the Labrador system, but prior to that, prior to approving of a transmission rate generally, we submit that this rate that Hydro is applying for currently is too incomplete to be approved of, except for on only a	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	CHAIRMAN: Q. MR. YOUNG: Q.	rate be only provisional, and that Hydro's amendment to its transmission rate that it is proposing to make some time in January, 2016, also be only approved provisionally until there is fuller information on the impacts of a transmission rate on existing customers. So those are Innu Nation's submission on this issue, and I'd like to conclude by thanking the Board and all counsel for a very collegial relationship that has made the progress of this hearing very efficient and pleasant. Thank you. Thank you. So have we got questions up here? Do I go here or go to you? I thought you had the last kick at the cat. We normally would. Mr. Chair, I wonder if we could have a brief, and I mean a brief moment to speak about the matters that have been raised before I give what I think is
$ \begin{array}{c} 2\\3\\4\\5\\6\\7\\8\\9\\10\\11\\12\\13\\14\\15\\16\\17\\18\\19\\20\\21\\22\end{array} \end{array} $	imbedded cost of the system. Thus, FERC's initial higher up policy was designed to ensure that existing and growing need of load was protected while the wholesale market developed, allowing new customers to interconnect through the existing transmission network that was predominantly funded by existing native load. In a policy statement in the mid 1990s, FERC stated that one of the goals of its new pricing policy was to hold native load customers harmless". So we submit that the FERC policy would be one option for the Board to consider in designing a transmission – approving of a transmission rate designed by Hydro in the Labrador system, but prior to that, prior to approving of a transmission rate generally, we submit that this rate that Hydro is applying for currently is too incomplete to be approved of, except for on only a provisional basis. So what we would submit	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	CHAIRMAN: Q. MR. YOUNG: Q.	rate be only provisional, and that Hydro's amendment to its transmission rate that it is proposing to make some time in January, 2016, also be only approved provisionally until there is fuller information on the impacts of a transmission rate on existing customers. So those are Innu Nation's submission on this issue, and I'd like to conclude by thanking the Board and all counsel for a very collegial relationship that has made the progress of this hearing very efficient and pleasant. Thank you. Thank you. So have we got questions up here? Do I go here or go to you? I thought you had the last kick at the cat. We normally would. Mr. Chair, I wonder if we could have a brief, and I mean a brief moment to speak about the matters that have been raised before I give what I think is
$ \begin{array}{c} 2\\3\\4\\5\\6\\7\\8\\9\\10\\11\\12\\13\\14\\15\\16\\17\\18\\19\\20\\21\\22\\23\end{array} $	imbedded cost of the system. Thus, FERC's initial higher up policy was designed to ensure that existing and growing need of load was protected while the wholesale market developed, allowing new customers to interconnect through the existing transmission network that was predominantly funded by existing native load. In a policy statement in the mid 1990s, FERC stated that one of the goals of its new pricing policy was to hold native load customers harmless". So we submit that the FERC policy would be one option for the Board to consider in designing a transmission – approving of a transmission rate designed by Hydro in the Labrador system, but prior to that, prior to approving of a transmission rate generally, we submit that this rate that Hydro is applying for currently is too incomplete to be approved of, except for on only a provisional basis. So what we would submit is that the Board should order Hydro to	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	CHAIRMAN: Q. MR. YOUNG: Q. CHAIRMAN:	rate be only provisional, and that Hydro's amendment to its transmission rate that it is proposing to make some time in January, 2016, also be only approved provisionally until there is fuller information on the impacts of a transmission rate on existing customers. So those are Innu Nation's submission on this issue, and I'd like to conclude by thanking the Board and all counsel for a very collegial relationship that has made the progress of this hearing very efficient and pleasant. Thank you. Thank you. So have we got questions up here? Do I go here or go to you? I thought you had the last kick at the cat. We normally would. Mr. Chair, I wonder if we could have a brief, and I mean a brief moment to speak about the matters that have been raised before I give what I think is going to be a brief response.

		Page 133		Page 135
	CHAIRMAN	-		2014. Quite the contrary, it was the cost
$\begin{vmatrix} 1\\2 \end{vmatrix}$	Q.	I guess, I'm going to go to our	$\begin{vmatrix} 1\\2 \end{vmatrix}$	pressures emerging in 2014 that were
$\begin{vmatrix} 2\\ 3 \end{vmatrix}$	Q.	Commissioners. Oh, I'm sorry, you got	$\begin{vmatrix} 2\\ 3 \end{vmatrix}$	underlying Hydro's amendment. The amendment
4	MR. CASS:	something you want to say?	4	was discussed with parties at the time. If
5		We do Mr Chain thank you. I monore to	5	there was ever any suggestion that the
6	Q.	We do, Mr. Chair, thank you. I propose to	6	amendment would disentitle Hydro to relief
7		touch on a few areas in reply to the	7	in respect to 2014, Hydro would not have
8		submissions that the Board has heard from	8	done it, it would have proceeded with the
9		others. I will try to make this quick. The	9	back to back applications. Hydro's very
10		first thing that I wanted to do was to go	10	intent was to address these emerging cost
11		back to where I started with my initial	11	pressures in 2014. So with that background
12		submissions which was the statute. In fact,	12	and the circumstances of the case, I would
13		Mr. Coxworthy did that, so I don't need to	13	just like to move to my next point, which is
14		spend much time on it. As I was listening	14	what are the tools to deal with such
15		to the submissions of others, I heard	15	circumstances.
16		statements and I noted a number of	16	First I'd like to make the observation
17		statements that, in my view, are not in line	17	that I believe it can be fairly said that
18		with what the statute indicates. For	18	the circumstances of major rate cases tend
19		example, I heard a statement of rates must	19	to be different. We wouldn't all be here if
20		be set on a prospective basis. In my	20	the circumstances were the same. The cases
21		submission, Mr. Chair, while rates are set	21	tend to have their own circumstances, and
22		going forward, the statute is very clear	22	it's hard to find two cases that are exactly
23		that for the purposes of setting those	23	the same on their circumstances. In my
24		rates, forecast costs are to be used where	24	submission, though, the tools $-$ if I can use
25		practicable. The fact that they're to be	25	the word "tools", regulatory tools are more
1		Page 134	1	Page 136
$\begin{vmatrix} 1 \\ 2 \end{vmatrix}$		used where practicable in itself implies		or less the same in regulatory practice. It
$\begin{vmatrix} 2 \\ 2 \end{vmatrix}$		that where it's not practicable, that	$\begin{vmatrix} 2 \\ 2 \end{vmatrix}$	might be more accurate to talk about what's
3		forecast costs don't necessarily have to be	3	in the Board's jurisdiction to do, but I'll
		used. So against that background of what	4	just use the word "tools". So given the
5		the statute says, and again I reiterate that it makes clear that it can be one or more	5	circumstances that I've described that Hydro
6			6	had this application with a 2013 test year, based on government directive, and emerging
		years of costs that the Board can look at,	0	
8 9		I'd like to take that then and put it into the context of the circumstances of this	8	cost pressures in 2014, does that mean that
			9 10	Hydro was just out of luck when 2014 came around, or is there jurisdiction in the
10 11		case. As the Board knows, Hydro made a filing in 2013 for a 2013 test year to give	10	5
11			11	Board, are there regulatory tools that would
12		effect to rates as of January 1st, 2014.	12	allow the Board to address that by way of
13		Hydro's witnesses explained during the	13	Hydro coming forward with its costs for 2014 and 2015. My submission is that there are
14		testimony, the oral testimony, that costs emerged starting in 2014 put pressure on	14	and 2015. My submission is that there are tools available to the Board. It's up to
15			15	the Board to decide whether the costs are
17		Hydro that it could not accommodate within the filing. The witnesses indicated that	17	
18		•	18	justified and so on, but it's a matter of
18		Hydro considered should it have back to back applications or perhaps even back, to back,	18	jurisdiction there are tools available to the Board. I apologize for saying it so
$\begin{vmatrix} 19 \\ 20 \end{vmatrix}$		to back applications, or should it amend.	20	many times, the statute does not require
20		Hydro chose the latter course of action, it	20	forecast costs where it's not practicable.
$\begin{vmatrix} 21\\22 \end{vmatrix}$			$21 \\ 22$	The Board can look at costs other than
22		chose to amend. The important thing I would like to stress here. Mr. Chair, is we heard	22	
23		like to stress here, Mr. Chair, is we heard the word "abandonment" or "abandoned".	23	forecast costs. Second, rates are interim in this case and have been interim and the
			1	in this case and have been interim, and the authorities are clear about the inriduction
25		Hydro did not abandon anything in respect of	25	authorities are clear about the jurisdiction

	Page 137		Page 139
1	that that gives a regulator to make a final	1	and to put it into a special category. In
2	determination as to the merits of cost and	2	my submission, Mr. Chair, and panel members,
3	then do something that might otherwise	3	there is only one general rate application
4	appear to be retrospective, but to use the	4	here and it always has been only one general
5	interim rates as a basis to implement its	5	rate application. Yes, it was amended, but
6	final determination on the merits, and	6	it is a general rate application first filed
7	deferral accounts are a similar sort of	7	in 2013. It's not like one piece of this is
8	tool. As I mentioned in my initial	8	not a general rate application, it's all the
9	submissions, the decision of the Court of	9	general rate application. Thank you for
10	Appeal in the 2012 case refers to both of	10	your patience.
11	these as being tools that are widely used	11	CHAIRMAN:
12	and that do not give rise to the usual	12	Q. Mr. Young.
13	concerns about retroactivity or	13	MR. YOUNG:
14	retrospectivity. Mr. Coxworthy has also	14	Q. Thank you, Mr. Chair. I just want to deal
15	pointed out that in addition to those tools	15	with two matters. The first matter is Mr.
16	the state cases confirms the Board's broad	16	Luk's comment about the Labrador
17	discretion and large jurisdiction in the	17	transmission rate and he's pointed out
18	choice of methodologies and approaches to be	18	something which I think we would
19	adopted to achieve the purposes of the	19	acknowledge, that the nature of the rate is
20	statute. In my submission, in the	20	perhaps too simplistic and doesn't consider
20	circumstances that Hydro found itself in	20	some of the factors and some of the
21	2014, there are and continue to be tools for	21	considerations that may be upon us in the
22	the Board to address those.	22	future, and I say that may be upon us in the
23	Just a couple of other points before I	23	future, and i say that may be upon us in the future because the circumstance of costs in
25	finish, and Mr. Young would like to add	25	the Labrador transmission system at present
	Page 138		Page 140
1	something as well, I think, but it will be	1	are fairly linear and fairly simple, and the
2	very brief. Mr. Johnson asked for a request	2	way we have proposed to deal with them even
3	to comment on the regulatory decisions that	3	though we are going to make a filing in the
4	were brought forward. Of course, it's	4	near future, I'm not sure it's going to be
5	helpful to the Board and there's no	5	there by the end of the month, but it's
6	objection to it, I just wanted to explain	6	going to be there soon, to make a slight
7	the regulatory cases were brought forward	7	change to it, but we are alive to the points
8	largely because the Board had asked in its	8	that Mr. Luk raises, and as our facts
9	questions – a number of its questions talked	9	change, we will be having to look at those
10	about regulatory practice and also seemed to	10	issues and consider whether or not some of
11	touch on use of actual costs when costs are	11	the principles he's referred to have to be
12	presented on a forecast basis, but then	12	incorporated. I think it's just premature,
13	actual costs become available. The cases	13	but we don't disagree in principle with the
14	were put forward as an attempt to respond to	14	nature of the issues he's raised, and, in
15	the Board's request for regulatory practice	15	fact, we look forward to dealing with Mr.
16	to look at. Hydro's real emphasis, though,	16	Luk and other customer groups in the
17	is not on that. It's on these tools that	17	Labrador Interconnected System when that
18	I've described to you, and I don't need to	18	time comes, and I do expect that time will
19	repeat those submissions. The real emphasis	19	come in the next few years because things
20	is does the Board have the tools, and in my	20	will obviously become more complex in that
21	submission, yes, it does, and they're the	21	regard as the system changes. The only
22	ones that I've described. Finally, with	22	other thing I would like to say, Mr. Chair,
23	respect to the Order in Council, there's	23	is really to reiterate some of the comments
24	been an attempt to split out 2014 and say,	24	my learned friends have mentioned; it's been
25	well, that's not a general rate application,	25	a long hearing, we very much appreciate

	Page 141		Page 143
$ _1$	everyone's patience, we very much appreciate	1	MS. NEWMAN:
2	the fact that throughout everyone has been	2	Q. Thank you very much.
$\begin{vmatrix} 2\\ 3 \end{vmatrix}$	courteous, the Board, the Board staff, all		VICE-CHAIR WHALEN:
4	the people representing all the customers,	4	Q. I didn't think I had a question, but now I'm
5	completely professional, and that's not easy	5	not sure.
6	when you're on such a long voyage to stay as	6	MR. CASS:
7	friendly and as sensible as we all have		Q. Did I make that very confusing? I'm sorry.
8	been. I would like to extend out	8	I didn't intend to make that confusing.
9	appreciation on that point.	9	VICE-CHAIR WHALEN:
10	CHAIRMAN:	10	Q. I think the record is $-$ I think it will be
11	Q. A measure of great commonsense, you're	11	fine. Thank you, it's been very helpful.
12	saying. We got some questions up here now.	12	CHAIRMAN:
13	MS. NEWMAN:	13	Q. I think I can say with some confidence that
14	Q. I have one question of Hydro. I wondered if	14	we may be at the end of the road. I think
15	you could clarify your position on the	15	we've pretty well canvassed everything, so I
16	impact of the Order in Council as it relates	16	thank everybody, and although I always
17	to the rate of return of Hydro in each of	17	remember what Dan Quail said that the
18	the three years for 2014, 2015, and 2016, in	18	universe is almost infinite, this may go on
19	terms of if the Board decides that some of	19	forever, but we don't know, we'll see.
20	the expenses haven't been justified as being	20	Thank you, everybody. Mr. Johnson.
21	fully reasonable or prudent and decides that	21	JOHNSON, Q.C.:
22	they should be reduced, this may impact the	22	Q. Yes, just on my point –
23	ultimate return enjoyed by Hydro for each of	23	CHAIRMAN:
24	those years, and whether Hydro believes the	24	Q. Yes, that will be attended to. I think
25	Board doesn't have that jurisdiction because	25	everybody has agreed that the matter you
_	Page 142		Page 144
1	of the OC or for some other reason?	1	raised would be addressed, and you lawyers
2	MR. CASS:	2	can get together and talk about that. It
3	Q. Ms. Newman, if I could address it in this	3	has been an interesting prospective. The
4	way. In my mind, the Board's consideration	4	prospect of a decision is – I don't know
5	of whether expenses can or should be	5	where you came up with practicable, but I
6	disallowed is separate from the opportunity	6	assume it's an adverb, is it.
7	to earn a fair return issue. If the Board	7	MR. CASS:
8	decides on the evidence before it that	8	Q. That's my best effort to pronounce what's in
9	certain expenses are not reasonable and	9	the statute.
10	should be disallowed, that does not go to	10	CHAIRMAN:
11	the return. Where there was some issue	11	Q. Thank you.
12	about the return, there were some	12	Upon conclusion at 1:05 p.m.
13	suggestions actually take money out of the	13	-
14	return, for example, to fund the rural	14	
15	deficit, that I would say is quite	15	
16	different. If the suggestion is, oh, you	16	
17	can take money out of the return to do this,	17	
18	I'd suggest that that is something that	18	
19	cannot be done. That is essentially	19	
20	indirectly not approving the return by	20	
21	deducting from it, but, no, the potential	21	
22	disallowance of expenses that are not	22	
23	reasonable or prudent does not say that	23	
24	there's not an opportunity to earn the	24	
100	return.	25	
25			

CERTIFICATE	
I, Judy Moss, hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct transcript of the Newfoundland and Labrador Hydro General Rate Application, heard on the 25th of January, A.D., 2016 before the Newfoundland and Labrador Board of Commissioners of Public Utilities, 120 Torbay Road, St. John's, Newfoundland and Labrador and was transcribed by me to the best of my ability by means of a sound apparatus.	
Dated at St. John's, Newfoundland and Labrador this 1st day of February, A.D., 2016	
Judy Moss	

	46:21, 51:14	93:24, 97:10, 98:1,	134:22	58:13, 83:11, 83:25,
Α	Act - 4:13, 6:16, 19:8,	104:21, 110:1, 115:10,	Amended - 56:10,	94:25, 110:6, 113:18,
Abandon - 58:18,		116:15, 118:15	-	
66:11, 74:14, 134:25	29:11, 34:2, 88:16,	Advocate's - 99:16	61:23, 72:19, 106:22, 125:8, 139:5	121:13, 121:23, 122:14
Abandoned - 134:24	93:19, 93:22, 93:23,			
Abandonment -	95:20, 101:24, 102:2,	Affects - 95:22	Amendment - 132:2,	Applying - 125:21,
134:24	102:5, 103:18, 105:9,	Affiliates - 98:15,	135:3, 135:6	125:25, 128:1, 130:20
Ability - 96:3, 105:5	110:10, 110:16	99:18	America - 46:21,	Appreciate - 140:25,
Able - 12:12, 20:21,	Action - 42:25,	Afternoon - 79:2,	46:22	141:1
31:5, 59:19, 73:14	103:13, 134:21	125:14	Among - 4:22, 81:4,	Appreciation - 141:9
Above - 30:5, 39:5,	Actions - 21:2, 26:24,	Against - 28:16,	128:17	Approach - 14:21,
63:9, 74:18	28:23, 31:24, 58:4,	38:25, 39:19, 100:3,	Amongst - 100:4	44:2, 44:3, 44:23,
Absolute - 112:3,	88:7, 96:25	101:22, 102:14,	Amount - 45:11, 58:2,	81:18, 85:14, 87:11,
112:13, 115:19	Actuals - 35:12,	110:17, 112:9, 134:4	59:17, 59:20, 60:2,	93:18, 96:10
Accept - 17:24,	60:20, 64:24, 67:3,	Age - 81:14	60:4, 60:6, 60:21,	Approaches - 103:6,
37:10, 37:13, 90:20,	76:18, 83:12, 86:4	Agree - 29:9, 36:4,	60:23, 61:9, 75:2,	137:18
107:24	Add - 137:25	44:19, 47:22, 48:11,	79:7, 126:18	Appropriateness -
Acceptable - 43:13,	Addition - 30:17,	78:12, 109:13, 110:1,	Amounts - 61:4	52:19, 53:2, 53:12
86:2, 86:14, 131:8	64:11, 70:16, 137:15	116:13, 116:21, 119:5,	Ample - 19:25, 22:18,	Approval - 13:10,
Acceptance - 31:19	Addressed - 6:6,	123:13	54:4	71:3, 125:20, 131:12,
Accepting - 62:23	111:15, 111:17, 144:1	Agreed - 34:12,	Analogy - 102:10	131:25
Access - 129:15	Addresses - 18:4	62:16, 68:13, 143:25	Analyses - 37:21	Approve - 13:15,
Accommodate -	Addressing - 9:23,	Agreement - 65:17,	Analysis - 38:4, 47:9,	13:16, 67:11, 94:15,
134:16	10:8, 24:12, 42:11,	65:18, 81:14, 116:3	48:10	131:9
Accommodation -	42:16, 91:11, 105:18	Agreements - 116:2	Annual - 5:11, 5:13,	Approved - 71:8,
66:20	Adequate - 54:24,	Agrees - 33:23, 36:5	5:16, 5:17, 5:25, 6:1,	75:4, 86:7, 93:17,
Accord - 59:11	88:20	Albeit - 61:21, 72:11	6:22, 6:23, 51:1	130:21, 132:4
Accordance - 13:2,	Adhere - 86:20	Alberta - 12:17,	Annually - 88:12, 105:11	Approves - 131:2
87:16, 109:14	Adjust - 46:3, 69:12, 104:9	64:13, 120:14,		Approving - 130:15,
Accorded - 20:19		120:15, 121:9,	Anticipated - 7:13	130:18, 142:20
According - 126:17	Adjusted - 17:23,	122:15, 122:25	Apologize - 136:19	Area - 22:22, 31:11,
Accordingly - 70:8	48:15, 50:17, 55:7, 69:3, 69:5, 81:11,	Align - 100:19 Alignment - 99:25,	Appeal - 7:18, 8:2, 20:14, 20:17, 41:4,	31:14, 78:22 Areas - 27:24, 133:7
Accords - 57:5, 87:5	96:2, 119:11, 119:14	124:4	95:8, 98:23, 101:22,	Argued - 77:24
Account - 12:8,	Adjusting - 54:19	Alive - 140:7	102:22, 107:13,	Argument - 40:8,
12:12, 21:8, 25:25,	Adjustments - 38:25,	Alleged - 58:7	137:10	77:17, 85:18, 87:22,
28:12, 59:15, 62:8,	40:17, 40:20, 40:22,	Allocated - 97:17,	Appeal's - 7:23	107:18
111:6, 112:18, 127:1,	53:4, 60:17, 61:6,	97:19	Appear - 3:23, 75:16,	Arguments - 17:11
128:3, 131:19	61:8, 61:12, 63:12,	Allocation - 45:4	137:4	Arise - 27:3, 115:16
Accountability -	63:16, 63:20, 81:20,	Allow - 7:25, 8:20,	Appearing - 11:19	Arises - 5:9, 126:19
28:12, 85:16, 86:18,	92:4, 113:6, 113:14	8:21, 33:9, 51:23,	Appears - 37:2,	Arising - 31:24,
89:11	Adjusts - 17:22	84:24, 89:18, 89:22,	39:24, 50:24, 64:25,	115:19, 127:24
Accounts - 7:15,	Admits - 56:8	136:12	71:15	Arrangements -
7:24, 19:5, 137:7	Adopt - 18:7, 107:3,	Allowable - 26:8,	Appendix - 129:7	28:11
Accurate - 136:2	113:25	38:3, 38:10, 42:12,	Applicability - 38:13	Aspects - 32:13,
Achieve - 54:20,	Adopted - 18:12,	42:16, 79:24	Applicable - 43:6,	36:11, 39:4
103:7, 103:20, 109:4,	20:10, 103:7, 118:14,	Allowance - 29:6,	47:25, 48:14, 67:16,	Assertion - 38:20,
131:23, 137:19	123:1, 137:19	49:9, 50:17, 75:25	67:19, 87:2, 94:1,	70:5, 78:19
Achieving - 22:19	Adopting - 114:24,	Allowances - 39:23	99:10, 107:15	Assess - 14:5,
Acknowledge - 75:6,	121:18	Allowed - 35:21,	Applicant - 11:14,	131:22
139:19	Adopts - 123:14	37:6, 40:4, 55:2,	121:14	Assessing - 14:11,
Acknowledged -	Advance - 54:2,	57:12, 62:1, 79:14,	Applied - 4:21, 16:12,	14:17
31:16, 31:20, 69:6,	89:10, 89:13, 90:10,	80:17, 81:9, 83:13,	53:21, 73:16, 91:7,	Assessment - 14:12
92:10, 128:7	101:25	84:23, 85:11, 105:25	94:24, 111:11, 117:25,	Asset - 33:8
Acknowledgement -	Adverb - 144:6	Allowing - 70:16,	127:23, 128:6, 131:9	Assets - 70:17,
128:5	Adverse - 27:8	90:4, 130:6	Applies - 37:12,	126:21, 126:22
Acknowledging -	Advisable - 100:17	Alone - 57:3	92:19, 121:14	Assign - 47:7
127:21	Advocate - 2:5, 47:2,	Amend - 134:20,	Apply - 37:13, 57:1,	Assigned - 43:18,
Across - 44:15,				

				<u>.</u>
		00.40,000,000 -	70.00 70.05 74.0	O haan 7 4.44
44:12, 45:4, 45:20,	В	92:18, 98:6, 99:7,	70:22, 70:25, 71:3,	Chose - 74:14,
45:25	B11 - 40:14	121:1, 125:18,	127:2	134:21, 134:22
Assignment - 44:14	B13 - 40:7	132:19, 132:22, 138:2	Capture - 125:23	Circumstance -
Assistance - 66:18	Back - 13:11, 15:17,	Briefs - 78:20	Careful - 103:16	108:11, 139:24
Assisted - 22:18	73:21, 73:22, 84:15,	Brings - 22:21	Carries - 21:22	Circumstances -
Associated - 26:16	86:10, 92:22, 98:17,	Broad - 19:2, 19:12,	Carrying - 56:25	9:18, 11:6, 12:15,
Assumed - 68:7	107:12, 110:8, 117:20,	21:17, 103:4, 108:17,	Cases - 7:20, 7:22,	25:24, 57:14, 109:19,
Assure - 58:9	126:8, 133:11,	137:16	9:20, 51:11, 56:5,	110:6, 111:2, 112:11,
ATCO - 120:17,	134:18, 134:19,	Broader - 103:19	56:6, 79:23, 81:25,	134:9, 135:12,
120:24	134:20, 135:9	Brockman - 43:20,	82:1, 84:4, 95:24,	135:15, 135:18,
Attempt - 138:14,	Background - 28:16,	44:5, 44:13, 44:17,	135:18, 135:20,	135:20, 135:21,
138:24	134:4, 135:11	44:20, 44:22, 45:12,	135:22, 137:16,	135:23, 136:5, 137:21
Attended - 143:24	Balance - 22:15,	45:22, 46:2, 46:5,	138:7, 138:13	Cite - 41:5
Attention - 127:8	36:14, 41:7, 41:11	46:14, 46:16, 47:11,	Cass - 3:11, 3:12,	Cited - 70:14
AUC - 64:13, 64:20,	Balanced - 102:14,	47:14, 47:17, 47:20,	25:8, 26:9, 29:10,	Claiming - 85:20
64:25		48:9, 48:18, 48:25	51:12, 62:22, 72:1,	Clarify - 43:15,
Audit - 35:5, 52:1,	110:16 Balances - 23:7	Brockman's - 44:25,	113:23, 114:2, 133:5,	141:15
52:15, 54:4, 80:15	Balancing - 32:6,	45:9, 48:21	142:2, 143:6, 144:7	Clarity - 18:25, 19:21,
Audited - 34:23	32:7, 77:21, 110:12,	Brought - 72:18,	Cass' - 64:20	97:3, 98:19
Auditor - 53:1	110:20, 110:21	103:23, 116:3, 125:7,	Cat - 132:16	Close - 24:16
August - 11:22	Barrel - 23:12, 23:15,	138:4, 138:7	Categories - 62:19	Code - 99:17
Authorities - 3:14,	24:4	Budget - 70:2, 85:17,	Category - 112:21,	Coincident - 72:19
4:16, 6:4, 7:1, 7:9,	Basic - 64:2, 76:8,	89:12, 90:10	118:23, 139:1	Colleague - 2:6
9:21, 19:9, 20:9,	84:18	Bunker - 23:13	Causation - 125:24	Collected - 30:15,
21:16, 50:22, 50:25,	Bathtub - 47:23	Burden - 34:4, 34:13,	Cause - 127:16	51:25, 90:16, 124:7
52:12, 64:4, 64:7,	Bear - 27:9, 34:10,	58:12, 126:13	Caused - 128:20	Collegial - 132:10
79:5, 87:2, 101:13,	115:23	Burdening - 97:12	CEO - 30:24	Combination - 56:23,
136:25	Bearing - 73:2,	Burn - 76:14	Certain - 4:20, 31:15,	60:19, 67:3
Authority - 21:20,	110:21	Business - 21:12,	34:6, 70:1, 80:18,	Come - 6:12, 8:13,
55:15, 101:16, 116:16	Bears - 57:4, 87:4	21:22, 95:9, 97:15	97:5, 98:3, 117:5,	15:5, 23:23, 54:6,
Authorized - 122:17	Beasts - 57:11	Businesses - 98:4	121:15, 142:9	55:9, 62:5, 84:15,
Automatic - 70:20,	Become - 4:2, 6:11,	С	Change - 17:4, 22:9,	86:9, 108:19, 117:20,
93:9, 96:8, 113:21,	7:4, 7:12, 9:2, 14:14,		47:6, 72:10, 73:15,	124:21, 140:19 Comes - 12:5, 73:6,
114:24, 115:7, 116:9	138:13, 140:20	C15 - 63:15	73:16, 73:20, 73:22, 74:4, 75:18, 81:12,	
Automatically - 17:22	Becomes - 73:3	C20 - 63:14		119:15, 140:18 Coming - 10:10,
Available - 11:7,	Behind - 30:17	C22 - 49:10	95:19, 96:7, 105:18, 114:4, 114:24, 114:25,	12:13, 119:22,
13:13, 14:13, 14:15,	Belabour - 120:2	C34 - 63:15	140:7, 140:9	131:13, 136:13
14:24, 52:24, 80:12,	Believes - 23:17,	Calculated - 37:10,	Changed - 71:15,	Commence - 16:21,
104:14, 105:1, 105:5,	141:24	66:24, 93:8	96:10	67:13, 77:8, 125:4
112:7, 112:17, 112:19,	Bit - 26:1, 28:2,	Calculating - 66:22,	Changes - 45:3, 55:8,	Commences - 124:18
114:18, 117:21,	48:20, 61:15, 83:18	93:4, 107:9	81:12, 92:13, 95:24,	Commencing -
117:23, 136:15,	Blinders - 103:17	Call - 45:20	111:7, 114:19, 140:21	16:21, 16:25, 17:3,
136:18, 138:13	Blundon - 3:2	Called - 10:12, 43:20,	Changing - 22:9	17:5, 17:6, 93:1,
Average - 68:20,	Boards - 9:23, 20:23	43:25, 44:4, 44:5,	Chapter - 30:10	107:4
69:2, 71:4, 71:12	Booklet - 7:10, 7:19	56:20, 60:19, 97:10,	Charge - 98:2, 98:15,	Commensurate -
Avoided - 113:6	Books - 80:15	98:1	117:2	74:12
Award - 120:3,	Both - 7:16, 8:7, 11:9,	Calls - 84:10	Charged - 4:23,	Comment - 24:23,
120:16, 122:2	28:12, 32:10, 33:2,	Canada - 7:21, 38:21,	27:22, 43:18, 118:12	32:17, 49:6, 79:8,
Awarded - 39:19,	56:5, 56:23, 75:16,	51:14, 93:10	Charges - 44:12,	92:19, 138:3, 139:16
120:9, 120:12	123:22, 124:24,	Canadian - 6:17, 6:18	45:4, 94:7, 97:6,	Commentary - 32:5
Awarding - 122:18,	128:21, 137:10	Can't - 26:22, 29:10,	97:10, 104:16	Comments - 3:25,
122:25	Bound - 58:13	42:19, 43:11, 51:19,	Cheryl - 3:2	13:25, 20:18, 24:25,
Aware - 27:18, 44:5,	Brand - 48:5	102:11, 108:25,	Choice - 74:5, 74:20,	32:9, 33:1, 38:15,
46:14, 48:12, 48:13,	Break - 77:3	109:1, 116:19, 123:21	103:6, 137:18	64:3, 64:10, 64:18,
52:4, 65:5	Brevity - 100:19	Canvassed - 143:15	Choices - 32:23	64:20, 68:4, 76:4,
	Brief - 54:13, 64:8,	Cap - 62:23 Capital - 54:25,	Choosing - 121:5	80:5, 91:3, 91:10,
	77:21, 78:20, 79:7,	Jupital - 04.20,		

		[· · ·
100:23, 125:9, 140:23	73:13, 108:19, 144:12	50:1	134:21, 138:4	140:15
Commission - 12:17,	Concur - 91:10,	Consumer - 2:5,	Court - 7:18, 7:21,	Deals - 13:20, 39:23,
	-	-		
13:3, 13:12, 13:15,	105:22	47:2, 66:15, 93:24,	7:22, 8:2, 20:14,	43:17, 43:19, 49:8,
14:1, 14:3, 14:7,	Concurrence - 80:9	97:10, 97:25, 99:16,	20:17, 21:6, 38:9,	52:18
14:11, 14:15, 80:9,	Conditions - 23:16,	104:21, 110:1, 116:15,	38:21, 41:4, 93:10,	Dealt - 67:2
80:14, 80:20, 80:23,	80:25	118:14	93:16, 95:8, 98:22,	Dean - 2:1, 44:10,
81:10, 84:23, 120:15	Conduct - 99:18,	Contains - 126:1,	101:21, 102:22,	47:3, 47:8, 48:19
Commissioner - 2:8	131:22	128:1	107:12, 137:9	Dean's - 44:2, 44:7,
Commissioners -	Confidence - 143:13	Contemplate - 21:1	Courteous - 141:3	44:22
2:4, 2:13, 24:11,	Confirmed - 20:8	Contemplated - 6:15	Cover - 54:22	Debt - 75:4
77:12, 123:2, 125:15,	Confirming - 66:3	Contemplates -	Covered - 13:9	Decide - 59:9, 136:16
126:7, 127:8, 133:3	Confirms - 7:23,	53:24	Coxworthy - 2:1,	Decided - 9:7, 13:7
Commissions -	137:16	Contend - 9:24	45:14, 46:23, 47:3,	Decides - 59:18,
81:11, 81:16	Conflict - 118:16	Contention - 27:3	47:12, 47:14, 47:18,	141:19, 141:21, 142:8
Commits - 89:13	Conflicts - 99:12	Contentious - 34:1	101:4, 133:13, 137:14	Decisions - 8:3,
Common - 97:18	Conform - 56:16,	Context - 10:10,	Create - 62:8	26:11, 26:16, 26:19,
Commonsense -	56:23	10:23, 33:14, 40:13,	Created - 8:19	26:21, 27:4, 27:5,
141:11	Conforming - 66:3	44:25, 80:6, 93:20,	Credit - 90:15, 110:7	27:7, 31:25, 32:22,
Company - 66:15,	Confusing - 143:7,	103:19, 103:21,	Credits - 90:24, 111:3	34:9, 59:9, 78:7, 79:8,
80:8, 89:14, 89:22,	143:8	107:1, 113:11, 134:9	Criteria - 113:18	138:3
97:6, 97:9	Connection - 52:10	Contextual - 73:12	CT - 68:10, 68:21,	Decline - 87:19
Company's - 55:7	Consecutive - 52:22	Continue - 81:6,	91:24, 92:7	Declined - 33:18
Competing - 21:8	Consequences -	129:19, 137:22	Culture - 31:18	Decrease - 23:16,
Complaint - 123:22	27:8, 27:10, 116:8	Continued - 74:8,	Current - 36:16,	50:4
Complete - 11:20,	Consideration - 5:5,	74:9	45:23, 83:22, 83:23,	Dedicated - 48:6
56:14, 59:3, 71:11,	6:10, 23:9, 94:5,	Continues - 88:14	84:1, 84:18, 85:1,	Deducted - 40:4, 61:4
80:12	104:14, 105:1, 142:4	Contrary - 22:17,	95:17, 97:4	Deducting - 142:21
Completed - 50:21,	Considerations -	135:1	Currently - 130:20	Deeply - 89:1
70:2	139:22	Control - 4:12, 6:16,	Curve - 47:23	Deferral - 7:15, 7:24,
Completely - 61:5,	Considered - 42:19,	31:1, 31:4, 78:17,	Customer - 2:2,	8:12, 25:25, 57:9,
141:5	58:15, 61:9, 102:13,	102:4, 110:10	27:20, 48:5, 87:1,	59:15, 62:1, 62:8,
Completion - 45:5	107:1, 115:13,	Controllable - 31:4	98:8, 116:24, 124:25,	111:6, 137:7
Complex - 140:20	122:23, 134:18	Controverted -	126:19, 127:2, 127:5,	Deferrals - 7:8, 8:6,
Compliance - 24:17,	Considering - 41:9,	127:13	128:24, 129:3, 129:4,	8:19, 8:23, 9:2, 9:8,
76:20, 76:24, 119:21	51:20, 101:15	Cooperation - 24:15	129:5, 129:6, 140:16	9:12, 15:18, 15:19,
Component - 44:1	Considers - 24:1	Core - 97:14	Customers' - 43:23	16:4, 57:12
Comprehensive -	Consistent - 6:17,	Corporate - 28:24,	Customer's - 110:17	Deferred - 45:5, 88:3
47:8, 47:15, 121:8	45:25, 46:6, 51:1,	29:8, 96:23, 116:11,	Cut - 96:3	Deficiencies - 8:17,
Conceded - 96:5	57:2, 78:19, 88:19,	116:17	Cutting - 32:21	8:22, 9:5, 15:21, 16:2,
Concept - 35:25,	102:6, 102:15, 104:18	Corporately - 76:3		16:8, 31:15, 55:22,
38:9, 50:20, 84:19,	Consistently - 6:19,	Corrective - 20:24,	D	64:15, 64:24, 65:23,
88:24	14:8	98:24		90:24, 97:9, 98:18
Conceptually - 85:7	Consisting - 52:23	Correctly - 62:22	D10 - 60:16	Deficit - 142:15
Concern - 3:21,	Constant - 81:7	Correspondence -	D21 - 60:14	Define - 51:20
10:20, 99:20, 106:8,	Constitute - 73:24	77:15	Dan - 143:17	Defining - 21:6, 54:17
116:6	Constituted - 59:13	Corresponding -	Data - 49:24, 50:3,	Definition - 52:7,
Concerns - 30:8,	Constrained - 28:25	78:2	52:24, 56:22, 66:20,	56:17, 79:17, 109:12
30:11, 31:16, 99:8,	Constraining -	Couldn't - 73:23,	66:21, 80:12, 81:11	Degree - 20:20
115:15, 137:13	114:16	86:11	Date - 14:9, 14:16,	Degree - 20.20 Delay - 62:2
Conclude - 22:11,	Constraint - 79:14	Counsel - 2:25, 3:1,	17:3, 23:18, 24:3,	Deliberations - 27:1,
122:10, 132:9	Constructive -	24:14, 78:10, 132:10	65:3, 81:24, 83:7,	37:3, 67:6, 104:6
Concludes - 12:1,	100:25	Couple - 10:6, 32:4,	83:15, 100:14	Delivery - 129:21
16:6	Consultant - 22:4,	52:12, 64:3, 137:24	Dawson - 2:18	Demand - 80:25,
Conclusion - 8:13,	49:14, 49:22, 50:9	Course - 3:20, 5:21,	De - 113:8	126:4, 126:9, 126:18,
8:18, 9:9, 9:10, 10:11,	Consultants - 71:10	5:25, 81:1, 83:7,	Deal - 76:23, 135:14,	126:25, 127:23,
12:2, 12:5, 12:13,	Consulted - 87:9	90:19, 101:21,	139:14, 140:2	128:2, 128:3
14:25, 15:22, 16:3,	Consulting - 31:17,	115:23, 124:11,	Dealing - 10:1, 39:21,	Demonstrated -
17.23, 13.22, 10.3,	Solisaling - 31.17,	110.20, 124.11,	64:15, 64:16, 91:24,	

			1	
105:13	122:20, 122:21,	Dollar - 54:24, 62:20,	46:7, 46:12	Essence - 126:9
Demonstrates - 22:1,	135:19, 142:16	63:17	Embedded - 45:6,	Essentially - 11:25,
89:15	Differentiate - 79:21	Dollars - 55:1, 61:7,	89:2	37:23, 45:1, 51:18,
Denis - 2:9	Difficult - 32:18, 58:1,	62:18	Emerged - 134:15	66:12, 76:11, 76:15,
Denying - 88:9, 88:11	64:9, 80:22, 88:2	Dominate - 102:10	Emerging - 135:2,	142:19
Depart - 69:7, 69:20	Diluted - 99:22	Door - 90:3	135:10, 136:7	Establish - 42:8,
Department - 94:21	Directed - 31:6, 64:5,	Dramatically - 78:14	Emphasis - 79:5,	53:16, 60:13, 72:6,
Departure - 92:11	65:11, 65:19, 73:2,	Draw - 14:23, 127:7	138:16, 138:19	84:3, 109:15, 120:23
Dependent - 51:11,	74:3, 113:25, 120:10,	Drawing - 24:16	Emphasize - 22:15	Established - 4:24,
126:25	120:11	Drinking - 79:11	Employees - 97:16,	8:23, 16:4, 30:13,
Depreciation - 54:23	Direction - 102:18,	Due - 34:8, 49:13,	97:21, 97:24	95:13, 111:6
Deprived - 69:17	106:6, 109:7, 110:15,	61:22, 65:21, 74:17,	Employment - 97:22	Establishing - 53:17,
Derived - 55:5	117:4, 117:12, 118:24	81:16, 88:21, 122:24,	Empower - 15:19	53:20, 56:11, 57:4
Described - 41:3,	Directive - 17:14,	131:6	Endorsed - 85:25	Estimate - 55:5, 70:9,
136:5, 138:18, 138:22	42:7, 94:23, 136:7	Duties - 57:1	Energy - 13:5, 38:22,	80:21, 104:13
Deserve - 79:6	Disagree - 140:13	Duty - 89:18	42:15, 64:5, 65:11,	Estimated - 84:1
Design - 45:6, 128:18	Disallow - 35:18,	Dwell - 3:16	76:17	Estimates - 70:6
Designed - 94:8,	41:10		Enhanced - 32:15,	Estimating - 80:20
130:3, 130:16	Disallowance - 39:7,	E	36:12, 78:1	Evaluate - 60:2, 60:7,
Designing - 130:15	42:19, 142:22	Each - 13:17, 15:7,	Enjoyed - 141:23	60:8, 62:13
Determination - 8:10,	Disallowances -	16:2, 16:5, 16:8, 86:4,	Ensure - 19:22,	Evaluated - 59:22
8:16, 9:4, 9:6, 9:10,	36:9, 37:4, 38:2,	102:14, 124:3,	27:21, 96:11, 98:7,	Eve - 58:18
23:19, 41:20, 53:11,	38:25, 39:19, 39:22,	124:11, 141:17,	99:3, 129:13, 129:22,	Evening - 79:2
54:16, 62:9, 90:5,	41:16, 42:24, 43:12	141:23	130:4	Everybody - 143:16,
98:13, 137:2, 137:6	Disallowed - 142:6,	Earlier - 34:23	Ensuring - 88:19,	143:20, 143:25
Determinations -	142:10	Early - 48:3	115:25	Everybody's - 100:25
14:10	Disallowing - 41:12	Earn - 10:17, 10:21,	Entails - 129:10	Everyone - 117:23,
Determine - 35:22,	Disappear - 86:21	26:3, 26:6, 26:14,	Enter - 131:6	141:2
36:25, 39:14, 69:21,	Disclosed - 89:23	37:16, 37:18, 40:24,	Entered - 96:21	Everyone's - 141:1
71:12, 90:13, 90:21,	Discloses - 78:13	41:2, 69:18, 69:22,	Enterprise - 21:13	Everything - 23:23,
91:14, 110:5, 111:3,	Disclosing - 35:10	88:12, 95:12, 105:10,	Enters - 126:20	143:15
111:21	Disconcerting - 31:8	142:7, 142:24	Entire - 45:11, 93:20	Evidenced - 106:20
Determined - 31:18,	Discreet - 37:18	Earned - 81:8, 84:21,	Entities - 18:2	Examination - 128:22
34:18, 37:24, 57:23,	Discrepancies -	105:17, 108:20	Entitled - 26:13,	Examining - 120:8
59:22, 60:3, 90:17,	35:11 Discustion 11:7	Earning - 103:25,	33:24, 37:8, 37:15,	Example - 10:4, 11:6,
97:2, 119:18	Discretion - 11:7,	105:14	42:21, 43:1, 58:6,	12:7, 12:16, 13:25,
Determines - 33:22,	39:13, 88:16, 101:16,	Easy - 141:5	74:11, 74:25, 76:12,	37:11, 57:14, 86:3,
37:20 Determining - 37:25	103:5, 108:17, 137:17 Discriminatory -	Echo - 91:2, 100:22	76:15, 95:14, 105:10, 106:9, 107:20, 119:7	133:19, 142:14 Examples - 6:5, 7:1,
Determining - 37:25, 45:24, 52:19, 53:11,	129:14	Effective - 4:2, 4:5,	Entitlement - 41:1,	8:4, 9:22, 19:14
45.24, 52.19, 55.11, 79:24, 83:12, 84:13,	Discussing - 44:3	7:4, 7:12, 73:3, 111:7	88:11, 104:9, 104:11,	Exceed - 33:15
86:25, 90:1, 90:15,	Discussions - 11:20,	Effectively - 74:22	104:17	Exceeding - 78:15
110:24	45:13	Effectiveness - 19:1,	Entitlements - 60:13	Except - 25:23, 89:6,
Develop - 99:13,	Disentitle - 135:6	97:4, 98:20	Entrant - 131:13	130:21
99:17	Dispute - 68:8	Efficiencies - 22:4,	Entrants - 131:3	Exception - 111:13
Developed - 130:6	Distant - 131:7	22:20, 28:19	EPCA - 110:9	Exceptions - 80:18
Deviate - 85:22,	Distinction - 20:12,	Efficiency - 30:25,	EPCE - 111:24	Excess - 36:19
89:25	21:14	31:7, 100:6	Equal - 23:24, 75:3	Executive - 99:22
Dictate - 97:21, 99:23	Distinguishable -	Efficient - 30:22,	Equally - 30:19,	Exemption - 117:4,
Didn't - 11:16, 11:21,	39:3, 42:5, 42:14,	132:12	110:5	117:12, 118:2
59:6, 143:4, 143:8	57:18, 67:8, 70:19	Efficiently - 75:24,	Equitable - 44:15	Exercise - 19:24,
Difference - 76:16	Distinguishing -	123:10	Equity - 15:11, 37:16,	25:14, 39:12, 99:3,
Different - 17:14,	66:6, 79:10	Effort - 144:8	42:8, 74:4, 75:3, 75:9,	104:24, 105:4, 110:22
17:15, 18:1, 48:25,	Distributed - 79:1	Efforts - 123:9	93:6, 95:23, 96:7,	Exercised - 26:22,
57:11, 61:15, 64:13,	Document - 101:14,	Eight - 52:16 Electrical - 4:12,	96:11, 107:11, 107:14	31:3
67:9, 81:9, 84:22,	120:5	6:16, 102:4, 110:10	Escalated - 31:9	Exercising - 25:7
106:10, 113:18,	Dogs - 3:6	Elsewhere - 46:1,	Escalations - 30:4	Exhaustive - 46:17
			1	

				-
Evicted - 22.5	125.17 140.1	Eiro - 70:10	Eroply $= 90.7$	54.2 127.1
Existed - 23:5	135:17, 140:1	Fire - 79:12	Freely - 90:7	54:3, 137:1
Existence - 8:18,	Fall - 112:9	Firm - 126:3, 126:9,	Frequently - 80:11	GLYNN - 2:17, 2:24,
9:11, 9:24, 28:7	Falling - 37:5	126:18, 126:25, 128:2	Friend - 24:20, 62:21,	2:25, 123:17
Exists - 18:21, 76:11	Falls - 117:3, 118:7	Five - 38:17, 103:4,	78:10, 100:22, 113:22	Go - 7:19, 19:10,
Expect - 2:10, 3:16,	False - 49:18	103:10, 103:21, 104:1	Friendly - 141:7	22:11, 27:1, 41:1,
33:10, 33:19, 119:19,	Far - 84:7, 96:15,	Fixed - 116:5	Friends - 104:8,	87:14, 108:7, 108:14,
140:18	108:7, 108:14, 109:17	Flattens - 48:4	104:20, 105:23,	109:17, 118:1,
Expectation - 33:13	Fashion - 96:4, 121:1	FLEMING - 2:7, 2:9,	140:24	132:15, 133:2,
Expected - 54:25,	Favour - 35:15,	123:5, 123:6, 123:18,	Ftes - 97:17	133:10, 142:10,
119:9	74:15, 101:25	123:20, 124:1	Full - 8:20, 9:12,	143:18
Expenditures -	Features - 79:10	Flexibility - 20:20,	52:23, 76:21, 104:14,	Goals - 130:11
32:12, 34:6, 78:2	Feed - 118:8	26:20, 27:6	104:25, 113:11	Good - 2:4, 2:8, 2:13,
Expense - 81:20	Feel - 101:10, 111:22,	Focus - 28:2, 99:22,	Fuller - 132:5	77:2, 115:4, 121:6,
Expenses - 21:19,	112:3, 120:21	104:5	Fully - 78:12, 91:16,	125:14
25:22, 33:21, 37:19,	Feels - 30:19, 115:21,	Focused - 27:23,	97:12, 131:22, 141:21	Got - 48:2, 60:25,
78:14, 80:16, 141:20,	121:25	29:21, 31:14, 55:23,	Fund - 129:20,	64:8, 78:4, 132:14,
142:5, 142:9, 142:22	Felt - 31:3	124:16	142:14	133:3, 141:12
Experience - 45:22	FERC - 128:23,	Follow - 90:23	Fundamental - 86:15,	Governing - 99:10
Experienced - 30:3,	129:10, 129:21,	Following - 44:6,	104:3	Government - 2:19,
80:24, 92:14	130:10, 130:13	47:1, 71:25, 74:23,	Funded - 129:19,	16:14, 16:16, 17:15,
Expert - 43:20, 44:4,	FERC's - 129:12,	93:17, 98:11	130:9	34:21, 75:12, 102:6,
44:5, 45:22, 47:7,	130:2	Follows - 11:25, 41:4,	Further - 2:20, 13:19,	118:24, 136:7
64:11, 87:10, 87:15,	Field - 96:21	69:13, 80:13, 103:10,	22:11, 23:9, 32:16,	Grammar - 82:18
92:13	File - 53:25, 56:3,	109:24, 114:1, 114:13	46:23, 69:12, 94:16,	Grammatical - 93:21
Experts - 43:25	58:25, 59:10, 66:9,	Forecasted - 54:1	119:15, 123:18,	Grant - 101:16,
Explain - 138:6	66:12, 70:23, 71:2,	Forecasting - 74:18	125:9, 128:10,	103:24, 108:3
Explained - 134:13	72:23, 73:19, 74:3,	Forecasts - 14:6,	128:13, 128:16	Granted - 64:24,
Explanation - 129:7	76:19, 83:4, 86:3,		120.13, 120.10	65:23, 65:24, 108:9
		14:12, 14:18, 86:5, 110:24	G	
Explanatory - 3:25	86:11, 88:24, 92:2,			Grapple - 35:25
Explicit - 89:4	98:12, 99:13	Foremost - 33:5	Gain - 19:3, 19:17,	Gras - 18:15, 115:2,
Expressed - 76:17,	Filing - 61:22, 65:19,	Forever - 143:19	29:22	116:1 Creama 2:1
102:4, 116:14	65:20, 68:1, 76:20,	Form - 14:24, 50:11	Gaps - 116:1	Greene - 3:1
Extended - 9:19	76:24, 83:16, 88:25,	Forma - 81:20	Gas - 66:15, 67:7	Greg - 2:6
Extent - 17:20, 23:5,	94:17, 106:15, 107:2,	Formal - 99:17	Gathered - 90:19	Greneman - 45:19,
23:25, 34:6, 35:12,	115:14, 120:18,	Forms - 12:2	Gave - 128:20	47:4
44:21, 63:7, 63:20,	120:24, 128:9,	Formula - 70:21, 96:8	Generalized - 38:24,	Ground - 91:17,
74:25, 81:6, 122:4,	134:11, 134:17, 140:3	Fortis - 98:14	39:17, 39:18, 40:8	95:18
127:21	Filings - 117:8	Forward - 56:15,	Generated - 126:14	Group - 2:2, 31:17,
External - 3:1	Final - 8:15, 9:3, 10:9,	81:18, 83:21, 91:7,	Generation - 38:8,	43:16, 97:18, 108:6,
Extraordinary -	10:11, 17:2, 22:22,	95:17, 104:24,	38:23	116:24
25:24, 57:14	23:7, 60:2, 60:4, 60:5,	107:19, 108:23,	Genesis - 68:17	Groups - 140:16
	62:9, 137:1, 137:6	116:4, 119:16, 133:22,	Get - 29:14, 29:17,	Growing - 130:4
F	Finally - 45:19, 95:21,	136:13, 138:4, 138:7,	30:19, 49:3, 96:19,	Guarantee - 104:10,
Face - 20:6, 20:7	100:22, 138:22	138:14, 140:15	99:25, 100:14,	107:13, 107:17
Facilities - 47:25,	Finance - 54:10	Found - 14:1, 38:8,	106:23, 107:21,	Guaranteed - 26:3,
48:12	Financial - 26:15,	39:9, 52:7, 98:19,	122:22, 144:2	26:6, 95:12
Facility - 48:6	26:19, 34:22, 40:21,	110:15, 137:21	Gets - 16:12, 19:23	Guess - 3:11, 24:16,
Facto - 113:8	41:14, 43:10, 57:25,	Foundational -	Give - 10:16, 19:6,	26:9, 47:21, 50:21,
Factors - 113:14,	58:20, 59:13, 71:9,	101:14	19:16, 41:21, 78:4,	76:21, 100:21, 133:2
139:21	74:6, 85:21, 105:20,	Four - 124:11,	90:7, 132:21, 134:11,	Guidance - 75:11
Failed - 60:13	106:2, 106:8, 108:5,	125:10, 125:17	137:12	Guide - 25:7, 81:1
Failure - 103:11	109:5	Fourth - 111:4	Given - 7:3, 12:22,	Guided - 24:24, 37:3
Fair - 28:2, 37:8,	Find - 55:13, 110:25,	Frame - 131:16	17:25, 26:20, 28:6,	Guidelines - 122:1
37:18, 46:11, 98:12,	135:22	Framework - 25:6,	43:17, 45:12, 63:1,	
142:7	Finding - 110:4	53:24, 95:19, 128:23,	63:3, 79:7, 79:9,	Н
Fairly - 45:15, 46:6,	Fine - 143:11	128:24	129:9, 131:16, 136:4	Handle - 31:12
84:8, 92:19, 116:25,	Fingers - 21:5	Frankly - 79:15	Gives - 8:19, 9:12,	Happening - 5:19

			1	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
Hard - 135:22	Hopefully - 24:18	Impugned - 103:13	Infrastructure -	Intervener - 27:17,
Harmed - 129:24	Horizon - 96:16	Inaccuracies - 35:13	125:24, 129:20	87:21
Harmless - 130:12	Hose - 79:12	Inadequately - 113:9	Inherent - 41:7	Intervener's - 25:4
Harmonious - 95:20	Human - 49:12	Incented - 84:19,	Initial - 65:10, 68:12,	1
	Human - 49.12	-		Invested - 54:25
Harmoniously -		85:18	130:3, 133:11, 137:8	Investigation - 21:18
93:21, 95:5		Incentive - 91:19	Initiatives - 100:5	Investment - 37:9,
Harsh - 58:9	Identification - 99:11	Incentives - 86:18	Innu - 2:14, 125:15,	70:16, 81:5
Hasn't - 69:23, 70:9,	Identified - 89:20	Incomplete - 130:20	126:10, 127:7,	Invitation - 87:19
71:11, 79:14	Identifying - 117:14	Inconsistencies -	128:12, 132:7	Involves - 94:5
Haven't - 46:7, 46:17,	Ignored - 102:11	35:9, 35:13	Input - 122:9	Island - 2:1, 43:15,
46:18, 46:19, 47:19,	III - 90:11, 110:13	Inconsistent - 32:23,	Inquiry - 68:7	43:22, 47:3, 108:6,
47:24, 48:11, 70:7,	I'll - 3:15, 4:17, 15:8,	78:7, 87:25	Ins - 117:2	108:13, 111:8, 111:21,
70:8, 115:4, 141:20	24:19, 101:5, 105:8,	Incorporated -	Instructions - 66:9	112:2, 113:4, 115:17,
Heading - 3:24, 4:9,	129:11, 136:3	140:12	Insurance - 98:13	116:12, 116:23, 118:9,
32:7, 54:11, 68:3	-	Increase - 49:14,	Integrating - 118:6	118:16, 118:18,
Hear - 123:19, 123:21	Illustrate - 52:9, 80:1	49:25, 50:1, 50:5,	Integration - 118:3	122:11
Heard - 47:11, 64:11,	Imbedded - 129:1,	78:2, 130:1	Integrity - 41:14,	Isn't - 43:8, 44:17,
123:22, 123:25,	129:2, 130:2	Increased - 32:19,	43:10, 85:21, 105:21,	82:5, 117:13
133:8, 133:15,	Immediate - 96:16	33:8, 34:7, 49:22,	106:2, 106:9, 108:6,	Issued - 16:14, 16:17,
133:19, 134:23	Impact - 141:16,	85:10	109:6	17:15, 92:24, 102:6,
Hearing - 27:14,	141:22	Increases - 29:24,	Intend - 143:8	124:15
27:17, 28:3, 29:19,	Impacts - 132:6	30:3, 30:18, 74:18	Intended - 73:4,	Item - 25:2, 49:2,
29:20, 58:19, 61:25,	Impeached - 127:13	Increasing - 10:18	73:17	63:5, 71:17, 75:22
70:3, 74:10, 87:8,	Impediment - 114:22,	Incremental - 129:1,	Intending - 60:23	Items - 43:14, 63:6,
96:5, 101:1, 120:4,	115:19	129:4	Intent - 73:14, 74:1,	69:5, 70:12
122:13, 123:10,	Implement - 16:5,	Incumbent - 88:15	75:11, 77:12, 77:16,	IV - 91:1, 91:13
	103:8, 119:2, 137:5			· · ·
131:22, 132:11,	Implementation -	Incur - 36:20, 36:22	106:20, 135:10	I've - 46:6, 93:11,
140:25	62:2	Incurred - 25:22,	Intention - 58:10,	113:17, 123:21,
Heart - 96:14	Implemented - 18:5,	36:1, 36:2, 36:24,	75:14, 93:23	136:5, 138:18, 138:22
Help - 65:25	54:17, 62:3, 72:11,	85:12, 88:5, 117:10,	Inter - 97:6, 97:9	
Helpful - 66:2, 138:5,	74:14, 114:7, 120:14	117:11, 118:20,	Interconnect - 130:7	J
143:11	Implementing - 54:2,	118:21, 118:22, 131:1	Interconnected -	Jacqui - 2:25
Helps - 67:5, 67:18	115:20	Indeed - 8:5, 21:17,	140:17	January - 3:22,
Hence - 83:13, 103:5	Implications - 40:24	23:25	Interest - 10:5, 10:14,	16:24, 17:1, 17:7,
Henderson's - 34:14	Implicit - 128:5	Indicated - 2:19,	27:21, 63:2, 110:12,	17:8, 28:14, 52:14,
He's - 139:17, 140:11,	Implies - 134:1	13:1, 27:15, 39:18,	110:17	68:23, 77:15, 93:3,
140:14	Importance - 104:4,	47:10, 47:12, 51:12,	Interesting - 144:3	107:8, 128:10, 132:3,
High - 48:2	115:23	59:5, 60:5, 60:10,	Interim - 7:7, 7:15,	134:12
Higher - 34:17, 49:13,	Important - 16:12,	60:22, 72:1, 74:16,	7:23, 8:6, 8:11, 9:2,	JOHNSON - 2:3, 2:5,
126:9, 126:10,	28:5, 28:9, 30:19,	100:15, 118:15,	10:8, 10:10, 10:15,	45:14, 45:17, 46:4,
128:22, 128:25,	39:4, 44:24, 58:16,	134:17	10:19, 11:1, 15:18,	46:13, 77:3, 77:4,
129:2, 129:5, 130:3		Indicating - 62:22	15:19, 72:12, 114:9,	77:8, 77:10, 82:6,
Highlight - 41:7	102:17, 103:1, 104:5,	Indication - 42:6,	136:23, 136:24, 137:5	
Highlighted - 30:7,	134:22	73:25	Interpret - 117:7	82:10, 82:14, 82:21,
99:20	Impose - 75:24	Indicative - 30:4	Interpretation -	83:1, 138:2, 143:20,
Historic - 53:1, 53:13,	Imposed - 129:24	Indicators - 99:25	15:10, 15:15, 16:10,	143:21
53:19, 80:6, 81:17,	Imposing - 127:18,	Indirectly - 142:20	18:19, 71:18, 71:22,	Joining - 2:11
81:21, 83:9, 83:17,	131:14	Individually - 32:10	92:21, 101:23,	Judge - 53:2
84:17, 85:1	Impossible - 32:18,	Industry - 39:6	101:25, 102:25,	Judgement - 99:22,
Historical - 51:5,	77:25	Inference - 47:16	114:21, 122:22,	100:9
51:9, 53:21, 56:22,	Improved - 36:12	Inferior - 22:17	124:14	Judgment - 21:11,
79:20, 79:23, 81:2,	Improvement - 31:7	Infinite - 143:18	Interpreted - 72:2,	21:20, 92:17, 97:20
83:21	Improvements -	Inflation - 46:3,	91:23, 114:16	July - 74:10
History - 106:24	100:7	48:15, 78:15, 81:16	Interruptible -	June - 66:10
Hold - 130:12	Improving - 32:24,	Inflationary - 30:6,	127:24, 128:3,	Jurisdictional - 21:25
	78:8	31:9	127.24, 128.3, 128:15	Jurisdictions - 51:13,
Holyrood - 23:2, 92:7	Imprudent - 34:8,			56:3
Homely - 102:9	42:25	Influence - 99:3	Intervened - 78:21	Justified - 136:17,
		1	1	1

1.41.00	04:15 00:00 50 00	Menerge 01:0	Marila 0.10 0.10	
141:20	24:15, 29:20, 50:23,	Manager - 21:9	Merits - 8:10, 8:12,	Muskrat - 117:3,
Justify - 90:8, 110:7	61:24, 64:7	Managerial - 20:20,	8:16, 9:4, 9:7, 9:14,	118:7
	Let's - 121:6	20:25, 21:11, 98:25,	15:20, 15:23, 16:1,	
К	Letter - 3:20, 3:22,	99:3	137:2, 137:6	N
	15:9, 18:23, 22:22,	Mandate - 20:5,	Met - 87:7, 99:6	
Keen - 31:12	28:14, 28:22, 29:18,	51:12, 51:15, 51:17,	Method - 45:3	Nalcor - 28:4, 97:17,
Key - 7:6, 9:3, 24:23,	52:13, 52:16, 78:24,	96:1, 116:17	Methodologies -	98:3, 116:20, 117:2,
27:11, 27:24, 28:15,	90:12, 91:2, 91:13	Mandating - 94:23,	103:6, 108:18, 137:18	118:12
31:1, 79:20	Level - 104:11	95:14	Methodology - 45:3,	Nalcor's - 97:15
Kick - 132:16				NARUC - 52:15
Kirby - 2:6	Levels - 30:6, 31:10	Manual - 52:15, 52:17	45:24, 46:15	Nation - 2:14, 125:15,
Knock - 42:17	Liberty - 31:17	Many - 4:22, 36:8,	Methods - 22:10	126:11, 128:13
Knowledge - 87:9,	Licence - 90:7	51:11, 64:10, 81:10,	Mic - 123:19	Nation's - 127:7,
94:12	Light - 31:8, 102:18	136:20	Million - 56:13, 59:16,	132:7
Known - 20:11, 55:8,	Likewise - 91:23	Marginal - 75:3	60:11, 61:5, 61:7,	Native - 129:17,
68:25, 81:12, 99:10,	Limit - 15:4	Maritime - 118:8	61:10, 62:18, 62:20,	129:18, 130:9, 130:12
	Limited - 2:10, 3:18,	Market - 23:16,	63:1, 63:3, 63:4, 63:9,	
112:12	75:2, 76:5	76:16, 98:12, 119:24,	63:16, 63:17, 63:21	Near - 118:22, 140:4
Knows - 134:10	Limits - 8:22	130:6, 131:14	Minimize - 20:22,	Necessary - 28:6,
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	Line - 36:7, 40:7,	Markup - 98:2, 98:8	95:10	29:7, 34:8, 73:10,
L	40:15, 42:4, 43:24,	Martin - 30:24	Minimum - 112:6,	88:17, 89:5, 109:4,
Lag - 61:21, 61:24,	46:24, 49:9, 97:15,	Match - 51:23	112:24	128:16
65:4, 65:15, 65:22,				Needed - 11:20
	121:23, 133:17	Material - 36:9	Minor - 25:2, 43:16	Net - 57:24, 81:4
66:8	Linear - 140:1	Materials - 80:3,	Mischaracterization	Network - 126:20,
Laid - 77:18	Link - 118:8, 118:9	80:4, 83:19, 92:6	- 33:3	127:5, 128:19,
Language - 114:15	Linked - 18:1	Matrix - 28:4, 98:20,	Missing - 35:14	129:15, 130:1, 130:8
Large - 3:15, 103:5,	Listening - 133:14	99:9, 99:21, 116:19	Mistake - 34:3	NEWMAN - 141:13,
108:16, 137:17	Literal - 101:23	Matters - 77:13,	Misunderstanding -	142:3, 143:1
Largely - 138:8	Load - 128:11,	77:18, 99:14, 100:8,	89:16	Night - 79:1
Largest - 27:20	128:15, 129:17,	132:20, 139:15	Model - 22:2, 99:21,	
Larry - 44:5	129:18, 130:5, 130:9,	Maureen - 3:1	115:5, 115:8, 115:10	Nine - 11:3, 52:16
Late - 11:17, 67:19,	130:12	Maximize - 95:10	Modest - 116:25,	Non - 25:21, 129:14
67:22	Loads - 127:24	Means - 37:15, 73:7,	118:19	Nor - 52:7, 95:4,
Lateness - 61:22	Long - 41:15, 41:18,	108:21, 108:22,	Modified - 81:17	108:4
Later - 2:11, 7:13,	45:11, 116:1, 140:25,	109:18	Money - 78:4, 142:13,	Normal - 30:5, 64:21,
26:1, 47:17, 48:4,				69:7, 69:8, 69:14,
	141:6	Meant - 125:23	142:17	85:22, 94:21, 119:9
52:24, 55:4	Looked - 46:19	Measure - 141:11	Monitor - 100:2	Normally - 132:18
Latest - 80:11	Looking - 5:7, 5:13,	Measured - 51:6,	Month - 11:3, 11:4,	North - 46:21, 46:22
Latter - 134:21	25:11, 53:13, 65:2,	51:7	51:2, 51:19, 52:22,	Note - 2:18, 19:13,
Lawyers - 144:1	82:20, 104:24, 121:2,	Measurement - 51:2,	80:11, 140:5	98:9, 100:3, 111:24,
Lead - 73:13	121:3	51:19, 52:21	Moran - 54:15, 83:19	114:5, 127:12
Learned - 24:20,	Lot - 120:19, 124:2	Measuring - 100:2	Moran's - 54:9	
62:21, 104:8, 105:23,	Lower - 41:22, 49:12	Mechanism - 17:21,	Morning - 2:4, 2:8,	Noted - 49:19, 98:22,
113:22, 140:24	Luck - 136:9	18:15, 75:6, 75:8,	2:11, 2:13, 24:13,	133:16
Leave - 55:20, 84:11	LUK - 2:12, 2:14,	75:19, 93:10, 96:4,	77:23, 87:3, 91:3,	Notion - 56:24, 87:16
Left - 9:8	125:12, 125:13,	108:22, 113:13,	91:12, 92:6, 100:21	Notwithstanding -
Legal - 114:22	140:8, 140:16	114:24, 115:5, 115:7,	Mouth - 48:21	106:7
Legged - 102:8	Luk's - 139:16	115:11, 115:12,	Move - 15:8, 32:16,	Novel - 94:19
Legislation - 95:6,				November - 58:25,
-		115:16, 115:21,	135:13	59:24, 67:21, 68:19,
95:7, 102:1, 102:19,	М	115:24, 116:10	Movement - 67:11	85:4, 87:11, 89:24,
102:25, 103:8,	Main - 77:16	Mechanisms - 99:4,	Moving - 67:23	91:6, 94:16
103:20, 105:8	Mainly - 77:12	114:7, 114:12, 114:17	Much - 13:19, 77:11,	Numbers - 13:22,
Legislative - 73:25,	Maintenance - 32:20,	Megawatt - 68:10,	85:19, 96:10, 101:1,	13:24, 107:21
122:15, 122:19	33:8, 33:11, 34:7,	68:21	103:17, 124:4,	Nunatsiavut - 2:19
Legislature - 122:16	48:3	Mel - 47:7	133:14, 140:25,	Nutshell - 54:16
Legitimate - 97:23		Members - 139:2	141:1, 143:2	
Length - 101:10	Major - 135:18	Mere - 72:24	Multiple - 6:7	
Lengthy - 7:11,	Manage - 84:20,	Merely - 49:6	Multiplying - 55:1	
	85:16, 89:12, 95:9			

0	26:12, 26:17, 30:22,	Outset - 27:14	Performance - 67:12,	141:15
O&M - 43:18, 44:12,	111:16	Overlooks - 88:22	99:25	Positions - 32:19
45:5, 45:20, 45:25,	Operational - 22:19	Overtaken - 13:23,	Perhaps - 10:4,	Potential - 59:18,
	Operations - 19:5,	15:3	17:11, 39:25, 46:7,	127:16, 131:19,
47:6, 48:7	28:19, 52:23, 58:1	Overtime - 49:22,	101:9, 115:8, 118:13,	142:21
Object - 93:22	OPG - 38:6, 39:5,	49:25, 50:9	120:8, 134:19, 139:20	Potentially - 126:13
Objection - 138:6	39:22, 41:6, 41:18,	Overview - 54:11,	Periods - 5:11, 5:13,	Powers - 19:3, 19:7,
Objective - 129:13,	42:2, 42:4, 42:6,	54:13	6:22, 65:24, 114:9	19:12, 19:17, 19:22,
131:24	42:13, 42:14, 43:5	Own - 7:23, 27:18,	Permissible - 40:10	19:25, 21:17, 22:8,
Objectives - 99:5	Opinion - 47:18,	49:20, 69:6, 135:21	Permission - 13:20	25:8, 26:21, 29:10
Obligation - 33:6	47:20	40.20, 00.0, 100.21	Permit - 127:4	Practicable - 4:25,
Obligations - 33:16,	Opportunities - 95:11	Р	Permits - 85:2	5:22, 5:23, 6:2, 6:21,
121:15				
O'brien - 24:9, 24:10,	Opposed - 47:15,	Pace - 78:15	Permitted - 39:14,	112:1, 133:25, 134:1,
25:19, 77:22, 78:10,	118:17	Paid - 39:5	80:18, 106:12	134:2, 136:21, 144:5
87:3, 91:3	Opposing - 119:18	Panel - 93:12, 139:2	Permitting - 81:19	Practices - 64:14,
O'brien's - 100:23	Opposite - 89:21	Par - 33:20	Personnel - 97:14	97:5
Observation - 135:16	Option - 130:14	Parallel - 10:5, 99:14	Perspective - 25:14,	Preapproved - 85:17
Obsession - 82:18	Oral - 24:19, 134:14	Parameters - 21:6	28:13, 28:20, 43:13,	Precedence - 8:9
	Ordered - 58:22,	Parent - 97:25,	64:22	Precedent - 57:19,
Obtain - 88:20	69:12, 70:23, 71:1,	116:20	Persuaded - 90:22	70:15, 90:3
Obtained - 55:1,	98:2, 98:11, 100:4	Parliament - 93:24	Phillips - 80:4, 80:7	Preceding - 124:22
109:20	Orders - 7:7, 7:16,		Philosophically -	Predominantly -
OC - 37:12, 71:18,	7:24, 8:6, 9:2, 15:18,	Partial - 81:19	81:2	130:8
73:5, 73:8, 75:13,	15:19, 98:22, 100:10,	Partially - 11:1, 11:2,	Picking - 121:5	Premature - 140:12
142:1	102:5, 102:19	61:22	Piece - 139:7	Prerogative - 59:8
Occur - 65:19, 75:18,	O'reilly - 2:10, 44:9,	Participants - 89:6	Place - 30:21, 35:5,	Prescribed - 103:15
115:2	44:13, 44:19, 45:14	Participate - 116:19	64:14, 80:14, 80:19,	Presence - 42:7
Occurred - 65:20,	O'reilly's - 72:14	Participation - 27:16,	81:13, 99:5, 115:25,	Present - 39:3, 42:5,
68:18, 81:14	Organization - 28:4,	27:23	116:10	73:9, 139:25
Occurs - 6:11	78:17, 99:9, 116:20,	Particularly - 36:8,	Placed - 85:21	Presented - 10:1,
October - 23:14,	118:7	103:13, 115:24,		-
24:4, 67:1, 111:18,	-	129:16	Places - 20:14	69:23, 93:16, 105:24,
119:14	Organizational -	Parties - 33:4, 67:25,	Plain - 17:10	127:7, 138:12
OEB - 39:7, 66:17	18:23, 19:1, 20:5,	77:14, 78:21, 79:6,	Plan - 11:15, 114:8	President - 30:24,
OEB's - 38:7	22:2, 22:14, 28:6,	93:12, 96:24, 100:25,	Plans - 90:10	31:20
Offered - 56:11,	97:4, 98:21	101:7, 115:15, 120:4,	Pleasant - 132:12	Pressure - 134:15
129:14	Organizes - 21:21,	122:8, 123:9, 124:4,	Pointed - 26:9, 28:14,	Pressures - 135:2,
Officers - 21:12	99:24	135:4	88:2, 92:5, 99:7,	135:11, 136:8
	Original - 23:11,	Parts - 94:20	124:24, 137:15,	Prevents - 25:21
Offset - 49:13, 49:22,	106:15, 107:1	Party - 127:13	139:17	Previous - 14:2,
50:9, 61:5	Originally - 74:8,	Pass - 127:5	Points - 27:11, 49:24,	106:19
Often - 20:23	74:9		50:3, 137:24, 140:7	Price - 23:11, 23:14,
Ones - 46:2, 103:1,	Otherwise - 40:9,	Passage - 52:18,	Policies - 4:20,	23:19, 24:2, 76:5,
138:22	42:25, 52:8, 55:18,	52:20, 54:8, 54:15	16:20, 18:7, 64:14,	76:17, 100:11, 119:5,
Ongoing - 31:18,	69:17, 73:18, 79:11,	Passages - 32:4	107:3, 114:1, 114:13,	119:8, 119:11, 119:18,
86:1	86:17, 89:11, 90:22,	Past - 25:23, 34:9,	117:1, 118:13	119:24
Ontario - 10:7, 11:12,	91:18, 102:12,	56:5, 57:13, 61:25,	Policy - 17:10, 17:11,	Prices - 22:23, 22:24,
38:7, 38:22, 42:15	106:11, 110:7, 113:7,	73:9, 80:24, 81:3,	18:5, 89:4, 96:18,	76:7, 119:25
Onus - 57:4, 87:4,	113:10, 113:20, 137:3	90:8, 98:22, 114:5	102:3, 103:9, 125:3,	Pricing - 130:11
87:7	Oughtn't - 121:3	Patience - 139:10,	128:22, 129:10,	Principle - 20:11,
Open - 23:17, 62:7,	Ourselves - 85:24,	141:1	129:12, 130:3, 130:9,	21:8, 25:21, 58:8,
73:19, 74:2, 90:3,		Paul - 47:2		
129:14	100:19 Outages - 21:19	Pay - 126:17, 128:25	130:11, 130:13	59:19, 61:11, 63:25,
Opening - 27:15,	Outages - 31:19	Pays - 129:4, 129:6	Porter - 2:1, 47:3	76:8, 84:18, 85:15,
68:11	Outcome - 22:17,	Penalized - 58:11	Portion - 124:17	85:19, 89:25, 93:18,
Operate - 114:8	26:18, 42:10	People - 46:9, 46:12,	Position - 29:15,	103:10, 103:21,
Operating - 21:19,	Outcomes - 27:8	141:4	41:14, 45:2, 48:25,	104:1, 140:13
29:25, 75:24, 88:5	Outlined - 35:7,	Percent - 46:9,	59:25, 64:2, 76:1,	Principles - 13:2,
	63:25, 64:1	107:20	76:8, 78:8, 116:13,	24:24, 25:6, 25:11,
Operation - 23:3,				

•		· · ·		· .
57:6, 58:14, 59:12,	Proposition - 5:9,	34:2, 57:3, 101:24,	Reasonableness -	101:10, 105:16,
84:9, 84:16, 86:16,	8:4, 34:12, 44:7	102:2, 102:7, 102:16,		111:14, 140:11
			14:17, 30:8, 54:6,	
86:17, 86:19, 87:17,	Prospect - 82:13,	105:9, 105:10	112:6, 112:25	Refers - 5:7, 18:6,
102:24, 140:11 Prior 57:0, 05:04	82:19, 144:4	Purity - 112:3, 112:13	Reasonably - 36:24,	55:25, 84:14, 137:10
Prior - 57:8, 65:24,	Prospectively -	Purported - 84:9	57:17, 114:15, 121:1	Refinement - 128:13
88:4, 122:7, 129:18,	66:24, 82:3, 82:7,	Pursuant - 116:2	Reasons - 10:6,	Refinements -
130:17	82:11, 82:15, 83:3,	Purview - 116:22	29:23, 30:17, 64:1,	128:16
Pro - 81:19	83:10, 83:25, 85:3	Puts - 41:13, 42:13,	78:10, 98:5	Reflected - 8:8, 23:2,
Problem - 84:9,	Protect - 128:18,	45:17, 71:13	Reassure - 3:16	23:4, 57:18, 98:8
84:16, 91:4, 92:1,	131:21	Putting - 35:2, 48:20,	Rebuttal - 25:1, 32:3,	Reflecting - 23:16
126:19, 128:8	Protected - 130:5	79:4, 95:17, 107:19,	36:6, 36:7, 38:14,	Regards - 96:23,
Problematic -	Protects - 130:25	113:10, 124:9	38:17, 38:19, 41:25,	97:3, 97:6, 97:9,
126:17, 128:6	Proven - 35:18,	Puzzle - 127:20	42:3, 43:4, 49:6, 49:8,	98:18, 98:19, 100:11,
Problems - 80:22	35:23, 49:15, 61:13		70:13, 88:8, 120:5	100:12, 100:17
Procedural - 106:24	Provide - 20:5, 33:6,	Q	Recent - 14:14,	Regime - 83:4, 83:9,
Procedurally -	33:9, 36:15, 51:15,	Quail - 143:17	23:22, 38:21, 42:23,	83:23, 84:5, 84:17,
121:20, 122:12,	55:15, 69:25, 75:10,	Quantifiable - 57:17	52:22	84:25, 89:17
123:14	75:15, 75:20, 77:17,	Quebec - 129:9	Recently - 81:15,	Regis - 129:9
Procedures - 22:5	77:25, 79:7, 107:21	Query - 90:12	93:6, 96:12	Regulate - 19:18
Proceed - 59:11,	Provided - 3:14, 3:17,	Questioning - 29:21,	Recognition - 44:15	Regulation - 20:12,
106:20, 116:7	4:17, 6:5, 6:8, 7:10,	31:13	Recognized - 3:10,	21:15, 41:8
Proceeded - 11:11,	14:6, 14:18, 22:3,	Quick - 133:9	21:16	Regulations - 122:18
135:8	22:16, 39:20, 50:5,	Quo - 76:10	Recognizes - 20:11	Regulative - 20:24,
Proceedings - 7:11	70:1, 70:2, 92:12,	Quote - 14:3, 26:10,	Recommended -	98:24
Processes - 30:20,	93:12, 98:14, 102:19,	44:8	40:22, 98:16	Regulator - 7:14,
89:6	120:13	Quotes - 14:2	Reconcile - 32:19	51:23, 55:3, 90:18,
Produced - 69:23	Providers - 129:14	Quoting - 129:8	Reconciled - 32:13,	137:1
Product - 37:23, 38:4	Provides - 66:18,		36:10	Regulators - 6:6,
Productivity - 29:5,	98:3, 112:24	R	Reconciliation - 50:3	6:18, 6:19, 54:21,
75:25, 100:6	Providing - 36:20,		Reconstructed -	89:3
Professional - 141:5	39:12, 51:3, 51:24,	Raise - 41:23, 120:2	117:22	Reiterate - 134:5,
Profit - 55:1	97:14, 105:19	Raised - 4:8, 18:24,	Recorded - 40:20	140:23
Profound - 89:15	Province - 96:21,	24:21, 31:17, 43:15,	Recording - 3:5,	Relate - 9:16
Programs - 31:6	102:3	132:21, 140:14, 144:1	32:16	Relation - 9:13, 10:4,
Progress - 132:11	Province's - 7:18	Raises - 4:1, 124:6,	Recovered - 39:15,	15:12, 16:9, 22:25,
Prohibit - 115:3	Provincial - 34:21,	140:8	61:9, 122:5, 126:23	23:10, 101:18, 105:6,
Projections - 65:1	103:8	Ran - 123:13	Recoveries - 62:1	106:17, 106:18,
Projects - 68:10,	Proving - 34:13, 35:2	Range - 26:8, 37:6,	Recovering - 25:22	109:25
68:22	Provision - 5:2, 5:14,	61:6, 63:17, 112:10	Recovery - 8:21,	Relationship - 81:4,
Pronounce - 144:8	18:11, 36:14	Raphals - 127:9,	56:12, 59:18, 62:4,	132:10 Relationshina 91:7
Proof - 22:14	Provisional - 130:22,	128:20, 129:8	72:25, 85:6, 85:11,	Relationships - 81:7
Proper - 61:16,	132:1 Provisionally	Rather - 16:14, 90:8,	86:8, 87:23, 88:3,	Relative - 81:23,
86:16, 97:20	Provisionally -	107:17 Bo 65:10 65:20	88:9, 88:17, 90:4,	83:7, 83:15
Properly - 19:24,	131:10, 132:4	Re - 65:19, 65:20,	94:18, 110:2	Reliability - 27:25,
40:4, 91:6	Provisions - 4:10,	66:9, 120:8	Rectify - 128:9	31:13, 31:15, 32:6,
Property - 80:17	19:6, 19:16, 20:1,	Reaches - 9:14 Readily - 31:16,	Rectifying - 108:21	32:8, 32:15, 32:24,
Proposal - 30:13,	20:4		Reduce - 42:17,	33:13, 33:17, 36:12,
56:9, 56:15, 57:5, 50:5, 50:7, 60:2, 87:5	Prudence - 31:23,	34:11, 52:24, 56:8	63:21, 78:5	77:22, 78:1, 78:8
59:5, 59:7, 60:2, 87:5,	90:9 Prudont - 22:22	Reality - 89:21 Realize - 47:19	Reduced - 141:22	Reliable - 33:6, 33:9,
94:6, 99:16, 116:25,	Prudent - 33:23,	Realized - 12:9	Reducing - 32:21	36:14, 36:20
119:1 Proposals - 4:3, 30:9	34:1, 34:5, 34:25,	Reason - 16:18,	Reduction - 40:8,	Reliance - 7:22
Proposals - 4:3, 30:9	35:3, 35:19, 37:21,	22:12, 34:20, 43:5,	43:8, 60:4, 60:6,	Relief - 4:3, 7:25,
Propose - 36:9,	39:11, 141:21, 142:23		60:12, 97:24	10:19, 57:20, 95:18,
102:9, 133:6 Bronosos - 92:6	Prudently - 85:12	43:11, 45:1, 49:5,	Reductions - 12:8,	101:17, 103:24,
Proposes - 92:6 Proposing - 125:6	PU - 57:24, 70:15,	60:24, 65:15, 66:7,	97:11 Potorrod - 28:6	105:19, 108:3, 108:8,
Proposing - 125:6, 132:3	99:1 Public - 19:7, 29:11,	69:15, 69:20, 116:7, 142:1	Referred - 38:6, 54:18, 92:17, 101:9,	135:6 Relies - 7:20, 38:21
102.0		, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,	J JT. 10, JZ. 17, 101.3,	10103 - 7.20, 30.21
	1		1	

Doly 14.9 10.00	129:12, 129:18	123:10	70.01 70.00 100.00	Clippony 112.0
Rely - 14:8, 19:22 Relying - 41:6, 65:1	Result - 26:2, 26:23,	Runs - 45:12	72:21, 72:23, 120:23, 122:5, 142:6	Slippery - 113:8 Slope - 113:8
Remain - 92:7	27:7, 37:4, 40:17,	Rural - 142:14	September - 45:16,	Sole - 56:12
Remainder - 29:17	41:12, 57:25, 61:20	Russell - 87:7	86:4, 127:9	Somewhat - 3:15,
Remains - 59:21,	Resulted - 27:7		Served - 127:3	70:18
		S		
84:6, 99:8, 101:14	Results - 11:3, 12:21,	3	Serves - 85:8	Sought - 95:15
Remedial - 28:23,	12:24, 13:13, 13:17,	Sake - 100:18	Service - 33:6, 33:10,	Sound - 57:2, 58:9,
96:25	15:4, 40:21	Salaries - 39:5, 39:24	36:15, 36:21, 39:12,	102:7, 102:16
Remind - 4:18	Retroactive - 21:1,	Salary - 39:8	44:1, 51:3, 51:24,	Sounds - 43:3
Reply - 77:21, 88:15,	26:23, 53:22, 58:3,	Sales - 76:17	54:19, 68:16, 68:23,	Speaks - 16:19,
120:5, 120:13,	73:24, 88:6	Satisfied - 75:23,	69:1, 88:20, 92:9,	81:22, 83:20, 124:20
127:20, 128:4, 133:7 Papart 100:5	Retroactivity - 25:21,	119:13	129:25 Services - 97:14,	Special - 139:1 Specific - 31:6,
Report - 100:5, 128:21	137:13 Betroopeet 92:16	Save - 25:23		
	Retrospect - 82:16	Savings - 22:3,	97:18, 98:3, 98:13	39:10, 39:21, 39:23,
Reported - 100:1	Retrospective - 8:1,	22:19, 49:21	Sessions - 3:6	41:10, 41:13, 50:18,
REPORTER - 3:7 Reporting - 29:11	137:4 Retrospectivity -	Saw - 79:2	Sets - 4:20, 5:18,	57:16, 103:12, 109:10
Reporting - 28:11,	137:14	SCC - 38:23	13:3, 14:4, 17:13,	Speed - 45:21
29:3, 36:13, 78:1, 117:16	Returns - 96:20	Scenario - 61:15,	34:3, 42:2, 93:13, 95:7	Spend - 90:7, 120:19, 133:14
	Revenues - 32:21,	67:9, 83:14	Settlement - 65:16,	Spending - 90:8
Reporting/ Compliance - 99:4	80:25, 81:4, 92:15	Scene - 126:20	65:18, 116:2	Spent - 120:22
Representative -	Reviewed - 71:9	Scheduled - 74:8,	Several - 5:4, 92:22	Split - 138:24
53:4, 53:7	Reviews - 45:7	74:10	Shape - 50:10	Spoken - 113:17
Represented - 51:4	Revision - 119:20	Scheme - 67:12,	Shared - 97:14	Spot - 71:16
Request - 13:9,	Revisit - 98:4	67:23, 93:22, 95:6,	Shareholder - 34:21	Spotlight - 31:23
49:21, 72:25, 92:20,	Revolved - 28:3	121:9, 122:16, 122:19	Shoes - 93:11	Square - 78:18,
98:5, 138:2, 138:15	Rider - 119:20,	Scope - 101:15	Shouldn't - 73:1,	127:14
Requested - 13:6	119:24	Scrutiny - 36:13, 55:6	116:18, 119:7, 125:5	Squarely - 127:15
Requesting - 101:17,	Rise - 78:14, 137:12	Second - 53:10,	Show - 49:25, 50:12,	Stabilization - 114:8
129:25	Risk - 41:15, 41:18,	78:22, 80:19, 106:4,	66:19	Staff - 2:16, 24:14,
Require - 19:12,	43:10, 59:13, 79:4,	123:21, 136:23	Showing - 58:12,	80:9, 80:14, 100:24,
32:22, 73:25, 108:2,	85:21, 131:5, 131:13,	Secretary - 3:3	87:4	123:8, 141:3
116:17, 126:18,	131:15, 131:19	Sections - 19:10	Shown - 33:17,	Stale - 53:15
126:20, 136:20	Risks - 20:22, 26:15,	See - 6:25, 10:24,	33:25, 34:8, 70:9	Stand - 102:12
Required - 14:5,	95:10, 127:17	11:14, 12:25, 25:10,	Shows - 49:24	Standard - 39:6
33:8, 131:23	Rizzo - 93:11	29:10, 30:5, 47:24,	Side - 84:11	Standpoint - 96:18
Requirements -	Road - 87:14, 143:14	58:2, 83:7, 112:9,	Significance - 15:14,	Start - 3:19, 67:15,
13:16, 29:3, 39:1,	ROE - 15:24, 17:22,	114:14, 121:12,	26:25, 71:20, 87:20	69:3, 101:5, 117:10,
40:19, 52:2, 80:21,	17:23, 18:1, 18:12,	121:22, 126:4, 143:19	Significant - 29:23,	117:19, 118:19, 123:7
89:8, 90:1	74:11, 74:12, 75:15,	Seeing - 96:20	30:18, 35:10, 40:17	Started - 133:11
Requires - 89:9,	75:17, 75:19, 96:12	Seek - 32:14, 36:12,	Similar - 12:18,	Starting - 4:7, 4:11,
113:17, 127:2	Roger - 54:9	107:24, 119:2	17:19, 21:3, 137:7	32:4, 43:24, 105:12,
Requiring - 22:9	Role - 99:2, 100:25	Seeking - 74:3, 82:2,	Simple - 126:1,	134:15
Research - 50:22	Rolls - 97:22	83:2, 83:10, 83:24,	128:7, 140:1	Starts - 45:18, 80:7
Resolution - 99:11	Rotating - 31:19	85:5, 85:24, 106:1,	Simplest - 50:24	State - 76:6, 137:16
Resolved - 35:15	Round - 45:21, 83:18	108:1, 108:9, 108:12	Simplistic - 139:20	Statement - 20:19,
Resources - 49:12	RSP - 23:3, 23:7,	Seeks - 29:25, 34:16,	Simply - 78:18,	21:3, 27:15, 46:11,
Respectful - 17:17,	63:2, 76:11, 111:16,	85:6 Seen - 8:2, 46:6,	121:2, 121:3	49:18, 78:5, 89:4,
89:14, 92:16	113:13, 119:10,	46:18, 78:14, 115:4	Single - 92:18	93:17, 130:10, 133:19
Respectfully - 91:10	119:20	Sees - 9:13	Sit - 87:12	Statements - 133:16,
Respond - 20:22,	Rule - 21:10, 120:14,	Segregated - 59:17	Situation - 6:7, 6:10,	133:17
138:14	121:2, 121:4, 121:12,	Select - 80:10	7:4, 10:15, 12:18,	Status - 76:10
Response - 49:19,	121:22	Sensible - 141:7	13:21, 80:6, 83:23	Statute - 19:13, 20:4,
132:22	Rules - 99:10, 99:13,	Sensibly - 32:12,	Situations - 9:23	20:7, 133:12, 133:18,
Responsibility -	117:24, 121:18,	36:10	Six - 42:3	133:22, 134:5,
34:10, 88:23	122:1, 122:14, 122:24	Senwung - 2:14	Sizable - 23:15	136:20, 137:20, 144:9
Restructuring -	Run - 30:21, 64:8,	Separate - 37:21,	Slight - 140:6	Statutory - 4:10,

r		F		
33:16, 51:11, 51:14,	Supplying - 101:22	85:13, 112:7, 112:8,	135:24, 135:25,	Typical - 11:8, 14:19
88:11, 89:18, 103:12,	Support - 14:6,	113:9	136:4, 136:11,	Typically - 12:19,
109:12	48:19, 92:13, 124:3,	Testimony - 36:5,	136:15, 136:18,	94:5
Stay - 141:6	124:9	48:23, 50:12, 127:9,	137:11, 137:15,	
Steal - 72:14	Supported - 44:2	134:14	137:22, 138:17,	U
Step - 96:20	Supporting - 87:15	Testing - 113:12	138:20	
Steps - 131:24	Supportive - 44:22,	Tests - 57:1	Top - 80:7	Ultimate - 8:13,
Stool - 102:9, 102:12	48:19	Text - 54:9, 54:10,	Topic - 91:20	120:20, 141:23
Stress - 134:23	Supports - 123:14,	55:13	Total - 54:17, 54:19,	Unable - 55:12, 55:15
Strict - 81:3, 99:13	128:13	Thankfully - 124:2	55:6, 61:6, 63:19,	Unavoidable - 32:20
Structure - 18:24,	Suppose - 45:21	Thanking - 123:8,	97:17	Unclear - 60:1
-		132:9	Totals - 54:20	Underlying - 102:1,
19:2, 20:6, 22:10,	Supreme - 7:21, 38:9,			135:3
22:14, 28:7, 28:18,	38:21, 93:10	That'll - 25:7	Touch - 25:3, 49:3,	Undermine - 89:11
28:24, 29:2, 29:9,	Surely - 90:23	Theoretical - 48:10	49:5, 71:17, 77:20,	Undermined - 86:19,
75:21, 76:3, 96:23,	Surrounding - 45:10	Theoretically - 44:18,	133:7, 138:11	106:3
97:5, 98:21, 116:12,	Suspended - 70:21	47:22	Touched - 20:13,	Undermines - 85:14,
116:18	Swap - 112:20	Theory - 48:15	75:21	86:15, 105:20
Structured - 29:13	System - 48:8, 130:2,	Thereby - 103:15	Toward - 81:15	Undermining - 91:18
Studied - 47:19	130:17, 131:4,	There'd - 115:13	Towards - 31:6	Understood - 19:11,
Studies - 46:7, 48:12	139:25, 140:17,	Therefore - 20:25,	Track - 31:22	
Sub - 9:15, 105:9	140:21	70:5	Tracked - 96:12	89:5
Submits - 30:12,		They're - 3:17, 6:24,	Tracking - 117:1,	Undertake - 103:13
34:24, 39:2, 42:4,	Т	9:25, 26:5, 36:3,	117:17, 117:25,	Undertaking - 49:19,
57:7, 131:18		37:21, 44:3, 48:13,	118:11, 118:20	49:20, 49:24, 50:2,
Submitted - 11:15,	Tab - 4:16, 7:18, 10:3,	50:23, 62:25, 107:25,	Traditional - 81:17,	50:14
13:16, 62:11, 88:8,	10:24, 11:12, 12:16,	112:7, 118:21, 127:21,	129:17	Unduly - 129:23
93:25, 127:25, 131:8	13:1, 19:8, 19:14,	128:1, 128:8, 133:25,	Transcript - 82:23	Unfair - 121:20,
	20:9, 64:6, 66:15,	138:21		122:13
Subsequent - 122:7	66:16, 67:9, 101:12		Transcripts - 45:8, 127:10	Unheard - 56:2
Subsequently -	Table - 60:16, 61:3,	They've - 27:5, 62:25,		Union - 67:7
106:22	63:14, 63:15, 126:4	63:2, 86:10, 117:9	Transparency -	Universe - 143:18
Subsidiaries - 117:3,	Tables - 39:21	Third - 28:22	18:25, 19:20, 28:13,	Unknown - 94:20,
118:12	Taking - 48:25	Thorough - 55:6	97:3, 98:19	114:10
Substantially - 34:17	Tantamount - 88:10	Thoroughly - 71:8	Transparent - 117:1	Unless - 43:6, 69:12,
Substitute - 21:11,	Target - 93:5, 96:9,	Three - 11:4, 27:24,	Treated - 91:1, 111:5,	69:13
21:20, 112:20	107:11, 107:14,	54:10, 75:22, 102:8,	111:12	Unpredictable -
Succinct - 129:6	107:17	102:13, 103:10,	Treating - 58:2	57:15
Succinctly - 72:15,		103:11, 109:25,	Treatment - 9:17,	Unreasonable -
93:13	Targeted - 39:7	141:18	15:14, 16:7, 47:6,	
Suffice - 30:11	Targeting - 100:6	Thunder - 72:15	71:21	39:10
Sufficient - 50:15,	Task - 77:16	Thus - 20:23, 130:2	Tricky - 126:12	Unsupported - 50:8,
54:22	Taxes - 54:23	Timely - 86:12, 88:24,	Turn - 4:13, 28:21,	50:11
Suggested - 49:16,	Technically - 13:20	89:1, 89:20	32:2, 79:16, 80:2,	Untenable - 78:9
58:23	Technocratic -	Times - 8:2, 123:11,	90:11, 101:11, 102:21,	Untoward - 35:1,
Suggestion - 49:12,	101:23	123:22, 136:20	109:10, 112:14	41:19
50:8, 135:5, 142:16	Telling - 18:11, 18:14	Timing - 11:10, 12:11,	Turning - 50:18,	Upcoming - 118:7
Suggestions -	Ten - 46:10, 52:17	12:19, 13:21, 124:20	90:12, 92:21	Update - 24:1, 60:23
142:13	Term - 40:9, 41:15,		Twelve - 80:11	Updated - 12:3,
	41:18, 41:23, 43:8,	Today - 24:17, 24:19,		23:13, 24:5, 76:21,
Suggests - 41:19,	95:2	87:12, 93:17, 101:13,	Two - 7:24, 16:2,	100:16, 111:18
44:21, 52:8, 89:17	Terminology - 81:21	104:8, 115:9, 117:6,	16:6, 18:1, 20:13,	Upfront - 29:14
Summary - 39:20,	Terms - 28:25, 29:8,	123:16, 124:2	32:7, 37:21, 39:4,	Upgrade - 127:5,
60:16, 61:6, 61:8,	31:1, 50:24, 64:14,	Tolls - 94:7, 104:16	39:20, 55:25, 56:3,	128:19, 129:2
63:15, 63:16, 77:17	66:3, 67:5, 78:24,	Tom - 2:5, 2:10	57:11, 96:20, 101:23,	Upgrades - 126:21,
Supervision - 21:18	103:17, 115:5, 115:16,	Took - 12:8, 59:14,	103:3, 103:9, 109:23,	130:1
Supervisory - 21:7,		59:25, 81:13	135:22, 139:15	
25:8	118:10, 119:8, 127:17,	Tool - 137:8	Types - 114:11,	Usage - 56:18
Supply - 4:23, 5:1,	141:19	Tools - 7:6, 7:14,	114:17, 121:18,	Users - 126:13,
5:8, 31:23	Tested - 47:24, 69:24,	7:25, 9:3, 135:14,	122:24	127:17, 127:19,
	70:4, 70:7, 70:8,			129:23
1	1		1	1

r				-
Heac = 11:1 11:0	Woight 70.0	Voctorday 17:5		
Uses - 11:1, 11:3,	Weight - 79:9	Yesterday - 47:5,		
46:15	Weird - 82:23	64:8, 79:1		
Using - 52:5, 52:25,	Welcome - 100:16	You'd - 44:19, 69:9,		
81:18, 83:5, 83:11,	We'll - 26:1, 78:6,	91:18		
84:1, 86:4, 92:3,	84:14, 143:19	You'll - 10:24, 25:10,		
113:8, 114:17	We're - 8:14, 24:16,	28:16, 35:22		
Utilities - 12:17, 19:8,	35:19, 35:20, 48:1,	Young - 3:11, 132:17,		
19:18, 34:2, 75:16,	79:11, 107:19, 113:7	137:25, 139:12,		
84:24, 86:16, 90:7,	Weren't - 12:10,	139:13		
101:24, 102:2, 105:9,	68:16	You're - 25:12, 27:18,		
120:15	We've - 35:7, 39:20,	35:24, 53:17, 53:20,		
Utility's - 21:18,	40:13, 50:21, 63:14,	82:20, 123:25,		
37:19, 41:21, 51:3,	68:7, 77:18, 94:13,	125:12, 141:6, 141:11		
51:23, 52:2, 54:5,	143:15	You've - 28:22, 37:23,		
54:22, 57:19, 80:15,	WHALEN - 143:3,	48:2, 50:19, 68:3,		
81:24, 83:15, 85:15,	143:9	71:19, 78:4		
94:6, 94:8	What's - 5:19, 34:5,			
	48:21, 53:9, 66:6,			
V	79:13, 121:11,			
	127:19, 136:2, 144:8			
Vacancies - 49:13,	Whole - 32:11, 85:15			
50:5	Wholesale - 130:5			
Vacancy - 49:4, 49:9,	Who've - 78:21			
49:21, 50:10, 50:16	Widely - 7:24, 137:11			
Vale - 2:9, 44:4,	Willingness - 100:15			
46:16, 93:25, 123:14	Wish - 78:23			
Vale's - 47:7, 72:16	Wishes - 87:13			
Value - 98:13, 122:1	Witness - 43:20			
Variable - 126:2,	Witnesses - 29:21,			
126:3, 128:2	31:2, 31:14, 34:11,			
Variances - 23:4				
Variations - 57:15	36:4, 46:8, 60:22,			
Varies - 51:9	69:7, 74:16, 78:16,			
Vast - 78:25	118:5, 134:13, 134:17			
Vastly - 78:14	Won't - 7:19, 45:20,			
Verse - 30:11	62:5, 98:4			
Version - 16:15	Word - 13:23, 107:6,			
Versus - 9:17, 38:10,	134:24, 135:25, 136:4			
38:22	Wording - 4:14, 4:18,			
VI - 113:1	113:24 Warda 5:0 7:00			
Vice - 31:19, 143:3,	Words - 5:3, 7:23,			
143:9	17:10, 18:20, 26:21,			
View - 15:5, 32:21,	30:22, 41:8, 43:12,			
87:20, 96:2, 99:24,	48:21, 52:1, 93:19,			
111:9, 115:18, 118:19,	103:16, 106:25,			
133:17	107:12 Work 11:00 21:01			
Volume - 76:16	Work - 11:20, 31:21,			
Voyage - 141:6	115:6, 115:9			
	Worse - 76:10			
W	Worthy - 123:25			
	Wouldn't - 69:1,			
Wage - 39:8	109:17, 135:19			
Wages - 39:5, 39:24	Written - 30:9, 35:7,			
Warns - 101:22	36:6, 40:23, 79:8,			
Wasn't - 13:7, 58:21,	87:22, 88:15, 92:5			
58:22, 66:9				
Ways - 33:2	Y			
We'd - 61:7, 76:5	Year's - 57:8			
	-			